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701.7 690.5 11.2 1.6
400.5 381.6 18.8 4.9
)
D 1.74 2.08
D 0.38 0.01
2 17.7 22.7
48.7 47.9
57.1 55.3

¢ D3
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2016

0.10

2016 9

2015

2016 2

0.04

DNB

Vipps
Vipps

EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )

oOoOooodn
2015 20 2016 5
DNB DNB 2015
4.0 DNB
2015 2016 3.2
2015
1.6
2015
990 654
2015 0.01 2016
2015 12 25.4 2016 11 25.1
31.8 DNB 19
2016 116 57
2016 50
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2015
5.4
( 2016 2015
6,358 6,131 227 3.7
1,418 1,190 227 19.1
7,776 7,322 454 6.2
(3,102) (2,840) (262) (9.2)
4,674 4,481 192 4.3
2 ©) 3
(1,082) (1,068) (14) (1.3)
6 3 3
3,599 3,414 185 5.4
(900) (922) 22 2.4
2,699 2,492 207 8.3
( )
226.0 216.0 10.0 4.6
177.3 171.4 5.9 3.4
)
1 2.47 2.43
D 0.42 0.27
) 11.2 12.0
/ 39.9 38.8
78.4 79.3
( D3
( 2)DNB
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2015 3.7

19.1

2015 9.2

2016 0.48
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2015
¢ ) 2016 2015
14,300 15,196 (896) (5.9)
5,381 5,232 149 2.9
19,681 20,427 (747) @3.7)
(7,408) (7,476) 68 0.9
12,272 12,951 (679) (5.2)
24 53 (30) (56.0)
(6,734) (2,108) (4,626)
8 (67) 75
5,570 10,829 (5,259) (48.6)
(1,504) (3,140) 1,636 52.1
3 3
4,070 7,689 (3,619) 47.1)
( )
550.4 568.1 17.7) (3.1)
375.8 393.0 17.2) 4.9
)
1 2.23 2.18
1 (0.06) (0.09)
2 5.0 11.1
/ 38.4 37.8
68.3 69.2
( 13
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2015 3.1 2015 2016
4.4
6.2 2016 DNB
2015 4.4
2015 2016
2015 0.05 2016 1.29
2015 2016
2015 0.9 2015 12 74
2016 150
2015
2016 1.22
0.85 0.50 2016
0.83
9.5 2016 12
20.2
DNB
2016
DNB

2017
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¢ 2016 2015
3,004 1,592 1,412 88.7
(548) (505) 43) (8.5)
2,455 1,087 1,369 125.9
1,841 804 1,037 129.0
)
b 25.4 11.2

( 1)DNB

2015

90
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(2017 6 23 )
) ) )
183,143,110

(2017 6 23 )
)
100 183,143,110

- 183,143,110 -
(@) (@) ( )| ( )
2011 12 16 8,000,000 183,143,110 800,000,000 18,314,311,000

)
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DNB
DNB 100 2017 3 31
DNB 20

« ) )
/ 553,792 34.0
DNB 142,541 8.8
105,090 6.5
(FIL) 34,960 2.1
33,199 2.0
T. 26,580 1.6
25,374 1.6
MFS 23,903 1.5
23,860 1.5
/BNY 22,056 1.4
21,811 1.3
21,588 1.3
17,359 1.1
16,834 1.0
16,761 1.0
DNB 16,166 1.0
KLP 15,954 1.0
BNP 15,448 0.9
AXA/ 14,983 0.9
SAFE 13,912 0.9
1,162,172 71.4
466,627 28.6
1,628,799 100.0

D
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- DNB
2017 50
1.5 2017 6 14
2016 75
2016 2015 20,638
14,789 DNB
9,183 101 ( )
9,284
405 ( )
540
2016 12 31 20.0 Tier 1
15.7 24.8 Tier 1
19.1
4 3
2 1
2 2

2016 3,000,000
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4 75
2016
987,000
NO-0021 2018
717,000
( ) NO-0021 2019
977,000
( 2 1405 2 2017
319,000
0111 1273 ’
« ) 59 ) 2017
DNB 100
(1954 11 27 ) 1999 DNB
DnB
1KS
Try
IRIS
(NRK)

(1966 )
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(1970 )
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2016 9
2005
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2016
DNB
6 1 (1) 2016 12 31
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( ) 2016
12 31 « )

EU ( IFRS )

IFRS 1 6
( IFRS ) DNB

59 ) 131 1
IFRS IFRS 6 4

(Ernst & Young AS) 2017 3 8

( 32 12 ) 1 2
193 2 1 1

2017 6
1 ( ) UFJ 1
13.15
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2016 12 31
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015

38,287 35,163 17 52,887 57,793
(14,072)  (11,555) 17 (18,369)  (22,258)

24,215 23,608 17 34,517 35,535

6,220 6,739 19 8,628 8,694
(2.676)  (2,924) 19 (2,994)  (2,737)

3,964 8,834 20 6,506 8,704
35 1,189 72)

(35) 269

9,786 5,837 2,023 2,051

17,294 18,486 15,316 16,909

41,509 42,094 49,833 52,444
(7,245)  (9,248) 21 (11,206)  (9,140)
(6,591)  (6,118) 22 (7,207)  (7,892)
(2,035)  (2,050) 23 (2,103)  (2,159)
(15.871)  (17.417) (20,516)  (19,191)

25,638 24,677 29,317 33,253

01 14 (19) 45
(1,638)  (4,679) 9, 10 (7.424)  (2,270)

24,000 20,012 21,874 31,028
(3.452)  (5,223) 25 (3,964)  (7,755)
4 (51)

20,638 14,789 17,914 23,222

20,264 14,193 17,319 22,848

374 595 Tierl 595 374

20,638 14,789 17,914 23,222

112.69 80.75 97.81 126.79

1
0.02 (0.28)
1
112.69 80.75 97.79 127.07
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
503,474 462,393 17 695,464 759,978
(185,047)  (151,948) 17 (241,552)  (292,693)
318,427 310,445 17 453,899 467,285
81,793 88,618 19 113,458 114,326
(35,189)  (38,451) 19 (39,371)  (35,992)
52,127 116,167 20 85,554 114,458
35 15,635 947)
(460) 3,537
128,686 76,757 26,602 26,971
227,416 243,001 201,405 222,353
545,843 553,536 655,304 689,639
(95,272) (121,611) 21 (147,359)  (120,191)
(86,672)  (80,452) 22 (94,772)  (103,780)
(26,760)  (26,958) 23 (27,654)  (28,391)
(208,704)  (229,034) (269,785)  (252,362)
337,140 324,503 385,519 437,277
1,197 184 (250) 592
(21,540)  (61,529) 9, 10 (97,626)  (29,851)
316,784 263,158 287,643 408,018
(45,394)  (68,682) 25 (52,127)  (101,978)
53 (671)
271,390 194,475 235,569 305,369
266,472 186,638 227,745 300,451
4,918 7,824 Tierl 7,824 4,918
271,300 194,475 235,569 305,369
1,481.87  1,061.86 1,286.20 1,667.29
1 0.26 (3.68)
1,481.87  1,061.86 1 1,285.94  1,670.97
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
20,638 14,789 17,914 23,222
615 (166) (179) 592
615 (166) (179) 592
238 (135) D (6,478) 9,618
(43)
2 4,346 (6,203)
3 (25) 889
3 (855)
238 (135) (3,055) 4,304
853 (301) (3,233) 4,896
21,492 14,487 14,680 28,118
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
271,390 194,475 235,569 305,369
8,087 (2,183) (2,354) 7,785
8,087 (2,183) (2,354) 7,785
3,130 (1,775) D (85,186) 126,477
(565)
2) 57,150 (81,569)
3 (329) 11,690
3 (11,243)
3,130 (1,775) (40,173) 56,598
11,217 (3,958) (42,514) 64,382
282,620 190,504 193,042 369,752
1) 2016 449
2) 2016 275
3) DNB VisaNorge Visa Europe 2016
31 Visa Europe 855
2016 Visalnc Visa Europe
1,128
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DNB DNB

2015 2016 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
16,004 207,934 26, 27, 28 208,263 19,317
630,700 549,093 6,7,26, 27,28 174,908 297,457
705,532 690,060 6,7,26, 27,28 1,492,268 1,531,932
210,062 223,360 26, 28, 30 217,887 207,063
7,504 5,178 26, 28, 30, 31 6,200 8,794
213,797 170,317 15, 26, 28 157,957 203,273
19,162 12,760 26, 27, 33 12,760 19,162
34 1,175 2,333
975 995 35 3,570 4,091
120,473 118,233 36 0 0
3,675 3,598 37 3,981 4,176
6,320 1,882 25 1,392 1,138
7,480 7,034 38 7,117 8,059
39 52,541 200
23,735 13,462 40 8,255 8,608
1,965,419 2,003,906 2,348,272 2,315,603
262,330 338,731 26, 27, 28 211,606 161,267
896,488 920,664 26, 27, 28, 42 945,694 957,322
240,518 181,794 15, 26, 28 130,990 154,878
340,099 336,941 26, 27, 28, 43 767,750 806,810
703 4 25 8,847 2,493
12 56 25 2,382 6,461
39,438 23,893 26, 45 15,781 18,409
39 41,243 71
1,101 1,916 2,038 1,225
2,246 2,454 24 2,516 2,301
30,953 29,347 26,27, 28, 44 29,347 30,953
1,813,886 1,835,802 2,158,194 2,142,191
18,314 18,314 18,314 18,314
19,895 19,895 20,611 20,611
8,353 15,952 Tier 15,952 8,353
104,970 113,942 135,200 126,133
151,533 168,104 46 190,078 173,412
1,965,419 2,003,906 2,348,272 2,315,603
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2015 2016 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
210,453 2,734,332 26, 27, 28 2,738,658 254,019
8,293,705 7,220,573 6,7,26,27,28 2,300,040 3,911,560
9,277,746 9,074,289 6,7,26,27,28 19,623,324 20,144,906
2,762,315 2,937,184 26, 28, 30 2,865,214 2,722,878
98,678 68,091 26, 28, 30, 31 81,530 115,641
2,811,431 2,239,669 15, 26, 28 2,077,135 2,673,040
251,980 167,794 26, 27, 33 167,794 251,980
34 15,451 30,679
12,821 13,084 35 46,946 53,797
1,584,220 1,554,764 36 0 0
48,326 47,314 37 52,350 54,914
83,108 24,748 25 18,305 14,965
98,362 92,497 38 93,589 105,976
39 690,914 2,630
312,115 177,025 40 108,553 113,195
25,845,260 26,351,364 30,879,777 30,450,179
3,449,640 4,454,313 26, 27, 28 2,782,619 2,120,661
11,788,817 12,106,732 26, 27, 28, 42 12,435,876 12,588,784
3,162,812 2,390,591 15, 26, 28 1,722,519 2,036,646
4,472,302 4,430,774 26, 27, 28, 43 10,095,913 10,609,552
9,244 53 25 116,338 32,783
158 736 25 31,323 84,962
518,610 314,193 26, 45 207,520 242,078
39 542,345 934
14,478 25,195 26,800 16,109
29,535 32,270 24 33,085 30,258
407,032 385,913 26, 27, 28, 44 385,913 407,032
23,852,601 24,140,796 28,380,251 28,169,812
240,829 240,829 240,829 240,829
261,619 261,619 271,035 271,035
109,842 209,769 Tier 209,769 109,842
1,380,356 1,498,337 1,777,880 1,658,649
1,992,659 2,210,568 46 2,499,526 2,280,368
25,845,260 26,351,364 30,879,777 30,450,179
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DNB
Tier
2014 12 31 18,314 19,895 2,711) 414 91,838 127,720
374 20,264 20,638
( 615 238 853
374 615 238 20,264 21,492
1,667 (1,667)
Tier 8,053 (3D 8,023
Tier (75) (75)
(627) (627)
DNB
2015 (5,000) (5,000)
2015 12 31 18,314 19,895 8,353 (459) 652 104,777 151,533
595 14,193 14,789
( (166) (135) (301)
595 (166) (135) 14,193 14,487
Tier 7,520 (43) 7,477
Tier (505) (505)
(11) 11
6 ©)
195 195
DNB
2016 (9,284) (9,284)
DNB
2016 4,200 4,200
2016 12 31 18,314 19,895 15,952 (619) 517 114,045 168,104
DNB
Tier D 1) 1)
2014 12 31 18,314 20,611 (2,834) 8,637 (5,645) 102,226 141,309
374 22,848 23,222
( 592 9,618 (6,203) 889 4,896
374 592 9,618 (6,203) 23,736 28,118
1,763 (1,763)
34 4 38
Tier 8,053 (31) 8,023
Tier (75) (75)
DNB
2014 (4,001)  (4,001)
2015 12 31 18,314 20,611 8,353 479) 18,289 (11,848) 120,171 173,412
595 17,319 17,914
( (179) (6,521) 4,346 (880) (3,233)
595 179)  (6,521) 4,346 16,438 14,680
Tier 7,520 (43) 7,477
Tier (505) (505)
(11) 1
16 (16)
AGDL 13 13
DNB
2015 (5,000)  (5,000)
2016 12 31 18,314 20,611 15,952 (641) 11,768 (7,502) 131,575 190,078
)} oci
2015 12 31 1,465 (987) 478
(449) 275 (174)
2016 12 31 1,015 (712) 304
2016 12 31
280
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DNB
Tier
2014 12 31 240,829 261,619 (36,044) 5,444 1,207,670 1,679,518
4,918 266,472 271,390
( ) 8,087 3,130 11,217
4,918 8,087 3,130 266,472 282,620
21,921 (21,921)
Tier 105,897 (408) 105,502
Tier (986) (986)
(8,245)  (8,245)
DNB
2015 (65,750)  (65,750)
2015 12 31 240,829 261,619 109,842 (6,036) 8,574 1,377,818 1,992,659
7,824 186,638 194,475
( ) (2,183)  (1,775) (3,958)
7,824 (2,183)  (1,775) 186,638 190,504
Tier 98,888 (565) 98,323
Tier (6,641) (6,641)
(145) 145
79 @9
2,564 2,564
DNB
2016 (122,085)  (122,085)
DNB
2016 55,230 55,230
2016 12 31 240,829 261,619 209,769 (8,140) 6,799 1,499,692 2,210,568
DNB
Tier D D D
2014 12 31 240,829 271,035 (37,267) 113,577  (74,232) 1,344,272 1,858,213
4,918 300,451 305,369
( ) 7,785 126,477 (81,569) 11,690 64,382
4,918 7,785 126,477 (81,569) 312,128 369,752
D 23,183 (23,183)
447 53 500
Tier 105,897 (408) 105,502
Tier (986) (986)
DNB
2014 (52,613)  (52,613)
2015 12 31 240,829 271,035 109,842  (6,299) 240,500  (155,801) 1,580,249 2,280,368
7,824 227,745 235,569
( ) (2,354)  (85,751) 57,150  (11,572)  (42,514)
7,824 (2,354)  (85,751) 57,150 216,160 193,042
Tier 98,888 (565) 98,323
Tier (6,641) (6,641)
(145) 145
210 (210)
AGDL n mn
DNB
2016 (65,750) _ (65,750)
2016 12 31 240,829 271,035 209,769 (8.429) 154,749  (98,651) 1,730,211 2,499,526
1) ocl
2015 12 31 19,265  (12,979) 6,286
(5,904) 3,616 (2,288)
2016 12 31 13,347 (9,363) 3,998
2016 12 31 304
280
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
50,461 (1,193) / (35,187)  (32,213)
30,885 26,974 47,420 51,863
(44,221) 37,498 / 40,724 (34,447)
(10,485) (5.219) (3,711) (7.475)
(20,697) 144,571 / 163,235 3,917
3,870 3,774 1,261 1,617
(1,558) (1,975) (1,661) (1,355)
16,386 (8,655) / 4,076 (16,600)
5,080 4,327 4,211 4,592
3,553 3,998 5,757 5,965
(16,346)  (15,995) (19,014)  (19,210)
(800) (1,268) (1,455) (2,473)
9,595 8,563 8,327 5,433
25,723 195,401 214,042 (40,387)
(1,866) @,627) (1,529) (1,853)
/ (605) 2,833
223 861 861 76
(33,124) (3,700)
104 57 66 6
(34,662) (4,408) (1,206) 1,062
3,072,165 8,943,961 (4 ) 8,995,908 3,142,451
(3,110,990)  (8,935,044) (4 ) (9,000,786)  (3,145,857)
(5,097) (6,238) (16,016)  (15,129)
3,805 738 (45 ) 738 3,805
(4,604) ®) (45 ) ®) (4,604)
@1,027) (920) (923) (1,029)
8,023 7,520 Tier 7,520 8,023
5) (516) Tier (516) 75)
(4,729) (6,942) / / (6,849) (4,001)
(42,529) 2,555 (20,928)  (16,415)
13,547 (1,663) (312) 14,622
(37,921) 191,884 191,596 (41,118)
57,805 19,884 23,194 64,312
(37,921) 191,884 191,596 (41,118)
19,884 211,768 *) 214,790 23,194
16,004 207,934 211,908 19,317
3,880 3,835 D 2,881 3,876
1
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
663,562 (15,688) / (462,709)  (423,601)
406,138 354,708 623,573 681,998
(581,506) 493,099 / 535,521  (452,978)
(137,878) (68,630) (48,800) (98,296)
(272,166) 1,901,109 / 2,146,540 51,509
50,891 49,628 16,582 21,264
(20,488) (25,971) (21,842) (17,818)
215,476 (113,813) / 53,509  (218,290)
66,802 56,900 56,164 60,385
46,722 52,574 75,705 78,440
(214,950)  (210,334) (250,034)  (252,612)
(10,520) (16,674) (19,133) (32,520)
126,174 112,603 109,500 71,444
338,257 2,569,523 2,814,652  (531,089)
(24,538) (21,395) (20,106) (24,367)
/ (7.,956) 37,254
2,932 11,322 11,322 999
(435,581) (48,655)
1,368 750 868 79
(455,805) (57,965) (15, 859) 13,965
40,398,970 117,613,087 ( 4 ) 118,296,190 41,323,231
(40,909,519) (117,495,829) ( 4 ) (118,360,336) (41,368,020)
(67,026) (82,030) (210,610)  (198,946)
50,036 9,705 ( 45 ) 9,705 50,036
(60,543) (39) ( 45 ) (39) (60,543)
(13,505) (12,098) (12,137) (13,531)
105,502 98,888 Tier 98,888 105,502
(986) (6,785) Tier (6,785) (986)
(62,186) (91,287) / / (90,064) (52,613)
(559,256) 33,598 (275,203)  (215,857)
178,143 (21,868) (4,103) 192,279
(498,661) 2,523,275 2,519,487  (540,702)
760,136 261,475 305,001 845,703
(498,661) 2,523,275 2,519,487  (540,702)
261,475 2,784,749 ) 2,824,489 305,001
210,453 2,734,332 2,786,590 254,019
51,022 50,430 &) 37,885 50, 969
1
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DNB DNB DNB
Oslo Bars 2016
2017
Dronning Eufemias gate 30, BjF+Irvika, Oslo, Norway
DNB IASB
EU IFRSs 2016
DNB IFRS
IFRS
IFRS IFRS
IFRS
DNB IFRS
DNB DNB

DNB

95/350



DNB

DNB

DNB

EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

50
50

20 50

96/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

DNB

IFRS

DNB

DNB

DNB

97/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

98/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

DNB

99/350



32

31

EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

32

31

100/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

101/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

102/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

DNB

103/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn
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DNB
Tier

IFRS
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DNB

37

109/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

10

11

2016

2015 2016

24
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DNB

DNB

DNB

DNB
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2016 IASB

IFRS
2014 IASB IAS 39 IFRS

IASB

IFRS 2018 2016 11 EU

112/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

IFRS
IAS 39
IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
12
IFRS IT
2015 IT

2016 2017
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2016 DNB
1
2 3
CFO
° IAS 39
[ J
° 2018
IAS 39
IFRS
2017
EAD
PD LGD
IRB
IRB PD through the cycle
point in time PD
PD
EAD LGD
IFRS
2017

12
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1)
Lifetime
PD
2)
30
3)
Lifetime PD
IFRS
IFRS 15
IFRS 15 2014 IASB
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
IFRS
IFRS

IFRS 15 IFRS
IFRS 15 2018 2016 EU

2018
IFRS 16
2016 IASB IFRS 16

IFRS 16 EU 2019
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DNB

DNB

- DNB

FICC

DNB

DNB
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DNB
DNB
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
13,223 13,655 6,358 6,131 14,300 15,196 28 89 609 464 34,517 35,535
3,567 3,691 1,418 1,190 5,381 5,232 2,976 1,503 1,974 5,292 15,316 16,909
16,790 17,346 7,776 7,322 19,681 20,427 3,004 1,592 2,582 5,756 49,833 52,444
(8,025) (8,176) (2,777) (2,521) (6,364) (6,341) (547) (504) (699) 510 (18,413) (17,032)
(149) (131) (326) (320) (1,044) (1,135) [€)) (©) (583) (572) (2,103) (2,159)
(8,174) (8,307) (3,102) (2,840) (7,408) (7,476) (548) (505) (1,283) (62) (20,516) (19,191)
8,616 9,039 4,674 4,481 12,272 12,951 2,455 1,087 1,300 5,694 29,317 33,253
0 0 2 (@) 24 53 (44) (@] (19) 45
2) 392 939 (1,082) (1,068) (6,734) (2,108) ) (33) (7,424) (2,270)
6 3 8 (67) (14) 64
9,008 9,979 3,599 3,414 5,570 10,829 2,455 1,087 1,241 5,719 21,874 31,028
(2,252) (2,694)  (900)  (922) (1,504) (3,140)  (614)  (283) 1,306 (716) (3,964) (7,755)
() 2 3 2 (53) 4 (51)
6,755 7,286 2,699 2,492 4,070 7,689 1,841 804 2,549 4,951 17,914 23,222
1
23 10
DNB
DNB
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
1)2) 718 685 233 220 521 570 30 33 [©) 24 1,492 1,532
0 0 0 52 0 53 0
28 27 5 7 138 125 1,240 1,241 (608)  (617) 803 783
746 713 238 227 659 695 1,270 1,274 (565)  (593) 2,348 2,316
1)2) 397 393 190 167 379 380 14 13 (34) 4 946 957
) A 0 41 0
311 289 25 40 195 246 1,249 1,253 (608)  (644) 1,171 1,185
708 682 214 207 574 626 1,263 1,266 (601)  (640) 2,158 2,142
3) 37 31 24 20 85 69 7 7 36 47 190 173
746 713 238 227 659 695 1,270 1,274 (565)  (593) 2,348 2,316
1) 2016 8
45
36.5
2)
2015 11 20 2016 11
5 DNB
DNB 2016 2.6
45 DNB
DNB DNB
3
) 172 145 2016 Tier
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DNB

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

1) 48.7 47.9 39.9 38.8 37.6 36.6 18.3 31.7 41.2 36.6

12 31 2) 55.4 57.3 81.4 75.8 72.9 66.8 63.4 62.5

3) 17.7 22.7 11.2 12.0 4.7 10.9 25.4 11.2 10.3 15.1
1
2
3

I
IT HR
IT
DNB
DNB
2016 2015

190 138

(20 ) 14 126

( 20 ) 436 1,000

( 20 ) (542) 2,685

1,190 (45)

34 312

(14) 64

( 21 )1) (136) 1,450

IT 205 278

IT (234)

( 22 ) 24 46

34 (60)

(223) (42)

1,241 5,719

1) 2015 1,778
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DNB
DNB
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
7,863 8,321 26,654 27,214 34,517 35,535
2,687 3,885 12,629 13,024 15,316 16,909
10,550 12,206 39,283 40,237 49,833 52,444
DNB
DNB
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
224 299 1,268 1,233 1,492 1,532
314 340 2,034 1,975 2,348 2,316
35 37 63 74 99 110
17 18
19
DNB Tierl CET
10
2016 CET 14.7
DNB 15.7
80
2016 DNB CET 15.7 20.0
14.3 17.9 2016 1,041
1,057 1 DNB
2016 CET 2.0
2016 DNB CET 191 151
2016 24.8 19.3
2016 DNB
CET 16.0 18.0
2016 DNB CET
19.6 22.1
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CET 2015
2018
Tier CET
2017 30
DNB
CRR 429 2015 18

2016 7.1 6.4 DNB
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EU CRD CRR
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
151,533 168,104 190,078 173,412
(181) (541)
(8,053) (15,574) Tier (15,574) (8,053)
(219) (284) Tier (284) (219)
143,261 152,246 Tier 174,039 164,599
(38) (38)
(3,012) (2,900) (2,951) (3,029)
(195) (224) (482) (640)
(663) (699) (946) (1,075)
(5,084) (5,000)
(1,383) (6) IRB (153) (2,309)
(671) (479) (AVA) (786) (1,055)
(15) 107 (90) (412)
(785) (580) (DVA) (159) (150)
136,499 147,467 Tierl 163,388 150,889
10,267 17,471 Tier 17,471 10,267
146,766 164,938 Tierl 180,860 161,156
5,702 5,602 5,602 5,702
22,185 21,249 21,249 22,185
27,887 26,851 Tier2 26,851 27,887
174,653 191,789 207,711 189,043
906,084 773,244 1,040,888 1,056,731
72,487 61,860 83,271 84,539
15.1 19.1 Tierl ) 15.7 14.3
16.2 21.3 Tierl ) 17.4 15.3
19.3 24.8 () 20.0 17.9
IRB
DNB IRB Finanstilsynet
(DNB ) 2015 12
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DNB
EADY)

2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

IRB

753,590 600,034 48.8 292,590 23,407 24,752
SL 7,742 7,482 52.0 3,891 311 396
79,758 79,758 25.0 19,910 1,593 2,045
112,484 92,484 25.7 23,759 1,901 1,965
12,760 12,760 91.8 11,718 937 1,201
IRB 966,334 792,518 44.4 351,868 28,149 30,359
42,948 55,454 0.1 79 6 30
429,144 352,369 22.0 77,428 6,194 13,545
102,181 80,795 93.0 75,109 6,009 6,713
7,152 6,650 394 2,619 210 177
104,855 33,820 74.6 25,228 2,018 1,587
120,148 120,148 100.3 120,482 9,639 9,807
11,584 11,584 88.5 10,249 820 1,704
818,012 660,820 47.1 311,195 24,896 33,563
1,784,346 1,453,338 45.6 663,063 53,045 63,922
23,189 1,855 1,849
310 25 19
72 6 3
CVA 12,179 974 947
35,749 2,860 2,818
74,433 5,955 5,747
773,244 61,860 72,487
773,244 61,860 72,487

1) EAD
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DNB
EAD1)

2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

IRB
1,039,384 842,921 48.4 407,740 32,619 33,421
SL 8,825 8,517 52.3 4,456 356 468
706,195 706,195 22.1 155,814 12,465 12,241
112,484 92,484 25.7 23,759 1,901 1,965
12,760 12,760 91.8 11,718 937 1,201
IRB 1,879,648 1,662,878 36.3 603,487 48,279 49,295
55,426 69,760 0.1 84 7 33
163,442 115,757 24.2 28,036 2,243 2,390
161,010 127,939 86.0 109,983 8,799 10,164
51,665 49,631 455 22,559 1,805 1,764
122,926 48,737 75.4 36,742 2,939 2,642
8,278 8,277 106.1 8,783 703 263
1,760 1,160 446 518 41 60
13,639 13,639 78.7 10,733 859 763
578,145 434,899 50.0 217,439 17,395 18,078
2,457,793 2,097,777 39.1 820,926 65,674 67,373
14,615 1,169 1,141
310 25 36
72 6 3
CVA 6,156 493 514
21,153 1,692 1,695
83,440 6,675 6,742
925,519 74,042 75,810
2) 115,368 9,229 8,728
1,040,888 83,271 84,539
13 EAD
| 80

125/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

DNB
DNB

AA
DNB

° DNB

° DNB
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° DNB
DNB
17

DNB
)
)
DNB
)
)

DNB

°
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DNB DNB

DNB

2016 17
DNB
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DNB
DNB 99.97
DNB
AA
DNB
2016 12 DNB 67.2
2015 12 13
DNB

DNB
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49

DNB
2016 12 31

1)

206,982
549,093 153,938 23
690,060 240,109 49,187 217,055

236,120
170,317 919 90,379

12,726
1,865,298 240,109 204,044 307,457
88,679 8,543 162 33,410
479,792 16,278 92 51,777

3,861
572,332 24,821 255 85,187
2,437,630 264,930 204,299 392,644

DNB
2015 12 31

1)

14,748
630,700 278,973 2
705,532 239,554 43,429 238,366

229,224
213,797 1,675 86,785

23,209
1,817,210 239,554 324,078 325,153
95,867 10,827 227 31,498
963,486 8,704 97 57,588

4,576
1,063,930 19,531 323 89,086
2,881,140 259,085 324,401 414,239
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DNB
2016 12 31
1)
207,279
174,908 153,938 23
1,492,268 885,859 50,295 330,159
230,647
157,957 919 90,379
7,414
2,270,472 885,859 205,152 420,560
92,012 8753 162 33,708
606,122 79,219 92 78,869
3,985 18
702,119 87,972 255 112,595
2,972,501 973,831 205,407 533,155
DNB
2015 12 31
1)
16,911
297,457 279,056 a4
1,531,932 877,625 44,559 346,155
226,224 331
203,273 1,675 86,821
7,920
2,283,719 877,625 325,201 433,351
98,595 11,077 227 31,710
600,523 61,667 97 91,169
4,841
703,959 72,745 324 122,879
2,987,677 950,370 325,615 556,230
1)
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2016 12 31

° 15,822

DNB OECD

°

°

°

°

° 110,435 109,819

DNB DNB
11
DNB

DNB
IRBA
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PD
10
DNB 1)
0.01 0.10 Aaa A3 AAA A-
0.10 0.25 Baal Baa2 BBB+ BBB
0.25 0.50 Baa3 BBB-
0.50 0.75 Bal BB+
0.75 125 Ba2 BB
1.25 2.00
2.00 3.00 Ba3 BB-
3.00 5.00 Bl B+
5.00 8.00 B2 B
10 8.00 B3, CaalC B-, CCC/IC
1) DNB 1 10
DNB
417,736 65,665 298,095 781,495
212,837 13,476 55,949 282,263
10 68,220 6,153 11,874 86,247
11,972 647 12,619
2015 12 31 Y 710,766 85,941 365,918 1,162,625
418,622 57,110 321,435 797,167
193,767 12,899 50,734 257,400
10 64,129 9,015 12,021 85,164
22,048 1,885 1514 25,447
2016 12 31 D 698,565 80,909 385,703 1,165,178
1)
1
2016 2015
0.33 0.34
1)
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DNB
1,014,114 68,542 458,666 1,541,321
411,733 14,011 79,427 505,170
10 92,148 6,251 15,748 114,147
21,970 675 22,645
2015 12 31 D 1,539,964 89,479 553,841 2,183,284
1,016,937 58,948 469,223 1,545,108
367,157 14,091 70,838 452,086
10 88,700 9,946 29,563 128,209
30,551 1,903 1,702 34,156
2016 12 31 Y 1,503,345 84,889 571,326 2,159,559
1)
1
2016 2015
0.27 0.25
1)
DNB
DNB
2 ( )
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DNB

DNB

10

DNB

DNB DNB
CRD IV 2016 25.8
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DNB
DNB
DNB
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
/ /
10 29 723 1,933 90 2,719
30 59 442 423 73 1,369
60 89 1 159 7 365
90 213 1,474 1,353 3,756
1,389 3,989 1,523 8,208
DNB
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
/ /
10 29 753 7,210 129 8,278
30 59 467 1,149 272 2,743
60 89 14 430 32 758
90 222 3,265 1,706 5,076
1,456 12,054 2,139 16,855
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33

DNB

oTrcC

DNB

LCH

CSA
DNB

DNB
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
71 50 2,330 5,185
1 217 620
1 33
1) (1,087)
(20) (23) (335) (3,426)
(©) 14
1) (68)
50 28 12 31 1,122 2,330
1) 2016
1)
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
48,784 20,959 69,487 85,779
48,784 20,959 69,487 85,779
185 91 2 121 231
(68) (94) 2 (111) (103)
1) 2016 11 5 DNB
DNB
2)
2016
ECB
EU
ECB
2016
98 2015
172 2016 12
45 2016
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2016
2011

DNB 11.8
DNB 2011

144 2016
DNB

2015
2016 12
DNB

2015 12 773
2016 144
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2016 12 31 D NB
137,962 225 178,953 317,140
50,542 9,623 14,768 74,934
148,661 2,860 26,599 178,120
46,439 22,897 32,202 101,628
64,004 5471 21,176 90,741
32,238 4484 21,965 58,687
20,763 3,964 9,161 33,888
38,927 9,703 15,419 64,049
47,964 12,724 28,932 89,619
26,726 6,709 17,179 50,614
15,323 199 5,835 21,358
5713 409 1,853 7,975
4,616 58 1,067 5,741
12,051 159 5,875 18,085
40,829 898 4,628 46,354
692,848 80,383 385,703 1,158,934
(2,787) (2,787)
(446) (446)
690,060 79,937 385,703 1,155,701
549,089 8,296 94,089 651,474
4 4
549,003 8,296 94,089 651,478
2015 12 31 DNB
144,470 262 145,259 289,990
56,264 9,725 15,499 81,487
148,608 2,282 25,950 176,839
52,129 23,736 32,578 108,443
80,280 5370 18,382 104,032
32,542 5,025 20,278 57,845
21,674 4135 11,543 37,352
36,148 8,375 11,918 56,442
44,895 12,916 24,133 81,943
27,857 8,261 16,365 52,483
15,173 264 4,459 19,897
6,382 408 2,343 9,134
4,961 52 2,467 7,480
9218 347 8,839 18,404
26,642 4,607 25,907 57,155
707,241 85,765 365,918 1,158,925
(1,709) (1,709)
(186) (186)
705,532 85,579 365,918 1,157,029
630,694 9,751 597,568 1,238,013
5 5
630,700 9,751 597,568 1,238,018
1)
39
EU NACE Rev.2
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2016 12 31 D DNB
731,134 272 241,774 973,179
106,148 0,871 34,523 150,542
189,796 2,888 26,910 219,594
77,520 23,413 68,529 169,462
87,293 5,688 31,325 124,305
38,442 4,928 28,283 71,652
29,074 5,034 33,219 67,327
62,638 0,885 27,711 100,234
52,221 13,332 31,553 97,105
31,179 7,186 24,014 62,378
16,979 202 6,484 23,664
7,451 420 2,178 10,049
4,869 60 2,212 7,141
14,213 279 9,732 24,224
47,795 903 2,879 51,577
1,496,749 84,360 571,326 2,152,434
(4,481) (4,481)
(455) (455)
1,492,268 83,904 571,326 2,147,498
174,897 7,653 34,79 217,347
11 11
174,908 7,653 34,79 217,357

2015 12 31 DNB
725,878 284 199,188 925,350
126,348 9,933 42,701 178,983
197,036 2,341 26,165 225,542
92,824 24,229 72,416 189,469
97,916 6,074 25,566 129,556
41,056 5451 25,756 72,262
31,898 4,554 38,117 74,569
59,312 8,555 26,733 94,601
48,844 13,674 25,180 87,697
33,797 8,366 23,860 66,023
16,334 266 5,075 21,675
8,907 421 2,588 11,916
6,869 56 2,657 9,583
14,454 483 10,870 25,807
32,983 4,609 26,970 64,562
1,534,456 89,207 553,841 2,177,595
(2,524) (2,524)
(198) (198)
1,531,932 89,099 553,841 2,174,873
297,450 8,035 16,682 353,067
7 7
297,457 8,935 46,682 353,074

1)
39
EU NACE Rev.2
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2016 12 31 ()] DNB

140,910 201,607 11,519 256,544 610,580

183,345 484 18,864 94,431 297,123

96,868 4 8,583 43525 148,980

108,627 107 6,984 34,925 150,645

529,750 202,202 45,950 429,425 1,207,328

53,188 38,473 6,354 11,097 109,112

3,278 112,999 2,485 2,817 121,579

55,244 89,269 5,260 22,491 172,264

3 4 8 15

2 2,997 2 3,001

347 5,504 478 2 6,331

332 6,249 349 4 6,934

721 10,101 208 68 11,098

20 881 258 28 1,187

113,134 266,473 15,397 36,517 431,520

2,790 53,551 14,959 6,077 77,377

2 17,149 86 3,904 2,364 23,503

14,526 1,565 2,283 1,815 20,194

34,465 55,202 21,151 10,256 121,074

2 1,742 17,686 1,021 592 21,041

1,609 37 2 1,648

5,833 6,674 2,765 1,575 16,847

9,184 24,397 3,785 2,169 39,535

2) 776 1,942 2,718

78 500 60 35 673

2 4532 27 393 1,391 6,343

691,919 548,801 88,679 479,792 1,809,191

(2,787) (2,787)

929 292 (446) 775

690,060 549,093 88,233 479,792 1,807,179
1)

39

2)

142/350

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

143/350



EDINETOOOO

o o o o =243 )

2015 12 31 DNB
130,398 140,721 12,523 703,277 986,918
178,946 728 18,861 89,470 288,004
102,400 2,443 8,479 43,201 156,524
112,622 40 9,085 33,033 154,781
524,366 143,932 48,949 868,981 1,586,227
55,131 8,388 7,318 17,008 87,846
3,322 149,621 2,997 1,884 157,825
69,295 204,007 4,954 24,801 303,147
99 85 4 5 194
3 2,086 1 2,090
702 6,491 654 2 7,849
258 6,943 341 27 7,569
709 12,109 124 163 13,105
20 598 261 31 910
129,539 390,329 16,653 44,013 580,534
6,354 62,997 16,316 13,131 98,798
1 18,128 132 2,658 3,000 23,917
9,629 4172 2,635 3,004 19,440
34,111 67,302 21,609 19,135 142,156
i) 2,555 22,354 1,952 27,365 54,226
2,195 190 2 2,388
8,051 6,071 3,852 2,395 20,370
12,802 28,615 5,804 29,762 76,984
1) 414 2,043 2,457
12 358 89 546 1,005
1) 4,883 22 369 1,050 6,324
706,126 630,558 95,516 963,486 2,395,687
(1,709) (1,709)
1,115 141 (186) 1,070
705,532 630,700 95,330 963,486 2,395,048

1)
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2016 12 31 D DNB

288,216 6,935 11,494 211,067 517,712

477,693 484 18,864 124,944 621,985

191,155 10 8,588 53,872 253,625

201,374 107 6,984 42,930 251,396

1,158,437 7,536 45,932 432,814 1,644,719

82,005 5,173 6,355 34,497 128,030

17,936 68,518 2,519 16,360 105,334

84,426 82,333 5,635 31,587 203,981

8 4 10 22

5 97 321 423

458 335 1,424 2,217

337 730 3,693 4,761

16,444 323 813 2,355 19,935

160 885 258 35 1,338

201,779 157,232 16,747 90,282 466,040

43,688 1,090 16,953 67,207 128,938

2) 26,269 86 3,904 3,629 33,887

18,128 1,569 2,291 4,697 26,685

88,085 2,745 23,148 75,533 189,510

2) 8,680 39 1,021 217 9,957
2,525 37 180 2,742

6,674 6,614 2,766 1,988 18,042

17,880 6,690 3,787 2,386 30,742

2 9,428 1,942 514 11,884
536 500 60 38 1,134

2) 18,634 27 397 4,556 23,614
1,494,779 174,729 92,012 606,122 2,367,643
(4,481) (4,481)

1,970 179 (455) 1,694

1,492,268 174,908 91,557 606,122 2,364,855

39
2)
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2015 12 31 DNB
264,894 3,156 12,511 190,376 470,936
458,808 728 18,861 115,592 593,988
191,433 2,443 8,489 52,410 254,775
201,222 40 9,085 39,898 250,246
1,116,357 6,367 48,946 398,275 1,569,946
78,005 137 7,319 38,139 123,601
18,180 100,132 3,536 17,597 139,445
101,056 178,045 5,428 34,741 319,269
816 86 4 5 912
5,044 18 110 184 5,355
15,587 3 395 1,451 17,436
27,950 98 848 3,301 32,197
17,832 164 726 3,090 21,812
203 598 262 33 1,095
264,673 279,281 18,627 98,541 661,122
46,218 724 17,046 80,907 144,895
) 29,616 132 2,665 5,647 38,060
14,424 4177 2,638 6,585 27,824
90,258 5,033 22,349 93,139 210,779
) 13,607 82 1,952 505 16,146
3,025 190 702 3,917
10,539 6,072 3,854 3,493 23,958
27,171 6,344 5,806 4,700 44,021
) 9,943 2,043 601 12,588
735 358 0 551 1,733
1 22,276 23 372 4,715 27,386
1,531,480 297,406 98,233 600,523 2,527,641
(2,524) (2,524)
2,976 51 (198) 2,829
1,531,932 297,457 98,034 600,523 2,527,947
1)
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1) 2)

DNB

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

1,871 1,833 (797) (712) 1,074 1,121
3517 2,454 (1436)  (1,075) 2,081 1,379
1,787 1,792 (564) (656) 1,223 1,137
3,586 1,298 (1,181) (689) 2,405 609
1,453 851 (682) (528) 771 323
1,098 747 (370) (362) 728 385
4,368 (744) 3,625
3341 799 (1,203) (3112) 2,138 488
1,178 586 (488) (252) 691 333
23 389 (13) (75) 10 314
61 13 (16) ®) 4 5
49 54 (22 a7) 27 36
50 112 (29) (44) 2 67
0 1 () 0 7
6 99 @ (81) 4 19
22389 11,038 (7.547)  (4815)] 14,843 6,223
22389 11,038 (7547)  (4815)] 14,843 6,223
1,953 1,582 1,953 1,582
24342 12619 (7.547)  (4815)] 16,796 7,804
DNB
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

3,898 4,502 (1,617)  (1,841) 2,281 2,661
4,995 3,665 (2.247)  (1,620) 2,748 2,045
2,760 3716 (934)  (1,426) 1,826 2,289
5,800 2,643 (1814)  (1,113) 3,986 1,530
1,508 952 (712) (593) 797 359
1,255 977 (465) (502) 790 476
4,368 (744) 3,625
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5,528 1,825 (1,623) (726) 3,005 1,099
1,446 1,020 (697) (550) 749 470
539 394 (154) 7) 386 317
61 13 (16) ®) V! 5
104 167 (@3) (49) 61 118
157 172 (50) (63) 107 110
0 1 ©) () 0 7
29 126 (10) (92) 19 34

32,450 20,184 (11,126) (8,665) 21,323 11,519

32,450 20,184 (11,12¢) (8,665) 21,323 11,519

4,320 2,461 4,320 2,461

36,770 22,645 (11,126) (8,665) 25,644 13,980

1)
EU
NACE Rev.2
2) DNB 2016 8
12
2,256
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1)
2) 2015

DNB
2016 2015
1) )

(873) (873) (1,407) (1,407)
(3,839) (420) (4,260) (2,205) (121) (2,326)
(4,713) (420) (5,133) (3612) (121) (3733)

540 74 614 590 82 672

2) 957 957 1,715 1,715
(3,216) (346) (3,562) (1,306) (40) (1,346)
(1,117) (1,117) (292) (292)
(4,333) (346) (4,679) (1,599) (40) (1,638)

1,278 1,278 2,463 2,463

DNB
2016 2015
1) )

(1,359) (1,359) (1,446) (1,446)
(5,490) (420) (5,910) (3,165) (124) (3,288)
(6,849) (420) (7,269) (4,611) (124) (4,735)

913 76 990 890 88 978

2) 999 999 1,742 1,742
(4,937) (344) (5,280) (1,979) (36) (2,015)
(2,144) (2,144) (255) (255)
(7,080) (344) (7.424) (2,234 (36) (2.270)

2,803 2,803 3,749 ) 3,749

2016
Lindorff Capital AS
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10

DNB
2016 2015
1) 1

(581) 32 910 361 (636) 46 1,622 1,032
(1,000) 52 12 (936) (856) 117 1 (737)
(144) 74 12 (57) (237) 102 2 (132)
(891) 123 1 (768) (773) 117 12 (644)
(338) 149 1 (187) (145) 4 17 (87)
(128) 42 8 (78) (219) 51 8 (160)
(716) o (716) (0) ()
(1,012) 16 3 (992) (245) 53 24 (168)
(297) 42 2 (253) (402) 71 25 (306)
@ 52 6 56 (60) 0 1 (59)

(10) 1 0 © ® 49 0 41
® 5 1 5 (16) 7 1 ®

(13) 24 0 1 (15) 17 2 5
0 0 0) 0) 0 0 0)
(o) 0 o (o) (123) 1 0 (122)
(5,133) 614 957 (3562) (3733) 672 1,715 (1,346)
(1,117) (292)
(5,133 614 957 (4,679 (3733 672 1,715 (1,638)
(420) 74 (346) (121) 82 (40)

DNB
2016 2015
1) 1)

(845) 210 942 308 (835) 188 1,642 995
(1,555) 52 12 (1,491) (1,027) 139 1 (886)
(227) 180 14 (33 (344) 140 3 (202)
(1,258) 153 2 (1,104) (882) 154 12 (716)
(344) 158 5 (181) (165) 64 19 (82)
(145) 53 10 (82) (233) 69 10 (155)
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(819) 0 (819) © ©

(1,554) 38 4 (1512) (588) 55 24 (509)

(325) 55 4 (266) (422) 87 27 (308)

(148) 52 6 (90) (60) 1 1 (59)
(10) 1 0 © ® 49 0 41

(@) 7 1 1 (21) 9 1 (10

(30) 27 0 ® (@7 2 3 @

0) 0 (©] ) 0 0 (©]

@) 2 o 1 (124) 2 0 (121)

(7,269) 990 999 (5,280) (4,735) 978 1,742 (2,015)

(2.144) (255)

(7,269 990 999 (7:424) (4,735) 978 1,742 (2.270)

(420) 76 (344) (124) 88 (36)

1) 2015 2016
Lindorff Capital AS

EU NACE Rev.2

152/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )

oooooog
11
DNB

2016 2015
11 (6,779) (176)  (6,955) (7,652) (134  (7.785)
(2,833) (403)  (3.236) (1,550) (121)  (L671)
(1,006) an (1023 (654) 0 (654)
540 74 614 590 82 672
1,278 1,278 2,463 2,463
39 39
(1,117 (1,117) (292) (292)
111 @ 107 277 ® 274
12 31 (9,808) (526)  (10,334) (6,779) (176)  (6,955)
(6,646) (526) (7,173 (4,639) (176)  (4,815)
(374) (374) (430) (430)
(2,787) (2,787) (1,709) (1,709)

DNB

2016 2015
11 (11,664) (181) (11,845) 1) (12464) (143)  (12,608)
(4,012) (403)  (4,415) (1,870) (124) (1,994
(1,478) 17 (1495) (1,295) 0 (129
013 76 990 890 88 978
2,803 2,803 1 3748 0 3749
24 24
(2,144) (2,144) (255) (255)

1,649 1,649
392 @ 388 (442) @ (444)
12 31 (13,541) (529) (14,070 (11,664) (181) (11,845
(8,566) (529) (9,095 (8,484) (181)  (8,665)
(494) (494) (656) (656)
(4,481) (4,481) (2,524) (2,524)
12
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DNB

99.97
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]l [ [
1
2016
6.9 2015 12
1 DNB
DNB
DNB
12 31
DNB L
1 1
1 3 5
2016 12 31

494 152 227 765 653 227

91 14 357 19 82 179

72 3 7] 2 20 22

2 38 1 6 1 55

15 6 36 33 2 28

8 15 35 9 16 55

2015 12 31

374 35 246 545 420 218

1 9% 78 2 3 5

0 59 74 30 12 7

8 25 20 6 2 21

89 29 121 8 1 6

19 20 33 8 17 50

1)
DNB
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14
12 31
1 15
1 30
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
884 1,071 1,068 883
a7 (320) (316) (180)
30 (17) (16) 15
(39) 20 19 (39)
(46) 20 20 (45)
2 14 14 2
(10) 6 6 (10)
125 121 122 141
769 914 916 766

15

FRA DNB
oTC
oTC

DNB

°

e FRA
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[ ]
[ ]
DNB
[ ]
oTC
DNB
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
FRA 868,943 415 363 2,379,037 1,310 1,282
3,110,072 85,127 78,776 3,229,589 100,387 93,123
oTC 46,508 757 725 42,729 441 634
oTC 1,687 248
4,025,522 86,299 79,864 5,653,042 102,386 95,039
79,463 2,689 1,125 117,609 8,490 1,321
1,699,372 41,217 60,058 2,208,817 47,976 99,501
oTC 32,597 533 330 190,208 789 510
1,811,431 44,439 61,513 2,516,634 57,256 101,332
2,057 2,156 1,528 7,896 1,586 375
oTC 2,104 163 2 821 92 10
oTC 4,161 2,319 1,530 8,718 1,679 386
732 0 2,897 79 108
4,573 106 7 2,795 39 67
5,305 106 7 5,693 118 174
9,466 2,425 1,607 14,410 1,797 560
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30,682 3,542 2,738 28,485 5,542 5,375
30,682 3,542 2,738 28,485 5,542 5,375
33,612 36,072 46,817 38,211
5,877,101 170,317 181,794 8,212,572 213,797 240,518
151,044 10,795 1,189 147,900 12,405 830
10,033 541 11,610 323
762 648 795 508
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DNB
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
FRA 868,943 415 363 2,379,037 1,310 1,282
2,777,620 83,109 39,906 2,843,591 97,540 66,703
oTC 45,882 757 725 42,465 447 634
oTC 1,687 248
3,692,446 84,280 40,994 5,266,781 99,546 68,618
80,958 2,717 1,126 118,804 8,498 1,283
1,349,007 30,891 48,470 1,822,098 40,285 40,376
oTC 32,597 533 330 190,208 789 510
1,462,562 34,141 49,926 2,131,110 49,572 42,170
2,057 2,156 1,528 7,896 1,586 375
oTC 2,104 163 2 821 92 10
oTC 4,161 2,319 1,530 8,718 1,679 386
732 0 2,897 79 108
4,573 106 7 2,795 39 67
5,305 106 7 5,693 118 174
9,466 2,425 1,607 14,410 1,797 560
30,473 3,541 2,707 28,486 5,542 5,375
30,473 3,541 2,707 28,486 5,542 5,375
33,570 35,756 46,817 38,155

5,194,946 157,957 130,990 7,440,787 203,273 154,878

453,134 33,038 2,195 479,261 37,408 834
- 32,275 1,546 36,613 327
- 762 648 795 508
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DNB
2016 542
2015 2,685
DNB
DNB
4 12

DNB
DNB
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16
DNB
DNB
2016 12 63.4 62.5 DNB
2016 1334
2016
DNB
2016
ECB
EU
ECB
LCR 100
12 EUR LCR 562 USD LCR
190 NOK LCR 59 LCR 138
2016 12
39 3.8 DNB
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2016 12 31 n DNB
1 3 1
1 1 5 5

207,923 1 207,934
203,711 79,263 18,369 240,115 7,567 549,024
159,952 81,835 61,872 199,950 189,983 (2787) 690,805
4,242 10,100 36,264 152,121 21,035 223,762
928 11,831 12,760
124,406 124,406
3217 3,217
575,828 174,416 116,515 593,113 230,416 121,619 1,811,908
223,275 49,225 41,800 24,402 2 338,705
920,557 920,557
61,024 63,692 64,251 121,902 18,499 329,368
1574 3,602 264 5,440
10,898 17,467 738 29,102
1,206,430 127,417 106,315 163,771 19,239 1,623,172
477,590 228,576 289,363 574,751 342,803 1,913,083
473,816 230,783 285,192 586,500 356,709 1,933,001
187 1,474 (912) 4,190 805 5,745
3,961 (733) 3,260 (7,559) (13,101) (14,173)

2015 12 31 n DNB

1 3 1

1 1 5 5
16,004 16,004
292,982 138,231 19,957 173,712 5,788 630,671
160,149 74,634 71,842 203,994 197,268 (1L,709) 706,177
3,009 6,424 24,005 142,556 33,723 200,718
1,695 17,467 19,162
130,394 130,394
3,056 3,056
472,145 222,345 115,805 521,958 254,245 128684  1,715182
181,533 32,489 8,142 39,677 474 262,315
896,223 896,223
38,731 100,979 37,241 153,822 65 330,838
805 3471 228 4,504
29,721 731 30,452
1,117,201 136,940 45611 223,220 1,270 1,524,332
676,392 455,976 347,524 619,816 378,367 2,478,075
674,056 454,792 347,929 645,953 397,510 2,520,240
536 1,141 3,798 2,109 7,584
2,872 2,325 (405) (22,339) (17,033) (34,581)
2016 2015
12 31 12 31

323,827 301,537
97,495 115,958
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2016 12 31 D DNB
1 3 1
1 1 5 5
208,252 11 208,263
120,011 42,484 5270 7,116 174,881
180,074 92,243 79,533 321,266 824,516 (4481) 1,493,151
5225 9,087 32,070 151,198 20,676 218,257
928 11,831 12,760
9,770 9,770
3,217 3217
513,563 147,031 116,884 480,508 857,024 5280 2,120,300
137,015 23535 22,922 28,125 211,597
945,587 945,587
73913 61,765 104,186 401,819 99,232 740,915
1,574 3,890 275 5,739
10,898 17,467 738 29,102
1,158,089 100,088 127,383 447,410 99,969 1,932,940
458,963 224,167 247,951 388,303 231,798 1,551,182
456,644 226,589 248,396 404,368 238,077 1,574,076
1,074 2,357 3434 20,229 9,296 36,390
3393 (65) 2,989 4,164 3017 13,496
2015 12 31 () DNB
1 3 1
1 1 5 5
19,317 19,317
184,533 102,938 4,244 2,046 3713 297,473
182,780 104,616 99,621 335,774 811,837 (2524) 1,532,104
1,609 6,425 24,628 140,115 33,853 206,629
1,695 17,467 19,162
14,140 14,140
3,056 3,056
388,239 217,035 128,493 479,630 866,870 11616 2,091,881
123,606 21,489 678 15,447 37 161,257
957,059 957,059
59,201 123,809 71,670 434533 86,114 775,326
805 3,955 228 4,989
29,722 731 30,453
1,140,671 149,253 72,576 479,702 86,882 1,929,084
653,849 432,276 313975 437,103 275,019 2112222
650,951 430,079 314,828 449,945 276,924 2,122,727
1,797 2,195 3,607 21,652 12,437 41,687
4,694 4,393 2,754 8,810 10,531 31,182
1)
DNB
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
390,001 360,109
216,295 244,267
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17
DNB
2016 2015
1) 1)

2,074 1,804 3,879 2,084 1,754 3,838

730 22,657 23,387 971 25,004 25,975

10 612 622 17 441 459

4,457 4,457 4,801 4,801

173 173 314 314

1 258 260 3 290 293

(2,331) 4715 2,385 (1,919) 4526 2,606

4,942 30,221 35,163 5,957 32,329 38,287
(1,958) (180) (2,138) (1,372) (187) (1,559)
(567) (5,805) (6,373) (497) (8,795) (9,292)
(1,822) (1,860) (3,683) (1,473) (1,601) (3,075)
(35) (493) (529) (38) (530) (568)
(638) (638) (675) (675)

2 2,385 (581) 1,804 1,449 (353) 1,096
(1.997) (9558) (11,555) (1.932) (12,140) (14,072)

2,944 20,663 23,608 4,026 20,189 24,215

DNB
2016 2015
1) 1)

1,105 234 1,339 1,294 314 1,608

2,556 42,179 44,735 3,595 45,442 49,037

911 911 619 619

4,405 4,405 4,291 4,291

173 173 314 314

5 289 294 15 323 337

(2,327) 3,356 1,029 (1,945) 3532 1,587

5,744 47,142 52,887 7,249 50,544 57,793
(1,542) (163) (1,705) (1,177) (188) (1,365)
(567) (6,135) (6,703) (497) (8,986) (9,483)
(3,502) (8,883) (12,385) (3.174) (9,635) (12,809)
(35) (496) (532) (38) (531) (569)
(768) (768) (845) (845)

2 3,893 (171 3,722 3112 (298) 2,814

164/350
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(1753)  (16616) (18,369 (L775)  (20484)  (22,259)

3,991 30,526 34,517 5,475 30,060 35,535

1)
2)
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DNB
()

2016 2015 2016 2015
0.42 0.41 926,269 934,924
348 3.68 690,265 719,069
2.04 213 217,986 225,269
054 0.38 392,710 407,055
0.64 0.92 995,959 1,007,870
0.96 0.77 383,150 398,935

DNB
()

2016 2015 2016 2015
0.23 0.25 579,604 647,358
3.01 331 1,514,319 1,501,783
204 2.14 216,417 200,597
0.60 0.41 284,899 331,607
0.64 0.89 1,044,615 1,062,719
1.48 151 834,669 847,755

1)
DNB DNB

2015 2016 2016 2015
3,378 3,451 3,731 3,596
294 342 406 351
348 319 344 363
425 573 616 482
289 575 767 609
29 23 23 29
625 494 491 781
366 372 397 392
1,121 1,220
466 589 732 870
6,220 6,739 8,628 8,604
(1,636) (1,754) (1,795) (1,670)

(15) (15)

172) (170) 172) 174)
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(115) 173) (176) (119)
(55) (73) (73) (55)
(61) (57) (57) (61)
(83) €1)) (26) @n
(95) (114) (114) (95)
(459) (481) (567) (537)
(2,676) (2,924) (2,994) (2,737)
3,544 3,815 5,634 5,956
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20
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
5,148 8,231 7,897 8,169
(1,543) (1,112) (1,185) (1,552)
52 440 440 52
56 52 55 36
140 47 71 164
3,853 7,658 7,278 6,868
(214) 74 (465) (894)
(1,304) (568) (629) (1,021)
(242) 761 (79) (90)
477 36 52 1,837
(1,282) 302 (1,121) (168)
(3,255) (2,788) (4,245) (8,055)
0 0 @ @
3,637 2,985 3,867 9,029
382 196 D2 (380) 972
864 554 595 876
147 124 133 156
3,964 8,834 6,506 8,704
1)
(
2) DNB DNB DNB
21
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
(6,175) (6,138) ) (7,622) (7,660)
(901) (968) (1,190) (1,124)
823 872) (968) 770
(345) (656) (693) (352)
(647) (614) (733) (775)
(7,245) (9,248) (11,206) (9,140)
(5,269) (5,206) *) (6,197) (6,207)
(737) (785) (1,275) (1,281)
1) 2015 DNB 2015 12
DNB 1,808
1,778
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 D 2016 D 2015
7,898 7,618 12 31 10,801 11,047
868 998 3,205 3,122
7,546 7,301 12 31 10,366 10,608
850 980 3,166 3,079
7,943 7,674 10,793 11,130
7,583 7,356 10,372 10,707
2015
2016 12 1,796
22
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
(1,370) (1,474) ) (1,575) (1,497)
(2,184) (1,886) IT (2,087) (2,397)
(223) (179) (222) (268)
(36) (25) 74) (87)
(589) (567) (804) (845)
(210) (173) (225) 271)
174) (198) (198) (174)
(60) (49) (61) 72)
(1,165) (1,112) 2 (1,285) (1,365)
67 (63) (92) (100)
(513) (391) (585) (817)
(6,591) (6,118) (7,207) (7,892)
1)2016 DNB 1,038
DNB 1,037
2015 990 990
2)2016 DNB 953
DNB 1,020
2015 983 1,042
23
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
(1,418) (1,447) (1,477) (1,453)
(375) (335) (470) (522)
(66) 11 (11) (66)
®)
(176) (258) (140) (119)
(2,035) (2,050) (2,103) (2,159)
37 38
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DNB Norwegian Public Service Pension Fund
Postbanken 400
0 7
71 12 15

12

2015 12 31

67
12G
2008 30
2011 30 12G
12G
2017 12G
67
12G
DNB
12
12 25
12 66

(CPA)
Public Service Pension Fund

CPA 1G 7.1G
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172
DNB
2016 2015
2016 2015 12 31 12 31
2.70 2.40 2.60 2.70
250 2.75 250 2.50
2.25 2.50 2.25 2.25
0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
CPA
1) K2013 K2013 K2013 K2013
K2013
K2013
DNB
2016 2015
(64) (354) (419) (431) (53) (484)
97) (42) (139) (366) (38) (404)
89 89 283 283
31 185 216 1,778 6 1,785
(€] (€] (6) (6)
(42) (211) (252) 1,259 (84) 1,175
(84) (92)
(42) (68)
(495) (192)
(873) 822
DNB
2016 2015
(65) (368) (432) (461) (54) (515)
(98) (43) (141) (377 (39) (416)
90 &) 89 294 294
32 188 220 1,808 1,808
(1) (€] (6) (6)
(42) (223) (265) 1,258 (93) 1,164
(98) (100)
(45) (75)
(560) (219)
(968) 770
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
16,463 4,991 5,074 16,982
484 419 432 515
404 139 141 416
(859) 209 / 216 (867)
(10,925) (329) (344) (11,381)
(733) (236) (242) (753)
158 (155) (157) 162
4,991 5,038 5,119 5,074
2015 2016 2016 2015
11,150 2,798 2,826 11,557
283 89 91 294
(10) “ / (15) (26)
(9,140) (113) (124) (9,573)
(62) (62)
877 9 110 940
(494) (114) (115) (501)
®) @ @ )
137 (106) (107) 142
2,798 2,584 2,603 2,826
2,193 2,454 2,516 2,248
2,246 2,454 2,516 2,301
53 53
DNB DNB
712 (45) 667 2015 12 31 744 (50) 694
5 1 15 5 13 18
110 (553) (443) 110 (573) (463)
28 607 635 31 628 659
82 82 82 82
(82) (82) 72) 72)
6 6 7 7
149 64 213 163 67 231
3 (8) (22) (22)
861 11 872 2016 12 31 907 () 903
DNB
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2012
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
1) (5,119) (5,074) (16,982) (13,991) (13,400) (16,312)
2,603 2,826 11,557 10,339 9,959 9,362
(2,516) (2,248) (5,425) (3,652) (3,442) (6,950)
1)
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2016 12 31
DNB
() +1 -1 +1 -1 +1 0 +1 -1
(
7-16 15-17 6-8 6-9 10-11 5-8 2 2
10-20 22-23 13-15 10-11 10-11 5-8 2 2
15 17 22
23
25
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
(7,002) (695) (8,406) (5,882)
3,550 (4,528) 4,442 (1,873)
(3.452) (5,223) (3,964) (7,755)
24,090 20,012 21,874 31,028
(6,504) (5,003) - 25 2015 27% (5,469) (8,378)
(38) 10 (168)
162 357 357 162
3,370 (1,023) i) 509 184
119 451 352 (35)
2) 123 32
(489) 18 511
(72) 5) 136 (63)
(3.452) (5,223) (3,964) (7,755)
14% 26% 18% 25%
(239) 48 52 (236)
(1,449) 2,294
(239) 48 (1,397) 2,058
1) EU
EEA
3
2) (
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25
2016 25
12 45
25 23
DNB DNB
25
2015 2016 2016 2015
2,970 6,308 (5,323) (3,340)
3,550 (4,528) 4,442 (1,873)
(238) 47 52 (236)
26 () (28) 126
(133)
6,308 1,826 (990) (5,323)
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
(952) (814) (@) (26)
(5,652) (2,964)
2,507 1,988
9,818 3,046 (31) (16)
1 (16) ®) )
610 663 94 102
(207) (245) 857 443
195 224 482 641
6,320 1,882 1,392 1,138
11 54 853 950
1 2 2,964 5,650
(6,937) (8,226)
5,702 8,203
102 264
(585) (522)
419 327
(136) (185)
12 56 2,382 6.461
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2015 2016 2016 2015
(298) 95 97 (300)
197 2,686 D2) 2,686 215
(673) (519) H2) (1,290) (2,430)
5,100 (6,772) H2) 2,485 6,925
53 an D2 161 454
(652) 8 3 (668)
(290) (38) 319 (355)
113 29 2) (19) (5,714)
3,550 (4,528) 4,442 (1.,873)
1)
2) 2015 2016
DNB
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
351 351 88 236 236 59
351 351 88 236 236 59
D 136 136
224 195
1)
DNB
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
194 194 49
351 351 88 236 236 59
1,797 655 98
420 372 63
2,311 1,577 394 2,461 1,681 420
2,662 1,928 482 5,108 3,138 689
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1)

DNB
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2016 12 31 DNB
1)
187,462 15,824 4,648 207,934
340,736 4,907 203,450 549,093
42,974 16,052 631,034 690,060
150,169 73,191 223,360
4,297 881 5178
159,522 10,795 170,317
12,760 12,760
995 995
118,233 118,233
13,462 13,462
885,161 110,855 10,795 971,822 12,760 1,991,392
299,432 1,196 38,104 338,731
43,210 11,599 865,855 920,664
180,605 1,189 181,794
153,485 12,925 170,531 336,941
516 23377 23,893
1,254 28,093 29,347
2) 677,247 26,975 1,189 1,125,960 1,831,371
1)
2) 26,362
2015 12 31 DNB
1)
1,097 12,557 2,350 16,004
478,799 23,929 127,972 630,700
37,640 24,855 643,036 705,532
126,930 83,132 210,062

177/350



EDINETOOOO

o o o o =243 )

6,724 781 7,504
201,393 12,405 213,797
19,162 19,162
975 975
120,473 120,473
23,735 23,735
852,583 145,254 12,405 918,541 19,162 1,947,944
233,605 2,449 26,275 262,330
42,176 2,060 852,252 896,488
239,687 830 240,518
159,932 18,258 161,909 340,099
5,359 34,079 39,438
1,241 29,712 30,953
2 680,760 24,008 830 1,104,226 1,809,825
1)
2) 23,342
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2016 12 31 DNB
1
187,462 15,824 4,977 208,263
160,828 45 14,035 174,908
42,974 69,442 1,379,852 1,492,268
148,026 69,862 217,887
5,158 1,042 6,200
124,919 33,038 157,957
12,760 12,760
8,255 8,255
669,366 156,215 33,038 1,407,119 12,760 2,278,497
178,047 1,196 32,363 211,606
43,210 11,599 890,885 945,694
128,796 2,195 130,990
153,485 87,402 526,863 767,750
516 15,265 15,781
1,254 28,093 29,347
2) 504,053 101,451 2,195 1,493,470 2,101,169
1)
2) 99,238
2015 12 31 DNB
1)
1,097 12,557 5,663 19,317
282,854 2 14,602 297,457
37,640 85,777 1,408,515 1,531,932
125,580 81,482 207,063
7,603 1,190 8,794
165,866 37,408 203,273
19,162 19,162
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8,608 8,608
620,641 181,008 37,408 1,437,388 19,162 2,295,606
129,082 2,449 29,735 161,267
42,176 2,060 913,086 957,322
154,044 834 154,878
159,932 88,490 558,388 806,810
5,359 13,050 18,409
1,241 29,712 30,953
2) 490,594 94,240 834 1,543,971 2,129,640
1)
2) 91,948
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DNB

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
4,648 4,648 2,350 2,350
203,450 203,450 127,972 127,972
631,034 634,571 643,036 636,275
12,760 12,406 19,162 18,463
851,891 855,075 792,520 785,059
38,104 38,104 26,275 26,275
865,855 865,855 852,252 852,252
170,531 173,788 161,909 164,603
28,093 28,065 29,712 29,711
1,102,583 1,105,812 1,070,147 1,072,841

DNB

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
4,977 4,977 5,663 5,663
14,035 14,035 14,602 14,602
1,379,852 1,383,679 1,408,515 1,401,036
12,760 12,406 19,162 18,463
1,411,623 1,415,097 1,447,942 1,439,763
32,363 32,363 29,735 29,735
890,885 890,885 913,086 913,086
526,863 533,874 558,388 562,620
28,093 28,065 29,712 29,711
1,478,205 1,485,187 1,530,921 1,535,153

DNB
1) 1) 1)
2016 12 31
4,648 4,648
203,450 203,450
634,571 634,571
12,406 12,406
2016 12 31

38,104 38,104
865,855 865,855
171,840 1,949 173,788
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DNB
1) 1) 1)
2016 12 31
4,977 4,977
14,035 14,035
1,383,679 1,383,679
12,406 12,406
2016 12 31
32,363 32,363
890,885 890,885
499,379 34,495 533,874
17,937 10,128 28,065
1) 28
DNB
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DNB
Finans
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DNB

2016 31
203,286 203,286
345,643 345,643
42,974 16,052 59,026
50,893 172,002 375 223,360
4,140 239 799 5178
0 168,998 1,319 170,317

2016 31
300,628 300,628
54,809 54,809
166,410 166,410
1,254 1,254
0 180,732 1,062 181,794
b 516 0 516

2015 31
13,654 13,654
502,727 502,727
37,640 24,855 62,495
37,906 171,590 566 210,062
6,675 1 828 7,504
2 212,201 1,504 213,797

2015 31
236,055 236,055
44,236 44,236
178,190 178,190
1,241 1,241
0 239,374 1,144 240,518
1 5,285 75 5,359

1)
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DNB

2016 31
203,286 203,286
160,873 160,873
42,974 69,442 112,416
54,988 162,524 375 217,887
5,009 245 946 6,200
0 156,637 1,319 157,957

2016 31
179,243 179,243
54,809 54,809
240,887 240,887
1,254 1,254
0 129,928 1,062 130,990
1 516 0 516

2015 31
13,654 13,654
282,855 282,855
37,640 85,777 123,417
42,335 163,994 734 207,063
7,564 2 1,229 8,794
2 201,767 1,504 203,273

2015 31
131,532 131,532
44,236 44,236
248,422 248,422
1,241 1,241
0 153,734 1,144 154,878
1 5,285 75 5,359

1)
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FRA
DNB
2014 12 31 36,825 246 1,335 1,877 1,463
(212) 16 48 61 (24)
7,388 351 241 520 467
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(2,131) (340) (796)
(17,017) 0 (981) 777
818
(462)
(62) 27 15
2015 12 31 24,855 566 828 1,504 1,144
a2 (12) (119) (201) (122)
4,914 308 135 802 797
(2,696) (597) (45)
(11,063) 772 (751)
698
(576)
D (13) (14) (6)
2016 12 31 16,052 375 799 1,319 1,062
DNB
2014 12 31 105,429 251 1,589 1,877 1,463
(896) ) 210 61 (24)
35,628 532 241 520 467
(20,169) (344) (825)
(34,215) 0 (981) 777
818
(462)
(51) 14 27 15
2015 12 31 85,777 734 1,229 1,504 1,144
(519) (97 (120) (201) (122)
13,818 308 156 802 797
2) (5,146) (657) (283)
(24,489) 0 772 (751)
698
(576)

9 (35) (36) (14) (6)
2016 12 31 69,442 375 946 1,319 1,062
1) 2016 11 DNB

DNB
2)2016 8
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lock-in period

2016 57,430

2016 12,012
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DNB 3 DNB
2016 12 31 2016 12 31
660 412 15,984 68,789 412 770
138 (37) 24 n 521 37) 176
44 131
799 375 16,052 69,442 375 946
1)
DNB 3 DNB
(PE) (PE)
799 24 226 549 2016 12 31 696 226 24 946
DNB 3 DNB
2016 2016
12 31 12 31
(28) 16,052 69,442 (149)
() 375 375 0
799 946
257 257
10
10
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DNB
1
2016 12 31
2) 153,938 153,938 153,938
2 43,496 43,496 43,496
3) 136,705 136,705 54,580 36,718 45,407
2016 12 31
2) 50,018 50,018 50,018
2) 1,185 1,185 1,185
3 145,722 145,722 54,580 22,494 68,648
DNB
1)
2015 12 31
2 279,255 279,255 279,254
2) 38,545 38,545 38,545
3) 166,980 166,980 57,498 39,532 69,950
2015 12 31
2) 22,001 22,001 22,001
2
3) 202,307 202,307 57,498 46,635 98,174
DNB
1
2016 12 31
2) 153,938 153,938 153,938
2) 43,496 43,496 43,496
3) 124,387 124,387 54,603 36,718 33,066
2016 12 31
2) 20,375 20,375 20,375
2) 1,185 1,185 1,185
3) 95,234 95,234 54,603 22,494 18,137
DNB
1)
2015 12 31
2) 279,338 279,338 279,337
2 38,546 38,546 38,546
3) 156,456 156,456 57,533 39,532 59,391
2015 12 31
2 22,001 22,001 22,001
2
3) 116,723 116,723 57,533 46,579 12,610
1)
2)
3)
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k)
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
7,504 5,178 6,200 8,794
2016 12 31
DNB DNB
()2 ()
Gjensidige Forsikring3) 66,343 9,089 Bank of New York 100,000 860,920
Storebrand3) 9,788,630 2.2 449,494 Storebrand3) 9,788,630 2.2 449,494
39,019 60,875
497,602 1,371,289
American Shipping Company3) 9,506,257 15.7 231,002 Alpinco 347,043 19.9 56,161
DNO3) 6,957,991 0.6 59,004 American Shipping Company3) 9,506,257 15.7 231,002
Eiendomsverdi 353,269 18.8 50,577 DNO 6,957,991 0.6 59,004
Koksa Eiendom 16,198,752 12.6 189,000 Eiendomsverdi 353,269 18.8 50,577
Marine Harvest3) 338,400 0.1 52,689 Finn Eiendom 755 7.6 91,338
Nordic Semiconductor3) 2,150,829 1.3 75,494 Koksa Eiendom 16,198,752 12.6 189,000
Norsk Hydro3) 1,111,404 0.1 45,901 Marine Harvest3) 338,400 0.1 52,689
Norway Royal salmon3) 2,371,819 5.4 490,967 Nordic Semiconductor3) 2,150,829 1.3 75,494
Norwegian Air Shuttle3) 222,917 0.6 63,977 Norway Royal Salmon3) 2,371,819 5.4 490,967
NRC Group3) 2,081,301 5.4 141,528 Norwegian Air Shuttle3) 222,917 0.6 63,977
Olav Thon Eiendomsselskap3) 286,622 0.3 45,860 NRC Group3) 2,081,301 5.4 141,528
Opera Software3) 2,034,900 1.4 75,902 Opera Software3) 2,034,900 1.4 75,902
orkla3) 1,190,432 0.1 93,092 orkla3) 1,190,432 0.1 93,092
Telenord) 1,521,397 0.1 196,260 Telenord) 1,521,397 0.1 196,260
Thin Film Electronics3) 13,807,200 1.7 50,534 Thin Film Electronics3) 13,807,200 1.7 50,534
609,800 702,166
2,471,587 2,619,691
Archer3) 2,902,816 5.0 36,575 Archer3) 2,902,816 5.0 36,575
Cherry AB3) 255,000 1.5 60,973 Cherry AB3) 255,000 1.5 60,973
Deep Sea Supply3) 41,120,000 14.1 57,157 Deep Sea Supply3) 41,120,000 14.1 57,157
Golar LNG3) 4,162,765 4.2 836,819 Golar LNG3) 4,162,765 4.2 836,819
Golden Ocean Group3) 1,524,846 1.4 62,976 Golden Ocean Group3) 1,524,846 1.4 62,976
Seadrill3) 3,419,706 0.7 101,976 Seadrill3) 3,419,706 0.7 101,976
Subsea 73) 420,818 0.1 45,995 Subsea 73) 420,818 0.1 45,995
Teekay Offshore partners3) 474,525 10.0 82,970 Teekay Offshore Partners3) 474,525 10.0 82,970
297,897 297,897
1,583,338 1,583,338
140,082 140,082
246,406 246,406
239,133 239,347
625,621 625,836
5,178,148 6,200,153
1)
2)
3) 2016
4,297
2016 55

194/350



DNB DNB

2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

2,212 2,212
5,128 14,726 14,726 5,128
753 215 215 753
8,094 14,941 14,941 8,094

DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
2,212 2,212
3,707 10,446 10,446 3,707
661 1,185 1,185 661
618 224 224 618
172 2 2 172
7,370 11,857 11,857 7,370
DNB
2015
2,212
2016

195/350
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15
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
310,557 190,083 190,083 310,662
4,931 31,121 31,121 4,931
315,488 221,204 221,204 315,593
9,656 4,203 4,203 9,656
3,825 10,084 10,084 3,825
1)
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
19,162 12,760 12,760 19,162
19,162 12,760 12,760 19,162

DNB
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2016 12 31
0.3
88.0
2016 12 104
5.2
2016 12 5.8
DNB
2016 2015
84 95
448 (170)
(364) 265
DNB
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
318 402
665 1,113
347 711
DNB
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
10,414 14,686
10,067 13,975
347 711
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DNB

2016

2015

131
(64)

(20)

233
Gy

(51)

47

95

DNB

2014 12 31

4,743

152

454
269
(3,430

87

2015 12 31

1

2,333

163
(35)
(1,311)

(65)

2016 12 31

1175

2016 12 31

1)2016

622
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35
DNB
2016 2015
4,001 3275
771 (288)
1) 144 199
P) (880) 889
(557) 16
2 3 3 3,570 4,001
DNB
2016 2016 2016 2016 2015
12 3 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
2016 2016
4 4 4 ()
1 34,171 26,106 ©) ©) 40 3219 3,139
Visa Norge? 283 889
68 64
3570 4,001
DNB
2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31
2016
()
1 40 919 919
76 56
995 975
1) 2011
DNB 11.8
DNB 2011
2011
2011 4 DNB
144 2016
2011 DNB
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2) DNB Visa Norway Visa Europe
2016 31 Visa Europe 855
2016 Visalnc
Visa Europe 1,128
3)

4)
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()
DNB Invest Denmark 12,765,228 12,765,228,468 12,765,228 100 10,143,138
DNB Bankas 190,205 5,710,134 190,205 100 3,358,534
DNB Banka 191,178 191,178,337 191,178 100 2,133,505
DNB Pank 9,376 937,643 9,376 100 912,919
DNB Bank Polska 1,257,200  1,257,200,000 1,257,200 100 1,773,560
DNB Asial) 1,500,000 150,000,000 1,500,000 100 12,913,800
DNB Asial) 20,000 20,000,000 20,000 100 100,768
DNB Brasil 600 599,999 600 100 2,669
DNB Capital2 100 20,662,080
DNB 70,000 70,000 70,000 100 635,798
DNB 1 1,000 1 100 3,155
DNB 100,000 100,000,000 100,000 100 13,785,672
DNB (UK) Limited 200 200,000 200 100 12,307,645
Aksje- og Eiendomsinvest 100 100,000 100 100 38,721
Bryggetorget Holding 3,250 2,500 3,250 100 63,230
Digital Wallet 297 2,971 297 100 7,500
DNB 3,857,000 38,570,000 3,857,000 100 33,384,000
DNB 10,003 100,033 10,003 100 158,021
DNB Eiendomsutvikling 91,000 91,000,000 91,000 100 253,731
DNB Gjenstandsadministrasjon 3,000 30 3,000 100 3,000
DNB Invest Holding 100,000 200,000 100,000 100 172,000
DNB Meglerservice 1,200 12 1,200 100 10,221
DNB 550,000 550,000 550,000 100 5,240,942
DNB 1,000 10,000 1,000 100 24,000
DNB Polish Properties 1,200 1,200 1,200 100 35,113
Godfjellet 8,030 8,030 8,030 100 27,600
Godfjorden 1,000 10,000 1,000 100 72,000
Kongsberg Industrieiendom 100 1,000 100 100 10,000
118,233,322

1) DNB AsiaLtd

2) DNB Capital LLC 2.4

DNB

DNB
2016
5,795
2015 8,497
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
3,012 2,921 3,057 3,100
510 571 824 876
152 106 100 199
3,675 3,598 3,981 4,176
DNB
2015 3,622 2,157 838 6,617
137 0 138
@ (810) (22) (833)
57 1 9 67
2015 12 31 3,678 1,486 825 5,988
2015 1 1 (659) (1,522) (641) (2,822)
(197) (48) (245)
(66) (66)
1 811 22 833
@] ] (5) (14)
2015 12 31 (665) (975) (672) (2,313)
2015 12 31 3012 510 152 3675
2016 3,678 1,486 825 5,988
266 323 589
(39) (39)
(41) (41)
(0) 106 (452) (346)
(55) 2 (14 (71)
2016 12 31 3543 1,857 681 6,080
2016 (665) (975) (672) (2,313)
(139) (49) (188)
®3 ()
a4 (169) 136 7
3 2 11 15
2016 12 31 (622) (1,286) (575) (2,482)
2016 12 31 2921 571 106 3598
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DNB

2015 4,607 3,947 1,110 9,665
12 142 51 204

12 (811) (119) (941)

57 118 (64) 110

2015 12 31 4,665 3,395 978 9,039
2015 1 1 (1,560) (2,922) (867) (5,349)
(269) () (352)

(66) (66)

2 811 73 887

U] 73 99 18

2015 12 31 (1,566) (2,519) (778) (4,863)
2015 12 31 3100 876 199 4,176
2016 4,665 3,395 978 9,039
19 266 346 632

©) ©)

(41) © (41)

©) (367) (444) (813)

(56) (55) (40) (150)

2016 12 31 4,585 3,241 841 8,666
2016 (1,566) (2,519) (778) (4,863)
(241) ) (284)

® ®3 ©)

20 286 52 358

23 60 29 112

2016 12 31 (1.528) (2417) (741) (4,685)
2016 12 31 3,057 824 100 3,081

25
DNB 2016 12 31 DNB
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) (D) a a a )

982 12.4 2.5 2.5 12.4 982

483 12.4 2.5 2.5 12.4 483

791 12.4 2.5  DNB Finans- 2.5 12.4 791

665 12.4 2.5 2.5 12.4 801

2,921 3,057
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DNB 2015 12 31 DNB
( (
) ) ) ) ) )
982 11.8 2.5 2.5 11.8 982
483 11.8 2.5 2.5 11.8 483
811 11.8 2.5 DNB Finans- 2.5 11.8 811
737 11.8 2.5 2.5 11.8 824
3,012 3,100
DnB  Gjensidige NOR Nordlandsbanken
Gjensidige NOR
DnB  Gjensidige NOR
DNB Finans
DNB 2008
DNB SkandiaBanken

DNB Finans
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DNB
2015 12 31 200 3,101 8,648 15 11,965
7 )
9 165 2,333 1 2,508
(31) (242) (2,667) (5) (2,945)
(13) (10) (296) (0) (319)
2016 12 31 172 3,007 8,018 1 11,209
2015 12 31 (33) (1523) (2,927) @) (4,485)
0 188 1,583 0 1,772
1) ) (308) (1,252) @ (1,570)
3 3 103 0 108
2016 12 31 (39) (1,640) (2,493) 2 (4,175)
2016 12 31 133 1,367 5,525 9 7,034
DNB
2015 12 31 798 3,501 8,648 174 13,122
7 )
19 233 2,333 27 2,613
(419) (280) (200) (799)
(198) (286) (2,667) @n (3,179)
(35) (24) (296) 7 (363)
2016 12 31 173 3,136 8,018 67 11,394
2015 12 31 (210) (1,822) (2,928) (104) (5,063)
113 209 62 384
78 230 1,584 20 1,912
1) (20) (346) (1,252) (13) (1,631)
(13) (13
12 14 103 5 133
2016 12 31 (39) (1715) (249) (31) (4,278)
2016 12 31 133 1421 5,525 36 7,117
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1)

10
10
10

DNB
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2016 25 DNB Nordea
2017
Nordea DNB
DNB
Nordea
2016 12 DNB
DNB
DNB
2016 12
DNB

2016

3,645

229

45,007

1,713

47

72

607

78

124

406

375

52,303

3,834

36,464

402

21

439

210/350
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
11,098 12,165 13,472 12,292
28,599 31,348 35,624 32,324
2,988 3,275 3,335 3,042
42,685 46,788 52,431 47,659
10,754 11,788 12,930 11,789
23,022 25,235 28,883 26,595
1,981 2,171 2,226 2,027
35,757 39,195 44,039 40,410
6,928 7,594 8,393 7,249
128 65 65 128
1,728 802 826 1,742
46 51 117 119
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
354 342 342 354
1,769 1,708 1,723 1,779
35 33 33 35
2,157 2,083 2,098 2,167
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
22 81 93 36
593 372 449 670
6,125 5,837 5,837 6,142
6,740 6,290 6,379 6,848
399 478 287 225
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
895 857 822 843
895 857 822 843
) ) © (O)
DNB DNB
DNB
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DNB
DNB
41
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
526 736 841 688
1,404 1,801 1,809 1,480
993 1,060 1,197 1,148
20,812 9,865 1 4,408 5,292
23,735 13,462 2 8,255 8,608
1) DNB 2016 12 31 6,237
2)
42
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
334,154 344,437 348,263 353,110
64,816 51,347 51,347 65,040
44,001 47,711 43,307 44,782
54,160 67,394 68,738 57,701
131,811 128,298 129,567 137,262
30,011 27,672 28,408 32,743
23,749 27,266 27,267 23,777
46,428 50,265 52,650 51,244
19,546 26,074 26,435 21,023
20,049 19,023 19,469 21,787
5,274 7,582 7,582 5,301
2,266 3,071 3,071 2,395
2,416 2,444 2,465 4,317
48,908 57,106 57,715 52,253
68,500 60,742 79,061 84,110
896,087 920,434 945,344 956,846
400 230 349 476
896,488 920,664 945,694 957,322
EU NACE Rev.2
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DNB
2016
12 31 2016 2016 2015
2016 2016 12 31
) 153,415 8,917,217 (8,920,456) (3,333) 159,988
1) 173,368 26,744 (14,588) (6,766) 167,978
10,158 (1,975) 12,133
336,941 8,943,961 (8,935,044) (10,099) (1,975) 340,099
2016 12 31 D2

DNB
2017 31,359 31,359
2018 15,648 15,648
2019 13,074 13,074
2020 33,085 33,085
2021 33,196 33,196
2022 16,408 16,408
2023 18,408 18,408
161,178 161,178

2016 12 31 n

DNB
2017 63 153,352 153,415
63 153,352 153,415
2017 1,607 1,607
2018 3,151 3,151
2019 2,117 2,117
2020 1,770 1,770
2021 3,453 3,453

2022

2023 91 91
12,190 12,190
12,253 153,352 165,605
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774 9,385 10,158

13,026 323,915 336,941

1)
2)

215/350



EDINETOOOO

o o o o =243 )

DNB
2016
12 31 2016 2016 2015
2016 2016 12 3
) 153,415 8917217  (8,920,456) (3,333) 159,988
1) 581,447 78,691 (80,330) (24,918) 608,004
32,888 (5,931) 38,819
767,750 8995008  (9,000,786) (28,251) (5.931) 806,810
2016 12 31 12)

DNB
2017 79,640 79,640
2018 72,785 72,785
2019 52,609 52,609
2020 67,197 67,197
2021 80,126 80,126
2022 47,260 47,260
2023 97,073 97,073
496,691 496,691

2016 12 31 1

DNB
2017 63 153,352 153,415
63 153,352 153,415
2017 6,808 6,808
2018 16,318 16,318
2019 18,157 18,157
2020 20,452 20,452
2021 16,861 16,861
2022 3,947 3,047
2023 2,212 2212
84,757 84,757
84,820 153,352 238,172
2,638 30,249 32,888
87,458 680,292 767,750

216/350
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DNB 2016
12 31 415.8
599.6
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DNB

2016 2015
12 31 2016 2016 12 31

2016 2016
19,415 738 ©) (1,158) 19,838
5,602 (100) 5,702
3732 (829) 4,561
599 (254) 853
29,347 738 3 (2,087) (254) 30,953

DNB
2012 750 4.75% 2022 2017 6,812
2013 1250 3  NIBOR 1.70% 2023 2018 1,250
2013 750 3.00% 2023 2018 6,812
2015 1,000 1.97% 2025 2020 951
2015 3000 3  STIBOR 1.40% 2025 2020 2,852
2016 10,000 1.00% 2026 2021 738
19,415
1985 215 3  LIBOR 0.25% 1,851
1986 200 6 LIBOR 0.13% 1,722
1986 150 6 LIBOR 0.15% 1,291
1999 10,000 451% 2029 738
5,602
2007 350 6.01% 2017 3,732
3,732

DNB
DNB DNB
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2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

805 1,574 1,574 805
5,359 516 516 5,359
3471 3,602 3,890 3,955
1,599 2,810 2,831 1,666
3,264 2,906 2,943 3,288
22,864 9,858 (©)
735 632 1,015 932
246 246 246 246
1,005 1,749 2,765 2,156
30,438 23,893 ) 15,781 18,409

1)
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DNB (Oslo Bars)
DNB 2016 12 31 2015
12 31 DNB 183,143,110
18,314,311,000 100
DNB 2016 12
31 1,588 2015 12 31 1,036
Tier
Tierl DNB
Tier DNB
2016 2015
12 31 2016 12 31
2016 2016 2016
Tier ( ) 15,574 7,520 8,053
379 (505) 595 (1 299
Tier 15,952 7,520 (505) 595 () 8,353
DNB
2015 2150 3  NIBOR 3.25% 2,150
2015 750 5.75% 5,903
2016 1,400 3  NIBOR 5.25% 1,400
2016 750 6.50% 6,120
15,574

220/350



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )

ooooOoog
47
6-16a
DNB
2010 12
DNB DNB
Finanstilsynet

DNB 2011
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DNB

DNB
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A.
Tier
50
2016 12 31 60 70
60 60
14 60
2017 2016
60

60 2
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DNB
DNB
2017
Tierl 2017
2017
2017
2017
2017
DNB DNB

DNB

DNB
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DNB
Finanstilsynet
DNB EU
[ J
50 DNB
DNB
2016 12 31 65
70
12 DNB

2017 2016
2011

12 2015 12 31

12
2016
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B.
50
DNB
DNB
C.
2015 2011
D.
2016 50 DNB
Anne Carine Tanum DNB 2016
437,000 2015 420,000
DNB 2015 526,000
2016 548,000
Rune Bjerke 2015 5,628,000 2016
5,794,000 DNB
2015 2,332,000 2016
2,010,000 2016 2017
2015 2016 322,000
2015 4,586,000
2016 3,871,000
DNB DNB 2016
4,989,000 12G

1,118,000
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2016 DNB
2016 2016
12 31 2016 12 31
2016 2016 2016 2016
D 2) 3) 4 5) 6)
DNB
Anne Carine Tanum 985 2 987
Jarle Bergo 710 6 717
Lillian Hattrem 2016 594 321 597 20 39 977 3,257 73
Kim Wahl 319 319 51
Rune Bjerke 5,556 5,794 2,010 322 8,126 8,845 4,989
Bjorn Erik Nass
2017 3,880 4,071 1,520 234 5,825 956 5,224
Kjerstin Braathen
2017 3,010 3,150 1,150 234 4,534 40 619
Trond Bentesturen EVP 3,560 3,204 1,290 268 4,763 6,301 706
Ottar Ertzeid EVP 8,820 9,205 3,800 235 13,240 23 623
Benedicte S. Fasmer EVP
2016 26 2,950 2,383 870 205 3,459 7,476 113
Liv Fiksdahl EVP 3,050 3,196 1,110 243 4,549 1,236 1,014
Rune Garborg EVP 2016 26 2,950 2,423 1,420 229 4,072 6,634 321
Solveig Hellebust EVP 2,450 2,571 930 232 3,733 3 379
Thomas Midteide EVP 2,500 2,098 930 259 3,287 4,482 256
Kari Olrud Moen EVP 2,810 2,945 1,020 232 4,197 18 1,320
Tom Rathke EVP 3,400 3,733 1,020 276 5,030 6,221 2,613
Bengt Olav Lund EVP7) 2,610 1,982 1,260 204 3,445 7,115 113
Harald Serch-Hanssen EVP 4,090 4,279 1,400 252 5,931 5,372 1,004
Terje Turnes EVP 3,930 4,119 580 235 4,935 575
18,112,694
1)
2) DNB
2016 DNB
Anne Carine Tanum 437,000
Jarle Bergo 319,000
3)
4
5% DNB
6) scc 24
7) 2016
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2015 DNB
2015 2015
12 31 2015 12 31
2015 2015 2015 2015
D 2) 3) 4 5) 6)
DNB
Anne Carine Tanum 946 12 958
Jarle Bergo 614 5 619
Sverre Finstad 659 614 669 22 60 1,365 549 57
Vigdis Mathisen 719 614 721 22 27 1,384 3,763 82
Kai Nyland”) 307 187 494 1
Torill Rambjor 307 695 1,002 20
Kim Wahl 307 307 53
Rune Bjerke 5,420 5,628 2,332 349 8,309 9,549 4,586
Bjorn Erik Nass 3,795 3,956 1,642 208 5,806 376 4,927
Trond Bentesturen EVP 2,970 3,076 1,322 224 4,622 6,532 675
Kjerstin Braathen EVP 2,895 3,010 1,272 205 4,486 35 553
Ottar Ertzeid EVP 8,620 8,972 4,012 205 13,189 37 489
Liv Fiksdahl EVP 2,970 3,082 1,322 207 4,611 1,450 846
Solveig Hellebust EVP 2,385 2,478 1,052 200 3,731 11 290
Kari Olrud Moen EVP 2,750 2,861 1,172 201 4,235 18 1,309
Tom Rathke EVP 3,325 3,610 1,502 251 5,364 6,349 2,162
Harald Serch-Hanssen EVP 4,020 4,188 1,712 245 6,144 5,478 959
Thomas Midteide EVP 1,900 1,973 832 210 3,015 5,776 188
Terje Turnes EVP 2015 3,850 3,725 742 201 4,667 63 474
Trygve Young EVP 2015 n 902 1,996 2,898 1
Frode Hassel 438 438
Karl Olav Hovden n 364 307 671
Ida Hel liesen 292 292
Ida Espolin Johnson 292 292 161
Ole Trasti 292 292 3,631
5,471 703 5,663 373 223 6,962 38,349 277
17,273,913
1)
2) DNB
2015 DNB
Anne Carine Tanum 420,000
Jarle Bergo 307,000
Sverre Finstad: 307,000
Vigdis Mathisen 307,000
3)
3
5 DNB
6) scc
24
7)
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2017 EVP
2017
2017
2016
2016 12 31
Rune Bjerke 60 70
Bjorn Erik Naess Liv Fiksdahl Kari Oirud Moen Tom Rathke 62
70 Terje Turnes 67
70 Trond Bentestuen Kjerstin Braathen
Harald Serck-Hanssen 65 70
Ottar Ertzeid 65 62 70
Tomas Midteide Solveig Hellebust 65 67
65 70
12
Benedicte Fasmer Rune Garborg 2016 26
12
Bjarn Erik Naess 62 70
2017
2016
2016 12 31

Rune Bjerke 4,989 (1,118) 3,871

14,880 (21,778) (6,898)

19,869 (22,896) (3,027)

2016 DNB
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DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
(7,967) (10,465) 1) (23,628) (20,865)
(569) (1,016) (1,731) (1,414)
(4,959) (12,860) 2) (12,874) (6,159)
(9,690) (3,476) (3,570) (9,875)
(23,185) (27,817) (41,803) (38,313)
1) DNB
2)
48
DNB DNB DNB
DNB
34

DNB NOR Savings Bank

Foundation 35
DNB
DNB
2016 2015 2016 2015

44 41 913 1,294
©) ©)] (37) (381)

24 6 249
12 31 60 44 1,125 913
1 1 24 24
235 105 702 3,106
14 131 78 (2,363)
5 @) 1 (42)
12 31 253 235 781 702
©) (Y] ® (16)
£Y - - 5,951 11,323
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1) DNB
DNB
DNB
2015 2212
2016
DNB
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2015 2016
47
DNB
DNB DNB 1 DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
349,169 393,832 12 31 22,059 17,608
29,784 20,250 12 31 2 726 2,450
122,593 143,450 12 31 10,796 12,903
109,470 62,288 12 31 2 919 M
4,360 5,387 506 350
(1,970) (2,897) (56) (90)
10,088 6,490 3) 1,866 1,920
(268) (114) (88) (257)
1) DNB DNB
DNB
2)2015 12 31 2016 12 31 DNB
DNB
3) DNB 2016 2015
1,591 4,571
DNB
DNB DNB
DNB
DNB
2016 19.8
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IT

2016 2.3

2016 12 9.0
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2013 DNB
RCF RCF DNB
12
RCF
RCF RCF
DNB
2016
2016 (
) 2016 12 26.2
DNB
2016 160 190
DNB
DNB DNB
2016 7.2
2016 74.1
3.1
DNB 2016 12
0.9

2016 (

) 2016 12 112

DNB
2016 25

30
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DNB
DNB
DNB
2016 12 19
2016 11 DNB
DNB
2016 2.6 4.5
DNB DNB
DNB DNB
2015 DNB DNB
DNB
DNB
2016 12 31.9
DNB DNB
5.6
49
DNB DNB
2015 2016 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 3
32,568 29,930 30,900 33712
36,375 32,547 34,472 37,544
16,715 17,979 17,898 16,629
7,253 6,535 6,557 7,271
2,780 2,213 2,714 3,258
95,692 89,205 92,541 98,414
6,106 11,827
95,692 89,205 " 98,647 110,241
963,486 479,792 ) 606,122 600,523
4,576 3,861 3,948 4,790
37 51
968,062 483,653 610,107 605,364
1,063,754 572,858 708,754 715,605
17,828 9,322
*) 326 311
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DNB CLS
DNB CLS
CLS
CLS
CLS CLS
30 2016
DNB CLS
DNB
2016 12 416
DNB
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
355,932 386,944
50,859 59,419
3,581 4,602
19,701 22,780
439,072 473,745
DNB
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
599,579 561,517
38,527 74,932
638,106 636,449
() 145.4 134.2
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Income statement

DHE Bank AGA OMB Bank Group
2015 2016 Amournts in HOK mikon Hiots ] ] 28
38 267 35 163 Total interes? income 17 52 @87 57 783
(14 072} {11 BE&; Totnl enianest Eponiey 17 118 385 (32 258
4 215 3 608 Net Interest income 7 57 35 533
220 &738 Commission and fee income eic. -] aaxe s
(2 876} (2 Baa) Commission and fee sxpenses slc. ] {2 B8 27N
R §: L B Ehs Wt gains on financial instrumsents at firvalkon 0 6 506 a8
Pradt free irvettmants accouning for by the squity method k] 1188 T

et gaing on irvestment properies (35 o)

9788 5§37 Dther incoms 2073 205
17 20 18 488 Het oiher operating incoens 15 318 16 80
41 509 A2 0o Total incame 40 Ex3 52444
{7 245) (8 248 Salanes and cther perscnnel pxpenges ] {11 208 {8 1405
(6581} 6118 CHhbd §pansis ] (7207 {7 ean
(2 035) 12050 Cegraciation and impairment of Bxed and intangdie aswets ] (2 1033 {2 158
(15 871} (7417 Tofal DpeTating FXpenses 20 518 {19 191}
5638 A Pre-tax operating profit before impa rmen N7 IR
B 14 Net gains on fued and intengible assets L] 45

i1 E‘ r-ll-?m an'hﬂilndﬂlmﬂm B 10 {743 Ezm
24 050 o m2 Pre-tax operating profit HETA o
(3452} 1533 Tax expense il 13 064) {7 755
Profs fomn opecations beld for sale aber tares 4 &b
0 638 4 7Bl Profit for th year 17 o4 33T
20 264 #4193 Peran atFbubed 1o haneh sl ders 1738 22848
74 586 Portion attributable to addiional Tier 1 capital holders: el 374
Folik: ] W TRl Profin for thi yoar 174 2I1EE
112.68 75 Eamings/ditted eamings per share (NOK) T 1246.78
Enmings pee thare for cpmaticat held for sale (NOK) ooz 028

Earmings per share for cont g opsratons gxcluding
z.ee 8075 eperations held for sale (NOK) T 127.07

Comprehensive income statement

DHE Bank ABA DHB Bank Group
206 2016 Amaunts in NOK méson 18 2016
30638 4 TEl Profit for the yoar A7 s4 il
615 {165 Actuarial gmng and |ewies 17 ST
615 {168 Remis Shat will nof be reclassibed o B incoms stal srment (] G
238 (135 Curency wansdation of reign op : (8478 LT
Curency tansdation reserve reclyss Bed to Sie incomse siafesment a3y
Hedging of nist invesiment 4348 18 208
Invasiments accordng 1o e egaty msthod % (25) =]
Investrments accandng 1o te equity methed eclaswted to the income statement s
238 {135 et Sat may wubtequently be reclasaibed bo the incoms shatement {3 055) & 304
753 (301) ©Uher comprelensive InG oene for e year (et of tax) (3233 4898
M4 4T Comprehensive incoene for the year Wew 71
1 Cumency transiation efects redafed to the Betics represented & loss of NOK 445 malion in 2076
& Hedging of met invesiments in the Baitics came fo MOK 275 milion in 2008, nef of tex.
B DWE had indirect ownership inderedfs i Vita Evvose through #2 membayship i UIHH'ﬂ-ﬂ mmmnmwmummn Vige Eurcpe g af

A1 March 2076 an sccumdated gain of NOR 855 mailion was recogmited in olher comyp . Lipon the completion of the acquistion of Visa Evope
by Wiza bo in the second quarter of 2016, this amowat was reclessified fo prolit end o taled e of NO® T 128 milon was recognised as “Proff from imestiments
accountid far by thir sguily method™ i L icome dalement,
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Balance sheet

DNB Bark ABA ONB Bank Group
31 Dec, 31 Coc. 31 Dwc. 31 Dec.
Farh 1 2018 Amounts in KOE million Mote 26 2015
Assals
16 004 207 534 Cash and deposits with contral barks .27, 08 263 1837
&30 700 S48 093 Db B Sniadd indutions 87 M1 1748909 297 457
o5 R E90 050 Loant to uitamers 7. 382728 1452 268 1531 932
210 082 223 30 Commercial paper and bonds at far value b 217 Ay 207 D83
TEO4 178 Sharghoidings 25 28 MM & 200 B T4
24 My L Financial derieatves 18, 2 28 187 887 204 273
8 152 12 T&d Commercial paper and bonds, heid o maturity b e % | 12 TE0 15 162
IFvatment propecties k3 1175 2333
aTh 825 Irvesiments accounted for by the equity method k] 670 4 0
120473 118 X3 Irvestments in subedaries k] =] ]
3675 3 el Intangbie assets i aam 4178
6320 1882 Deferad tax avaats = 1362 1138
T480 T Fired asym1 3= 77 B 058
Asiatn hald Tor 1ale ] E2 541 200
23 735 13452 Cenar sttty 1 8255 B 508
1865419 7 303 906 Todal assels 2 ME 272 & 315 503
Liabilities and equity
22 30 338 ™™ D bo creddt inshitut cns o8 27 28 211 G0S 161 267
Ba6 450 920 654 Drepaiis fram cutlomeng 25,27, 24, 42 5 a5 857 322
240518 181 794 Finansial derheatives 15, 26, 28 130990 154 &TA
340 0D 356 841 Dhebet wacutitios Fsued D527, 28, 43 TET 750 BDG E10
pLik] 4 Payabis lamss x BBaT 2483
12 ] Dl taues ] 2382 B 461
39 438 23893 Ceror i bakfias 25 45 15 7B 18 409
Liabiities held for sale k] 41 243 r)
i 1818 Prosdsicns 21038 1225
2248 2454 Pension commifments 24 2618 23N
30 553 20347 Subordinated loan capital 28 27,20, 44 28347 A0 853
LR ARE=] 1 E35 802 Total llabilides 2158 194 2142191
AP 18314 Share capital 18 314 18314
19 &35 19 855 Share premium 206411 2051
8353 15642 Addional Tiar 1 capdal 16882 82353
104 570 113 542 O pgquity 135 200 126133
151 533 168 104 Total equity 48 800 173412
1965419 2 007 906 Total labiliges and squity 2 HE TR F315 803
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Statement of changes in equity

OHB Bank ASA
At CLFTRiy
Share b= AN QRN &l BN O Tl
Amounts in NOK malfon caplal premeum Tier 8 capdel Bases L) sty Uty
Balance shedl &6 of 31 December 2014 18314 19 &85 {2 i) 14 #1818 137 70
Prof for the year T4 20 264 0 B3
Othas prah: [ [t of Eax) 15 38 853
Comprehantive incoms for the year ErE ] 615 38 0264 21482
Dafrpc-benedt peanuion schems dicentivued 1667 {1 E57}
Audcitional Tied 1 capltal maued BO053 31k B023
Interest payments addiional Tier 1 capital (75 T8
Trarafe of Wnding portfolio o
subsidiary (continuityh {627} (&7
Group contribution for 2015 to DHE AZA {5 oo} (5 0007
Balance sheed o ol 31 Detember 2015 18314 19 585 B ¥ {454) [ -r3 104 777 151 $32
Froft Tor the yoar 595 4183 14788
Othae prhn i Mmoo (el of L) {165} (135 (304
Comprahandive incoms for the year 585 {165} (135 14183 14 487
Audciticnal Tier 1 capital maued 7520 (@3 T4TT
inberast payments addéicnal Tier 1 capital (B0Ey By
Carency movwements mioen 1o income 11y 1"
Dufimpdbonadt penuion schems duzontrued -1 (L1}
Trarfer of nding porfolo to
subreidhany (conbinuityy 1868 185
Group contribution for 2016 to DNE ASA B 254y 8 204
Group contribution for 2016 fom DNE ASA 4 200 4 200
Balance sheet o ot 31 December 2018 18 314 10 #05 15 652 {819 517 114 045 168 104
DHB Bank Group
AL ClETarey PUSE -
ST e Adamons plrrs dnd franmishion e heoge i Tl
A fs i WOK il ot pramagm _ Tier | copdpl I e | rgmnvg ! sily aguy "’
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2004 1231 206N {2 M) gE37 13 B4 5k 103 228 141 300
Prafit for the year aTd pird 21 ey
Oithar comprehensive ncome (met of b i BE1l {8 208y o] 4 BhG
Cromprehansive income for the year T 1 rd aE18 {8 208 XA TIE kR RE
Dafrpd-Benadt pans H drienntirusd 1763 {1 TEX)
Cutrancy irantlalion nirbeive [aken 10 Ncome B & 38
Agcitional e 1 capital ivsued 8053 31 8023
Intsstest payments addticnal Tier 1 capital (75} {75
Group contribwtion bo DB ASA for 2014 4 001} [4 00%)
Balance sheet a5 at 31 December 2015 1€ 314 20 611 B 153 | 4ir|) 18 B0 {11 B48) 130 171 173412
Fraft for the yoar 111 iIT38 17814
Oitha £ompssh [rel el Eax) [REL]] [8 521) 4ME 1880} [3 333)
Comprehensive incoms for the year 695 {178} 8 521) £ 346 16438 14 E8D
Addtional tar 1 capital issued T 520 {43} T4TT
interest payments addiional Tier 1 capital 508 [ 60E)
Currency movemsnts ke io incomas (§R}] i1
Defrvpd-bongdt pention scheme digentinued 18 198§
AGDL provsion in Lusembourg
racigsaibod ko squity 13 13
Gresip contribution ba DNE ASA for 2015 (5 DOy (5000
shieet a5 at 31 December 2016 12384 20611 15 932 1541] 11 768 {7 502 131575 190 678
W ek OO relgteq io the Sabics
Eatgnce shesf as ot 31 December 2015 14485 (9AT 478
Crher comprahensiae income [543 23 {174)
Balpnce apal 31 2018 1015 LT 204

Cumancy ransdalion reserve and ned imepsimen! hedge resene relaled ko the Balics folaled NOK 204 milicn as af 31 December 2018, of which NOK 280

dated tax on the f

el rep
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Cash flow statement

ONE Bark ABA ONE Bank Group
2015 2018 Amownts in NOK milion 2018 2015
Cperating activities
50 481 {1183 Mt receipti/paymients on loant o cuslcment (351873 [rrd ]
30 885 26974 Interes! neceived Bam cuttomes 4T 420 51863
{44 22103 3T 420 Het mecsiptupayments on deposits from customerns 40 T4 34 44T)
(90 4B5) {588 Intarest paid bo £usiomers (3711} [T 478)
(20 65T 144 571 Nt recoiptupaymenty on lomns 1o credit ingeSon 1E3 235 sy
3870 1774 Inlorest nesenyid Bom cred isglilution 1281 1817
{1558 {1975 Iritpngs] paid b cracit nsbilubions (1811} {1355
16 =6 {3 BEE)Y et raceipts/payments on the sals of Enencisl sssets for investment or trading 4078 (16 B0l
6 00 4327 Interest received on bonds and commescisl paper 427 4 582
3y k-] Mat receipts on commissions snd fsas & TAT 13-
(16 a8 {16 288 Payments bo operations 18 014p {18 210
(B0 11268 T psd {1 455} (2473
8595 8583 Cvar s 8327 5433
2T 185401 Mt cadh Pow frodn operating solvities 214 042 0 35T
Investmant activitles
{1 B85 [RE =44 Het payments on the acquisiion of fwed assols -] (1853
et recoiplsipayments, investmant properties {505} zam
= B51 Recaipty on the sale of lang e investments in shares 81 TE
155124 3 ™00 Payments on the acquisition of longterm investments in shares
04 &7 Cividends receved on long-term invesinwents in shares 65 ]
[ fda 4 408y et cash Fow from Investment achivities {1 208) 1062
Funding activities
3072185 B 543 561 Recaipts on issued bonds and commm acial paper (see note 44) 8595903 3142451
(3 110 950 (8935 044) Paymantt o tedesmisd Bonds and sommecinl paper [(16e nobs 42) (9000 7TBE} {3 145B57)
{5 08T {6 230 Interest payment on Esued bonds and commercial paper (V6 D8} (5128
3805 7™ Receipts on the raising of subordinated loan capitsl {see nole 45) Taa 3 205
{4 B0g) (k1] Recemptions of subordinated koan capital ises nobs 45) (=] 4 804
102N 20 Initares? payreniy on fubondmeted loan capdal {923k {103
B023 7520 Rataiply on i1tusd adcRticnal Tier 1 capial 75 B023
(TS (518 Intarest paymeniy on addiianal Tier 1 capited {518) {75
[k TR (117 Dividendigoup contribusons paymentheceipts 8848 (4001
(42 529 2 555 Net cash Mow from funding activities {20 G2E} (16415
13 847 {1 BE3y Ehc;;u‘mwmu d-gunnc.uh and cashs squivalents [ELF] 14 522
[T 8921) 191 824 et cash Aow 191 598 (41118
57 905 19884 Cash ot 81 1 Janisnry 23184 -
3T 821 191 89 Het paymants of cash 181 586 #1118
15 BBl 211 &8 ﬂ'ﬁh“ﬂalﬂm_'ﬂﬁlb_!-: 294 T80 184
1 Ofwhich
1 Q04 207 Cack and deposts with conlral banks 211 p0a wnr
¥ hal ¥ 535 D wilh credil ingtbutions with no agreed pariod of notice "' 2887 3476

fF  Recorded poder “Due faom oroodt ing Fubicns” n e balence showd

The cash flow statement shows receipts and payments of cash and cash equivalents during the year. The stalement has been prepared in
aceordance wilh the direct method. Cash flows are classified &5 operating acivities. investrment activibes of funding activities. Balance shest
ems wre adusted for the effects of exchange rale movements. Cash is defined &g cash and depodity with central banks, and deposits with
credd institulions with no agreed period of notice,
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Accounting principles
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10.

11

12
13.
14
15.
16,
17.

18.

Corporate inforrmation

Basis for preparation

Corsalidation

Operations presented as held for sale
Segment inrfermation

Recognition in the income statement and in
other comprehensive income

Financial instruments

Irvestment property and fied assets
Intangible assets

Impairment of fiked and intangible assets
Pensions

Income ta

Restructuring

Leasing

Cash flow statements

Dividends

Approved standards and interpretations that
have not entered into force

Important accounting estimates, judgments
and assumptions

1. Corporate information

DHE Bank ASA 5 a subsidiary of DNE ASA, which is o Norwegian
pubsic imited company listed on the Osbo Stock Exchange (Osko
Bers). The consolidated financial statements Tor 2006 werne
approved by the Board of Directors on & March 2017,

The banking group offers banking serdees and secunties and
irvediment services in the Nofwegian and inamational retail and
comporate markets.

The visiting address o the banking group's head office is
Dronning Eufemias gate 30, Bjordka, Oslo, Norway,

2. Basis for preparation

DNE Bank group has prepared he consolidated financial slate-
ments for 2016 i accordance wilh Infemational Financial
Repoting Standands (IFRSs), &5 Hsued by the International
Accounting Standands Board (LASE) and endorsed by the
Eurcpean Union (EL)

DHE Bank ASA has prepared its stand-alone Snancial
statements according to the Norwegian Minisiry of Finance's
reguiations on annual accounts, Secion 1-6, on the use of IFRS,
heseinafer called the Nerwegien IFRS regulations, which implies
that recognition and measwrements are in accordance with IFRS
The only exception s that the Norwegian IFRS regulations also
give permission o recognise provisions for dividends and group
contribulions in subsidiasies as ncome and recognise the Board of
Diractors’ proposed dnidends and group centibulions as liabilites
on the bafance sheet dafe, Accordng (o IFRS. dvidends should be
presenied as equity unlil approved by the general mesting.

DNE Bank ASA presents disclosure information in accordance with
IFRS

The consclidated financial stelemanis are based on the
historic codt principle, with the Tollowing exceplions: fingncial
assets and Babilities measured at fair value and invesiment
properties, The condolidated inancisd stalements are presented in
Horwegian kroner. Unless otherwise specified, al amounts are
rounded to the nearest milion

The banking group's consclidaled balance sheels are primanily
based on an assessment of the liquidity of the assels and Babili-
5.

3. Consoclidation
The conschigated financial statements for DNE Bank ASA ("DNE
Bank® or "the banking group”) include DNE Bank and subsidiaties
The: accounting principles are appibed consistently when con-
scldalng ownership inleresls in subdidearies and are basad on the
same reporting pericds as those used for the parent company.
When prepasing the consolidated financial ststements, intra-
group transactions and balances, along with gains and losses on
ransactions bebween group unds. are eliminnied

Subsidiaries

Subsidianies are defined as companies in which DHNE Bank,

directiy or indiwectty, has control. Control over an entity is

evidenced by ihe banking group's ability Lo exercise its power in

order lo affect any varakle relurns thal the banking group is

exposed bo theough s involvement with the entity, When

assessing whether to consclidate an enlity the banking group

evaluates a range of contral factors, including

*  the purpose end design of the entity,

= fherelevan activies and how these ane determnsd,

* whether the Group's rights result in the ability bo direct the
rebavant sotivities

*  whether the Group has exposune of right 1o vanable refums

L whiet her ihe Group has the ability bo use it powes to affect its
retum
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Where valing righls are relevant, the banking group is deemed Lo
hawe control where it holds, directly of indirectly, mone than half of
the voling rights in an enbty, unless the banking group through
agreements does not have cormesponding voling rights in redevant
decision-making bodies. With respect to companies where the
banking group's holdng represent less than hall of the rghts, &
makes an assessment of whether cther factors indicate de facto
contrad. Subsidianes are fuily consolidated from the date on which
contral is oblained and unlil control ceases,

Assoclated companles

Associaled companies are companies in which DNE Bank has a
significant influence, that is the power to participate in the financial
and cperating poicy decisions of thie companies, but is nol in con-
frad or joint control of the companies, DNE Bank assumes thal
significant influence exists when the banking group hods between
20 -and 50 per cant of the voting share capital er primary capial in
angther enbty.

Associated companes are recognised in the consolidated
financial staternents according 1o the equily method. The invest.
ment is recognised al cost at the fime of acquisition and is ad-
justed for subsequent changes in the banking group's share of
equity in the associaled company. Any goodwill is included in the
acquisition cost. The banking group's share of profils of losses s
recognised in the incoma stalemen! and added 1o the cost price of
the invesiment along with other changes in equiy which have not
been reflected in the income statement. The banking group’s share
of lesses |5 not reflecied in the income statement if the carnsng
afmounil of the ifmesirment will e negalive, unless the banking
group has laken on commiEments of issued guarantees fof the
commitrments of the sssocialed company.

At the end of each repording pered the banking group assess
whather any indication of Impaimment exists. If such indication
exrsts, ihe irvesiment will be tested Tor impainment. The carring
virlwe of the imvesiment will be companed with the recoverable
afmaunl (ihe highes of fair valuse le5s costs to sall and value in use),
If necessary, the canrying value will be writlen down to the recover-
able amount.

The banking group's shane of unrealised gains on Iransactions
between the banking group and its associaled companies & eli-
minaled. The same apples to unrealised losses unbess the tran-
saclion indicates an imgairment of the transfemed assels,

Conversion of transactlons In foreign currency
The pressnlalion currency in the banking group’s consolidated
financial statements is Morwegian kroner. The parent entity in the
banking group, DNB Bank ASA, has Norwegian kroner as 1S
functienal curréncy. Balance sheed items of forgign branches and
subsidiaries in other functicnal cwmencies are ransialed inte the
presenlation cumency, Noraegian kroner, according 1o the ex-
change rates prevailing on the balance sheet date, while profit or
Iorss iberns: are iransiated acconding b exchange rates on the
transaclion date, Changes in nél adsels resulling from axchange
rate movements are recognised in dher comprehen sive income.
Monetary assets and kabilites in forelgn curmency are trans-
lated info the entilies’ funclional currency al the exchange rales
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Changes in the carmying
amount of such assels due to exchange rale moverments between
the transaction dafe and the balance sheel date, are recognised in
the income statement

4. Operations presented as held for sale
Thie banking greup ciassifies operations as held for sade when the
camying amount will be retieved through a sale, Operations are
classified as held for sale from the time management has app-
roved @ concrete plan bo sell the aperations in thedr current fom
and # i3 highly protable that the sabe will lake place shofhy,
Subsidiaries which are acquired with a view (o their subge-
quent sale, inciuding compandes taken cwer as part of loan restruc-

Oooooooa

luring, are immedately classified as assels held for sale if the
banking group intends to sell the subsidiary.

Operations held Tor sale are measured at the lowar of their
carrying amount and fair value less cosls to sell. Acquired
operations which are immedately classified as held for sale are
recofded af Fair value leds cosls Lo Sell upon inftisl recognition

Profits after taxes for such cperations, which meel the criteria
for “discontinued operations” in IFRS 5, are presented separately
&% “Profit from operalions held for sale, after taxes” in the consali-
dated accounts. Tolad assets and liabilities from these operations
are presented saparately under “Assels held for sale™ and
“Linbilittes hedd for sale” in the banking group's balance sheet

5. Segment information

Fingncial govemance in DNE Bank is adapted to the different cus-
lomer segments. The tolfow-up of tobal customer relationships and
segment profitability are bvo impadant dmensions when making
strabegic priceities and deciding where o allocabe the banking
greup’s resources, Reported figures for the vanous sagmenls
reflect the banking group's tolal sales of products and sendces o
Ihe specific segment,

The segment information has been prepared on the basis of
Intemal financial reporiing lothe banking group manegemeant tesm
{chief cperating decision-making body) for an assessment of deve-
loprnents and the allocation of resources. Figures for the operating
segmenls are based on ONE Bank's management model and the
banking group’s accounting principles. The figures are based on a
nurmiber af assumplions, eslirates and judgmental distribution.

Acconding o DNE Bank's managenent model, the eperating
segments are independent profit centres that are fully responsiole
for their profit after tax and for achieving the largeted refums on
aflocated capilal. All of the banking group’s customer activilies are
draded among the operating segments, along with the related
balance-shesl ilams, income and expanses.

Excess Bauidity and liquidity deficits in the operating segments
ane placed in of Darrewed frodm the bank's Treasury al market
terms, where interest rales are based on duration and the banking
greup’s financial position

When operaling segments cooperate on the delivery of finan-
cial $erdces o cuslomens, inlernal deliveries are based on markel
prices.

Services provided by group senvices and staff unils are
charged to the cperaling segments in accordance with serdce
agresments. Joint expenses which are indinectly inked to acthvities
in Ihe operating Segments, are charged 1o the operaling segments
on {he basis of distribution formulas.

A number of key funciions and profits from acthvities not re-
laled to the operating segments’ siralegic cpemtbions are presenied
within the Greup units. Thés item comprises income and expenses
refating lo the banking group's liguidity managernent, income from
investrments in equity instrurnents not included in the Irading port-
folio, interest income assigned to the banking group's unallocated
capdal, cwnership-refated sxpenses and income from the Manage-
ment of the bank's real estate portfolic.

Het profits from repossessed operabions which are fully con-
solidated in the banking group ane presented a5 "Pro from re-
possessed cperations” in the segmend reporting. The effect of
consalidation of the repossessed companies is presented within
the Group wnits

Retum on capta is estimated on the basis of inbermal mea-
surement of risk-adjusted capital requirements. See note 2 Seg-
ments for further infarmation aboul the principles for plocation of
capital.
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6. Recognition in the income statement and in
other comprehensive income

Interast income is recagnised using the effecthee interast method.

This implies that inlerest is recognised when incurred, with the

addition of amortised front-end fees and any other fees which are

regarded as an integral part of the effective interest rate.

The effective inberest rate is set by dscounting contractual
cash flows based on the expecied life of the assel. Cash flows
Imclude front-and fees and drect ransaction costs which are mot
paid directly by the customer.

Interest ts pecognised according Lo the effective interest
method with respect 1o both balance sheet jlems camied
amaorised cosl and balance sheet ilems carried af fair value in the
Imcome staternent, with the exception of front-end fees on loans at
tair value which are recognised when earmed. [nbemest on mpaired
loans commesponds tothe effsctive interest rate on the book value,
mes of impairment

Interest income on financial instruments presented as lending
|5 recognised in “Met interest incomae™.

“Het cther oparating income® includes, amaong others, fees and
commigsions relaling to money ranslers, success fees, credt
broking, real astale broking, compaoral e finance and securties
sendces, Credt broking commissions include syndicalion income
In the form of fees and commissions from fransactions whene DMNE.
Bank arranges the [oans without relaining parts of the loan itsedfl or
participales in a loan syndicate and receives compensalion in
excess of the effectnve interest recehved by the alher paricipants.
Faes which aré not included in effective inferest rate calculalions,
a5 well a5 commissions, are recognised during the period when
the services are rendened or the transactions are complebed.

Success fees are recognised when the fees with & high degres
of cerdainty have been eamed and can be measured in a relisble
AR

Fees that are mcured when eslabishing financial guarantess
are recognised over the teen of the conlract within the line item
"Mt gains on financial imstrurments at fair value®,

Dovidends on investments are recognised from the date the
dividends are approved at the general meeting

Income from financial instruments carried at fair value through
profit or boss is described under Financial instruments, while net
Imcome from investment property s described under Investment
property and foed assels,

Hems of income and expense in other comprehensive incoms
ane grouped based on whether of nol they can be reclassified 1o
the income statement ot a fulure dale.

7. Financial instruments

Recagnition and derecognition
Becognition of assefs and lipbilities

Financial assels and Fabities are recognised in the balance sheet
on the trading date. i.e. the date that the banking group becomes a
party o the conlractual proevisions of the financial instrument.

Derecognition of financipl assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rnight to recee and
redain cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred
The banking group enters into certain ransactons where it trans-
fers assets recognised on its balance sheel, bul retains either all o
parts the risks and rewards of the transfemed assel. IT all or Sub-
stantialty all of the risks and rewards ane relained, the transferred
financial asset is not derecognised froem the balance sheet, but
reclassified to separale assels or liabilities reflecting the rights and
chiigations created of retained inthe transfer. Such fransactions
could entail the transter of & loan partiollo where the banking group
refaing the fsks and relurns associaled with the transferred port-
tolic by guaranteeing for all risks in the portfolic or entering into a
total retienn Swap.

Financial liabilties are derecognised when the contractual cbliga-
ons have been discharged, cancelled or have sxpired

ghase i (ppurchace agresrments

Securilies punchased under ggreements toresell ire generaily not
recognised in the financial slatements as the rsk and returns ane
normalty net taken over by the banking group, This is done irme-
spective of whether the banking group has the right to sell of re-
pledges the securilies. Upon the sale of securilies recenved. the
banking group recognises an obligathon in the balance sheat. For
meore information, see note 12 Securities recehved which can be
soid of repledged.

Sacurities soid under agresments bo repurchase are generally
not derecognised as the risk and refums are nomally nol frans-
femed. This is done imespective of whether the recipient is entitled
b sell of repledge the sacurities, These sacuritbes ane prasented
as securities in the Group's balance sheet and are specifed in
ncle 31 Translemed assets of assels wilh other restnictions.

it g H goearmenis
Transactions mainly include equity bomowing or lending. Agree-
ments on secunties bomewing and lending are generally based on
coltateral in the form of cash or securities.

Equities which hawve been received of transfemed in such tran-
saclions. are generally nol recognised o derecognised, as risks
and returmns associated with ownership of the assets are nomaity
ol laken cwer of fransferred.

Equilies recenved, including squilies recendsed as collaleral, are
registerad off the balance sheet imespective of whethar the
banking oroup has the right 1o sell o repledge the securities, Lipen
the sale of securities received, the banking growp will recognise an
obbgaticn in the balance sheel. For more infomation, see note 32
Securilies recénved which can be sold of repledged

TransTerred equities and collateral which the recipient is en-
tifled to sell of repledge, ane presented as aquities of Secuities in
the banking group™s bafance sheel and are specified in note 31
Transfemad assels of assels with olher restrctions.

Classification and presentation

On initial recognition &nancial assets are classified in one of the

following categories according fo the type of insirument and the

purpose of the imvestment:

*  financial assets held for trading and dervatives corried at Tair
value with changes in value recognised in profit or loss
(trading portiolio)

*  finenciel assels designated ag of fair value with changes in
value recognised in profl of loss

*  financial dedvatives designaled as hedging instruments

*  hoans and recenvabies, carmied al amomtised cost

»  hebd-to-maturity invesiments, camied at amortised cost

*  financial assets available for sale camed at fair vitlue with
changes in value recognised in alher comprehen sive income

On inilial recognition Snancial abilties are classified in one of Ihe
foliowing categories:
*  financial lisbilities held for trading and dermvalives camed af

fair value with changes in value recognised in profit or loss
{tradng pertiolia)

*  financial liabdities designated as at fair value wilh changes in
wvalue recognised in proft of loss

*  financial dervotives designabed as hedging instruments

*  ciher financial liabilibes carried ol amotised oo

Guidelines for classification in the various portiolios of the banking
group are given below
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Flnumual Irrslrumms In 1hu I:ra:mg pml‘dm ane |nrtrnlr;.l recognised
&l fair value_ The fair value corresponds to the ransaction price,
unless ancther walye can be justified based on cbsenmble market
fransactions. See the paragraph bedcw on determining fair value at
subgequent valuation, See the paragraph below on debermining
fair value at subsequent valuation,

Changes in the fair value of the financial mstrurments ans
presenbed within “Het gains on financial instruments al fair vibye”
in ihe income slatement, Interest mcome and inferest expenses
frcem interest bearing secunlies are presented within “Met interest
income’,

Financial denvatives are presented as an asset if the fair value
I8 posithve and as a liability |f he fair value is negative.

The trading parfelio mainly includes financial assets and lia-
bdities in Markets and financial derivalives not wsed for hedpe
accounting purposes. in addition, the porticlio includes securilies
bomowing and deposits that are used actively in interest rate and
liquiddty managerment and have a shor remaining maturity.

Financial instruments in the pertfclio are recognised al Tair value,
See the paragraph below on detesrnining fair value at subseguent
valuation. Financial instruments are classifed in this category if
cne of ihe following criteria is Tulfilled:

' The classification eliminates or signifcantly reduces messure-
ment of recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise
from measuring financial assets or iabilkies or recognising
tihe gains and losses on them on different bases

*  The financial instruments are part of a portfolio that is
managad and evaluated an a fair value basis, in accordance
with @ documéntéd righ management of investment strategy

Changes in fair value of the financial Matruments are presented
within *Hel gains on financial instruments af fair value® in the
Income stetement. Interest income and inberest expenses on locans
designated a5 at faif value and olher ficed-income securities ane
presented within "Het interest income™,

The porticlics inclede commercial paper, bonds, equities,
fixed-rate loans in Horweginn kroner, fixed-rabe securities issued in
Horeegian kroner. such as index-linked tonds and equity-Enked
bank deposts and olher fed-rate deposits in Morwegian kroner,

Tm haxlng ymp enters into hu:lpﬂg fransactions to manage
interest rate risk on long-lerm bormowings and deposds in foreign
cumencies. These lransactions are recognised as fair value
hedges. See tam Hedge accounting

Luns and m:ewablas t:am:ed al ammm cnst ane recognised at
the transaction price plus direct transaction expenses. Subsequent
measurerment follows the effective interest method, less any m-
pairment charges, The effective inlenest melhod i$ deseribed under
Recognition in the mcome statement and in olher comprehensive
Income,

Inlerast income on financial instruments classified as lending is
presented within "Het interest income™ using the effective interest
mislhod,

A decrease in value on the balance sheet dale based on
objective indications of impairment for lcans valued al amortised
cost and in the portfoiios of fixed-rate loans measurad al fair value,
are presented within "impairment of lcans and guaranteses®

Huid-to-muunly mvtslmmts are l:-‘ﬂl'l'lld al lmwtlscd cost and
recognised at the transection price plus derect transaction ex-
penses, Subsequent measurement follows the effective inlerest

Oooooooa

method, bess any impairment charges, The efective mtenest
methad is described under Recognition in the income statemaent
and in-other comprahen Sive inooms.

Inferes! income relating lo the insirements is presented within
“Het interes! income®. This category maindy comprises the inter-
national bond portfclic i DNE Markets

Finanei il [uil vl lu]

i in i in ini
Financial assets in the avallable for sale category are recognised
al fair value with the subsequent change in fair value presented in
olher comprehengive income. See below aboul the delermination
of fair value, Al the time of realisation the change in fair vadue shall
be included as a parl of the gain that is presented in the income
statement, Financial assets are chassafied in this category if they de
nct meet the citenia for being classified in any of the other cate-
geries. presented sbove

Flnan-l:led Ilﬂh!-g carmied uramhsad nmt are m:ugrned af the
Iransaction prce plus dired! ransaction expenses. inleres! ex-
penses on sush instruments are presented within "Net inbenest
income® using the effective interest methad. This calegary includes
deposits from customers and credit instiutions. commercial paper
issed, bonds, subordnated loan capital and perpetual subond-
nated loan capilal securities,

Igsued financisd guaranises
Condracts resulting in the banking group having to reimburse the
holder for a loss incured because a specific debior fails bo maxe
payment when due, ane classified gs Bsued financial guaraniess.
On inilial recognifion, issued financial gusrantess are recog-
nised at the consideration received for the guarantes. Issued
financial guarantees are subsequently measured al the higher of
the consideration received for the guarantee excleding any
amortised amounts recognised in the income statement and the
best estimate of the payment due if the guarantee is honoured,
When Bsuing financial guarantess. the consideration for the
guaranies is present ed within the Bne fem Provisions” in he
balance sheel. Changes in the camying amount of financial
guaraniees are recognised within the line em “Met gains on
financial instrurnents &l fair value®, sxcept Tor changes relaled to
guarantees which are pan of leans which are indnidually impaired
Changes in the value of such guarantes contracls are recognised
wilhin the line ilem “Impairment of loans and guarantees”,

Fi i i i
Ised additional Tier 1 capilal instruments are instruments where
DHE has a unilateral ight not to repay interest or the principal 1o
Ihe invedions. As & consequence of these tems, the instruments
dao not meet the requirements for a liabilty and are therefore
presented on the line Addtional Tier 1 capital within the Group's
eouity. Transachion expeanses and accrued imeres! are presented
#5 b reduction in Qiher equity, while ihe advantage of the fax
deduction for the interest will ghve an increase in Other equity.
Equity in foreign currency shall be convested to Norwegian
kroner based on the sxchange rale on the bransaction date and is
not subpect o subsequent revaluation

Offsetting

Financisl assets and financial llabilities ane offset and presented
net in the balance sheel when the banking group has a legally
enforceable right to offset recognised amounts and has agreed to
S&ltle the balances on @ nel basis of o fealise the assel and saltle
the liabilly simultanéously. Master netling agreements or simdar
agraements give the right to offset in the sven? of defaul. Such
agresments reduce he baking group's exposure | the svent of
default. but do not on their own qualify for offsetting in accordance
wilh IFRS, a3 there atso needs, 1obe an inbenlion (o saftle the
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contractual cash fiows nel on an ongoing basis. See nole 29
Ciftsetting for defails about the financial assets and financial
liabdlities subject to offsetling agresments.

Determination of falr value

Fair value it the price that would be recerved by selling an assel o
paid to transler a labiy in an orderly trans action beteeen markel
participanis i the measurement dale. Financial assels and labili-
L5 im schnee markels are measured &l the pice within the bid-ask
spread that is mos! representative of the fair value at the measure-
roent date. In maost cases bid or asking prices for thess instr-
ments are the most represeniative price for assels and kabilites
respectively. Denvatives which are camied nel are recognised at
ridmarket prices al the balance shest date,

Financial instrurments measured at fair value are valued on a
daily basis with the exception of a few fnancial instrements that
are valued an & monthly or quarterdy basis. As far as possible,
direclly cbservabile market prices are used. Valuations of the
vanious types of fnancial instruments are based on well-
acknowledged bechniques and models, The prices and inpul
parameters used are contralled and assessed based on
established routines and control procedures.

The contra enviranment for fair valus measurament of
financial instrurments is an integrated part of the company's
financial reperting. A number of controis are carmied out on & daily
basis, including contrals of the day-one resulls on raded positions
and conlrols of the key input parameters in the valwation. A the
and of each month and quarter, extended conlrols are camed out
le engure thal the veluations are consistent with the sccounting
poficy Tor fakr value including variation anatyses. Speciel emphasts
1% placed on valuations in the level 3 in the valuation hierarchy.
where the effects may be significant or particularty challenging.

In s i fmEk

With respect to instruments traded in an ackive markel, quoted
prces ane used, oblained from & stock exchange, a broker of &
price-seliing agency.

A mazked is considered active if § s possible to obtain external
cbervable prices, exchangs rates of interest rates and these
prices represent actual and frequent market transactions.

Some nvesiments in equities and commercial paper and
bonds @re Iraded in active markets,

Financial instruments nol raded in an sclive makel are valued
according to ddferent valuation techniques and are divided into twe
calegories:

Viatuation based on cbserable market dala:

s recenlly chserved fransactions in the relevant instrument
bebween informed, willing and independent pasties

* instruments iraded i an sclive make which are substantally
similar fo the instrument that is valued

*  other valuation techniques whene key parameters are based
on chservable market dala

Valuation based on other factors than chserdable markel data;
= estimated cash flows
*  yalyabion of assets and liabilities in companies

* models whene key paramelers are nol based on cbservable
market daba

*  possible industry standards

In the valustion of OTC derivatives, a fair value adjusiment is
rade for fhe counlerpamy’ s cradit risk (CVA) and for the banking
group's own credit sk (DWA). In addilion, an adustmend is made
for exgpected funding costs. (FWA)L
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The banking group estimales CWA a5 a function of a simulated
expected posilive eaposure, the counterpaty’s probability of de-
tault and logs grven default. The majority of the banking group’s
dervalive counterparties have no market-implied credit spread and
nia external rating. Internal ratings are therefore combined with
historiced credd defaull swap (CDS) sprends as well as cument
CDS index prices fo armve at ihe counterparty's estimaled CDS
spreads. This means that the banking group uses its own creds
models and their dscriminalony power, but calibrates against
prcing levels for similar credt risk in the marked. The DA s based
on the same appreach. using an assessment of the banking
group’s credit spread

FwA reflects the estimated present value of the future findng
costs assocraled with funding uncollaleraised dervative ax-
posures. [t is calculated by applying & fundng spread above the
oxpected exposure. Funding benefits are not estimated for posi-
tions for which DMB caleulates DA

Fer financial instruments measured by using valuation
technigues, a gain of loss might frem birme bo time oceur af nital
recognition when the estimated fair value is different from the
mctizal Iransaction price. When the measurement is based on non-
chservable input parameters. (level 31 the gain or loss is defemed
and therefore not recognised at day one, Fair value changes in
later pericd are only recognised tothe extent the change Is caused
by Factors Mk market participants would fake into accont,

Impalrment of financial assets

Al end of each reporting pesiod, the Banking group consider
whether any ebjective evdence of impairment edsl 85 & resull of
ofve OF More events have taken place afier intiel recognition (loss
evenl) and the |94 event has impacl on the estimated future cash
Bows | A financial asset or group of financisl assets is impaired if
there s any objsctive evidence of impaimrent. Objective indica-
Eons of mpairment include an assessment of the following loss
events:

*  sericus inancial probiems on the part of the deblor,

*  nen-payment or other sericus breaches of contract,

*  the probability that the deblor will enter into deb? negoliations
o

*  gther special circumstances thal kave occurred,

Rensgotiation of loan barms to ease the postion of the bomower
qualifies a% a loss event

Ingigunl imgairment of loans

H chjective evidence of mpaiment exists, mpaiment of loans is
calculated as the diference betwesn the camyng amount and the
fel present value of estimated fulure cash Nows dscounted by the
origingl effective interest rale,

The business areas calculale astimaled future cash flows
based on developments in the exposure, past experience wilh the
deblar, the probable culcome of negolistions and expected
FRACTOREAGMIE Inands that will influence the customers cash fiow.
In pddition, the probatbility of debt selilement proceedings and
bankruptcies is taken into consideration, includng the probability
that assets provided as collaieral will be foreclosed. When
measuring collaberats. recognised methods for measuring
underiying assels are used,

Indevidual Impairment of loans reduces the carmying amount of
Izans and guaranbees. Impaimment during the perod is recognised
as "Impairment of loans and guarantees® in profit o loss.

ScplleCtive impaimnent £F 19905

Loans which are nol indhidually impaired are assessed collactively
for impairment, The assessment is based on whether objective
midence of mpaeiment exsts thet can be refated toa group of
Enancial assels,
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Loans are grouped on the basis of similar credif risk chamg-
tenslics and In accordance with the division of customers into
sectors of indusinies and rsk calegones. Impairment is estimated
per group of financial assets based on estimales of the general
economic situation and loss experience for the respective groups.

Collective impairment reduces the carrying amount of the line
Item “Loans to customers” in the balance sheet. Changes during
the period are recognised within the line lem “Impaiment of lcans
and guarantees® in the income statemenl. Like individual impair-
menl, collective impairment is discounted, The discount facler is
based on statisliics derived from individua! impaimment.

Eepossession o assets

Asgets which are repossessad as pan of the managerment of non-
performing and impaired loans are recopnised at fair value af the
time of acquisition. Such assets are recognésed in the balance
shsel acearding to the nature of the asset. Any difference bebayeen
the carmying amount of the loan and the fair value of the assetis
presented within the Ene (tem “Impairment of leans and guaran-
tees”in the income statement. Subsequent valuations and presen-
fation of ihe impact to the income staterment foliow the principles
for the refevant balance sheat tem

Hedge accounting

When instruments ane indradually hedged, thera i a clear, drect
and documented comelalion between changes in the value of the
hedged ilem resulting from the hedged risk and changes in the
valwe of the financial defvative (hedging instrumesnt).

Upon enlefing info the hedging relationship, the comelation
pebween the hedged item and the hedging instrument s docu-
mented, in addtion, ihe underhing sk management objective and
strategy are documented. Changes in fair value refated 1o the
hedged risk of the hedped itern and instrument are evaluated
periodically bo ansure the necessary hedge effectiveness. Hedgng
nstruments are recognised at fair value in the financial slatements
and changes in the fair value ae presented within “Hel gains on
financial instruments at Tair value™ in the intome sialement.

For fair value hedging, the changes in the fair value of the
hedged ibem attnbulable 1o the hedged nsk will be recognised as
on addilion bo of deduction from the balance sheel vilue of Enan-
cial liabiities and assets and presented within *Mel gains on
financial instruments at fair value® in the income stalement

I the hedge relationship ceases o adequale hedge effec-
thveness cannot be verifed, the accumulated change i fair value
of thee hedged ibem is amortised over the rermalning maturity,

The banking group undenakes hedging of invesiments in
foreign subsidiaries fo eliminale the curmency sk on the nvestad
amount, Hedging transdctions are in the form of currency swikps o
long-berm borrowings in foreign currency. In the consclidated
fimaneial staterment, the hedge relationships are presented as
hedging of net imeesiments in intemalional operations,

B. Investment property and fixed assets
Preperies held to generate profits through rental incoeme or for an
inerease invalue, are presanted in the balance sheet as invest-
ment property. Cther tangible assets are presented a5 fited assets
in ihe balance sheel.

On initiad recogniion, investment properties are measured at
cost including acquisition costs.

In subsequent pericds, investment properties are measured af
fair value. Therefore, no annual depreciation is made on an invest-
ment property, Fair value s determined by using well-acknow-
ledged valuation techniques. Internal and external expertise is
used for valualions. A sebection of external appraisals are cblained
and compared with internal valuations for control purposes.
Prosdders of valuations are also followed up on &n ongoing basls
through dialogue and enquines concerning the valuation of inds
vidual properties. Changes in fair value of investment propery are

recognised within the line Hem “Net gains on invesiment property™
In the income staternent

Olher tangible assets are measured al cost less asccumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, Coslt includes expenses
directly relabed to the acquiskion of the asset. Subsequent ex-
penses ard capitalised on the relevant assets when i is probable
that future economic benefits. associated with the expenditure will
flcw o DME Bank and can be measured reliably. Expenses for
repairs and mantenance are recognised in Lhe income Halemenl
a5 they ecour

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed
annually and adjusted if required. Gains and losses on the sale of
fieed assets are recognised within the line item “Net gain on fixed
and intangible assets in the income slaterment,

9.  Intangible assets

Goadedll

Goodwill s inilially measured at the acquisition date, as the excess
of ihe aggregate of the consideration transfered and the amount
recognised for any non-contralling interest over the fair value of the
Identifiatie assets acquired and Fabilities assumed in a business
combination. Goodwill acquired is allocaled to each cash gene-
rating unit, or group of units, expected to benefl from the combing-
lon's synergies. Folowing initlel recognition. goodwill is measured
al cost less any accurnubated impairment losses,

Development of IT systems and software

Acquired software is recognised &t cast wilh the additlon of ex-
pendes incurmed bo make the software ready Tor use. [dentifiable
costs for internally developed software controlied by the banking
greup where it 4 probable that economic benefits will cover dave.
lopmient expenses af the balance sheet date, are recognised as
Inangible assets. When assessing balance sheel vaiues, the
economic benefits are evaluated on the basis of proftablity ana-
Iyses. Development expenses include expenses covering pay to
erployess dirssty imvalved in the project, matenals and & share of
dineclly refated overhead expenses. Expenses relaling bo main-
lenance of softwane and IT systems are charged io the income
statement as they occur. Soltware expenses recognised in the
balance sheet are deprecinled accordng 1o a siraight line prnciple
over their expected useful He, usually five years. The assessment
for whether there is a need for impairment IS considered according
to the principles described below:

10. Impairment of fixed and intangible assets

At end of each reporting period the banking group considers
whethes any indication of impairment of fixed or intangible assets
enists. W such indication exists, the récoverable amount of the
asset is calculated to eslimate possible impaiment. Goodwil and
IMangble assels willh an ndefinibe usalul lite ane tested for impair-
meenl minimum once a year even if no indication of impairment
exists. ONB has chosan bo perform this annual test i the fourth
quairtes.

The recoverable amount represents the higher of an asset's
fair value bess costs lo sell and £5 value in use. if (he asset's
CAIrying amoun] exceeds the edlimated recoverable amount, the
asset Is writhen down 1o its recoverable amount. See nobe 37 Intan-
gible assels for descniption of impaiment testing.

The following relevant criteria are considered when assessing
whedher indcations of impairment exisis:

" a dechine in the ssgel's markel value

®  changes in the long-temn relum requiramen which may affec
the discount rabe used in the calculation of the asset’s value
inuse

*  plans to restruclure or liquidate The assel

= the asset generales less income than anficipated.
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Calculations of walue in use are based on historical results and
plan figures approved by management. On the basis of plan
fogures for the cash-generating units, a fulure cash flow is est-
mabed, defined s the polential retum (o the owner. The retum
imcludes profits from the cash-generating unit adusled for the need
1o baild sufficient capilal to meel expected futune capifal adequacy
reguirements. Higher capital reguirement s due Lo expanded opera-
lions could make it mecessany bo retain part of the profils o to
Imject more capial frorm the cwner, If profits from the cash-generas
ling wnit are not adeguate to build the necessary capital. Beyond
the plan period, which is three years, cash flow frends are
assumed to reflect market expectations for the bpe of operations
carried cut by the cash-generating unit. Future expected cash
fowes are established for & (én year period whene the Gordons
growdh formmula is used 1o estimate the teminal valee 1o be in-
cluded.

The required rate of retum is based on an assessment of the
market's reguired rate of retum for the type of cperations carmied
oul by the cash-penerating und. The required rate of retum reflects
Ihe sk of the operations,

11. Pensions
Defined-benefit pension schemes
At year-and 2016, the defined-benefit scheme in the banking group
hed principally been converted 10 a defined-contribution scheme.

The basis for calculating the banking groups$ pension ex-
penses is a inear disiribution of pension entitlements measured
agamst estimated accumulaled commitmants. af the time of retire-
fieril

Pension commitments afe astirmated based on the present
value of estimaled fulure pengion payments al the balance sheel
date. The calculation of the pension commiEments is based on
actuarial and sconomec assmptions about life expectancy, rse in
salaries and eardy relirement. The discount rale used is delermined
bry reference to the yield on covered bonds at the balance shee
dale, plut an add-on thal raflacts the refevant duration of the
pension commitments

Th financial effects of changes in pension schemes are re-
cognitsed as an expanse al the sarier of the following dates:

= when the plan amendment o curtallment occurs: and

s when the enlity recegnises related restruciuning costs o
tearniination benefits. if any

When calculaling pension expenses, the discount rale is used on
the net pension commitment.

Empleyer's national Insurence contributions are included in
pension expenses and pension commibments,

When the defined-benefl pension scheme was comvered
during 2015 and 2018, the emplioyess in the scheme were
assigned paid-up policies. In addition, a compensalicn scheme
was established for employees who were nol yel pensioners. The
seherme is unfunded, Compensation is aamed an an ongoing
basis, and ihe banking group has no comma@ment beyond pay-
meents and estimated interest. The compensation scheme is there-
fore measured in the same way as the defined-contribution
scheme, see below.

Ses nole 24 Pensions fof more infofmalion.

Defined-contribution pension schemes

Under defined-contribulion pension schemes, the banking group
does nol commit itsefl to paying specified futuwe pension benefits,
bt miakes annual comrbutions tolhe employess’ pension savings.
Future pensions will depend on the size of annual conlributions
and the annual refum on pension savings. After paying annual
conbributions. the banking group has no further commitments
linked to employees” work parfiormance. The expenses fobowing
from the defined-contibution pension schemes ane recagnised in
L i core Statedment.
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12. Income tax

Taxes for the year compeise payable laxes for the finencisd year,
any payable taxes for previous years and changes in defamed
taxes on temporary differences. Temporary ditferences are
differences between the camying amaount of an assel or liability and
the taxable valye of the assed or liability. The most significan
termporary differences refer lo changes in the fair value of fnancial
assels and Eabilities, pension obligations, depreciation of fxed
assels and properies and impainment losses for goodwill, Deferred
taxes are caloulabed on the basis of tax rates and tax rules that are
appdiad on the balance shest date or are highly lilkely to be app-
roved and are expected 1o be appicable when the defermed lax
assel is replised of the deferred tax Eability settled.

Deferred lax assels are recognised in the balance sheel 1o the
extent that it is probabbe thet fulure taxable income will be mvail-
akée against which they can be ublised. Deferred taxes and de-
femred tax assets within the same tax group are presented net in
the balance sheet.

Taxes payable and defermed 1axes refating (o elements of cther
comprehensive income are presented net along wilh the related
income o cost in the comprehensive ncome stalement

13. Restructuring

H rastructuring plans that change the scope of the banking group's
operation o (he way the banking group carmes ol ds aperation
are approved and communicated bo the affected employess, the
need for nestructuring provisions is considered. This includes
presisions for agreernents on sevenance packapes with employees
when used o parl of the restructuring, The provisions are re.
wiewed on each reporting date and are reversed as sxpenses ane
Ineurred,

14. Leasing

Alense 5 classified as & finance laase & it fransiers substankialby
all thve risks and rewands incidental 1o cwnership. Other leases are
clasdified 84 oparalng leased

DMB Bank as lessor

DOpesating leages

Operating leases are leases where not an insignificant shase of the
fisk and rewards relating to the imveshment in the leased obpect
secnues o DME Bank at the end of the lease period, Operating
assels are recognised as fived assels in the balance shest. In-
come from operating leases is recognised over the lease tenm on a
siraight-ine basis, Depreciation of the fixed assets is presented as
ordinary depreciation in the income statement.

Einancial lgases

Financial leases are presented as lending in the balance sheet,
and al inception the leaase ks measured 8l an amount sgual Lo lhe
ned investrent in the lease, The net inestment represents mini-
rvurn |ease payments, unguarantesd rasidusl values and any
diféscl axpendes incurmed by the les o i negolialing the leage,
discounted by the implicit interest rale (intemal rate of returnj.
Leasing income is racognised in the income statement according
to the annuity method, whers the interest component is recognised
within the line item “Met interest income® while instalments reduce
the balance shest value of the loan,

DMB Bank as lesses

Oparating leases

Lease payments are recognised in the income statement as an
sxpense on a siraighl-line basis ower the lease term unless
another syslemalic basis is more represenbative of the lime pattern
of DHE Bank's use of the assel,
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15. Cash flow statements

The cash flow staterments show cash flows grouped according lo
source and usa, The cash flows ane presented as operabing
nclivities, nvesiment activllies o funding activities. Cash is defined
as cash, deposils with central banks and deposits with credit
Inglitutions with no agreed period of nolice, The cash fow state-
ment has been prepared in accordance with the direct method

16. Dividends

Propoased dividends are part of equity unbl approved by the
general meeting. AL that time, the dvidend is presented as llabllty
in the Snancial stalement. Propcsed dradends are not included in
capital adequacy calculations.

17. roved standards and inter ions
#fag have not entered into force o

By the and of 2016 the LASE had published & number of amend-

mens bo current reguilations which have no entered into force

Below is & description of the amendments which may have impacl

on the banking group's fulure reporting

IFRS 2 Financial Instruments
In Juby 2014, the LASE issued the new standard for financial
nstruments IFRS 9 Financial insinements, which will replace the
cumrent LA5 39. The new standard introduces a business model
orienled approach for clagsifcation of financial assels, an ex-
pected loss model for impairment and a new general hedge
accounting model, ASE is sl working on & new reguirement
related o macro hedge accounting. This work has been esla-
blished as a separate project and ks sxpected (o be finalised al a
laler point in Gme,

IFRS 9 is effective from 1 January 2018, The standord was
endorsad by the EU in November 2016,

Under IFRS 9, financial assets are classified on the basis of
the business model adopled for managing the assels and (heir
comractual cash Bow characleristics. Assets held with the
objective of collecting contraclual cash flows that are Solely
paymenis of principal and interest. are measured at amortised
cost. Assels held with the objective of both collecting contractual
cash Nows and selling, which at the sarme lime have contractual
cash Nows that are sclely principal and interest, are measured al
fair value through olher comprehensive income. This resull in
nssels recognised al fadr value in the balance sheet and al
amartised cost in the income statement. Other financial assels ane
rmeaswred af feir value through profit of less, The option in 1AS 39
o designste as4els as being held at fair value through profit or
boss if certain criteria are fulfilled has been retained in the new
standand

For financial Babilties the requirements are generally un-
changed compared to the currenl 145 35. As the main nle,
financial kabilitbes are Sl 1o be meadsured al amonisad cost with
the exception of inancial deratives measured # fair value,
financial instruments beéng part of the trading portiolio and
financiol liabilities designated as bedng held at fair vadue through
profit or loss. Wilh respect to financied liabilities designated at fair
valie through profi or loss changes in faar value refating 1o the
company's own credd risk shall, however, be recognised in alher
comprehensive income,

According to prevalling rules, impairment for credit losses shall
only be recognised is there is cbjeclive evidence of impairment
losses due to one of several ewents that heve taken place after
initial recognition (Ross evenl) and the 1055 event has negalive
impact on estimated fulure cash flows. This medel has, in the
aftermath of the financisl crisis, been criicised for recognising
Ierpakments losses too tate and wilh 100 srmall amounts, Impair-
ment previsions according to IFRS & shall be measured using an
eapecied loss madel, which imdahves recognising the underying

ooOooood

credil ik to a larger extent on the reporting date, The impairmeent
rules in IFRS & will be applicable to all financial assets measured
al amortysed cost or at fair value through other comprehansive
income, In addition, bean commiments, financal guarantes con-
tracts and lease receivables are within the scope of the standard.

The medsurerment of the provision for expecied credil losses
on financial assets under IFRS 9 depends on whether the credt
nisk has increased significantty since inkiad recognition.. In this
assessment a three-slage approach & inroduced. AL initial re-
cognition, a5 well as if the credi nsk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the provision should equal 12-month
expecied credit losses ("stage 17). I the credit nsk has increased
significanily, the provision should egual lifetime expected credi
Iosses (“stage 7). This frst dual approach replaces loday's
collective impairment model, For individual impairment there are
no significant changes in the nules compared with the current rules.
Indinddual impasrnent | from now on refesred to as the third stage
(“stage 3).

Iy 1 i

The new niles and concepts introduced by IFRS 5 requing con-
siderable development of the bank's models and IT systems. In
2015, Ine banking group started the process to analyse and
Identify the need for changing the bank's models and | T systems
as & conseguence of implamenting the new rubes, This work
procesded in 2016 and will continue n 2017, Tocusing on im-
plernenting and completing chosen solutions. compared 1o earlier
phases where the main focus was on analyses and mapping.

In 2016 DME established its own project organisation with
close co-operalion between Group Finence and Group Risk
Management in ofdér 1o ensure the implementalion. This work i+
divided inlo separale sub-projects covering { 1) classification and
measurement, | 2) impairnent and (3) the Group's reporing pro-
cess and infemal conlral Famework, respectively. The project
regorts Lo ils own steering committes led by the CFO

The Tallewing choices conceming 1S accountng prnciples
have been made in the banking group as pant of the mmplermen-
lation
*  The lAS 38 rules for hedge accounting are retained

*  The apporunity for early inplerentation of the rules for
recogrising the changs in fair value of financial Babilities,
which s atiributable lo changes in the credit risk of that
[Fabily in olher comprahensive income will not be used

*  The banking group will not restate comparative figures. For
the: 2018 reporting this means that the figures for sarlier
periods will be in accordance with the prevailing 1AS 39 rdles

Classification and measurement

The banking group has principally completed anakyses related o
classification under IFRS 8. Dunng this process, the bankeng group
has focused on analysing the business models in the different
parts of eperations and en mappeng relevant loan terms in order to
assess the contractual cash fow characleristics. The study has led
lo some changes in classification and meas urement, however,
they are not considered Lo ba significant compared bo today's
rubes, The final assessments will be completed during the first hsf
of 27,

Impurirrmsnl

The banking group will calculabe the loss provisions according to
IFE few mules as the mﬂt value dupmum af gafaull [EAD:I
multiplied by the probability of defaull (PD) multiplied by loss given
default (LSO,

The banking group has chosen o base the development of
the new model on the models and perameters curently appied by
the Barking greup according be today's IRE framewsan. This will
help 1o ensure consistency between the bank's risk management
and loss calculations.
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In order o ensure the bes estimate, IRB PDs needs, for
Instance. to be convered from Through the cycle” to “point in
tevie”. This is due bo the fact that the measuremant should be
based on PO ab the reporting dete and not a normalised PO level,
The banking group will employ acknowledged models for such a
conversion, A cofresponding conversion needs also o be made fof
EAD and LGD. which will be more forward-looking acconding to
IFRS &.

Another dired consequence of the ransition Lo an expecied
loss model is that the loss provision shall include the effect of the
banking group's forweand-looking view (macro scenarios). The
differant parameters in the model shall nclude pdjustments for the
effects of foreard-locking information. In the banking group there is
& separale working group handing this in the preject, Tacusing on
hiow instruments with identical credit sk characteristics should be
greuped, the identification of relevant risk drivers and the number
of macro scenanss that the loss caleulation sheuld be based on.
This work is eupected 1o be finkshed in the first half of 2017, By
Intraducing the use of macrs scenanos, the complexity of the
estimation process increases, white professional judgment is
appied.

According to the new rules one of the most significant factors
affecling the koss proviseon will be the transfer from the caiculation
of 12-menth expected loss ("stage 1°) tathe calcutation of lifetime
expected loss "stage 271 The transher to "stage 27 will occur when
the commitrnent has been subject 1o a significan] increase in credil
risk since initial recognition. When assessing what could be con-
sidered & significant change in credd sk, the banking group has
chaden an approach based on three factors
1) Quantitative criteria

Chinges in The relatrve level of probabiity of defaull ever
the expected lifeime of the instrument (detime PD™),
combined with an absciute change.
2) Backslop
Forbearance
- 30 days past due
N A qualitative assessment related 1o events that are not
captured in the quantitative criberia or in the backsiop, for
instance, the reason why 8 custamer is put on the watch (s,

The thresheolds for guantilatve criteria (change in “ifetime PD%) are
based on an assessments of whal is considersd 1o be a significant
change in credil risk in the bank's risk management and in
customer follow-up. The work ks principally fnished, however,
some analyies remain before the final criteria can be decided
Wpon

Al present, it is still teo early be give a reliable estimate of the
expected implementation effect for the group accounls. The pre-
liminary sxpectations are that the mplementation of IFRS S wal
lmad to increased provisions for credit [osses dus 1o the changs
from an incurred loss model o en expected loss model, This
implementation effect will reduce the banking group’s equity capital
w1 1he ame of implementation, In addition, increased volaility in the
Inceme statemaent is expecied in the pericd ahead. The impact en
capital requiremsents will depend on the final regulations fram the
Bagel Commitiee, inclading the transilional rules that are expected
at implementation, Propesed rules have been issued for
consultation, howensr, no fingl varsion i$ availabie

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
IFRS 15 was published by the LASE in May 2014 and establishes a
new fre-shep model that will apply bo revenue afsing from con-
tracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration o which an enlity expects to
be entitted in exchange for transferring goods or sendces to a cus-
termer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a mone structuned app-
foach bo mMeadunng and recegnising revenie

The new revenue standard is applicable to all enlities and wil
supersede all curment revenbe recognition reguirsments under

EDINETOOOO
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IFRS. Conlracts with customers that will be accounted for in
accondance with the IFRS 8 Financiad instruments shall however
follow the requirements in IFRS B as they are scoped oul of IFRS
15,

IFRS 15 will be effective as of 1 January 2018 and the
dandard was endorsed by the EU in September 2015, The
banking group has started the process (o analyse the impact of the
new rules. Mo significant changes ane sxpected in the way the
banking group recognise revenues. The banking group will apply
the standard as from 2018,

IFRS 16 Leases
In January 2016, the |ASE issued the new standard IFRS 16
‘Leases”, The néw standard will have lange implhications for
lessees, os all leases (aith the exceplion of shod-dem leases and
small asset leases) will be recognised in the balance sheetas a
right-al-use assel with a comesponding kability. At inilial recag-
nition, the lease liabilty and the right-of-use assel are measured al
the present value of fulure lease payments. Lease payments shall
be recognised &% interes! expenses and amontisalions. The
accounting requirements for lessors ang inchanged

IFRS 16, which has yet o be endorsed by the EU, will be
eflective from 1 January 2019, The banking group has stanted to
analyse the consequences of the new standard. It is too early o
give & reliable estimate of the effects on the banking group’s
fnancial stetements when the banking grosp acts as lesses, The
banking group will apply the standard from 2018,

18. Important accounting estimates, judgments
and assumptions
When preparing the consclidated fnancial stalemants, manage-
ment makes estimates, judgment and assumplions that affect the
applcation of the accounting principles and the camying amount of
assels, liabilities, income and expenses. Eflimates and assump-
tions are subject fo continual evaluation and are based on
historical expedence and ether faclers, Including expeclations of
Fulure events that ane believed lo be probable on the balance
sheel date.

Impairment of loans

Estimates of future cash flows are based on empirical data and
rvanagenent’s judgment of fulute MAasroeconormis deve loprments.
and developments in the perfarmance of the actual loans and on
the silualion &l the balance shest date, The aslimales ara the
result of @ process which involves the business areas and central
credit unis and represents management's best estimale. When
considering Enpairment of loans, there will be saveral elemeants of
uncalainly with respect 1o the idenlification of cbjective evdence
of impaimment, the estimation of amounts and the tming of fulure
cash fows, incuding the valualion of collatéral, See nobe 5 Credi
risk for information about management and follow-up of credit risk.

Indrvidual impairment

When estimating impairment of indnidual lcans and guarantees,
boih the current and the future financial positions of the customer
are considered, For corporale customens, the prewvailing market
situgtion is also reviewsd, along with market conditions within the
relenvant industry and general marel conditions which could affect
e custorners’ abilty fo repay the loans, In addtion. the probability
and outcome of restructunng, refinancing and re-capitalisation are
taken inlo account, as well as the probability of bankrupteies and
the possible foreciosure of assets provided as collateral, There is
uncerainty related to the valuation of coflateral for which no
observable markel data are evailable. An overall ssessment of
these factors forms the basis for eslimabing the future cash Bow. In
the event of a profonged weak economic trend in certain industies
andior geographical areas, the application of judgement and st
rmations are more demanding. The discount peried is estimated on
an indiddual basis of based on empincal data aboul the period it
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normally takes to reach & solution to the problems that caused the
oibjective indication of impaimment.

L)
The: expected future cash low ks estimated on the basis of
expected logdes and the anlicipated economic stuation for the
respactive groups. Expected losses are based on historical loss
experience for the relevant groups. The economic siluation s
assessed by means of econamic ndicalors for each group based
on exfemal information about the markels. Various parameters are
used depanding on the group in question. Key paramaters are
production gaps. which give an indcation of capacity ulilisation in
thie econamy, housing prices, o prices, salmon prices and
shipping freighl rafes. The econamic indicabors thal are uysed show
a high degree of comelation with historical impaiment, To estimate
the ned present value of expecied future cash flows for lcans sub-
jeet 1o colactive impaimment, 8 discount factor based on obsended
empirical data from indhidually evaluated lcans is used.

Falr valuwe of financial derivatives and other financial
Instruments

Th fair valwe of fnancial instruments thal ars nol traded in an
aclive marked i delemined by using different valuation
technigues. The banking group considers and chooses Lechnigues
and assumplions that as far as possible are based on observabie
marked data representing the manket condtions on the balance
sheel date. When measunng financial instruments for which
observable market data are nol available, the banking group
makes assumplions regardng what market participants would use
as the basis for valsing similar financial insbruments. The value-
tions requine application of significant judgrment when calculating
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatity among cthers, Changes in
these factors would affect the estimated fair value of the banking
group’s Enancial instrements. For more informabion $ee note 28
Financial instruments at fair value,

Oooooooa

Income taxes, Inﬂud{ng deferred tax assets and uncertain
tax labllitles

The banking group is subject to income taxes in a number of juris-
dictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the ncome
lax in the consclidated financial slaternents_ including assess-
ments of recognised deferred lax ssets and uncenain tax lia-
bilties.

Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent it is probable
thal the banking group will have fubure 1axable income against
which they can be utiésed. Extenshve assessments must be made
o determans the amount which can be recognised, included tha
expected time of ufilisation, the level of profits computed for Tax
purposes as will as siralegies for fax planning and the exisience
of laxable lemporary differences.

There will B uncedtainty related tothe Bnal e Bability for
many transections and calculations. The banking group recognises
linbilities relafed 1o the future subcame of tax disputes based on
estimates of changed mcome taxes, When assessing the uncestain
1ax Babilibes to be recopnised in the balance sheet, the probability
of ihe liability arising is considered. If the final oulcome of the bax
dispules devintes from the amounts recognised in the balance
sheet, Ihe dedations will impact the income lax expense in he
income siatement Tor the applicable periad,
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Note2  Segments

Financial govemance in DME is adepted to the diferent customer segments, The folow-up of total customer relationships and Segment
profitability are two impoctant dimensions when making strategic pricrties and deciding where to allccale the banking group's resources. Special
product areas are responsible for preduction and development for parts of the product range and for ensuring that the banking group meets the
neads of the various customer segrments. Reported figunes for the diferent segmenis will reflect Ihe banking group's tolal sales of products and
services tolhe relevant customer segments.

Personal customens - inchides the banking group's 1otal products and activities 1o privabe customerns in all channels, both digital and
physical. DNE offers a wide range of products through Norway's largest destribution network, compnising
beanches, telephone banking (24/7), digital banking. real eslate broking as well as externad channels (post
offices and In-slore postal and banking outlets),

Small and mediurn-sized - is responsible for preduct sales and advisory sendces to small and medium-sized enterprises in Morway,

entempaises Customers In this segment range from small businesses and start-up companies to relalively large corporate
customers, and the product offerings are adapted tothe customers’ different needs. Small and medum-sized
enterprises are served through the banking group's physical detribufion network theaughout Momay as well as
digitel and belephone banking | 24/7)

Large conporates and = includes large Norsegien and intermational comporale customers and all customers served by DNES

Intermational customens subsidiary banks in the Baftics and Poland, Cperations are based on sound induslry expestise and kong-term
customer relalionships.

Trading = inchudes market making and other trading activities in fixed income, curencies and commodties (FICC) a5 well
as equilies, Including risk management of the sk inkerent in customer transactions, Markels' trading activities
support the customer activities,

The income staternent and batance shest for the segments heve been prepared on the basis of internal fimancial reporting for the function al
ofganisation of the DNE Bank Group inlo segments, as repoded lo growup management [chiel cperating decision maker) for an assessment

of curent developments and the allecation of resources. Figures for the segments are based on the banking groug’s accounting principles and
DME's managemant model. Allocation of costs and capial babaesn segments and invelves a number of assumplions, estimates and
diserelionary dstribations

Capital allocated to the segments 5 calculated on the basis of [he banking group™s common equily Tier 1 capial and long-tesen capilalisation
ambilion, There afe special capilal adequacy regulabions for insurance operabions, and in these companies, alfocated capilal comesponds to
reconded equity. For oiher group cperations. the allocalion of capital to all units is based on the banking group’s adapiation to Base 11, with
capital requirersent related o credt risk, markets sk and eperational nsk. The allacation of credt nsk |s based on the banking group's intemal
maeasurement of risk-adjusted capital requirements for credit. Capital requirernents for market risk are alocated dinsctly in accordance with risk-
walghted velume, snd operational risk is atlocated based on the respective snEs’ total incoms.

Inmeome statement DB Bank Group
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Note 2 Segments (continued)
Balance sheets DHE Bank Group
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Koy figures DHE Bank Group
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Other operations/eliminations

Other operalionsfeiminations include IT and Operations, HR (Human Ressurces), Group Finance inchuding Group Treasury, Risk Management,
Compaorste Communications, the parially caned company Exspofinans, investments in IT infrastructure and shareholder-related costs In
addition, Cther operationsfefiminations include that part of the banking growp’s equity that is not allocated to the segments. Profits from
repossessed cperations which are fully consolidated in the DNB Bank Group are presented net under “Profd from repossessed cperalions” in
the internal reporting of segmenis. The acquired companies and all intra- group efiminations are included in Cther operaticns/eliminations

Pre-tax operating profit DHE Bank Group
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Mote 2 Segments (continued)
Geographic areas
Income siatement DB Bank Group
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At B it SO, driafasn POEE ATE Jnia AVES I8 $UlS
el ndsrent noomE T 8a% &3 g0 TIN 34517 55 535
Hat phir opémang incoms rd Ll 3 BN 136 N 0 L] 18 04
Tobs weoima LD i e T N e L e L)
Balance shest ilems DHB Bank Group
T il il C442 B
I Horvagr [t o}
A B n '1-."4.r.-u_y- BIATHE 3 E3AE 15 ARFRL, 34 i3 1k ¥ 13
Liziares B CLASSITAS M =) Ll ] | Z3% | &2 1532
Tobsl ssesis 14 MO T4 | &S 153 Tam
13 i 1) 1 (4] Tl ¥ 110
Product information

See note 17 Mel interest incoene, nobe 16 Interest rates on selecled balance sheel Bems, nobe 13 Nel cormmission and fee Tor turther informatien
of products.

Note 3 Capitalisation policy and capital adequacy

The DNE Group aims to maintain 8 management buffer of approimately 1.0 percentage point in addition (o the Lotal regulatory common equity
Tier 1 {CET1) caphial rathe, The cbject of the management bulfer ks to cushion against fucluations in risk-weighted assets and eamings that can
ooour & @ result of, for example, exchanpe rale movements of changes in credt spreads. and thefeby enable the Group Lo maintain nomrmal
growdh in bending and o prediciable diidend policy. Al year-end 2016, the total regulatery CET1 capital ratio requirement was 14.7 per cent,
DNE's intemnal target was 15.7 per cent. The capdalisalion targets relate tothe Group's isk-weighled 55813 al any given time, Horwegion
banks are subject toa transitional rule for capdal adequacy calculations, which slipulates that tolal risk-weighted assets cannot be reduced
batorw 50 per cent of the comesponding figure calculated accordng tothe Basel | requiations.

A year-end 2016, the DNEB Bank Group had o CET1 capital ratio of 15.7 per cent and a capital adequacy ralie of 20.0 per cént, compared with
14.3 par cent and 17.9 per cent, respectively, a year earkier. Risk-weighted assets came to NOK 1 341 billion at yesr-end 2016, companed with
HOK 1057 billion the year before, The Bagel | foor for fisk-weighted assets applies 1o the DNB Bank Group and reduced the CETY capital ratio
by 2.0 perceniage points relative to calculations based on the Basel Il rules al year-end 2016

DME Bank ASA had 8 CET1 capital ratia of 19,1 per cent al year-snd 2016, compated with 151 per cent & year eaflier. The capital adegquacy
radiowas 24.8 per cent of year-end 2096, compared with 19,3 per cenl o year eardier,

Al year-end 2016, DNE Boiighreditt AS hed a CET1 capial ratio of 16.0 per cent and a capatal adeguacy ratio of 18.0 per cent, caleutated
sccording 1o the Iranstional rules for fek-weighled assets. i the iransitional rules were nel applied, DNE Balighredt!'s CET1 capital ratio and
capital adequacy ratio would have been 195 and 221 per cent. respectively, al year-end 2016, .

As p supplement bo the risk-weighled capital adequacy regime, the Basel Commiltes introduced a new capital measure, Tevemge ratic” or non-
risk based CET1 capital ratic. The Basel Commities recommended mandatory disclosure of this ratio as from 204 5, and a minimum leverage
ratia requiremnent as of 2018, In line with the Basel Commitles's recommendalion, the European Commission hes recommended the
Introduction of @ minimum requirement of 3 per cend,

The Herwegian Ministry of Finance has set @ minimum requiremaent for the leverage ratio in finencial institulions and investment firms in Norway
that will enter into effect as of 30 June 2017, calculated on the basis of CET1 capital incledng addtional Tier 1 captal. The basis of caleulation
consisls of assels and oft-balance sheef items converted by means of the comversion factors used in the standardised approach for calculating
ofdnary capdal adeguacy. In addtion, some special adjustrments are made for derivabives and repo transactions, Insurance operaticns ane not
imeluded, The definitions of capital and the basis of calcutalion ade in confammily with mlarnationsl niles. The Norwegisn lsverage ralio reguire-
meent consists of a minimum requirement of 3 per cend that will apply to all financial insttulions. a mandatory 2 per cent buffer for banks and an
additional mandabory buffer of 1 per cent for systematically important banks. DMNEB is the only institution in Blorway that will be required to have a
levarage ratio of & per cant,

The DHE Bank Group calculates its leverage ralio in accordance with the revised aficle 4259 of the CRR, and the Eurapean Cofrimission
Regulation ihat entered into force on 18 Jenuary 2045, Ab year-end 2016, the Bank Group's leverage ratio was 7.1 per cent, up from §.4 per
cent a year eardier. DNEB meets the minimum requirement of & per cent by a wide margén
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Note 3 Capitalisation policy and capital adequacy (continued)

Capital adequacy

Capital adeguacy is repored in accordance with the ELU's new capilal adequacy regulations for banks and investment firms (CRD WMACRR)
‘faluadion nules used in the staiutery accounts form the basis for the consolidation, which |s subject to special consobdabion nules governed by
the Consolidation Regulations

DNB Bark ASA Primary capital DMB Bank Group
3 Dec ¥ Dec. 31 Drec 31 Dec.
w15 2018 Arnirints in WOW mlion 2016 15
151 633 168 104 Total mquity 180078 173412
Effect from regulatory consciidation {181} {541

18083 {18 574) Addgional Tiar 1 copital inatrumpnis incluced in fotal wguity (15 674} 865y
il (284} et aterubd inbereat on addticnal Tier 1 capital instumants {284} 219
143 351 152 48 Common dauity Tier 1 capdsl ingtruments 174 028 184 585

Drechsctions

iy Fenslon fonds above pension commetments |
A0 {2 B0 Gooowill [rd-<il] (A0
{168 (e Dfored bax sxsets fat ae nok dus 1o benporary differsnces {482 L0 ]
(BE3 0] Cither intangble sttt {5bG) (1075
Group contribution. payable 5 Q) 5 000

{1 383 i Enpecied losses excesdng actual losses. [RE portfolios {153 (2 309
[ ] AT Walua sdastments due o the requirements for prudent valuation {AWA) {TEE) 1058
(18) a7 Adustments for unreaksed ks ew(gaing) an debd resorded ot lar valoe [0y 13

Ad for e figaing arsng from the instituion’s own

(78S {580 eraclt eisk rolated o desivmhee babdBes (DA} {158y {150
136 459 147 a67 Comman daguly Tier 1 capdal 163369 150 g89
1927 1TaT Addtianal Tigr T captad indtrumgaty iTam 10 267
148 786 164 630 Tiar 1 capial 1530 883 161 156
&2 5 g2 Pepetual subordinated loan capitsl 5602 1
2 188 21248 Tarm suborcinated loan captal 21248 2188
7 T 26 651 Tier 2 capital 26 881 21 gar
174 653 181 TE Taoted edigble capial 207 Tl 189 043
B0 O TT3 Tk Risk-wol ghted valume. tramdsonnl ndes 1 040 858 1056 731
T2 487 &1 80 Wi capatsl reguirement. ranstonal ndes 32T B4 530
151 181 Gommon eguity Tier 1 capital ratio, ransitional rules (%) 187 14.3
182 na Tier 1 capal ratio, iranwSonal e (%} 17.4 153
183 b ] Capital ralio, ransitional niey (%) 200 178
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Note 3 Capitalisation policy and capital adequacy (continued)

Baszel Il

The majerity of the credil portfolos are repceted according o the IRE approach, However, one portfdic, banks and financial instilutions
(DMB Bank} is still subject to final IRB approval from Finansliésynet. The porticlio Large corporate clisnts rated by simulation models
(OME Bank) was approved in December 2015,

Specification of risk-welghted volume and capital requirements DNE Bank A5A
A
Kormanal ik wwgtis  Rulesmphted Cocd Capta
FpaLre EAD" o el wokera QUrMTRRET Fimatesenly
Amounts in WOK mifon 31 Dwed JHE 31 Dt 2018 A8 B D At D bl 31 Dz THE 31 Dz 2015
IR approach
Coporate TS 520 EO0 034 488 282 500 a7 24 782
Specmbined Lendng (5L} 7742 782 520 Jap an 395
Footail - morigage leans T8 T 758 5.0 1aap 1583 2045
Retail - cther exposures 112484 02484 257 25 758 1801 1 B85
Securitrsation 12 e 12 760 218 11718 o7 10
Total cradt risk, IRB appranch 856 334 782 518 444 351 968 8 148 30355
Stasdardued approach
Ceniral govermmant 42 g8 S5454 o 78 L 30
Ingdutent 20 144 352368 2.0 IT428 G184 13545
Corporate 102 181 a0 7ad RN 75108 & 008 &7
Rotall - mortigage loans 782 G850 s 2618 210 17
Fotall - cther exposures 104 BEE 33820 T4E 25228 2098 1 887
Equity positens 120 143 120 148 1003 120 482 563 L1
Dthar siaels 11 58 11584 885 10 249 a0 1704
Total credit risk. standardived approach a0z G50 820 471 311 185 24 B0 35683
Total credit risk 1 788 348 1 453 358 45.6 663 063 53 045 63 822
Market risk
Peraition gk, deld ingtnamanty PRl 1655 1849
Paridlion reak, dquely irrklruimenls e 5 ]
Curtangy riak
Commodty risk 2 L] A
Credit value adjustment sk {CWA) 12178 &T4 B47
Total mariet risk 35 746 2 680 2818
Oparational ritk 74433 £ 9&5 5747
Total nsk-winghted wolume and capital requinsments before transitional rule TT3 244 61 8D T2 487
Additional capital requirements acconding bo transional ules
Total risk-weighted volume and copital inerments TTE D 81 880 T2 487

1} EAD expozine o defaull
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Note 3 Capitalisation policy and capital adequacy (continued)
Specification of risk-weighted volume and capital requirements DME Bank Growg
Bl
MO LT R - T TR il Ciaguinl
LT ) El'\l\'_'lII i e Ol woluImg PRI Tl P TR
_Amounis in MOK miBan J0es 3040 J0fee 2o0A 30D 8 3 Dwe M8 A3fee 2008 )0 D Ji0d
IRE sppronch
Goeposate 1038 384 a3 821 43 407 T4 2818 3% 42
Specinlined Landng (51 8825 8517 23 4458 358 450
Fetsd - mortpage loans 08 195 705 195 =1 155 14 12 465 12 241
Fetai - other expatunes 1137 464 92454 =T PR 1801 1965
Securdisation 12 760 12760 R 11718 937 § 201
_Total crocit nsk, 98 appecach 1878648 1 BEZETE w3 B0 487 48378 48 295
Exandsrdized approach
Cantral govarnmant 55428 B4 TED LR a 7 3
Institutions 163 242 115 757 nr 2803 2243 2390
Corperate 181 010 127 130 B0 100 gacy o700 10 164
Retnl - morigege loans 1 685 4963 455 22880 1805 1 T84
Fstnl - nthar sxposures 122 026 487w TEA 3 742 2939 2542
Equity poaitions. g 278 8277 1051 8 7a 0N 23
Securitation 1780 1160 “g s18 a1 60
Cthar pxeets 13 6239 13638 BT 1073 654 83
Tetal cradt iik, dandardiad approath 578 145 434 899 500 217 439 17 385 18 078
Titad crodit sk TASTTRY 2097 777 . 20 826 5 674 7 373
Al mrkes rigk
Poaiton sk, debt inruments 14815 1168 (REA]
Poakian gk, eqully instremanty 30 = 38
Cusrenty figk
Commadity ik 72 & 3
Gradit value sdjsssmant risk (G 6 156 &858 514
Totsl maroet risk 21 153 1 G2 1 GBS
Lpstaong dg £3440 LA T3 S 743
Tetsl ink-weighted volume and capial redquicarsintt bators rarsitional rule 925 519 T4 042 TEH0
Agidional capital requinsrnents according Lo transitionad rules ~ 115 358 1229 [ i)
Totsl risk-weightid volurse and capial requiraments 1040 B68 &3 271 B4 539

1F  EAD sxposvee of defaul
2 Due fo trensibona) rules. ie mEnimum capilel sdequacy mquirements cannol be rmduced beiow 59 per cant of the comespancing figure calculated socomiing do
tha Basol | egulations.
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Note 4 Risk management

Risk management in DNB

The Board of Directors of DNE ASA has a clearly slabed goal bo maintain a low overall risk profile and to maintain an A4 level rating for ofdinany
long-terrn debt. The profitabilty of DMEB will depend on the abilty to identify, manage and accurately price risk arising in connection with fnancial
SEPACES,

Organisatéon and authortsation structure

*  Board of Directors. The Beard of Directors of DNB ASA sets long-lerm targets for the Group's risk profile. The risk profile is operationalised
thicugh the risk management framework, including the establishment of authoisations, Risk-taking should lake place within established
lirna s

*  Authorisations. Authorsations mast be in place for the exdension of cred® and for position and trading iméts in all criical financial sreas,

* AN awiharisations are personal, Authorisations and group limils are delermined by the Board of Directors and can be delegated in the
crganisation, though any further delegation requires approval by an immediale superior.

o Anausl fevienw of limats, Rick it are revtewed ol least annually in connaction with budgel and planhing procedses,

*  ndepende rizk managemeant funclions. Risk managemeant functions and the development of risk managerment tools are undenaken by
unils thal &ne independent of operations in the indvidual business areas,

Manitering and use

*  Accoundebifly. Al executives are responsible for risk within their can area of responsibility and must consequently be fuly updated on the
risk sifuation al all times.

*  Rigk reporfing. Risk reperting in the Group ensures that all executives have the necessany informalion aboul cument nsk bevets and futwre
developments. To ensure high-guality, independent nisk repors, responsibility for reporting is assigned to unis thal are independent of the
operative units,

* Capisl aszeszment A summary and analysis of the Group's capital and risk sfuation is presanted in a quarterly sk repon o DNE ASA's
Board of Direclors

*  Lize of rizk information, Risk i an inlegral pan of the management and menitonng of business areas. Risk-adjusted retum i reflected in
produdl pricing. profil calculations and in monilofing pedormance in the buginess areas,

Relevant risk measures

*  Rizk appetie. DNE montors sk through defined targeds and limils. The nsk appelite framework consists of 17 stalements covering the nsk
dimensions which are considersd o be significant for the DNE Group, and which added up give 8 good view of ihe tolal risk. Developrments
In the targed figures are mondored and repofied monihly 1o the group management team and quarterty 1o DNE's Board of Direclors. Ses
separate paragraph on risk appetile.

A coayron risk maasure o thé Group, The Group's ek i measured in the form of aconomic capitsl, calculated Tor all of the Group's
business areas and main risk categories. with the exceplion of liquidity risk, See separate paragraph on economic capiial.

*  Supplamentacy risk measore, In pddtion, risk is followed up through supplementory fisk measurés adapied lo cperations in the various
business areas, for example monioning of positions relative o kmits, key figures and portfoio sk targets.

Risk categories

In DMB, risk is dhvided into si¥ main categaries which are subject to special measurement and monitoring.

& (Credil risk is the risk of Snancial losses due tofailure on the pan of the Group's cuslomers to meet their payment obligations. Credil risk
refers to all claims against custormners, principaity leans, buft also obligations related to other approved credits. guaraniees. fived-income
securties, andrawn credits and inlerbank deposils. Counterparty sk 5 also a type of credR sk and artses through derivalive rading.

= Markefrigh is the risk of losses due to unhedged positions in the foreign exchange, interest rate. commeodity and equity markets. The risk
Brises in consequence of flucluations in profits due o changes in manket prices of sxehange rales. Market fek includes both risk thal sses
through erdinary frading activities and risk that arses as port of banking activities and cther business cperstions. In addilion, markel risk
arises in ONB Livstorsikring A5, reflecting the risk thal the return on Enancial assets will not be sufcient to meel the cbligations specified in
Insurance policies.

*  Operabional rizk is the nsk of losses due to deficiencies or emars In internal processes and systems, human emors o extemal events.
Opefational risk also includes compliance risk, legal risk, conduct risk and IT nsk. Compliance risk (s the risk of losses in conseguence of
the violstion of laws and regulalions, Legal risk is related tothe documentation and interpretation of contracts and different legal practices in
countrias where the bank has operations. Conduwet risk is defined as the existing o potentiad risk of bosses related to improper deliveries of
financial services of losses resulting from generalfy reprehensible conducd

*  Inswance nsk is incurred by DMNB Livsforsikring AS and DNE Forsikring AS and is related to changes in fulure insurance cbSgations. Within
life insurance, such nsk reflecls changes in poleyholders' lile sxpeclancy and s ability rales, Within nen-ife insurance, insurance nsk is
related to the frequency and size of future clasms payments

*  Lagenolly nizk &5 the nsk that the Group will be unable fo meet its obligabions as they fall duwe, and the sk that the Group will be unable 1o
mieet it liquidity obligations withoul & substantial rise in appurienant cosls, Liquidity is vital to financial cperations. This sk calegory will
often be conditiona! in the respect that it will not materalse undtil other events give nse to concem regarding the Group's sbéiity to meet #s
cbligations.
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Note 4 Risk management {continued)

' Busziness righ relates o flucluations in profits due 1o changes in extemal factors such as the marke! stuation, government regulations or the
loss of income due (o a weakened reputation, Reputational rsk is often a consequence of cther sk calegodes. The Group's business risk is
primaniéy handed through the siralegy precess and engoing effors to safeguard and improve the Group's reputabion. When defemining and
fellowing up the Group's risk appetite, reputational sk is defined as & separale fisk dmension. Reputational rsk is followed up by
menitoring media coverage, while the competilive situnbion is followed up by analysing markel trends and developments in marked shares,

In addition ta the above-rmenbioned risk calegones the Group is exposed to strateges risk, which can be defined as the risk of 8 decline in profis
i the Group fails to exploit existing strabegic opportunities. The Group's strafegic risk is not measured or reported indbvidually, but is discussed
a5 pan of the annual strategy process.

Risk appetite

The Board of Directors of DNEB ASA sets long-lerm targets fof the risk profile through the risk appetite framework. The risk appelite framework
Birns to ensure that sk is managed and integrated with the Group's governance processes, The sk appetite framework should provide

& hoistic and balanced view of the risk in the business. in 2016, the framework consisted of 17 statements. To support the frameweork a set of
governance prnciples and operabonal procedures and responsabilibes within the

DNE Growp have been defined. The targeted risk profile will also be reflected in other parts of the sk managemend, including the establishment
of authonsations and business limits. The risk appelite framework will be reviewed sl least annually, The Board of Directors also regulary
resdews fisk levels, the framenwork siructure and the reporting of refevant risk categones.

The: limits in the risk appelite framewark are cperaticnalised in the business areas and support units. In the Group's govemance system, the risk
appelite framewark is implemented in the fam of targel Tigures for selected sk indicators. The nak indicalors will bypically lake the form of himils
{Tor quantifiable risk) or qualitative assessments of the risk level, They do ol need to be based on the same measurement paramieters as the
cnes used st group level_ thoogh they must suppert the same risk types and show the same trend. Continual mendonng of these target figures
will amsure that the risks tha! are considersd to be the most significant are also subject Lo monitofing and discussion in operathe unils in the
crganisation

Economic capital for the DNB Bank Group

Eccnomic capital is a measure of the risk of losses generated by verious business operations. Economic capital makes & possible to compare
fisk across risk categories. Average losses over B nomel business cycle represent expected costs which should primarily be covered through
carrect pricing of the Groups products, Ecanomic capital should cover unexpecied losses. The quantification of economic capital s based on
statistical probabifity calculations for the various risk calegeries on the basis of histonced data, DNE has slipulated that economic capital should
cower 90,97 per cent of potentinl losdes within & one-year hotzon . This level is in accordance with an AA level rating largel for the ardinary long-
term debl in DNB Bank ASA,

DHE quanlifies economse capital for the Tollowing risk categones, credil risk, market nsk, maroed A9k in life insurance, insurance ek, risk in non-
e insurance, cpernlional rsk and business risk. A sipnificant diversificalion o portfclio effect anses when the variou s risks are considered
together, as it is untikely that all losses will oocur at the same time. An economic downburn will normally have a negative effect on most areas,
bt there will be 8 dversification effect, as not a1 afeas will be hit egually hard. The diversification effect beteeen risk categories and business
aneas imphes that the Group's economic capital will be much lower than if the business areas had been independent companies.

A end-December 2016, net economic capital for DNE Bank Group was estimated af NOK 67,2 billion, & reduction of NOK 1.3 billion from end-
December 2015,
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Credil risk of colnberparty risk & the sk of financial lodses dus 1o failure o the part of the banking group’s customersfcountenparties (o rmest
their payment obligations lowands the banking group. Credit risk refers to all claims ageinst cusiomersicounterparies. mainly loans. bt also
comimitments in the fom of other extended credits, guarantess, inberest-beaning securities, unulilised credit Enes, nterbank deposits and lcan
offers, &5 wall 85 counlerparty risk arising through trading in currency and inberest rate derivalives, In add@ion, counterpary risk is a major
elerment of the settiement sk that arises in connection with payment transfers and the settlement of contracts

Credil risk al$o inchudes conceniration risk, including risk relating 1o Rarge exposured to & paticular customer, o well &% clusters of loans in
gecgraphical areas or indusiries o 1o homogen eous customer groups. Residual risk is the risk that the collateral backing a loan is less effective
than expected Credit risk management and measurement is described in further detad in the Risk and Capital Management (Fillar 3) repon
The banking group guidelines for credit activity are approved by the Boards of Directors of DNE Bank ASA. The prncigal cbjective of credit
activity is 1o ensure that 1he qualty and composition of the lean portfolio provide a good basis for the banking group's short and leng-lerm
profitability. The guality of the pertfelio should be consistent with DNE's aim of maintaining & low risk profile, See alsonote 4 Risk management,
I which credk risk for the banking group is quantified in the form of risk-adjusted capital reguiremeants.

The raxsmum credit risk exposure will be the carrgng amount of financal assats plus unrecorded sxposure, which mainly includes guarantees,
unutilised credit Ines and loan offers. Guaraniees, unutiised credi bnes and loan offers are $pecified in nole 49 Off-balanc e sheel ransactions
and contingencies. The maximum credt nsk expesure and related collateral are shown below,

Cradit risk exposure and collateral as af X1 December 2016 ONE Bank ASA
M maseriim
wxposure b Secured by Collabealised thlr
Amounts in MOK milfion credit itk neal eutote by securities  collaberal '
Dwposits with contral bards 206 082
D from credit mssbuteny 549083 153548 a
Leang 19 custonmesy E50 060 240 109 49 187 217055
Cornmreial paper ard bondy H[E10
Firancial detivaliveg o7 9149 20379
Cithar sxsabs 12728
Total maximum exposure to crodi sk refected on the balence shoet 1888 208 240 108 204 04t 307 487
Guarantees -] B 543 152 A% 410
LEnutdand creds dnes snd loan offery 4TS TEZ 16 278 -3 &1 7T
Cithae eommmants 3861
Tetal masimum expoesure 1o crodi ek not refected on the Balance sheet 1232 24821 255 85 187
Total 2437 830 284 230 204 268 153 B44
Cradit risk exposure and collateral as al 31 December 2015 DB Bank A58,
M
pomrels  Securedby Colatermined o
Amounts i WOK miltior credit risk el mstate by seourities oniateal '
Degposiy Wi contral barks 14 T8
Diuw fram & redi insilubans B30 T00 ATRAT 2
Leant 1o cutlonien 705 532 239554 43478 e
Carnmecial papar and bonds 2924
Firancial derivatives 213787 1675 85 TRs
Othav susais 4208
Total masimum sep b erockt nak reBeckod on the Bk EET T 1847 210 238 &54 324078 A25 153
Cunranhse g5 867 1087 b 31 456
Unutiised credt ines and loan offers 43 488 B T4 a7 57 588
ther commiments 4 678
Total maximum sxposure to crodit sk not refected on the balance shoel 1083 30 18531 33 101 187
_Total 2091 140 284 088 F24 401 426 320
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Note & Credit risk (continued)
Crodit risk exposure and collseral a% al 31 Decomber 2016 DMNE Bank Groug

Mavimum

I LI Aty Coll ‘e Cthver
Ameunts in NOK milan eradil rak gl aulabe By pecunibE sellmaral
Depouts with central banks 207179
Due from coedit institutions 174 &0 163 Bda 23
Loars to customers 1402 288 BaE Bha 50 208 30 150
Commarcial paper snd bonds 230847
Financial derr st 157 88T H18 80378
Cther anssls 7414
Totsl maxmum sxposuns to cradit rivk refacted on the balancs thest 22T0ATT BAS BEO 205 152 420 560
Guanniees #2012 B TR 162 33 708
Unusilised credt Bnes and loan offers B0E 122 e ] g2 TR 86D
Deher eommitieants 3s85 18
Tetsl i fa eni riak il ralpated on the Bal bl sl TOZ 118 g7 872 255 112586
Tetsd 2T EM 973 63 205 407 533158
Credit risk exposure and collateral as at 31 December 2015 DOMNB Bank Group

MEximerm

wiposure b Secursd by Collsiersbsed thepr
Armeuntz in NO¥ milian eredit rink meal H:MM
Deposits with central banks 16811
Daie from coedit inslitutions 207 457 2ra 058 a4
Loars 1o customaes 1531832 877 B2 44 583 ME 155
Cermenarcial paper and bonch 228224 a3
Finamsial daerstiet 203273 16875 BE B
DEhpr BLEMiL T 920
Totad masimum ssposure io credd rivk refected on the balance shest 2283 710 BTT B2 326 291 433 361
Guaranises a8 &3 187 227 7o
Unuilizsd credt inas and loan offers 500823 61 &7 - o1 169
Dther i et 4841
Total maxnurm sxposuns b chidl ritk Aot rallectad an the Balance dhas T03 250 T2 745 34 134 980
Teksd 2 987 ETT 50 370 el 568 311
1F Oitver collpdprel nafucies The of S v ue of Mo Bles, urities 2hias end cash ar well Az altey credl enheacemes Sush 0 Mg agreernivils and
guaradpes recaied

The lable above inchudes on and of-Dalance shest Rems which entail credt risk and Ihe assessed value of relaled collatersd, If avaiiable, fasr
virlues are wiad, In general. fair values are eslimaled according o different techniques depending on the lype of collateral. With resped lo
propedties, madels estimating the value of colateral based on market pararmeters for similar properties, are used. Corresponding techniques are
used for other non-financial collaleral In order to reflact the effective avallable collateral value, the fair value of collaleral included in the table is
limiled to the maxdmum creddl exposure of the individusl [can or exposure.

Comments 1o the main ilems a3 a1 31 December 2016

* Deposils with ceviiral banks; Deposits with Norges Bank totaled NOK 15 822 million. DNE ergages only in shom-berm transactions with
central banks oulside Morway, mainly in CECD countries,

*  Loans fo customers: See further description under “Guldedines for credit achivty”

* Commercial paper and bands. See further deseription wnder "Credit exposure of other financial assels”.

* Financial denivatives: Other colateral reprasents netting oppodtunibes agaknst other cutstandng balances with customers and cash
collaleral racehved.

v Guarantess: See further description under "Guidelines for credit activity™.

¢ Uinutilised credl bees and loan offers. Offers of loans, credis and crédit lines Lotaling MO 110 435 million for the DNB Bank Group and
108 513 milkon for DHE Bank ASA wara included in the maxmum credd exposure. Mo fomal collateral has been astablished for such
exposure, and the assessed value is not included in the table. Collaferal is established once the offers are accepted by the customers, The

assessment of the value of any colalerad established in connection wilh such offers follows the procedure and crileria described under
“Guldelines Tor eradit acthaty™
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Mote &5 Credit risk {continued)

Credit risk exposure of loans and commitments

Hobes 5 and T show (he banking group's credil risk exposure for principal customer groups and according 1o geographic location. Noles &
throwugh 11 show impaired loans and guarantess and impairment of lcans and guarantees.

Classification of loans and commitments

DHE's intemal modets for sk classification of customers are subject to continual improvemaent and testing. The models are adapied to different
Imdustries and segrments and are reguiarty upgraded 1o ensure that (he varables used in the models nave high explanatory power at &l limes
based cn key risk drivers for the indvidual parameters incluged in the modets. DNE has been granted permission to use IRBA models in capital
adequacy calculations. The same classifications ane wsed in calculations. of capital requirernents and in risk management.

All corporate customers granted credit must be classified according 1o sk in connection with every significant credd! approval and, unless
otherwise decided, at least once a year. in the personal banking marked, where there is a large number of customers, the majonity of credit
decigions should be made on the basis of automated sconing and decision support sysbema, Risk classification should reflect long-term risk
associnted wilh éach custorner and the cuslomer's credit commitment,

Thie risk ciassification systems are used as decision SuUpport, monitonng and reporing. The risk pararmeters used in the classification systems
are an inegrated past of the credit process and ongoing risk monitoring. including the follow-up of credit strategies.

Probability of default, PD. is vsed 1o messwhe quality, The bank divides its ponfols into tan rigk classes based on the probability of default for
each credil commitment

DNB's rigk classification '
Pronabisy of defadt
{par cen} External rating
ik closs Ax hom upte Moodys Standard & Poor's
1 {eXa]] R[] Ann = A3 BAM =
g o0 028 Eanl - Baa2 B88+ - EEB
3 025 ash Emnd BBB-
4 =y Qrs Enl =0
& a5 125 BaZ Ba
-] 1.25 200
7 204 o0 Bal a8
] 200 S.00 Bl Ba
] 500 00 B2 B
i11] 80D i pained B3, Cani B-. COCIC
i DiVE's nak slagafication syafam whane 1 reg 12 I kel g and 10 M fugteaf ok,
Loans and commitments according to fsk classification DN Bank ASA
Teaal
Grosd loass Guansiss Unutilsed Bomng and
Amounts in NOK mifian I CUStoemors comeimonts  ceadtines  commitmants
Rk categery baded on probabiity of default
1-4 T TIE 65 665 288 085 T 455
&§-7 T2 837 13478 55 S4B i P ]
B-10 68220 G153 11 874 5 24T
Ior: B [ LY 11 832 Ba7 12619
Tetal baang and commdrmen i a1 ok 31 O e 2015 Ti0 766 BS 41 365 618 1162 635
FEak colagary based on peobabiity of defaull
1-4 EilL ke ST 1R 21435 TIT 167
-7 163 TET 12 888 50 754 25T 400
B 10 64129 aios 12 021 a5 164
Hmmm and I_IEEH]M and guaranbess 22048 1 ﬁ 1 E.!" 25 447
Total bans and drnanis 8% af 31 O bae 2016 " B4 S5E BO 208 a5 03 1 185 178
1 Based on nomimal smounts
Loandoss level "
Asmsunts in NOK mllion 018 M5
Naomatsed osses ncdwdng loss ol interest & in pai cet of net loans 033 034

1) The calevlation of e loan-iodd level is based cn an evaluation of the probalily of fufum leases (difal fegquency), exp af dafaul and the sire of e
adtimided lose (loas red el Cakulplions ane baded o0 & S v of dieridiom e eahmaton.

M | DB RANK - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

262/350



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O000000000000o000o0o00o0ooo0000ondnE26109)
Oooooooa

Note & Credit risk (continued)
Loans and commitmenls according to risk classification DNE Bank Group
Total

Gross loans Guaranbes Unutimed loars and

Ameunts in NOK milan 15 cusomen  eommdments crgdi bngy  commimenty

Ritk cabegery bated on prabability of defauk

1-4 1014114 &0 B2 A58 685 1541 321

BT 11 733 14 011 TALXF BO& 170

810 82148 & 25 15 748 114 147

Hm—pﬂfmnglul ypained loans and guarssises 21 570 BiS breg- L

Totsl lownt and cormmibmants at #1 31 Decemnbar 20495 1 535 S04 B9 ATR 553 1 2183 204

Rige bazed on ity of dataclt

1-4 1018937 R 458 223 1545108

5-T 36T 157 14 0@ Toaa 452 0BG

8- 10 88 ol B B4 =8 603 128 208

Hor-parforming and impained loans and guarsntees 30 551 1 Bl 1762 34 156

Total iowns and commitments s 81 31 Oecembar 2016 1 503 346 84 BB 571328 2158856

1F  Based on pominal amounts.

Loandoss level "

Amounts in NOK misian 2018 2018

Horrnalied kot including lons of intenedd inseme in piet cont af net leans a7 0325

1F The caloulalion of Phe loas-igs ved (2 Based on @ svalustion of the probabilly of fuf ure iaa2es efaul fregquency), expodune af defaul and ihe e of the
aatiritid hadg (load matay. Calzulstevis dnd based aft @ covlit hvl of SVasnalion amd daimil .

Guldelines for credit activity

DHE's guidelines and processas for approving credits are described in the group guideines for credit activity, The guidelines describe how DHNE
shall grant and follow up credit exposures in the various segments. Detalled descriptions are given of the assessment of new customers. Tollow-
up of healthy cradt exposures, follow-up of customers in financial difficulty and procedures for handing doubtiul and non-parformeng loans.

The granting of credil in DNEB is based on aulhorsation and approval malrices. As a fundamental pinciple, one person makes o recommend.
dation and another one appeoves it, which takes place through the authonsation and appreval matrces, The matnces are differentiated on the
Basis of volume, fisk and, if relévant, indusiry, While only fwo persons may be imvabved in (recommending and approving) & bow-risk expasure in
the form of a home modgage, recommeendations for largeicomplex exposures must be endorsed by a senicr credid officer. In addilion. advice will
b sought from credd commmittees, and the invehvement of indusiry specialists may be required,

A decistve element when granting credilt is the customers' debl servicing capacity in the form of engaing fulure cash flows. such as eamed
Income of income nom the business operations which are being financed, The bank seeks Lo futher miligate the risk of losses in conneclion
with & possible fulure reduction in cash fiows or default by requiring that collateral be fumished. Only in exceplional cases will credt be granted
if the customer has provided no collateral,

Collateral can be in the form of physical assets, guaraniees, cash deposils or nelling agreements. A% a rube, physical colialeral shall be insured
Hegative pledges, whereby cuslomers undertakos io keep their assets free from encumbrances vis-&-vis other lenders, are aiso used as a risk-
mitigating measure,

In addéion to collateral, most corporate credit agreements will include financial covenants, which represent an addtional risk-mitigating element
o ensure that DNE becomes aware of and invelved in any Snancial challanges at en satly stage. Examples of inancial sowenanls are minimim
net cash low and equity ralio requirernents,

Menitoning credit fisk

Performing customers

According to the guldelines for credit acthity for cofperate customars, a credit assessment shall be made of all customers al least once a year.
This is & complete review of all rishs identifved by DMNE relating tolhe customer. A new evaluation of all collateral (prodded) 4 an integral part of
the annual revie'w. The decision-making and aulhonsation matices shall also be used in connection wath the renewal of all #xisting credits and
thiss ensure that persons with relevant experise ane abaays involved when considenng targe and complicated exposures.

Personal customers are followed up through o systemalic portfolio management system, Exposures are followed up indhidually f heightened
risk has been identifed

Watchiis!

The walchiist ks the Group's primary tocl for following up comporale cuslomers when a risk has arisen which reguires special monitoring. if
customers breach inansial covenants of & [958 svenl requinng speccal montonng kas sccurred, i will be considerad whether to placs the
expokie on the watchlisl. Loss evenls include sefous financial problems of major changes in market conditions. In addition, all customers in
the high-risk segment {risk grades 8-10) will be watchlist candidates. It is an integral part of credit acthity bo consider whether to place high-nsk
custorners on the watchlist. Watehlisted custormers are subject 1o speczal mondtoning. More fequent, oflen quererly risk assessments are
required, including an updated valation of collateral. In addifion, an action plan must be prepared to get cut of the nsk situation that has arisen.
The particularty cose follow-up of customers facing greater challenges is based on the bank's experience fhat special monitaning both reduces
the risk ihal losses will cccwr and minimises the losses thal aclually malerialise. Each time walchlsted exposures ane reviewed, Ihe need for
impabment losses will be considersd
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Mote &5 Credit risk {continued)

Granling concessionary treatment of cusiomerns

i @ customer gels inle financial dfficullies, DNE may in some cases grant volunlary concessions in the form of less stringent financial covenants
or reducedidefemed interest and instalment payments. Such measures are offered in accordance with the Group's credit guidelines, thus aiming
b eelp custorvers through & tough financial petod when It is expected that they will meet thelr cbligations on a later date. Thes is part of DNE's
strafegy bo reduce losses. DNB Bank ASA's tolal forbearance exposures. in sccordance with the definilion of forbeanance in CRD IV, totalled
approdmately NOK 258 bilion at year-end 2016,

Lozs and non-performing povifoio

In Ihe event of losses o non-performance, customers are closely monilorad, In the bank's axpedianca, olhar SUpplemenary rescurces ane
fegquired during this slage than for perfaming cusbornens, Cuslomer expodunes which fall int this calegory will édher be lransferred in their
entirely to o separate unit with special expedise in this field, or persons from this unit will join the customer team,

Repossassed companies and assels

n connection wilh the foliow-up of impared and non-perfceming exposures; DNB will In some cases take over assels provided as colfatenal for
loans and guarantess, All acquired companies are followed up by the Group Investment unil, whose mamn fanget i3 1o S scursfecover values for
CNEs shareholders through Bnancial restrucluring when companies and properlies are repossessed due to defaull. Ses separate paragraph
below for detalls on repossessed assels

Past due loans not subject fo Impalrment

The table below shows overdus amounts on loans and overdralls on credisideposits and the total resicual deibt for these loans broken

down o the number of days afler the due date, assuming & delefioration of customer solvency o urwillingness 1o pay, Past due loans and
overdrafls on credilsideposits are subject to confinual mondoning. Loans and guarantees where any objective svidence of impaimment exists are
reviewed for empairment. Such reviews have also been carried oul for the Foans and guarantees included in the table for which no need for
impairren! has been idantified. Past due leans subject to mpairment are ol includad in the tabie b are included in tatkes Shoaing impairad
loans and guarantees, see nobe 8 Impaired |lcans and guaraniees for prncipal customer groups

DNE Bank ASA

31 Decaenbar 2048 MG b 2045
Outstan ding Cuttstanding
balarce on balsnce on
Piet dun Fat e Pa dua pant due
Amounts in NOK milfon ovardrawm Ioans L= Ll loaes
10-20 days T3 1233 &0 27i@
065 days 442 423 73 1388
E0-69 day 11 159 7 s
> 80 days 213 1474 1 353 3T
1A 1388 2398 1533 H8,
O#B Bank Group

31 Ducamibar 2046 31 Decembar 2015
Oubstanding Catstanding
Ealarce on Balence on
Past dual past dus Fast donl P dus
Amounts in NOK milfon ovardrawn Ioans L= Ll loasms
10-25 darys TEY 720 128 a3
30-55 daye 46T 1148 7z 2743
BB ey 14 430 a2 e
= 90 dayt 222 3265 1708 S078
Total 1488 12084 2438 16 BES

Credit exposure of other financial assets
The Group's investments in other financial assets, including commercial paper and bonds, are within risk limits approved by the Board of
Directers, Ses note 33 Commercial paper and bords, held te matutity, Tee 8 desenption of Markets' international bond pertfcio
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Note & Credit risk (continued)

Counterparty risk for derivatives

DME enlers inlo dervadive ransactions on the basis of customer demand and 1o hedge positions resulting from such acthaly, In addiion,
derivatives are used lo hedge positions in the irading portiolio and take positions in the interest rate. curency, commodity and equity mardkets. in
addition, derivatives are used o hedge curency and interast rate risk ansing in connection with funding and lending. Denvatives are lraded in
porfalios where balance sheet products are also traded. Dervatives are generally traded “over the counter” (OTC), which means that ndividual
coniracts are agresd upon by the parties

Dervathves are Ireded wilh a number of different counterparties, and most of these are also engaged in other lypes of busingss. The credil sk
that afises in connection with dervative Ireding i included in the DNE Group's everall eredt risk measurement. Such measuremeant and follow-
ups take piace on & daily basis, In orfder to minimise counterparty risk for indnidual counterpasties, netting agreements and bilsleral guaraniee
agresments have been entered inbo. In addition, various interest rate produdls ane cleared vin so-called clearing houses. such as LCH Clearmel
The counderpaty risk for an indvidual party is thus transferred (o the clearinghouse.

CSA pgreements (Credt Support Annex) have been entered inbo with most major bank coeunterparties and & farge number of oher
counterparties. This means thal the market valee of all dervalives entered inlo between DNE and the counterparty is settied either daily or
weekhy, wheraby counterparty nsk is largely elininaled. These iransactions are generally backed by cash collaferal, though treasury bifls and
covered bonds are also used. The collatera] agreements are normally not based on rating tripgers. but for & few agreements. the manimum
enposune level will be reduced f ONE is downgraded. The effects of a possible downgrade are very fimited. Equity forward contracts, securities
esues and cumancy trading for privale individuals ane monitored and margined on & dady basis

Repossessed properties and other assets — carrying amount

Repossedsed 355815 afe assets aoquired by units within the banking group 85 part of the management of non-perorming and Frpeied loans
and guarantees. Al the time of acquésition, such assets are valued at their estimated realisable value. Any deiation from the camying amount of
non-performing and impaired loans and guarantees at the lime of acquisiton is classified as mpaimrent on loans. Repossessed asses ane
recorded in the balance sheet according 1o the type of a4sel. When acquiing shares o mutual fund holdings, the asgets are evaluabed

according o the principles described in nete 1 Accounting principles. Upon final sale, the difference relalive to camying amount is recognised in
the income statement Beoerding 1o the type of assel.

DNE Bark ASA DMNE Bank Group
w15 2018 At in NO¥ il 2016 M5

il 50 s o o F sed musels as ol 1 January 2330 & 1856

1 Property addiam T w20

Canor puset adetions 1 33

Reclansifed os held for sale” {1 087}

(20 2% Property dspotals {335y (3428

Cever assed disposals & ()
et Ehm rasulting from Enmlnl!u farir waluw (imvestmaent properties) (41 {ﬂp
5 i Fléparitaiied progts oAl 14 ji8s &4 30 Dhecprmby 1132 3330

1F  lnciudes @ssels dv the Salics, mciesstied a held for safe in August 2016
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Mote &5 Credit risk {continued)
Loans and deposits designated as at fair value W

DHB Bank ARS8 DHB Bank Group
31 D 31 Des. 3 Do 31 Des
2015 2018 Ameounta in NOK milon 18 2018
A8 T4 20 850 Leoars and deposits designated os ot & value 60 487 85779
48 Tha 20 850 Total sxposure b cract rmk B0 487 B57Ta
186 a1 Valus sdustmant from credi gk 121 m
) {54) Walue sejustmant from changs in cred rigk */ [AKLT [1as
Y 018, & portialic of home modpag dirgs fo approsimalely NOK 5 bBon vas sold from DNE Bolghned AS lo
ONE Liveforadring AS
B Creal nisk refected in falr viloe masduveemen! @ baded on ispd Rozaes arg changes in Sapd foazes i e refivant pomialo.

Effects of changes in credit margins

The long-lerm funding markets were characterised by regulatory and poitical uncertainty in 2016, Concerns refaled to the Chinese sconomy
wnd & weaker growth cutlook for European banks led to higher spreads and lower acthvity al the beginning of the year. Spreads were markedy
reguced after the Eurcpean Centrad Bank (ECB) mesling in March, where, among cther things, the asset purchase programme was further
expanded. The lavel of acthity declined tnwands the surmmer 83 the EU referendum in the UK was appeoaching. Aftar the vabe markets
nonmalised and spreads decreased. The acthily level was once again down ahead of the LS presidential election, bul increased markedy
aterwards Concerns related e a polential reduction in the ECE's assel purchase programme resylted in wider spreads lowards the end ol the
yeir, DNE had good access bo long-term funding in 2015 and spreads on covened bonds and ordinany $eniof debt decreased markedly
throughout the year. Changas in cred! mangins affected a number of items inthe DNE Bank Group's balance sheet:

Ag part of engoing kquidily mansgerment, Markets invests in an intemational bond portfalio. The halding of such bonds lotaled NOK 58 billion
end-December 2016, Unrealised gains in this portfolio amounted to MOK 45 million at end-December 2016, compared wilth unrealised losses of
HOK 172 million & yesr-end 2015 Thers was considarabbe tumaver in the portfolio in 2018,

Unrealized gain on the porticio of Norwegian bonds used for liquidity management came to NOK 390 million a1 year-end 2016 compared with
an unrealized gain of NOK & million at endDecember 2015,

Moody's and Standard & Poo's downgrades of Eksportfinans” credit rating in the fourth quarter of 2011 resuiled in sizeable unrealised gains on
the company’s long-term funding, The effect of these unrenlsed gains on DHE's holding, afler tax, represented NOK 11,8 billon, Afler reviewing
the feir value of the company in connection with the chosing of the annual accounts, DHE wrobe down the value by an amount correspoending to
unsealised gains on Exsportfinans’ own debt in the Tourth quarter of 2011, Since 2041 the required rate of teturn i the market has been
reduced, and Eksportfnans has reported sizeable unrealised losses on own debt. The impaimment loss recorded by ORNB in the fourth quarter of
2011 has been reversed by an amaunt cofrespon ding bo these unrealised bosses. The remalning adjustment amaounting te NOK 144 million was
reversad in 2016, The smpairment 1o$s i 2011 and subsequant réverdsals hive besn repaed on the Bne "Profil from invesiments dccounted for
bry the equity method™ along with DHE's share of profits from the company.

The DHE Bank Group's long-term Domowings in Motwegian kroner ars camied al fair valus through profit of 1oss. Margin requirernents wene
reguced n 2016: A end-December 2016, there were unrealised |osses of HOK 317 milkon on long-term bormowings, compared with unrealised
gainsg of NOK 337 milion al year-end 2015, Unrealised brsses on the ONE Bank Group's liabililies will be reversed cwar the remaining tem lo
maburity.

The banking group's ficed-rate loans in Moreegian kroner and pans of the portfolio of margin loans in Norwegian kroner are camed at fair value
Inrough profit of loss, Unrealised iosses, measured relabive 10 swap rales on nese loans, came [0 ROK 144 million al year-end 2016, compared
with unrealtsed losses of NOK 773 milion at end-December 2015 reflecting reduced margn requirements. The unrealised losses will be
reversed over the remaining term to matenty, provided thal there are no changes in (he credil slatus of the loans.
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Note 6 Loans and commitments for principal customer groups

Laoans and commiiments as at 31 December 2016 " OHE Bank ABA
Laeny and Usutiised  Tobal loass and
Amounts in MoK milon mﬁ= Gu;rl_n_m m:.ehl'mu commiments
Privete inchviduals 137 BE2 2 178 853 37 140
Transportabion bry sea and pipsimes and vessel constnuction B0 542 -1 ] 54 TEE T4 534
Roal wstate 148 BE1Y 2880 2% 538 178120
Manukacturing 46 439 2897 32 2 1 628
Servicen =i 54 1 1Te Bo 741
Troade 32258 4 484 24 BE6 68 &BT
Oil and gax i =} Joda a1 33 son
Transporiabicn and communicalipn |7 873 15418 64 048
Bulding and coniruction A7 P4 127H 25 832 BEE1R
Porargr anvd waker supply Folr) 8709 mire S0 E14
Seakad 15313 199 5835 21 358
Hetels and restaurants 5713 409 1883 Tars
Agricutture snd foresbry 4818 58 1 087 B T4
Contal and locsl govemmant 12051 158 5875 18 085
Dithr gecion 40833 a5 4628 45 354
Total % nominal after indivicual impail 2 Bdl B0 383 385 703 1158 &34
= GCollectios impaimment. customers i TET) L2 Tam
+ Other adjrsiments {4485} {448
Loans bo cusiomers 50 noa T8 037 25 FOd 1 155 Fo1
T irmtiuSant, nominal amount alter individual impainment 549 089 8296 B 0ag 651 474
+ Db elpentrnents 4 4
Loans to and due from credil insmutons 49003 B 298 & 0ER 651 478
Loans and commilimants as at 31 December 2015 ONBE Bank ABA
Lowns and Unutiised  Total iparms and
_.’_"nw_.r_l'gmhﬁ('r_'rln_wr r-_n__-_:u# Guarsntases onscil fines cmmkments
Private inchviduals 144 270 v 145 268 05 80
Traniporiaticn by teb and pipslnet and vetas conttruchion 56 264 7% 1% £89 B 487
Roal witale 148 608 22652 25 950 176 B39
Manukscturing S2129 XTI 32578 108 di3
Ewrsices B0 280 5370 [ 104 032
Trade A2542 5028 @mita 57 845
il mnd gas 218674 4135 1 53 37 352
Tranaporiation and commundcalion 34148 B3rs LLR k] 5E 442
Buiiding and construction 44 05 12818 133 Bt Bl
Paowrer and wister supply ZT7 857 8201 16 366 62 483
Epafood 15173 2k 4 488 16887
Hetels and restaurants & 382 408 233 5134
Agriculture and fordstry 4 56t 52 2467 7480
Cantral and local govemmant a8 T LRiE] 18404
DOther sectan 6 842 & 807 %807 &7 155
Totad & nominal s indivicual impail t TOT 241 B35 Td5 3455 pig 1158 525
- Cailactive img i i {8 Toa) 0170
+_Dthee adgsstments {165} {185
Loans bo kil 5 532 2589 J&5 098 1157 o208
Tt imtiugant, nomnal amount alter indinadual impainment B340 654 8751 587 5688 1236013
+ Cher adrstments ] B
_Loans to and due froen credh insEutons 30 700 8751 597 568 1738018

1 Loans and eesvalies in te Baltice ave recleestind fo srseiz and bidbes beld o sale. See role 30 Aszals and Febidtins haldd for sale Guemaiess and
wouhfced credl Foes include the Bakics.

The breakdown info principal cuslomer groups caresponds fo the EU's standard indusirial classification. NACE Rev.2
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Mote 6 Loans and commitments for principal customer groups (continued)
Loans and commitments as al 31 Decomber 2046 " DRE Bank Group
Loans and Unutilsed  Total fboans and
Amopunts m MOK milfer recavabies Guararteet crodit bnes cormmilments
Privabe indriduals Ta M T 241 774 TIITE
Trassportaticn by sea end pipslines and vessel conruct 108 144 a8M 34523 150 842
Feal patale 185 798 Zasd 26910 21858
Manulacturng e 23443 68528 1568457
Serdged a7 &3 5664 1335 134 45
Trade 3 ad2 & B8 28y T 862
O and gas 28 OF4 5 0da 328 &7 327
Trarsp mnd ¢ ation 2 5 LT 2rm 100 2
Buikding and construction B2 221 13 382 31 683 a7 108
Power and wabsr Supply 3T 7188 24 014 62378
Sweafood 18 &m8 2 0 ask Th 664
Hotels and restaurants. 745 420 2178 10 029
Agriculture and focestry o Bl &0 T2 T 141
Coeriral mad (oAl Governmae 14213 e By o2l
e s@eior &7 795 503 2878 51 577
Todal customens, nominal amsent afes indavidual impairment 14596 749 84 360 571338 15T 434
- Colptlive imparmant, cutiomss {4 488) L]
+ Ceher adjustmaents ﬂ_;l!.‘l {ﬁL
Loans (o cusiamers 1407 38 #3004 571326 7147 408
Crpcit inshitutions, inal nt ater i idual img 174 ga7 T B&3 Sa 704 217 a7
 Cenar sdjustmants 11 11
Loans to and due from credit nstutions 174 G08 76853 o] Fal T
Loans and commilments as al 31 December 2015 OMB Bank Group
Loans and Unutilsed  Total boans and
Amounts in MOK milfon recanvibies Guarartses crodit g cornmilmats
Frovabe indivicuals TiE B8 84 158 168 525 350
Trarsportatcn by sea end pipslines and vesssd conuruct 128 M4 8533 42 7o 1788
Freal astate 187 03 2 26165 225 542
Manufacturing 02 B4 24 X T418 180 458
Services 8T atd 6074 el 128 555
Trade &1 056 5481 25 TE8 T2 M2
Ofl and gas 31 & & B4 38117 T4 665
Trarrpprtatissn and commumicalinn 5832 B555 /T3 6
Building and contthacton &0 s 13674 25180 T 6a7
Power and wibsr supply 33 7T B 368 23EE 5023
Seafood 18 34 Fi] 5075 1 675
Hotels and restaurants -8=0 421 2528 11 BE
Agriculiure and forosiny G853 -] 2857 8553
Coertral mad (oAl Qovernmae 14 454 4B3 10870 =5 8T
Othae seclpn 32 8e 4 608 268 870 B4 562
Total customers, nominal amoent afer indeddual impadment 1534 458 80 297 E55 B 2177 585
= Collpchve imparment, cusiomars [2524) {2 B2y
& Ceher adjustments 1B 1_!9@!_
Loans to cusiomers 15M &2 £0 059 553 841 274 87D
Craddit instfutions, nominal arsunt afer inghaidual impaemang 207 450 8935 44 853 I 0ET
= Ofvad adjustments 7 T
Loans 1o and due from cradit stinmions 20T 45T B 03 46 652 F53 074

11 Loans and receivalies in e Baltics are reciazafpd bo aasels and Fabilles held for 2ale. See node 39 Azsels and labltves feld for sale. Guaraniees ang
unutiizad cradi fines include e Balics.

The breakdown inlo principal cusiomer groups cofresponds (o the EL's standard industrial classiScation, MACE Rev 2,
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Note 7 Loans and commitments according to geographical location

Loans and cammilmeants a3 at 31 December 2016 " DB Bark ASA
Loans ta mnd

Loans to  recesabies fom Unutifted  Totd loams and
Avneanta in NOW milon cirslomerts  credd instibulion Guaraniset erisc lna commEments
OCslo 140 810 o0 807 1618 258 544 #10 580
Eastern and scuthem Morway 183 45 ans 19 B4 24 231 37123
Western Haresy o e 4 o583 43 526 148 280
Herzheen ard coniral Nesway A0 62T 107 LR 34§25 150 845
Tetsl Norway 528 750 02 202 45950 470 425 1 207 328
Sweden £ 18A 39473 8354 11 a7 a2
United Kingdam 378 12899 2405 2817 121 579
Otner Wesison Europesn couniries 55 2a4 Bh 268 & 20 gt 11 152284
Russn a 4 a 15
Extania 2 2807 2 36m
Labvis W7 5504 478 ? 6331
Lichuania 2 &248 ETT 4 534
Polsnd ™ 10101 208 a 11088
Other Eastam European countries 0 a8t 58 m 1187
Total Eurcpe outsice Morway 11313 5 4T 15 367 8 817 431 B30
USA and Canads 2780 53551 14958 8077 77 377
Bawmuda snd Panama ' 17 148 %5 3P0 2384 23 503
Cther South snd Ceniral Amerkan countries 14 528 1 585 2788 1§15 20 194
Total Amarici 3485 55 202 21 154 10256 121 074
Sengupers 1742 17 685 1021 53z 21044
Hing Kong 1608 a7 2 1648
Oehar Agiam ountries 5 B33 B874 2788 15675 16 247
Tess! Asla 9184 24 307 3785 2188 39 535
Libern e 1842 718
Other Afrncean coundrias ki) i) 1] M 15
_Cxemmin 48102 27 383 138 343
Comenbments &l B 548 RO 59679 479 7R 1803 18
- Collagtive impairment (278N {2 787
+ Cithae adjeuirments aia 282 by 775
Het |oans R CommiTments B0 080 549003 3733 aTe e 1 807 179

1F Lownd and aeceivabies in it Baltics and e Baading (o eaets and & Bdling fedd o 3ade. S mole 33 Assets and Rabdbes hedd for saie Guannatees and
wauhibsed credl foes incivos the Babics
& Repr hipping ipans enal .

Based on the customer's address
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MNote 7 Loans and commitments according to geographical location (continued)
Loans and commilments as at 31 Decembar 2015 ONE Bank 454
Loans 1o and
Loanito  recenvables from Unutifsed  Total loans and

Asraunts in NOK i cuttamats _cradit insthutions Guaractes cract Bney  commllmerts
Cila 130 208 1407 1258 03 37T 598 518
Easteen and southesn Horway TR 4G 728 18 881 au.470 88 004
Westaen Morwy 102400 2443 BaTe 43 20 158524
Morthem and censal Norway 112822 Fh 3 085 33003 154 780
Total Moy 834 168 143 g2 48 649 B8 B8 1608 37
Swaden 55131 L] T8 17 008 o7 Bag
Urited Kingdom axn 148 621 2047 1884 157 825
Cithae Wsbern European countrias B9 285 204 007 4854 24 881 303 147
Rustin o0 " 4 ] 1)
Edtenia 3 L ] 1 T0%0
Lbeli oz £ 41 (= 2 7 R4S
Lithusnin =6 325 2l i 7568
Peland L] 12 108 124 183 13105
Cthee Eastern countriog 20 ] FL i 31 :311]
Toinl Europe outside Homway 138 848 480 328 16 623 44003 8053
L5 and Canada 6254 2 gt 16 398 13131 5 T80
Bermudn and Fanams 18128 132 2650 3000 T
CHfee South and Central Ametican courtries B2 4172 2635 3004 19 440
Total Amacica 34111 7 30 21 608 18 135 12 158
Singapors "' 2556 2 M 1852 27 385 6 226
Hong Kong 28k 153 2 2am
CHfe Ainn count B OS5 6071 3852 2385 0370
Total Axia 12 802 0 E15 5604 Z0 762 76 984
Libaria ' a4 1043 2asT
e Afican sounties 12 =4 & 548 108
Cicennia " 4g83 ) 183 1080 6334
Commitments T06 126 630 558 25 518 £3 484 2 384 ea7
= Golisetive impairmaent i 708) 18 7o)
+ O adjustments 1115 141 (185 1070
tiet lowns and commitments 705 533 830 700 95 130 53 46 2305 B

11 Repeesdnts sy ana Snd sommalimials

Based on the customar's address.
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Note 7 Loans and commitments according to gecgraphical location (continued)
Loans and commitments as at 31 Decomber 2016 " ONB Bank Group
Loans bo and

Leansbto  recesvables Fom Urubthised  Tolal lears and
Avrneunis in NOK milan Sulbamars  credd matibutiong Crusraniset chia fingy coTEnET ety
Onle g L] 8935 11454 01 067 strTz
Eastern and scuthem Norway 477 BEE 484 RLE-L ) 124 Bas G2 88
Western Nonway 191 158 x] 8588 B3 T2 BB
Hertham amd central Hossay 201 374 167 &80 42 530 2684 386
Toasd Morway 1188 437 7538 45832 437 814 1644 T8
Sweden w2 005 5173 8355 407 128 03l
United Kingdom 17 838 LRl 2510 16 360 105 334
Other Western European countries B4 428 B2 33N 5835 a6 5a7 203 881
Ruswn a 4 i 22
Entania ] -0 EEi] 473
Latvia 452 335 1424 227
LEhyaria £y T30 3683 4T
Palund 16 444 323 813 2355 18835
Other Eastam European countries 180 B3 288 % 1550
Total Eurcpe outsids Morway 304 978 157 232 16747 0 3 456 40
USA and Canada 43 g8g 1080 15953 &7 207 126838
Bemuda and Panama 5 m8 BS 3904 3628 33 g7
Ceher South and Central American countrins 18 128 1569 2281 A 687 26 685
Tokal Amenca o8 085 2745 23 148 75 533 188 510
Singapore 8 080 3% 1021 n? £ 857
Hong Kong 2628 37 180 2742
Other Asian couniet BETS 8614 2 768 1 9e8 16 042
Tekel Agig 17 B0 2690 3 THT 2388 I 742
Liberia * D478 1942 514 11 684
Othet Azmn couniries 535 SO0 o] i 1134
Crcoanin 18 34 277 Tt 4 588 2814
Comm Emeants 1454 778 W4 Tm 212 BO§ 122 2367 543
= Colinctie impairmant 14 441) [4481)
+ Ciher aciustments 1870 179 {455} )
Net |aafvs and commitmernts 1442 M8 174 00% @1 557 BOE 122 2364 £53

T Lednd aced recdnabiad ot e Balics ave riclpesfiod fo desefs snd bdived fadd G 2ive. Sew robe 50 Arsels and Babides hold for 2ale, Dok teed and
wndibzed credd foeg inciuge the Batics

2 FAepresents shipping leans snal comme moevaia

Based on the cuslomer's address
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MNote 7 Loans and commitments according to geographical location (continued)
Loans and commilments as al 31 December 2015 I Bk Group
Loans 1o and

Loansto  recenvables from Unutibted  Total loans and
Asrgsurits i WOK mafiaes cuslamads  crpdil ingtbutions Guararding crodt By carnmAraty
Chia 264 814 3158 125M 190:376 470829
Eastern and southsn Morsay 458 808 TE 14 881 115 B&2 83 ne
Westen Norway 161433 2443 LE s2410 254775
Northem and cental Horway 201 233 4 508t 30858 250 245
Total My 11162387 & 3467 46 548 438 275 1 8458 846
Swedon 78005 137 7318 EL Rk 123600
Lirited Kingdam 18 180 100 132 3534 17587 130 445
Cithae Wastermn Euwropean countries 101 056 178 045 Gaxa 4 T4 ¥
Rustia BIG o 4 § 12
Estenia 5044 1 10 184 5345
Lty 15 887 3 395 1451 17436
Lithusnin bl =] ] 844 33 =
Peland 1Te 164 724 3090 2182
Cthee Eastern countriog k] ] 252 &3 1 0eh
Total Europe outside Honway 264 873 278 28 18 627 6 841 851 122
LS4 and Canada 6218 o 17 048 B0 507 144 856
Bermudn and Fanams 2818 132 2685 5847 08
CHtver Seuith and Gentral Ametican courties 14 424 4177 2638 6 585 7 624
Total Amacica 80 8 ) 22 348 83 138 210778
Singapans " 13 607 a 1882 605 16 148
Hang Kong 3026 2 702 3817
CHhe Asinn couns 0 539 6072 3654 31453 73 958
Total Avis 2717 B3 5 B8 4 700 4 021
Libaria ' 943 1043 801 12 568
Other Akisn countries T¥5 ] 0 551 1733
Cicennia " fefei] s a2 4718 27 288
Commitments 153 480 267 408 88 23 800 523 2827 691
= Colleetyve impairman (2524) {2524
= Cener adjustments TETE 51 k] Pl
Mt [ans and commitments 1531 532 207 457 98034 800 52 2537 M7

11 Repeesdnts sy ana Snd sommalimials

Based on the customar's address.
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Note 8 Impaired loans and guarantees for principal customer groups "'?
DHE Bank ABA
Gross impared Total il Feat impained
loams and guanslses it loans and guananises
31 Dec. 3 Dec.  Dec. 31 Dec. 31 D 3 Dec,
Armounis in MOW mion e 25 2016 s 2018 2015
Peivate inchvickiale 1871 1833 787 ik ] 1074 LR Fy
Transportation by sea and pipeines. and
veveed cemiruclion 357 2454 [1436) fnors 2061 1370
Raal estatn 1787 1782 L] (658) 1223 LR
Manuhstturing 3 5ag 1208 {1 181y L] 2405 600
Serdites 1483 - (BB (-] M 2
Trade 1098 747 37 (362 b s
it and gas. 4 368 744 EL ]
Transpartabion and commumcation 33 T 1303 @) 2138 4B
Buiiding and construction 1178 S el ] [red: ] i3] 3By
Powrer and wakor supply | 385 1% iTE) [1] 34
Epafiood g1 1] (g 1] a4 B
Hobels and restsurants L] B4 [ierd] {h ko 35
Agriculture and forestry S0 "I i) ) 2 a7
Cenval and local govemmant o LA B Q T
Cither seclon -] ] L] 1] 4 hi‘]
Tokal customers 22389 11038 (7 64Ty 4815 14843 6223
Crichil it
Totsl impaited loans and guarantees 22389 11038 (7 B47) 815 14 843 83223
Hon-performing loans and geanniees
ek dulbject Lo e pairant 1883 1582 1853 1 582
Totsl non-performing and impaked
loang and guaranbiss 34 M2 12618 {7 547} 4815 16 788 78
DNE Bank Group
Gross irmpainsd Total indivicasl Mat impaired
knans and guaranbesy v | et lpare and LA B
3t Dec 3 Dec. 31 Dec 31 Dec. 31 Dec 31 Dec
Areants in MOK mifan HHE 25 a0g e 2018 a5
Privale indhviduals 3894 4 502 1607 {1 Ba1) 228 2 81
Transporintion bry sea and papeines and
wirssel construction 4885 EL (2 247} (16209 2748 2 0ah
Real estato 2780 ATie B (1 42y 1828 2280
Manufacturing 5800 2643 {1 Ba4) 1y 3085 1530
Shrites 1508 BET LELE] (583 ET 358
Trade 1288 /77 (RES) =] T80 78
il and gas 4 368 744) ]
Transporiation and communication 558 185 {1 62N (FI5) J005 (]
Berlcing and construction 1445 1920 BET (550 a8 470
Pareres and walnr supply Bag 54 {154 [E | IEE ni
Seafcod &1 13 (L] Fi:3] a4 &
Heteiy and restaurants 10 167 43 (45) E1 18
Agriculture and forestry 157 172 {500 (=] oy e
Cenfral and locsl govemmant ] " i) {H a 7
Cthor sectors 23 128 {800 [1:F4] -] 34
Totad customars 32 480 20184 111 1285 (8 B5E) 21323 15
Cretimytinons
Teokal impaired ant and guaranbies 32450 0184 11128 18 885 2133 1519
Hon-performing loans snd geannises
NGk Jubect to mpaisment 4 330 2461 & 330 < 481
Total non-parforming and impained
_laang and guarantess 38 770 2 645 (11 125 (8 585) 25 Gad 3 480
1F Incfudes doans and g s sbpect fo mdhadiual umpar ! ancl fotal pon-pecforming Eans and guaranteed aol 2olyect bo impalrmed, The brsakdown o
principal cuslomer gRoups conespands (o the ELTE fare destrial oo n, RACE Rav 2

2 The ONA Bank Group figure inchades volurmss in the Babics, mclzentisn sr assels bald for sele in Aupust 2048, of which nat pon-pardonming and e dowbtil
et @0g e dens fotalied NOR 2 258 miflon o end: Decormber
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MNote 9 Impairment of loans and guarantees
ONE Bank ABA
018 2015
Aumounts in MOK milfion l.ﬂl-_nlll' Guaranbess Totsl Loans  Guarastess Tokal
Wirte-ofis (87 {B7 N (1.407) {1.407)
Hmmfinereased indnidual impalment {3 835) (4204 {4 D80} 2 20 [AELT {208
Total nawhnedsased rdhddeel impamend {471y 420y (5 133 (3 B12) (129} {3 73y
Roasvetaed ndividual irp o p FeArs Sl T4 ala 500 a2 872
Rpcowerian on losns and guaramtess previowsly vriten off” -1 G57 1716 1 M6
Mok individual impairment {3 218 (348 (3 BE) 01 30 (a0 41348}
Changes in collective impaimint of loans {1117 {117} {23 {202
impairment of loans and guaraniees 14 338 iy {8 67) {1 509) (a0} 1 dam
Wy 2o el By [t chul @i fddi
in pravious years 1278 1278 2463 24e3
O#HBE Bank Group
X018 015
Aumounts in NOK milfion Loans|  Guaranbess Total Loans |  Guarartess Toknl
Wrke-ofs {1 355) (8" -] 1 448 i1 448
Fbtren siedd inchvichial impakinent 15 4801 (420 (5 101 (3 165) 124 43 TRA)
Total newk d individial inpaimment 18 Bag 420y (7 2580 81 (130 1 T35)
Reansesyed individiral impairment 213 ki ] &a0 -] Lh: ]
Focaviries on lodns and guarantess pmmr“wrilmnﬂ"" o] 52k 1 TaZ 1 T
el individual Imnpainment {4837 (B4} (5 70 (1879 (36 {2015
Changes in cellacte impainon ol laans {2 144) (2 144) (255 [255)
_imipairmeent of loans and guaraniees {7 DAy (34} (7 434) (2 734) 136} {2 370y
Wilribe-offs cowared by indvidusl mpairment made
in prEviOUT year: ZE03 2803 3748 1] 3748

1§ including impairment of loans af feir valve.
A Reoovenar in 2015 and 2078 fangedy sefiscted dhe sfipcts of the sgmement valh Linooed Caplal A5 om the saie of partiokos of novspedorming foans in Morsiy,
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Note 10 Impairment of loans and guarantees for principal customer groups

DHE Bank AEA
2016 2HE
Tormana s (N RoOni e o0
T el ke s
Hew Fepsued T e Rempasinsd U e
el Fulreaioll [y el il el Sy taal
Aty 8 HOK Mo AT M et retheen it ! LT | Fnpas et Mgt wenthir o " el
Private indhviduals (B81) b rd 210 368 N8} a8 1 B2 1042
Trantpariation by te8 and pipsinet
and vessed consruction {1 004 4 12 it ] (e} "7 1 {7a7)
Roal estate {tad) T 12 {87 {237) plF] 2 {133
Manutacturing (B81) 23 1 (TEE) {773 nur 12 B4
Spreices 5] 4% 1 (IR {145} 41 17 &7}
Trade (128 4ZF L {78 218} &1 8 {180}
Oil and gax: (T18) 1] L] fap o
Transportation and communication IR 1] 3 [} {245} £3 24 {Lsa)
Boiding and coniFuction (287 47 2 (253) (A0 m 25 {305}
Poerad andd wake! suppiy Fl £ g B &0 Q 1 58y
Soakod {1 1 o = ]] dil L] &1
Htels and resteurants in ] 1 & (18] T 1 o
igricutiure snd foreshry k] 4 1] 11 111 Lk 2 &
Central and local govammant fix] o i} ) la] 1] iy
Other sectors 1 o o {1 {123 1 a {123)
Tetal custeenary 15 133 B4 j=r (3 563 (3 T &72 1715 {1 248
CroditimtiuSons
Ghanges in coliective mparmant of lsams (117N {282
Irmpatrmend of 1oans and guarantes (5 133 A4 57 4 678) {3 TN L 1715 {1 638}
e wohie iy draghraiuad impa el
of guarentess {0 T (8 (124 az ol
OHE Bank Group
poehf] 25
iy i O [ TR
Vo sl foans and
Mg Faesiesied (psrarke e M [ L
il Pl Uy Hipd [t A Al [ =T Hewt
Arvscery i NOW mifiEs Hi i g mitles it mparm e FTpaTTsl reflarnf e ek
Private indwiduals (B4E) o uz 58 {EE} 168 142 866
Tranaporiaticn by 1ss and pipalines
and vt construction 1 BAE) 82 12 1 469) i1 0Ty 138 1 {BEs)
Roal eibate [Z??] 180 14 33 {344} 440 3 {202
Manuhactunng 01 256) 153 2 i1 104) {8 154 12 {7186}
Serviced (Tl 158 ] (181 {165} L] iE3 (&
Trade (R 211 53 12 {82 125N & Ll {155)
Ol and gas 1301 o L] m ]
Transporintion and commundcation 1 554 kL 4 (1642 -] E5 4 {50}
Buieing and cenruction (328 55 4 (285) (422) 87 i )
Porerte and waler wupply (148 52 4 4900 (&) 1 1 =
Seatood L] 1 0 [ @ A4 0 a
Hotels and restsurants " T 1 ] 21} a 1 1y
igricutture and forestry {3 raf 1] ) [Fad] k3 3 i}
Contral and bocsl govsmmant ]} 1] lia} oy a a oy
Otner sectons [ 2 0 1 {124} 2 0 {121}
Tekal cutbomers 7 2659 90 o = 280 i TG} ara 1742 {203)
Crodil insttufion
Changes in collective impairmant of loars (2 fdd) {265}
Inspairmend af lasna and guaraniees (7 %) L[] ] (¥ a2d) i Tk5) Sre 1743 {2370
O wihizh rdiicidual snpasmat
of guansnbess 200 - [ (124 &8 (el

h  Recavorms in 2015 and 2016 bugely rellacted the sffects of the sgresment vith Lindadf Captal AS an (e sake of portfalos of pan-perfarmng lbang in Nerway.

The breakdowsn inko principal cuslomer groups camesponds fo the EUPs standard indusirial classification. NACE Rev.2.
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MNote 11 Developments in impairment of loans and guarantees

DHE Bank ABA
2016 s
Loans 1o Loans to
fi -1 Leans to aredd Leans to
Amounts in MoK mifon nafusent T Gummaniset Tl arelibuf: $ T Gusranleet Total
Imparment ot ot 1 January B 7TH (178 (& §55) (7 853) {134 {7 Tas)
s impair et (2833 lcT] (323 15500 {121 {1871}
Incraated impairmant {1 006 {im €1 a3 (L2 ] V] {854}
Fonmusrssed Fmpaiimant E40 74 Bl4 =] a2 arnz
Vilriog- oy cornrnd by prendcus impaiemant 12m 1278 a8y 2483
Changet in indhwidunl impairmant af
azerund inbereal and amorntization - | k-]
Changet in colegtag impaismaem 11y AR (2931 {283y
Chmnpit dud 19 fechdh pb b Mgy 11 14} 07 a7 = T4
Impaiment a3 at 31 December (2808 [rra] (10 334 & TTE {178) (o eeby
Wwhich'  Inghadlusl imppirrment (5 8L a2E) (7173 (4 835 {178} [T
inainidusl impaimmint of adcred
wtenest and amortzalion [EEER] =74 (63 430
Colwctivn impaimmnt 2 T8T {2 787 0 70% i1 ToEy
DNB Bank Group
o[ 2018
Loans 1o Loans to
ernct Leant to enpdd Leans to
Ameainds i WO i mabiubong L] G 128 Total il cusinmars D dimas Totsl
ieparment 8t at 1 Jenuary {11 664) (161} {11 B45} 411 {12 $64) {143 (12 B8y
Wi inipaarTised “0mn 03 (4415} [ranm (124) 1 Badp
Inerpated impmrmant (1476 {17} (A ] 11 29%) o i1 35
Heascessed impakment 1% TE BaG L] a B
Wirite-offs covered by previcus impairmant 280k 2803 1 3748 1] a7ag
Changes in indeddual mpairmant af
accnsed interest and amortisation | 3
Ehaniok in col (e ——— (2 184) (2 14} (255) {3=5)
Baltict, recataified st aviety hald for wale 168 1649
Changet dus 1o emchangs tale movemed 2 (4] 368 (7] i [l
Impaimant 8% ol 31 Decembar 13 581) (ST {14 070y {11 6841 {16} (11 S5
Of whizh:  Inahidusl impeimment 1B 5667 (825 [4deT 2 484) {181) B 8e5)
ingivichanl impaimoent of ecorued
wfanpl and amanizalion {484) {=h5H4) (855 155E)
Coliect e impaimenat (4 81 4 481) (2 524) {2 E2d)
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Note 12 Market risk

Conditions for calculating market risk

Marked sk [5 the risk of losses or reduced fulure income due bo fuctuations In market prices of exchange rates. The rsk arises as a conse-
quence of the bank's unhedged trans aclions and exposure in the foreign exchange, property, interest rate, commodity, credit and eguity
markeds, The nsk level reflects market prce volalility and the positions laken

The DHE Bank Group quantifies msk by caleulaling economic capial for indivddual risk categonias and for the DNE Bank Group's overall nsk, ses
nobe 4 Risk monagement. Econormic capital Tor marked risk should, ol o confidente level of 59,97 per cenl, cover ol pofentinf losses relpted 1o
marked sk, The model has @ one-year ime hoizon. Exposure included in the model could be either actusd exposure or limils and is

a consenative estimate where the Group s assumed to be incomectly positioned ralathe 1o market developments,

Economic capital for the nsk calegories is calculated on the basis of expecied developments in the value of an assel class of risk factor. To
eslimate annual losses, the value of each underying instrument is simulated over 8 period of one year. Subseguend 1o this, lossas for each
potentinl realisabion period are esimated

Economic capital for market isk in operalions cther (han life nsurance was HOK 6.0 bilon &l year-end 2015, on a level with & yesr earier. Risk
exposure for the varkous markel risk calegonies was vifually unchanged compared with end-December 2015,

Note 13 Interest rate sensitivity

Interest rate sensitivity for different time intervals

The value of lems on and off the balance sheel is affecied by interest rate movements. The lable shows potentiad losses for the

DMNE Bank Group excluding Ballics and Pokand resulling from paralled one percentage point changes in all interest rates. The calzulations
are based on a hypothetical siluation where interest rale movements in all cumencies are unfevowrable for the DHNE Bank Group relative to
the bank's positbens. Also, all interest rate movements within the same interval will be untavourable for the banking group. The figures will
thus reflect maximum fosses fof the DNE Bank Group

The calculations are based on the banking group's positions as al 31 December and market rates on the same date. The table does nol include
adrmanistrative interest rale sk and interest rete sk tied 19 non-nterest-=aming assels

DHE Bank Group

From Erom From
Up b 1 months 3 months. 1 yoar Crepr
Armoynts in MoK millan 1 month o 3 monihe to f e o Syt S yeary Tokal
3 December 2016
HOK A 162 27 TS 653 22T
usn a1 fl 57 18 a2 178
EUR 2 3 n 2 o0 2
GEP 2 k] 1" & 1 55
SEK 15 L] 36 xn 2 a8
Crhar currencieg ] 5 35 # 18 55
31 Decembber 2015
MO T ¥ 248 gy 430 il
usn 1 o 7 v} 3 &
EUR s] - T4 % 12 a
GEP ] F. 3 20 4 2 1
SER a8 F-) 21 4 1 L]
Cenor curencies 19 20 33 a 17 &0

1 The figures oo ool nokde (he apartans ot Baldes end Poling ard ane for i rost dentical for ONE Bank ASA
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MNote 14 Currency positions

The table shows net currency positions as at 31 Decernber, including financial derivatives as defined by Norges Bank. Net pasiions in indiidual
currencies may represent up bo 15 per cent of eliphie primary capdal. Aggregate currency positions must be within 30 per cent of elighle
primery capital. Foreign exchange nisk refabed 1o imvestments in subsidisnies is included in the currency position by the amount recorded in the
accounts

CHB Bank ABA OB Bank Group
Mot cumency postions Mt cuimancy positions
31 Des 31 D 31 Dat. 31 Dws
2015 2016 Armounts in NO¥, mllan 2016 2015
ks 10T uso 1 058 (i<
{177} {30 R (5117 R L]
3 {m GRp (18 16

(38 0 SEK 18 (5221}
Ll 0 D 20 (45}

F 14 CHF 14 i

(3 4 JPY L] (1
1is 121 Dthet 122 taf

3 g14 Totsl foresign currencies 16 T

MNote 15 Financial derivatives

General infarmation on application of financial derivatives

Fimanchal demvalives are contracts stipulating inancisl values in the form of inberest rale tenms, exchange rates and the value of egquty
Instruments for fived peniods of time. Comesponding contracts stipulating prices on commadiies and indextes are also defined as financial
derivatives. Derivatives inciude swaps, forward contracts and oplions as well as combineations theredl, including forwend rate agreements
(FRAS), financial fulures and agresrents on the transfer of securiies, Fenancial derivalives i the DNE Bank Group are iraded 1o msnhage
liquidity and market rigk arsing from the banking group’s ardinary operalions. bn addilion, the banking group employs fnancial derdvatives
In its own account trading,

“Cwer the counter” (OTC) derhvalives are contracts entered inlo cutside an exchange The confracts are tailor-made according lo investor
requirsments with respect to the undertying object, quantity, price, expiration termms and maturity. The advaniage of OTC denvatives |s that
custamers are not limfed Lo standandised condracts and can buy Ihe precise poesition they wish, The disadvaniage compared wilh the
standardised market is that it can be difficult to find cther conlracting parties and o sefl the contracts in the secondary market.

The following dervatives are employed for both irading ond hedging purposes in the DNE Bank Group:

»  Forward confracts: a confract to buy or sell intevest rate terms, amounts in foreign currencies, shares of commaodibies on a specified fulure
date ala fixed price. Forward conlracts are [ador-made conlracls raded bebween counlerparties in the OTC market.

*  FRAs agreements thal fix the interest rate for a futire period for an agreed amount. When the contract matures, only the dfference
between ihe agreed interest rate and the aclual markel imerest rale 5 sxchanged

= Ipterestrafe Advees: slandardised coniracts whene the counterpaies agree to exchange specific interest rate instruments at & fxed price
of & specified dete. The contracls ade lraded on an exchange. The value of inferast rate fulures Bollows the price trend on underhing
nteresd rabe msinements.
* Swaps ensactions whers bwo paries exchengs cash Bows on a fixed amount over an agreed period. The majedty of swaps sre talor-
made and iraded cutside exchanges. The mosl important lypes of swaps traded by DNB are:
Inerest rate swaps in which fiwed interest rates are exchanped for fcating rates or Scabing rates are exchanged for fived rates
crogs-cumency inbaresl rte swaps in which pomties sxchange both currency and inleres! payments
equity swaps in which inferest rale returns are exchanged for equity relums
*  Options agreements ghing the buyer the Aght, but nol the cbligation, 1o ether buy (call oplion) or seil (pul option) & specific guantity of a
financzal instrument or commedity 8% a predetermined and fixed price. The buyer pays a premium to the sefler for This right, Oplions are
tragded bath as OTCs (tallor-made) and &5 stendardised conlracts
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Note 15 Financial derivatives (continued)

The tables show nominel values on fnancial derivatives according to type of dervative s well as positive end negalive marnet values. Positive
markel values are enfered a5 assets in the balance sheel, whereas negabive markel values are enlersd as labilities. See nole 1 Accounting
principles for a more datalled description of measurement of financial derivatives,

DNE Bank ABA
3f Decomber 2HE 31 Decamber 2015
Totnl Podie lagatve Totnl Porbris Hegahve
naomirsl kst marks naménal minrkat sk it
Amcunts in MO milan waheps warlus ki wakies value wakin
Intarasl rale conlracts
FAA-contracts BEH 843 415 83 2 aT8 T 130 1282
Swmpt 3ngorz &5 127 TRTIE 3328 569 100 387 B3 133
OTC optiens 44 508 787 725 4273 241 634
Dthar OTC eoniracty 1 Eav 2438
Totasd inberest rate cortracis & 025 632 B8 258 T i 5 653 042 102 386 565 038
Foralgn exchange conlracts
Fenward contracts 79 483 28688 ¥ 135 117 608 f480 B
ESwapi 1 658 372 41 NT B0 058 2208 B17 AT D78 58 501
DTC sptions 32 887 533 330 150 208 TEE s10
Tebal oxchangs coniracty 16811431 a1 430 BE 513 2518 634 57268 101 332
Equity-relafed contracts
Forwasd contracts 2087 2168 t 628 T s 1 585 e
OTC options 2104 153 2z a2 g2 10
Total DTC dorivatives 4161 & 318 530 AL 1678 il
Futanin Tz o BT W 108
_Opony 4573 106 7 T L) a7
Total puchange-taded cortracts 5 305 108 7T 5 B9 118 174
Toesl souity-rainted contraces 9 466 4% 1 807 14210 1767 550
Commodity-related contracts
Swaph ] 682 3 543 73R 2485 5542 6376
Tkl commdity refated contrasts ] 682 3 542 2 T3l 2 diES S 5T 6376
Collateral pledgedirecelved
Total colateral plecgedirecervad 3612 38072 46817 =211
Total inancial derivalives 5 877 101 1 M7 181 il A r 13 TaF 0S8
Of which: Appled for hedge sccounting 157 Ol 1835 1189 147 808 12405 f.n ]
- bnlarot rate Swaps FLa o s 11618 e
- Crags-curwicy infive sl fade nwaps ez 45 785 508
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Note 15 Financial derivatives (continued)
OHB Bark Group
3 December 2016 31 Dwcernber 2015
Total Poitres Hegatve Total Paitive Negatron
merninal et matkat nominal marksl rarket
Ameurty i NOK malfan wvaluss winlia valus i b o] il L
Interast rate coniracts
FRA-comirachs BEE 3 415 363 2378 037 1310 1 2
Swaps 2 TTT 620 83 100 G Z B3 501 87 G40 &8 TG
OTC optens &5 gl 57 i) 42 485 44T (=0
Othee OTC contracts 1 687 48
Tiotal inerast rate eonl 3 B2 448 84 380 40 584 5 288 781 93 545 5B E18
Faraelgn exchange contracts
Forwand contracts i) mT 1126 118 B0 458 1
Swapn 1 340 007 3080 A48 &7 1822 008 al 285 a3
_OTE options 12 97 533 30 160208 780 510
Total fermign sxchange contracty 1 4632 83 34 141 49928 2131110 48 572 42170
Equity-related coniracis
Forwird contracts 2057 2158 1520 T BBG 1 586 T
DTG opthons 2104 163 2 B2 a2 a0
Total OTC derieatives & 151 2 318 1530 aTia 1 478 -
Futures Ta2 o 2887 T8 108
_Optiend 4573 108 Fid 2785 X T4
Total sxchange-traded contracts 5305 ] v 5 &03 118 174
_Totel pauity-telated coniractt L] 2425 1807 td 410 1787 S0
Commodity-reated contracts
_Swaps 30 475 3841 07 28 486 5 B4 5ATE
_Total commodity related contracts 30473 3641 2 707 24 486 5 B42 LT
Collateral pledgedirecelved
_Tetal cobateal pladgedireceied 33570 ® 756 887 308 155
Tt Finsmncial isrivativis 5104 6 157 057 130 400 T Ad0 TRT M3 373 154 878
Of which AppFed for hedge accounting A55 134 33038 2105 ATH 261 3T 534
= Irbarest rate swaps 327 1 546 Aty LF i
« Crous-curmency inferest sl saeps T2 [ s S8

Use of financial derivatives in Markets

Markels acls os markel maker and i$ obliged to furnish both offer and bid prices for specified oplion, fondard of fulures sefies wilh a madimum
differantial between the offer and bid price, together with & minimum volume. Market makers atways trade for their cwn account. The purpose of
owh account rading, in addilion to being & market maker, is position taking, which means intenlional nsk-aking within the foreign exchange,
Inferest rate and equity marcets te achieve profits ansing from favourable price, exchange rale and index fluctuations. Arbdrage, that is profit
taking from Suctuations in prices, exchangs rales and indsces for the seme product in variows markets, is also part of ocwn-account trading.

Cusiomer irading enteils fructuring and markeling financial derrealives for customens, enabling thiem to iransfier. modify, take of reduce
prevading or expecied risk. The majority of derivative transactions relale 1o cusiomer rading.

Thie DNE Bank Group uses inberast rale and cuffanty Swaps 1o convert farelgn currency Borowangs inte ihe desired currency. As & byplcal
eiample, the bank raises o 1oan in eurg, which is swapped 1o US doflers through o basis swap. In this case, the bank will pay @ US dollar
Imlerest rale based on & Swap cure and receie & surd inleredd rabe reduced or inchreased by & margin, These deshalhves are camed at
foir vaiue. There may be significant varations in the value of the basis swaps from day [o day, due bo changes in basis swap spreads. This
unhedged risk causes unrealised gains and losses. For the year 2016, these was a NOK 542 milkon decrease in value (negalive effect on
prafits), comparnad with a NOK 2 685 malion increass in valwse in 2015,

Use of financial derivatives in DNB Boligkreditt
The purpose of empioying financial derivatives in DNE Boligireditt i to wncoves and reduce foreign exchangs and interest rate risk,

Risk related to financial derivatives

Dervalives are traded in porffolios which also include balance sheel products. The markel Ask on derivatives is handed. monilored and
conlrolled a5 an integral parl of the market nsk of these portfolics. See noles 4 Risk management and 12 Market risk. Dermafives are traded
wilh many different counterparties and most of these are also engaged in other types of business with DNB. The credi risk ansing in conneclion
with dertvatives tradng is included in the tofal credil rsk of the DNE Bank Group. Netling agresments or bilalerad agreements on collaterad are
entered into with & number of counterparties, thus reducing credt risk. The authorities’ capital adeguacy requirements take into accéount such
apgreaments, resulting in a reduction of capiai adequacy requirements, See nole 5 Credt risk for 8 description of cownt er-party risk.
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Note 16 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk thal the DNE Bank Group will be unable to mee! its payment chisgations, Chearal liquidity management in the banking
group implies that DNE Bank ASA is responsible for funding domestic and international group entities. Liguidity risk is managed and measured
by means of various measurement techniques.

The Board of Directors has approved intemal Bmids which resitict the shod-term malurity of lisbilies within &fferent bme frames. The varkcus
migturiiies ane subject to stress tesling based on o bank-specific erists, & systemie ensis and a combnabion thersod, and & continpency plan has
been eslabinhed to hande marked events, In addtion, lirmds have been set for struchral Bquidity risk, which imples that lending (o cusiomers
should largely be financed through customer deposits, subordinated capilal and longterm funding, Ordinary seniorbond debt and covered
ponds ane the major scurces of long-tenm funding. The benking group’s ratio of deposits to net loans was 534 per cenl 81 end-December 2016,
up from 62 5 per cenl & year saier, The rafio of deposits to nel leans in DMB Bank ASA was 133.4 pef cenl ol end-December 2016

Throughout 2016, the shor-lerm funding markets were chamderised by uncertainty related tathe effects of new regulatory refomis for US
money market funds. The limited avaiability of longer maturities in combination with increased demand led to wider spreads. OB had ample
necess bo shortderm funding throughout the year

Thie long-term funding markels were characterised by regulatory and palitical uncenainty in 2016 Concems related to the Chinese sconomy
and & weaker growth cullook Tor Europesn banks led 1o higher spreads and lowes sclivily of the beginning of the year. Sprands were markedly
reduced after the European Central Bank meeting in March, where, ameng other things. the asset purchase programme was further expanded.
The level of gelivity declined towards (he summer &3 the EU referendum in the UK was appeoaching. Ater the vole markels normalised and
spreads decreased, The acthvily bewel was once again down ahead of the US presidential election, bul increased markedly aft erwards, Concerns
related 1o & potential reduction in the ECB's assel purchase prograsmeme resulled in wider spreads towards the end of the year.

The shodslerm Bguidily requirement, Liquidily Coverage Ralio (LCR), remained steble ol above 100 per cent throughout the quarter, A end-
December, the lotal LCR was 138 per cend, with an LCR of 562 per cenl for EUR, 150 per cent for USD and 58 per cont for NOE

The average remeining Teem o maturity for the portfolio of senior bond debt and coversd bonds was 3.9 years sl end-December 2016, up fram
3.8 o year earlier, The DMNE Group aims o maintain a sound and sfable malurity structune fior funding over the nexdt five years,
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MNote 16 Liguidity risk {continued)

Residual malurity as &t 31 Decamber 2016 " ONE Bank ASA
From From From
Upta 1 manth 3 menhg 1 year Char Mo fwad

Arurits i WO o 1 rzerith o 3 mgitha Lo 1 yasr b3 5 A S e sty Teasl
Assots

Cash and deposis with centrl banky 207 823 11 0T ga4
Crue from credid sShaticns 203711 TH XS 18 388 240118 T 557 540 024
Lioans o cusionasrs 185852 B B 51872 185 850 183 883 278N e ans
Cormmertial paper and bonds 81 i value 4247 T G0 36 Ted 152121 FaRicl frarc B -
Cormmsscinl paper and bandy hald o malurly a8 1M e 13 TeQ
Sharsholdngs 124 ang 124 408
Cithee assets ang any
Total E75 828 174 4498 115 545 BEA 113 A0 416 121 818 1 811 BoR
Liabliities

Cuii 1o crodl mitibiont 213276 &0 T35 41800 244802 2 33 705
Deprotin fom cuslomeny PIOEET 920 557
Dbt secunties inwed 84 02a &3 eal B4 351 LFaR!ind 18 485 320 e
(Othaer Tablities wlc. 1574 F 602 4 G40
&" i ol ujlﬂ 1 B 17 287 738 28 10z
Tatal 1208 430 127 417 1086 15 163 771 19 239 165172

Financiall derivatives
Firancial dervatves, gross seiemant

Incoming cash flows 477 580 s 280 383 674 T5E 342 803 1215 083
Outgoeng cash fows 47308 250 Tay X5 182 B 500 356 Tob 1 S5% Bl
Fi i darvalheas, not Lalt L 187 1474 (E11) 4 180 805 5745
Tetal Bnancial derbatives 1961 733 3 2e0 (7 5550 {13 10) (14 17H
Rasidual maturity as at 31 December 2015 " ONE Bank ASA
From From From
Upto 1 month A monfhs 1 ymar Chomer Mo fxed
Asmunts i MOH mllas 1 saith 8 3 mahs ba 1 yiar b 5 yirk S ybiid ity Tetal
Assels
Cash and depoufts with central benks 16004 165004
e from credi mstubons 252882 158 234 18857 1Tz ETE8 2]
Loans fo- customen 160 145 T EM 71842 A pes 187 268 1708 05137
Commercial paper and bands #1 falr value 3009 d424 24 005 142 558 BN 200 TiE
Commestial paper and bonds, held to maturty 1685 17 487 18162
Sharehobdngs 150 304 150 30
Cithav assebs S 064 058
ol 41245 zpaes 118805 E3vess 264345 126884 1715182
Liablfities
Coue 1o credit insttutions 184 533 32 dEl a142 AT 474 52 M6
Deposits fom customers BEE 223 Bl 223
Dot seourities isswed m\mrn 100 878 E R 15322 L] 3N e
Chthas labdites stc. 805 34T 28 & B0
_Subordinated loan capks PRl 731 30482
Tetal 11172 136840 45 8§11 22320 1270 1524 332

Financial derivatives
Firanciad dervatihas, gross setismant

incoming cash fows 676382 455 676 a7 B4 Baa1E A7a 357 FaTaods

Cutgoing cath lowe 674088 4hy TE2 bo T ] B45 963 3067 810 2 B0 M0
Firancial deivativoes, not ssifsmsnt 536 1 141 37as 2108 ¥ B4
Tetnl Brancial dervatvas 2872 2375 (405} (22 330 (17 093 (34581}
T Newwral fuune ideract paymanes i dacses of o ind ani el sl o fhr Bl show date
Cradit lines, commitments and documentary eredit DNE Bank ABA

31 Dec. 31 Des

Amgunts i MOK malfan Pt s
Wrntifrund crid®l krvirk o, under 1 year nIeeT 3 837
Wrntiiund crivd® et ofc over | year BT 495 115 956
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Note 16 Liquidity risk (continued)

Residual maturity as of 31 Decomber 2016 ONB Bank Group
From From From
Upta 1 maonth I monlhs 1 yoar Chear M fwed

Amaunis in NOK milan 1menth 1o 3 months t B et b By S ymarg malusrty Tebal
Assels

Cash and deposits with central banks 208 252 1" 4 263
Duws from credit inslitutions 120 G 42 484 5270 716 17 gl
Loars 1o customaees 180 074 a2 243 78533 o e 24 BB 4 481} 1 483 151
Commearcial pager and bond al fer value SN \oaT 32070 151 198 20678 8 25T
Cemmurcial paper and bandh, hadd o matunity 9 11EM 12 T80
Shareholdngs L] Bvre
Other sveely 3217 N7
Teotsl 513 B8 147 031 116 884 480 508 BET 024 L] 2 120 300
Liabdlitles

Dhie B credd indlflutent 137 S 3 EIS s 28125 Fal -
Depasits from cusbormen: 245 507 BG5BT
Dbt secwiitios maued Tim3 &1 TS 104 188 &0 1 B9 2 TADDIE
Other Robiites e 1574 880 276 730
Suberdinnied bosn capial 40 g=g 17 487 T = 102
Tetsl 1158 068 100 oes 127 383 T A0 a8 533 1837 940

Financial derivatives
Fnancial derrvatives, gross setisment

Incoming cash Bows 458 o83 d 167 247 851 0@ M0y 231 The 1664 182

Owitgoing cash Sows 456 Baa i 1 2a8 30 404 MEE 25 0T7 1674 070
Finneial dacreaties, mat Lotiamen 1 074 2357 3434 20520 5198 8 ¥
Tedal banncisl dervalived 3 33 (65} 2 DEg 4184 Iy 13 488
Rosidual maturily 25 o 31 December 2015 ' DNB Bank Group

From From From
Upho 1 month 3 monthes 1 yoar Cvar Mo fxed

Armeunts in NOK milfan 1 meth 163 months ol yési  to5yean & yhars nabirity Tokal
ALgals
Cash and deposis with central banks 18317 1617
Brus froen cradit inslitutions 184 B33 102 83e 4344 2046 3T 2B/ 4Ty
‘Loars to customars 182 FE0 104 616 =yl 335774 a1 ear i E24) 1532104
Commercial paper and bonds at T value 1608 8435 4 B 140115 33 53 206 620
Commencial paper and bands, held o msturity T ERG 17467 18 162
Sharsholdings 14 140 14 el
Cithar ssads 3064 3058
Tl 3|z 17035 1IR4S3  ATEEMD  B6GE7O 11618 2091881
Liabdlities
Drus bo cred® ineStutions 123 66 21 489 L 1547 kT P81 5T
Deposits from customerns a57 069 BST 058
Dbt securiss meued J1: Fan} | B0 71670 &34 553 B 114 TR R
Othor Rakiitrs oic =01 RE: L 2m 4 GBf
Sabesdinaby loan eapdal 20732 K] 30453
Tokal 1140 ET1 taf 253 T2578 4TH 7O BE BH2 1 929 i

Finamecial derivatives
Financial derwatives, gross saitismant

Incoming cash Bows BEY 848 432 278 S aTE 437 103 ek e -] 2112222
Cutgeing canh Sowa BE0 564 430079 RATR:w ] ER{-1-211 206 o0 21T
Financial desvathves et sobiamst 1 7E7 2158 3605 21 552 124357 41 587
Total francial denvalieas A B 4 353 2 754 BE1D 10 &0 3182
1 Ak i fufinie Fafinmar D i o daopas of of g gt g udieel
Cradit lines, commiiments and documeniary credit DNE Bank Group
M D 31 Dex.
Armeunts in O mlian 2018 s
Unusied cosdE Bnes ofc. undar 1 yoar 390001 /009
Unusilined chisit Bnes o8 over 1 yoar 218 195 e 267
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Note 17 Net interest income

ONE Bank ABA
018 2015
Ascorded R cetiad Recorded oo ded
ol far ot amorined ok fair l:nwﬂn_!i
Ampunts in MOK mion walon cont Teotal vakis eont Tetal
berdal on amounts dus Bom credit ntbliSent 2074 1804 2879 2 0B 1754 A6
Inbeast on loans o cutamert [ 22857 Fal m 25 004 25975
Interest on mpaired loans and gu "0 812 L 17 il 453
Inbernst on commercinl pape and bonds ot falr valee £ 457 4 457 4 B0 4 gt
Intesest on commicinl papes and bonds, held to matusing 173 173 LiE] 314
Froet-and Mat ot 1 254 260 3 =0 o)
Cithae infaresd mosme {2 334) 4 M5 2385 (1 s 4595 2 E0G
Total Intenest income 4042 3013 35 163 957 32 30 A8 15T
Inberost on amounts cee 1o cred® insfuSons {1858 (180 (259 01 372) (187 {1 £58)
Interast on depoatts fom cottomisrs (58T {5 B0y [{:ra ] (48T {8788y {8 202y
Inberost on deb wecwnties msued [RE:Fril {1 850 (3 Bl {1475 {160 ) 2078
ribsidl o subandinabid hann cagial (35) (483 (E2m {38 (530 1588
Guarantes hind by =] Rt =] LT
Cthes intires sxpanes 2385 (581} 1804 1480 (355 1094
Total Interest axperies 11987 9 558} {11 555 {1 832 [AFRL] {14 672y
Ml Iriberesl income 3 844 20 883 3 0% 4024 0 188 4 215
OB Bank Group
18 25
Recdced Reorded Recorded Aecatced
ot far  ab amortsed ol far  ab amostised
Amounts i MOK mlfr i ] coad ! Total valug cost " Tokal_
Inbpewst on mmoun s cee Foen cred nebisSony 1108 54 1338 1284 a4 1 608
Inberast on loang b susbomary 2588 42178 44 735 3585 45 442 48037
Intprest on mnmpalied loans and g 4 B11 1 19 g9
Inberast an commercisl pape: and bonds st fair valae 4405 4405 43 426k
Interest on oommeercial paper and bonds, held b msteriy 173 173 34 dma
Front-and fees atc L] 280 204 15 323 ar
Dxhge drincast eome 12327 3358 1028 (1.845) 3532 1 5687
Total Interest income § Fad A7 142 A7 4F T 249 50 544 5F red
Inberat on amouniy dos to erede inthituSont {15437) (183 (1 75} (1177 (1680 {1 385)
L an dep Som cub 1 E6T) {8 135) (6 T (487) 18 DaG; (LR LA
bt on debt Secuntien imsued {3503 ILE- k] {12 386 (3 174) |8 6355 (12 BO8)
Intecest an swbordinated faan capital (38] (496 {533 (a5 (BN 558,
Guaranies ind by (E8) {788 (848 [B45)
Chthae inbareat gparses | 3653 {171} 8722 311z 268 280
Total Interest expernses {1753 {18 616} {18 380 {177 (20 484) (22 358}
Mot Inberest incomas e 20 578 H 8T LRI D0 35533

1 Inckadies Pedged doma
& Céber inferest expenses include inferes! re'e sdustments resulting from infees mie sweps. Dervelfes ane recordied of far value
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DHE Bank AEA
Avragh LA Fase Howt il wiolisrne
in par coat ! n MO milion
2014 pari]-] 2016 2015
Assols

Due fom credit inslitutions 42 (=Pl 826 25 B84 524
Loars to customers EE:] g8 820 265 9069
Comenercial pager and bands 204 243 217 g8 235 260

Liabilities
Dhue fo cred insftutScns 054 [=F. ! aszTio &07 055
Deposits from cusbermens .2} =k 1) b a5a 1007 a0
Securitios ssmed [ef:] ar7 a3 160 388 955
DME Bank Group
Brbrage ickank i rabe Barnipn wobsmia
npercont ! in NOK milion
018 e 2048 2018

Asgels

Dk Ficen efadil inslifubond 023 Q25 570 604 B47 358
Lears [o futtomees 3 s 1814 318 1501 783
Eommarcial papar and bands 204 214 21E 217 200 557

Liabliities
Drue b cred nsluSens o8k Q41 64 859 331 gar
Dupasits from cusbomen 084 =k 1] 1 064 815 1062710
_Secwndind deed 148 151 B4 863 Ba7 755

1F Average ieresl rale i por cont i cekwlled a3 lahel infermst n NOK for e peciic products in nelation fo the appurfenant averge captal

Note 19 Net commission and fee income

DNE Bark ASA DNE Bank Group
vl ] 2018 Armnounts bn MO million 2018 2016
3378 3451 Meney banthes amm 3588

o 2 A AR GEirT] ShraLes 440G i
i 3a Lustedal sereges 4 3
425 ET3 Secuntios broking aig &52
288 &TS Corporate Bnsnce TaT L]
28 | Irtnrank s ol 20
25 454 Credt brokng 451 T
5 ar2 Sales of insurance produsts 3T 382
Feal estatn broking 11 1220
A5G -] Caher comminsions and fees Tz are
L | ey Tolsl commistion and fee income BodE a4
i1 636 17548 Money brandbey {1 a5} [ &7
15 A mandgement servisen (15}
73 (7m Cuniodial gervates T {174
(48 1] R Fxt] Securities broking {178 [RRE]
1] (rr] Corporals Enance [ 185
(B (5% Intaroank less 134 151)
[1:<1] [i: 1] Cradt broking (26} 127
(85 114 Sale gl ingurance produtiy {194} 185)
[t ] [} Cohor commissions and fees {E8TH {B57)
L2 B7a) {2 By Tolal commission and fes eapenses {2 ) {2 1N
3544 ams Net eommitsion and fee income 563 5 558
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Note 20 Net gains on financial instruments at fair value

DHE Bank ABA OB Bank Group
2HE e L Ammeurta i NOH mdkon A48 2HE
5148 B3 Fonegn exchangs and Inencal detivalives Tea7 aie8
1 543 (1113 Cammeesal paper and bonds {1185 185D
52 &l Sharehaldings 449 =

&5 &2 Cthar Bnancial pvsets .1 M

140 47 Financial linbiitios i) 154

3 853 7458 Het gains on fmancis instr Irading T T8 & B
214} T4 Loany &1 fak valse (455 (B4}
1 30 {560 Cammarcial paper and bonds L] o1 021y
{242} a1 Sharsholdings (TH) (k11
477 56 Financinl lishiibas. |- L=
i1 Eb 3_\'.!2 Wﬂhsmmhmm.dnlglﬂd‘u af far value 11H |'IB_GL
{3 255) [2 78 Financial dervatves. hadging 4 245) 1B 055,
x} o Fmaneial wtvaly, hodged fema i (2
2837 2 §as Finandial iahifina, hefdged dems 3 BE7 2029
362 196 Het gaint on hedged #am '~ {360 972
i 654 Financisl guarsnises == TS
147 124 Cevidands 133 188

3 ane 82 Net gains on financial inst af Tafr valus 306 B Id

17 With resped to bedged dabdities, the fedged nak i@ recomed of fer value, while the rea of the instrument is reconded af emontized cosl. Demanlives used for
hadigang are dedl B i valie, Charges i G value ansing e heded peh de peosendad wader Financial desvalved, haagong, Vel qaing an beeaed
Bnancial bt nclude amadizaion of far vakies an disconiivusd hedging relsfonsios.

2 The DNE Group wees Fedpe sccounting for lang-fevm Borrowings in forsign camency in OVE Bolghredit and DWE Bavd ASA Lowns e hetiged 11 through
autamal contracts wivere e i @ comelition Befween cumanciss, Infenas! rate Niows and e hoeogong natrument, AF the ime the foarms ane mised, AMansts
aniherg whidher 1o dvilar 0o & Riging fransactan Sor i ralinant kaan Baded o lhe Grecp's fong curmency poationd and the undirlyng mleed e
e for e loan

Note 21 Salaries and other personnel expenses

OB Bank ABA OMBE Bank Group

2015 2018 Armgurds in NOK miion 2018 2015

(R rET 8138 Saleries ' {78 {7 &0y

{8013 {968 Emplcryer's ratianal tnibigions IRRE ] o1 1244

23 o) Persion sepenses i T

{348} {B4S5) Aestructuning sxpenses (BB n vyl

{B4T} FLaL ] Oithar parsonned # (T35 T8y

{7 245) (0 248) Tofal salaries and otfhier personnel expenses (11 208 @ 140§

i 280 5 2081 1 Ofwhich  Owodinavy salanes A -]

(T3TH [Fas Pedormence-based pey (TErR jr2an

1 A e dourth guarter of 2015 DNG decdied ho change the Bank Group’s pensicn scheme fom 8 delned-banefll o 8 defined-contnbulion sclheme wibh affect frem

D b 2015 The champe ncludied e magely of £ emplcyess id Nanwaly who wane mavnbers of the Bank Greep's cleded delined-bamed schama The
henge msuled fn & dime edfpct of NOK | 808 milion and 1 F7E for the Bank Groop and ONE Bank A58 respectively which mduced he panod
cost.

DHE Bank ABA Numbaer of employeesTulldime positions OHD Bank Group

2018 2018 e AE

7888 TE18 Humber of empioyees s at 31 Decomber 10801 11 047

aea -] « alwhich numbas of emglcyees sbroad 3208 . 1T

7 G TN MHgmber of employeet caliilated on o Biktime basi o ol 31 Decomber 10268 10608

b L « ol whach rufbed of emploess calculabed on & full-me batis abrosd 3 168 3078

T 843 TET4 Average member of employess 10 TEa 11130

7T 583 T 358 Average rumbar of ernpligees caloulsted on o fal-Sme basn 10372 10 707

fl Thay et tioe i At of erpltries B somiy of arpdres colrulniod on 8 Rl tme baegis fram 2015 relects mpalruct uning Mo fomms i [fse harding
oo, 1 758 employess in the Salics wene ino'uded &t endtDecember 2018 i e Bank Group.
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Note 22 Other expenses

DNE Bank ASA DMB Bank Growup
015 28 A g dn NOK midllion 2018 ;5
11370 i1 474) Foas '/ {1 5758 {1457
12 184 {1 886} IT enpanias {2 03Ty (23§7T)
2y (17 Pottage and telecommunications {22} (250
[F 1] [l 4] Crfice supplos [Ty {&T
i1 (B4TY Warketing and public relations: (B4} {B45)
0 Ty Travel sxponaes {225) [roai]
{174 188 Rlsmburysmant to Morway Fost for remsctions exscuisd {128} {174
(] ] [£3:1] Training expanses (L3 H] L]
{1 165) (AR ] Cpetating exp on propedies and &7 {1 285 {1365
[1:74] [L0] Crperating expenses on machinery, vehides and office ip =2y FR1e]

m gm Ceher ﬂhl eEpEnLEs JER5) m
{6 591} % 118} Totdl other expenses {7 207} (7 85

1F  Systems development foes fofebed NOK 1 038 mifion for ONG Bark ASA and NOK 1 037 milian for the DNE Bank Group ko 2016, comparsd with NOK 538
malon and NOR 950 milion respedtively, i 2075

2 Costs relabing o lnaded prdnvses wins NOK D5 milion and NOK 1020 maion seapaetivaly Sor DVG Bank ASA avd i DVE Bank Group in 2006, compared
with MOK 285 rallion #od NOK 1042 mllfon i 2015

Note 23 Depreciation and impairment of fixed and intangible assets

DHE Bark ABA DONE Bank Group

s bk Araconts i MO millon 2018 ik

11 4183 i1 &7 Depeaciation of machiney. vahichi and ofcs dgnpaent {1477y (1453

(AT (335 Cenar deprecatan of tanghle and margble ssiets 4Ty [

({5 11y Impairmant of cepRalined tyslems develop 1y {65
Impairmaent iosses for goodill (i1

17 [258) e i el of fowd and intangibis st {14y {118

{2 035) (2 050} Total depreciation and bmpairment of foed and Intangible avsets {2 103} 2 15%)

Sow nole 37 Infangiie a2aeds and node 33 Fied pasefs.
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Note 24 Pensions

Description of the pension schemes

The DNE Bank Group has a defned-contribubion pension scheme for nll employees in Morway, with the excepbion of around 400 employess
from the former Postbanken who are covered by 8 closed group pension plan in the Norwegian Public Sendce Pension Fend.

The contribution rates are:

w Salary repressnting 0-7.1 trmes the National Ingurance basie amount, G 7 per cenl

*  Salary representing T.1-12 times G 15 per cent

. The Group has no defined-coninbulion pension scheme Tor dalanes axceeding 126G (aparl from the clesed scheme)

The emplapess who were snrolled in the former defined-benefit cceupational pension schame (larminaled on 31 December 2015) are alsa
coverad by & compensalion scheme thal is structured 8% 8 supplementary, contritulion-based direct pension schemea, Based on the terrms and
conditions approved af the time of conversbon_ the sawvings plan in the compensabion scheme aims to give the indhidual smployes & tolal
pension capital when reaching the age of 67 corresponding bo what hia or she would have received if the definad-benafit pansion schems had
been retained

The Group atso has commitments o some employees related (o salaries sxceeding 126G and earty retirement agresments. This pension
scheme was closed for employeas who joined the Group after 30 June 2008, Further resirictions were infroduced as at 30 Apdl 2011, Those
who did nat have salanes exceeding 12G on that date will nol be encompassed by the scheme even if thedr salanies exceed 12G at a later dale

With effect from 1 January 2017, pension commilmenis nslated to salanes exceeding 125 and eary refirement agreemenis have been
converted to defined-contibution schemes according to the same principtes and condtions that applied in connection with the corversicn of the
former defined-benelt eccupalional pension scheme.

Based on the temms and condilions approved al the ime of conversion, the savings plan in the new schemes aim o give the individual employee
& totel pension caplal when resching the age of 57, or at another agreed age, cormespondng 1o what he of she would have recenved if the
defined-benefil pension scheme had been retamed, The new defined-contribution pendson cammitments relaled to salanes exceading 126 and
earky retirement agresments are funded through opemtions,

The DHE Bank Group has o disability pension scheme for all employees in Norway, The dsability pension scheme is adapled bothe new
disability pension from the National Insurance Scheme and represents:

*  Jper cent of pensionable income up bo 126G
L 25 per cend of G, maxirmem 6 per cent of pensipnable income, up 1o 126G
* &5 per cent of pensionable income in the nterval between 6G and 126G

The Morweginn companies in the Greup are par of the contractual pension (CPA) scheme for the privale sector. In addtion, the Group has an
agreement on contractual pensions according to public seclor rules for employees who are memieers of the Public Service Pension Fund

The privale CPA seheme will be funded by 8 annual premarm representng & percentags of salaries batwean 1 end 716
Employer's contributions are included In pension expenses and commements,

Subsickaries and branches cutside Norway hawve separate schemes for their employees, mainly in the form of defnad-contribution schemes,
Pension expenses for employees oulside Norway represented NOK 172 milion

Economic afsumplions applisd in calculating pension expenses and commiments:

Econamic assumplions ONB Bank Group
Expantey Commitments

31 Cwe. 31 Dec.
Par covt ME 2018 patil ] 25
Descount mbe 2.70 240 260 270
Anticipaled rive i walares 2,50 275 280 1EQ
Anticipated i in basic 2.25% 2,50 225 2.1
Anticpated nen in pensions 0.50 050 [12-] 080
Antreipated CPA acceptance Astual asceptance Bshysd seepptance
Dumographie sdsumptent abeat mortakty 1 K2013 K2013 K213 K203

11 The bamhing grovp's penmon sxpenses and penzon comryntments are besed on the mortaiéy fabie K207, best sctimale, prepared by Binsnce Nonwey. K201
07 upcated cals ulEtion Bise for stitisfical modally astumplng.
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Note 24 Pensions (continued)
Pansion expenses DNB Bank A5A
2018 208
Armounts in NOH mlian Funded Unhunded Todtal Funded Undandad Tokal
et present valkie of pension enttements (64} {35 (a18 3t (1521 (A8
Intaroi pap onp it (@7} 42 i13g) (365 2 0g)
Calculsted rotusn on pangion fundy -] & b=« |
Cunaimant 1| 165 218 1T g8 i 785
Aiminigtrative eapanbe n i 8 ki
Total defined benefit penscn schemes &2y {21} (253 ] =11 1176
Confrachsl pensions, new schams a4 []=rd]
Rizk coverage premiam (k] 1]
Dafined coniribetion pengon wch [485) 1I9a_
Mot pension sxpentes (BT 822
Pamsion expenges DOME Bank Group
2018 2018
Armounts in NOK millon Funded  Unhunded Total Funded _ Unfunded Total
Mot present value of pensi i (85} ) 432 461 4} 1515)
Irtares! DupETEES &N PETION COMMITmEN S (&) 43) 141y ] [y {4186)
Calculated retum on pension funds 80 i} B b 4
Curnimant iz 188 220 1 B0 1808
Adminiztrative expen s (1) i 181 6
Total dafined benaft pensicn wohi 42} {22y} (M5 1258 1=k 1] 1184
Confraciual pensions, new wchemes L] {10
Risk cowdrage premasm agy {TE)
Duned gonlrbution prrion ehanes (5601 @
Mt pansian axpenses (086 Eel]
DNE Bark ABA Panslon commitments DME Bank Group
018 8 Amounts i NOK mition 2098 2016
16 443 469 Opemng balans 5074 18 882
AR 419 Acturudated pension entilements 432 §15
A ¥ Infmreat ewpantes 141 418
BEm 0 Actarial losvesgains), net 298 {BET)
(90 828 (a2 Curtmlrrant {34} {11 381)
73 236y Fention payments {243 753
1£4 (155 Exchirpi rals & {157} 182
&85 503 Cohing balance 118 E074
Panslon funds
2015 2018 Amouds in NOK milion 2018 2015
11150 2 Tem Openng balarce o 11 5567
3 L] Expachsd return 1] 284
(B0 ) Actuarial gainsilosses) net (15 1)
{9140 (113 Curtmimants 11245 (BETH
[ik5] Exgeys pariion Lingy thal cannat by carfied forwand 1834
a7 ] Prisium paid 10 wn
4 {114) Periion paymants 1115 {801)
[ (£ Admanimirative sEpanses iy FL)
157 [1% F_'mhlm rate dfpanoes {107} 142
2788 26884 Cloung balance 24808 2828
2183 2a5a Mot defred bacefit chligation 2618 248
b F48d Of il Rgegeoipe dalfingd bonelt p il 2818 23
EAg R did afindd barglll B PEET 53
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Note 24 Pensions (continued)
DHB Bank A5 Effects recorded in other comprehensive incomae OHB Bark Group
Funded Unfumded Tatal Arnpunts i NO¥ millon Furded Unfuncied Totsl
Tz (48) 4T Ahunrial lpsses/{guins) 31 December 2015 Ta4 (50 651
-] 1" 15 Remeasuremant - changes in dscount rate 5 12 18
R 1- changes in cier
1" 553 (443 wliony, pans bmant ihl] (573 1463)
Rameasursmant - changes in cther iectors, pension
b ] w7 =] T e H L] 5]
Remeasursment « changes in ofer soonomic
7 2 atwmptions, penwon funds 82 52
(82F [Pl Remeasuremant - changes in oifer facions, penwion funds Ta T2y
] ] Imepsimant manage et eosly 7 I
Total romeasuremend lovseai gaing) in other
148 54 213 comprahssshve income 163 &7 i1
[ 1B Defned banalt pansion sch dzeontinisd [#24] 23
A6 i1 BT2 Achaarial lesseuligaing) 31 Ducember 2018 807 % L)
Past developments OB Bark Group
3 Dec. 21 Dec. 31 Dec M Dec, M Dec: 1 Jan.
_Amounts im MOK mlon 2018 2015 14 2013 12 2012
Grons pention commitments 15118 16074y (16 68 (13 1) 13400 (AL k]
Gircres ponmacn funds 2803 2828 11 557 10338 5558 B3
Commamenty nol fecorded in Bva By
Nt dardd paniion commi iy {2 518) (2 248y (5435} (3 B53) (3447 8 ¥50
T Geoss pevnsion oommemets (ncude empiayer's natonal 0 tions gnd financial achviios tax

Sensitivity analyses for pension calculations
The foBowing estimales are based on facts and condbons prevailing on 31 December 2016, assuming that all ather parameters are constant
Actual results misy deviale signiScantly from these sslimales.

O¥B Bank Group
Annusl e
in salaries Arrial e
Dimsoun rate b sis amGu in pariions Lif eapactancy
Change in parcaniage podnfs w14 1% 1% =1% 1% OF g +1 yuar <1 ymar
Peccantigs change in pensicns
Panition commitments 718 1817 64 &9 011 -8 2
Mot pesion expenses for the period 10-20 2223 1315 10-11 011 -8 2 2

Pension commitmants ane pariculary susceptible to changes in the Gsoount rate. A reduciion in the discount rate will, 0% an isclated Tacbor,
resull in an increase in pension commitments. A one percentage point reduction in the discount rale will cause an increase in penskon commit-
menls in the andér of 15 16 17 pér cént and an incrénse in pension codts of 22 Lo 23 per cénl. Higher salary ncréases and pdusiménts in
pensions will al50 cause a fise in pension commibments and pension axpenses.
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Note 25 Taxes

DNE Bank ASA Tax expense on pro-dax operating prafit DNE Bank Group
015 28 A s dn NOK millon 2018 ;5
{7 002y 1985) Curter taxey (B 404 5882
3550 (4 52 Changes in defered by dadz (1875
(3458 5223 Tax xparse (ER] [F 733

Recenclifation of tax expense against naminal tax rale
Armounds in NOK million

24 00 moz Pra-tnx cpsating proft 21874 3 028
{6 S04 {5003 Extimatod tax expense ot nominsl tax rate 25 per cont (27 per cont in 20155 5 450} 83
(30 Tax alfect of d¥erend tnx refes in other countries i [=] (e
152 3T Tax effect of debt interest distnbation with inbernatisnal branches kLT 162
3370 LR -] Tan offpct of txn-guempl sncams fom wharsholdngs s0@ 184
14 451 Ta effecs of othar lax-saempl income and ron-dedcclible sxpenies 2T 138)
T ffect of tan [onses carmed fuward not recognised in the balince theet * 123 a2

[eli] Tun effect of changed fax rale lor deferrod taves recogrmad in the belance Wheel ] &1
(ki) ia Excens fax [ U 135 lgﬂ_

[ 57) 1% 223) Tax exparise {3 984 7 7
14% X% Effoctie tax rate 18 5%

Income tax on olhor comprehensive Income
Armounts in IO# mallon

{238 48 Pensiong E2 ]
Huedges of red i nky {1 449 2284
{235 LE] Total income tax on cther comprenensive income {1 3n 2058

1t Nonway, & compeay s income from shar e mants o normaly scerpl frambex. Ar o role, the sppbes fo » i3 ot paraes o et 117 Hom

EWEEA The lax sxemplicn appies by both divadiends amd gaing’ flosseal upon resksabion, However, 3 por oant of divick e T o ik
& inzivded o lesa by income.

2 Dafewred faxes for tax-deduchible dffennces (maindy bemss camisd ) i submich are not grvsed i tha bak shoof unlpss fhe Group can prove
fihat dhmse fex posfons wil be uiised i the future.

Tax effect of different tax rates in other countries
The Group has operations in a nurmber of countias whose tax rales are different from that in Morway (25 per cent)

Tax effect of debt interest distribution with international branches
Acconding lo Morwegien lax legislation, extemal inlenest expenses shall be dislsibuled propodionally smong operations in Norway and
internaticnal branshes based on the respective units’ botal assets, This could result in additions o dedustions from inceme in Morwiy

Expectations regarding the effective tax rate

The norminal tex rate in Morway was 25 per cent in 2016, Business operalions outdide Morway are subject to local tax rates in their country of
cporation, and nominal tax rates mnge from 12 to 45 per cent. The effective taxation of cperations oulside Norway depends on both local tex
rule4 ond on whether il is possible to aveld double baxation, Tax-exempl income from share imesstments conbribules to o lower expected tax rate
than 25 percenl. In the longer temm, the effective tax rale is expecied to be approximately 23 per cent. In some periods. tax losses camied
forward ihat are not recagnised in the balance shesl have caused vanations in the effective tax rate. In peniods when such assels have not been
recognised, the afective tax rate has been higher than the long-tem expectation, whersas it has been lower in periods when [ax lesses not
recognised s assets have been ulifised

DB BANE — ANNUIAL REPORT 2048 1 83

291/350



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O000000000000o000o0o00o0ooo0000ondnE26109)
Oooooooa

Note 25 Taxes (continued)
DB Bank ABA Dalerrad tax assolsi{dafarrod taxos) OB Bank Group
25 por cenvl defirred b calculstion on all temporary differences Norwsy)
2Ms ] Amaurds m NOK mifon 08 25
Thee year's changes in deferred i issats/{defermed [axoes)
2970 & 308 Ceferred tax osseint{defermd taxes) ot ol 1 Janwary 1532% 43 340
3550 (4 B2 Changes recorded against profts 4442 {1873
{234 47 Changes reconded against comprshensive meome -rd (36}
b in Cureney Manysbes diferances on dafered lazes (] 128
Trantfesred bo anwets held fod sale 133
8308 1 B8 Dwlerred tax awsefsf|dalormad taves) as ot 31 Docomber ] 45 32
Daferred tax assols and doferred Laxes Inthe balance sheel
3 Des 31 Dec. ralates 1o the following temporary diffarences 31 Dac. 31 Dec.
2Ms 2018 it g i NOK malbas 018 Fitl]
Defermed taxy assels
882} [LEET] Fiind asvets and intangible oxsels (¥ [ 1]
1450 286 Commarcial papar and bonds
2507 18- Dbt secunties issoed
aa18 3048 Enancisl deiteatives My Rk
1 {15 Crhar Bnancial tfuments L] [
a1 883 Ml pardion Rabidies [0 w02
207 (245 Het other tas-dodeitabie lemporary Sfsrences 7 ad3
105 224 Tax lowses and tax credits camed foreard 482 Balt
& 220 1882 Total defered 1ax assets 1392 113
Deeferred taxes
L 2 Fived aiasts and intangible assels =] 450
1 2 Commertial paper and bonds 2 Ok G50
Dot socurtins (swued {6 BAT) o 22
Financial detivatives 5302 8203
Cithar Bnancial snsbruments el 54
Net parruicn Rabidey (5B5) 1520
et athes taeabls temporary diferances 419 v
Tax losses ard tax credits camied foreasd :ﬂg 11_B'§L
12 56 Total defered taves 2382 6481

Deferred taxes in the Income statement relate to the fellowing

temporary differences

2M5 w018 Armourts it NOK millen w018 2015
LFe il B Finid astets and infangble nneets a7 300y
187 Z B8 Commarcial paper and bongs ' ¥ 7656 218
BT} (B8 Dbt securtios msoed "' 11 280 12.430)
5100 6773 Financisl dervatives || 2485 6525
£3 {17 Cithae Bnaneial nsbrumanis ||~ 181 454
{852} ] Persions 3 (580}
{aly {4 Crthar temporary dfsmnoes b} 1] G5y
113 28 Tax loszes and tnx credis camed forwasd * I:tﬂ {5 7145
3450 [4 88 Deferred tax expense 4442 {1873}

i & sgoficant shars of e foenciel msfroments are camned' of Gair valoe i the socowa s, winde for ey povrposes, the same Aot s ane e v @0 ]
bazis n socordancs wil e rmatizaticn prncipls, This ghos Alse to lerpe Sfferances bebween profils sated i [t secounis and prolle sampated for fax
purposes for fh indaidual accounting Jears, especiall in years will sigrfizend Muciuations (r infernesl rate vz and sxchange fmfes. These dfferences ae

affest in tha lnger harm

2 Dweto lepe sxchange mte foctuatrons » 2818 snd 2013, here wees sgni chanpes i gaing amd fosses on Gnance! nstromenls vsed o
TR GG (he banking groun's cumency 8od interedt rete rsk. Fin ¥ ity nfs are in vty thee roa st ion principle, wihilte the covrant
rate melthod o used or receiabies snd Kabdbies o fosegn ¥, These def ane expoched fo be mevevied wiflhin 8 shont period of fime

& | DHEBANK - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

292/350



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O000000000000o000o0o00o0ooo0000ondnE26109)
Oooooooa

Note 25 Taxes (continued)
Overviow over 1ax assels from tax losses and Lax credils carried forward DNEB Bank A58
11 Dmcarrtac 218 A Dlacarmbiar 30115
Fiobal 1 D wihich T b 1o Of wiacn aa

WD miice Lo Dmra o b Facopvesd fonees CoTed i b Aoy
T g o drewesd fgran] for e gea by AR ahia] 8 g ity {ar gyl
Sty & 381 i % 235 58
Toksl offax losees and tax ansely 361 351 BE ) ] =
Tax crodits casried foraard ' 138 136
Totsl of defemed lax assels From tax fosses and [ax oredits <arred forward T ik
1 ANbax credds carmsd fgreard relates bo tax pa perg i Monway
Cverview over deferred lax assels from tax |osses and tax credits carried forward DME Bank Group

11 Dewrrfver 2018 1% Decwntier JO1%
Felal 1 T vl ¥ il T T Rl i

Arrescety @ WOE e ol Caead & bk Hecoprviel ARy canad b b EEve ST}
Lo lodes camed rwadd Forward dor b gy day auast Beowrawd [ o el
Morwsy 1o 10 £0
Singapore 381 361 o 58 238 50
Labeis 1 a7 BES B8
| &hyara 420 g a3
D 23n 1577 04 2481 1681 20
Tkl affax lostes and bax sttt 2882 1928 Ly 5108 4138 i)
Tax ersoits easvepd Toeward ' 135 136
Total of defemed fax assets from fax Posses and tax credits carmed forward 518 B2S

IF AR crdits e fanind rpiaies b iy papeer 7 Nonay

Recognition of deferred tax

Deferred 18X assets are capitalised tolhe extent it is probatde thet the DNE Bank Group will have taxable income against which temporary
differences can be ulilised, Nel doferred laxes on temporary differences within the same tax group are assessed and enlered net in the
BCOOUMS.
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Mote 26 Classification of financial instruments
&% at 31 Decermnbor 2086 DNE Bank ASA
Firsara dnaratm i Frahid Frarma
F 1T T A AL Firdesis
Hrrtangh profl and ke dewgnaied wied ot TNy
Deieraiind iy a fiwlgng Ayt el il b
Ameaivds i WO e Ty & Vit vl i Eel g sy " Sty Tkl
Ttk nne depeain with central bais 187 a8z 15624 4548 o7 834
D Frewm eradil malbuteny 0T 4507 203 450 548 093
Leany 4o cuslonmens A2 974 168052 831 034 60 060
Commuerial paper and bonds st fair value 150 188 Ta18 pora el ]
Sharsholdngs 417 M 178
Firancal dematve 158 823 10 Ta& 1manr
Commucial paper and bonds, held 1o matunty 12 Ted 12 e
n T B d sank 95 055
Ivmstmients in sbsdanies 118 233 118 233
Cithar assats 13 482 13462
Total fnancial avsets Has 161 110 845 10 786 871 822 12 T&d A e Jee
Dun f2 crodd msiutions 28432 1186 32 104 33
Deposity fom cuttamert 43 210 116508 BES 855 930 664
Frrangial dafvathoal 180 605 1188 181 T
D! wecurities intsed 153 485 12825 170531 106
Cither liniiition (A1 IHAT? 23850
Subsowdinated loam capdtal 1354 2808 8 37
Total Anancial fabies 7 &7 247 26 878 1188 1 136 G60 1 BT AT
" At
B Contrachunl chigetions of financial lebiles desgnated as af b value htaled NOK 26 362 millan
As at ¥ December 2015 DHE Bank ASA
Firancus rminums i Franos Fraram
o T Aais aedi mErmly Tmarcial
e al e L Rt Lo TR camet d AL
Dweyrafed ot . fusdepfi g ATl Pl 1
Amounts in NOK milfian T ey i Bt vl THL LG oA =y Tt
Cash and deposits with centml banks 1087 12557 350 18004
Do frewm: el imsiihotonn AT8 TEE 236939 137 672 BN 00
Leans 1o customss 3T 50 34885 643036 705 832
Comivabd Cib] s &l bondts 81 Rk visliok 1268830 2312 210 062
Shargholdngs 8734 b 750
Firmnoid demvatives 201 353 12 405 5 TET
Commascial paper and bonds held fo maturty 18 182 18 182
Investmienis in nssocated companias 5.1 BT
Investments in subsdanos 120473 120473
L arnts FERELS 2RTH
_Total Enancial asiets fiSrLr] 145 254 12 405 6 51 1062 1 BT G
Do o credit instiubons ok e 2449 26276 262 330
Caposits from customers a2 178 2080 B52 252 S AR
Firancisl deivatives 234687 Ban 240 518
Dooll sncurnities issued 158632 18758 161 BO9 340 059
Chthav Lt 5358 e 3438
Subsarinated ican capital 1241 WL 0853
Total Bnancial fabiiges A0 TED 24 008 f:x]v) 1104 2249 1 Bl 08

17 dnckados fedged Kehdbies

& Contmchuel oblgefions of fingnohi kebdbies designated as af B velue fotalled NOK 23 342 millon
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Note 26 Classification of financial instruments (continued)
As ot 3 December 2016 DMNE Bank Group
Franad midiimenis Frandia Frarvs
it vl Bl Tusdrenl FITLTRT Fituafiini
Frogon prodt snd ks LT & 20 cmad o LT
Cormgraibed i e P i Lot Fretd b
Aoty in NOE milion Iz b il b wsilum nE sty od ' sy Tolw
{Cash mnd deposis. with central banis 18T 482 1683 4 8677 F e
Duw e eredt indituliont € 638 45 14 035 174 ¥08
Learvs 19 Suttomeds 42 974 8242 | 37R 2 1482 268
Commencial paper and bonds at fais valus td8 426 G A6 Falng i
Shareholdings 5158 1042 & 200
Financial deswathes 124 818 33038 (LTl
Comearcial paper and bonds, heldd bo misturity 127ED 12 760
OEhBr BT ] B 255
Tkl Inancial snyst ] 156 218 33 038 1 407 118 12 TED 2178 487
Duw to crisdi insftutions 170 DAy 1108 32 353 X1 eDd
Deposits from customerns. 43 20 11 588 BE0 S Bl BB
Financial dervatives 120 Ted 2188 130 ol
Debt secorities maued 153 288 B and 526 53 TET TS0
Cther Rakiit=i 11 16 285 16T
Swberdinated fosn captal 1254 T Gy P T
Tetal bngncial liabStas = S04 053 104 451 2 195 1S 470 2101 189

T inchades hedped lahdtiss.
I Contradual obdgations of financial lebhiles cesignated a2 af far value lofaled NOR 89 255 millon

As at 31 Docember 2015 DB Bank Group
Firucll rlfursnls Francad Friaoes
Bt Rl ety vk EVIELATINEL Firafes
rwsughs prodd o Soem dargrated camad o ranpTati
Cmwgnabed aa i P wnorhiad Faa i
Amounts in WOK miSlon Trmdry] ol bee weliie AT et maurty Teda
Cash and depauity with ceniral banks 1087 12 857 5 1B M7
T froen eredt inmtitulions 83 854 2 1480 287 457
Loars to customess 37 640 T i 408 §i5 i 6531 852
Commencial paper and bondh at far value 126 Ga0 &1 482 207 083
Sharsholdings T 603 1160 8 Tha
Financial derivatives 185 B84 A7 408 203 273
Commeancinl pager and EBonds, held to mstunity 918z 19162
Other aeete & &08 B &08
Teksl Ensncial siieis 620 g4 16t 008 A7 408 ¥ 437 358 19162 o295 608
Dus to cred instutions 120 082 2449 b Ik 1 61 267
Deposits from custoenars 42 178 2460 213 085 BET A2
Financial teerathes 184 D4 :x ] 164 878
Dbt securities nausd 158 932 EH 450 558 369 BOE 810
Other Bakiley 5359 13 050 16 408
Subordinated bosn capial 1241 28712 30 B53
Total fnmncisd linbfitins ~ 490 684 B4 240 &34 1 63 871 2129 640
T hacfudes hadied Dabilies.
o fual obligations of fi i NabiEies dezignaled oz af far value lofalled WO 31§85 miiion
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MNote 27 Fair value of financial instruments at amortised cost

ONE Bank ABA
HD bt 2046 3 D bter S045
Camying Caryng
Asmounts it NOK milln amourt Fair vabup smouril Falr valus
Canh and deposts with centml benks 48648 & B0 7350 238
[ T 203 450 203480 127 §72 127972
Loans 10 customens 631 034 34 571 £43.038 38 275
& i pper and bonds, heid (e maturty 12 788 12 408 19 142 13 463
Total Bnancial assets 851 B9 BS5075 742 520 785058
Coutr 1o crcit insstutions 30 104 38 104 26 275 bl
Daposie om customers B8 855 855825 852 263 52 282
Securiset used 17053 173 768 181 804 184 803
S ioan capis 2 e 28 bE5 2712 =
Tiotal nancial babdlgas 1102 883 1 105 §12 1 070 147 1072 g4t

31 Dwonmbes 2018

D#HB Bank Group
31 Docember 2015

Carrying Cairying
it WO realfan anmcue Falr vl it Fabr valus
Crash and deposits with central banks 4977 4 877 583 663
D from creda msshutions 14 a5 14 035 14 802 14 602
Loans 10 cusiomerns 1378 852 1383678 1 408 515 1401 036
[ i Hﬂlﬂmﬂﬁmlnﬂm 12 TEd 12408 18 182 18 463
Total K in] Axsals 1411 B3 1415 087 1447 843 143 763
Deim 10 credit mottations M 23S 20735 8735
Dlegnake Bom Cutbomars o0 Bas L=h R 213088 G130
Securitey aved S26 BE3 T S50 358 82620
Subcedinated loan capisl 28 ted 28 0es 28132 a8
Total & il abilies 1478 208 1485 187 1 E50 821 1 535 183
DNE Bank A58
“Walkaation basved Valyaton based
on quoted prices  Valuaton bawed  on inpuly other
Wt &0 acbve en obasrvabis  than cbasrrabls
maret markst daks markst dats
Amgunts i WOK mafon Lewni 17 Lwvad 2 Loved 3 Teral
Asszels as at 31 December 2016
Coah and depoite with central benke 4 648 4 B4
Ceue from credit instutions 203 480 fank L]
Liowns o cusioners B34 87 M AT
Corn e il and bonds, keld o matrty 12408 12 <08
Liabilities as af 31 Decambor 2016
Doue 1 cracit ingtiitions 8 104 3104
Depouits fom customers BES 855 G5 05
Secunfes wsued 171 848 1848 173 Tea
Subsdinatsd loan capisl 22 787 5278 2085
D#B Bank Group
“alaation based Valaton based
on quoled prices  ValuaBon based on inputs cther
i an active on pbterable  than obasrnable
e marked dats markel dats
Amourts i NOK mifiar Lovai 1 Lovei 2" Lovei 3" Total_
Aszols as al 31 December 2016
Cith and deposite with central baniy 4977 4977
Due from credil insShutions 14 035 14 035
Ledng 10 cUSIamag 1383678 1 288 679
o m ciml and bonds, beld o ma 12408 12 408
Lisbilities 25 o 31 Decernber 2018
Do 1y erecl imetautiong A2 35N 02
Cepotis Fom cuttonmers B B85 B BEG
SecunSes sued 458 3% 34488 SR
Subecinat sl loan captal A7 837 10138 28 065

1 See pote 28 Financial instrements af el value for & defindion of the leeels.
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Note 27 Fair value of financial instruments at amortised cosl (continued)

Financial instruments at amortised cost

Most assets and liabdities in the DNE Bank Group's balance sheet are camied at amortised cost, This primarily applies to lcans, deposits and
bomowings in the banking group's balance sheed. but also nvesiments in bonds held to maturity. Leng-term bomowings in Morwegian kroner ane
camied af fair value, whils long-term bomowings in other curancies are camiad at amonised cosl. Hedge acoounting rmay be apphied.

Recording balance sheel Rems al amortised cost implies thal the oniginaily agreed cash fows are used, possibly agjusted for impairmend. Such
valuations will not always give values which are consistent with market assessmenls of the same instruments. Discrepancies may ba due to
diverging views On Macio-economic prospects, market conditions, risk aspects and refum requirements, a3 well a5 vansng access to sccursle
inforrnation. The abave teble shows estimated fair values of ilems camied et amortised cost

Valuations are based on the indhvadual instruments’' characlenstics and values on the balance sheet date, Howewver, these values do nol include
the total value of cuslomer relationships. markel eccess, brands, organisational aspects. employess and structural capiial. Consequenity, such
intangible assets are penerally nol recorded in the accounts. In addition, most iransactions with customers are assassed and priced collsdivety
for several products, and products réconded in the balance sheet are considersd along with other products and ervdces used by the cuslomer,
Indrvidual assels and liabilities recorded in the balance sheet thus give no adequate reflection of the total value of the Bank Group's operations.

Due from credit institutions and loans to customers

When valuing leans, the lcan portfelic has been drdded inte the tollowing categones: personal custorners, small and medum-sized sntaprises,
Hondie comporaties, infernalional cotporates, shippeng, offshore and logistics and enefgy. In addilion, Separate calculations have baen made for
DHE Fnans and Poland,

The valuations are based on average margns in December, considered refative bo the business units' best eslimate of the palantial margin
requiremnient sl yegr-end 2016 if the loans had been extended al that time, Diferentiated margin requinsments have been calculpted for each
calagary, as specified above, basad on estimated costs refated 1o lending. The margin requirement includes costs covenng normalisad losses,
which, a% opposed o mpairment recordad in the annusl sccounts, represent a long-lerm asséssment of (055 levels,

Fedail loans carried at amotised cost are mamly lcans with floating inferest rate. The fair value of the retall lcans has been set al amortised
(-8

Wilh respect to impaired loans, en assessment has bean made of potential cash flows for the loans discounted by the effectne rate of interest
adusied for changes in manke! conditions for comespondng non-impaired beans. Loan rales prior o prosiséons being made reflect the increased
credd risk of the commilment. Given the general unceradnty in fair value measurements. It is evaluated that the impaired value gives a good
refieclion of [he fair value of these loans.

Cusbomers will often use loan produds which are carried parily ol amorlised cost and padtly ot fair value, The profitability of a customer
relaticnship s considered on an aggregate basis, and prices are sef based on an overall evaluation. Comespendngly. a possible reduction in
the customer relationship value is based on an overall assessment of all products. Any decline in value apart from pice changes on specific
products |5 included in the cwerall assessment of credits in the relevant customer relationship. Any reduction in the tlotal customer relalionship
value |s measmed on the basis of amonised cost and reported under impairment on loans,

Commercial paper and bonds, held to maturity

The valuation in level 2 is primarnty based on cbsersable market data in the form of interest rale curves, exchange rates and credil mangins
related lo the indvidual credit and the characteristics of the bond or commercial paper. For papers classified as level 3, the valuation is based
on modeis. See note 33 Commercial paper and bonds, held Lo maturity for mone infomation.

Due to credit institutions and deposits from customers
The estmated fair value equals the balance sheet value for credt instiutions. With respect to deposis from customerns, fair value is assessed lo
equal amortsed cost.

Securities issued and subordinated loan capital
The valuation in level 2is based on observable misrked data in the Torm of infferes] rale curves and credi marging when ovailable, Securities and
subordinaled |loan capital in level 3 are valued based on models, The ilems consist mainty of funding in foreign curency.
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MNote 28 Financial instruments at fair value

DNE Bank ABA
Wsuason
Walustion ‘bamed on
bt By Wakation inputs othar
atnd bamed an than
mices. in an ctrisrvabio chaarsabin
mCtive market minket datn markot dals
Ampunts i WOK mlion Lol | Lovel Lovel 3 Total
Assols ag al 31 Docember 2018
Dwposies with cantral banks 03 288 203 258
Do T credil Aathotiong MG EL3 A5 g3
Lowns io cusiomens 42874 16 082 55 026
Cormmescisl paper and bonds a4 fai valus EOBEa e ars o BT
Sharsholdngs #4140 3% TED 17
_Firancial devathves a 168 GBE 1 418 170 317
Liabifities as af 31 December 2016
Doun 1o credil instiutions 300 628 i L |
Dposis from customers a4 808 54 pOs
Dol Sptuntind ittisnd 16E 410 166410
Subcndinated loan captal 1254 1284
Francdl dattvaliodt o 180732 B 181 T
Cthes financinl Sabikies ' 616 0 618
Assets as al 31 December 2015
Cwposfis with contral barks 13 G5 13 654
Ciue fram credd insttutons E02 727 e i
Lewng 1o customen 37840 24 BSS a2 455
Commasrcial paper and bonds #t fir value 37 806 171 580 566 210062
Sharsholdngs BETE 1 B2E T a0
Firmncisd devatost 2 HE T I EQ4 3 TET
Liabilities as af 21 December 2075
Do 1o crad® Biliutions 136055 80
Dposin fom cuitamers a4 338 ]
Bt securities issised 178180 178150
Sabastginaled lgan sopial 1341 12
Firancial deivatives 1] Xa374 1144 240 578
_Olthee financial babitmies | 5305 s 538

0 Short postions, ireding actiitiss.
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Note 28 Financial instruments at fair value (continued)
DNE Bank Group
Waluation
Wahastan Eadad on
bazad an Vialuation inputs ofer
quoted bazed on than
prices in an obaervabin ohssrabie
nctve market markel data marks! data
A i WO mrlan Lol 1 Levad 2 Lerad 3 Towal
Asgels as at 31 December 2046
Deposits with central banks 203 288 204 286
Dusw froen coedt institutions 150873 1B BT
Loars o customens 42574 L= T 1nz41a
Commarcial paper and bonds at fur value 54 588 152 524 s 7 ear
Sharsheldings S 00D 245 BE 8200
i wd al L Lt b 1511 T eST
Liabdlities as at 31 December 2016
D B credd inalflutend 178243 178 243
Deposits from customens. 54 B0 B4 808
Daba stuntins raued 240897 240 BET
Swbertinated fan capdal 1254 B |
Finamcinl dervatives o 126 B8 1082 130 00
Cther Brancis Kabities ' 516 [ 518
Assaots as al 31 December 2015
Dupauits wilh cantral banky 13654 13854
Duse from credt institutions 202 BEE 282 BES
Loans 1o eusioman 37 640 BT 123 417
Commercial paper and bonds ot fair value 42535 165 G 7™ 207 083
Enareholdings 7264 2 129 B7e4
Fi ial dhirreats 2z 201 16T 1504 203 273
Liabilities as at 31 Docember 2015
Duw to cred insituSions 131 %2 134 B33
Depauty from cuttomen & 738 o 738
Datd secunities maued 248422 ME 422
Euhesdinabad loan capdal 131 1241
Frnantisl dacieathoa o 1537H 1144 154 878
Other famncisd Kahidtiss | 5 286 % £ 360
1 Shot pasbions, frading scihviios
The levels

Financial instruments ane calegonsed wilhin different levels based on the quaity of the market data for the: indvidual Instruments. Wilh respect
toBnancial nstrumenits calegorised s level 2, the qualty of manked dala may vary depending on whelhar the relevant instrument has been
fraded. Thus, it will be natural thal Some melruments are moved between lgvel 2 and level 3. This applies prmadly 1o commerndsl paper and
bponds.,

Lovel 1: Valuation based on quoted prices in an active market
Classified as level 1 are financial mstrumends valued by using gualed prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiigies

Instruments in this category include listed shares ond midusl funds, Tressury bills and commercial paper iraded in actve markeds,

Lewvel 2; Valuation based on observable market data

Classifed as level 2 ane financial instrements which are valued by using inputs other than quoted prices. but where prices are directhy or
Indiractly chsanvabile for the assets or kabifies, including guated prices in non-active markeds for idenbical assets or Babililles.

Included in this categary are, among cthers, interbank derivalives such as inberest rale swaps, currency swaps and forsard contracls with prices
quoted on Reuters or Bloomberg, basis swaps bebaren the currencies NOK, EUR, USD and GBP and cross-currency interest rabe derivatives.
wilhy custoners with insigniScant credit margins, Exchange-raded opbions are classified as bevel 2 if 1l ks possible to scan o
interpalatetadrapolite mmpliat volatilty based on cbeenable prices,
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Mote 28 Financial instruments at fair value {continued)

Lewvel 3: Valuation based on other than cbservable market data

Classilied as bevel 2 are financisd instruments which cannol be valued based on direclly observable prices. For these insinements other valuation
techniques are used. such as valuation of assets and liabilibes In companies, estimated cash fiows and cther models where key parameters are
nof based on obsenvable markel dala

Included in Ehis calegory are loans fo customers and instruments wherne credt marging conslitube a major parl of adjustments tomarkel value

Gaing of |ssged, thal cosur wheh (e estimated fair vishie is &ffarent fom the transaction price (diy-one grintoss) has nol had significan
impact to the financial stalement neither for 2086 or 2015

The instruments in the different levels

Dus from credit Institutions (level 2
The itém is prirnarily relevant for Markets. The wvalualion of loans (o end deposits with credit institutions i4 mainly based on agreed interesd rate
terms measured against a swap curse. The foed-rate pericd s relatively short

Loans to custemers (level 3)

Loans consést primarily of fxed-rate joans in Morwegian kroner and paris of the portfelio of margn loans in Norwegian kroner. The valus of
finedrate [oans is determined by discounting agreed cash flows over the tem of the loan, using & discount facler agjusted Tor margin
reguirements, A marngin requirement Is calculaled for margin lcans. and the difference between the margin requirement and the agresd margin
Is discounted cver the average supected time to the repricing of the loan.

Coemmercial paper and bonds [levels 2 and 3)

The waluation i bevel 2 is peimarily based on obsenable markel dala in the form of interest rate curves, exchange rates and credit margins
retated bo the indvadual credt and the charactenstics of the bond o commercial paper, For paper classified as level 3, the valualion ik based
on indkcalive prices from thind pedties o comparable paper.

Equities including mutual fund holdings (levels 2 and 3)

Equities in bevel 2 comprise mutwal fund holdngs where (he underlying investments are quated eguilies, 85 well 85 & small volurme of other
rutual funds Inslruments which are classified as level 3 essentially comprise propery funds limiled parinership un®ts, privabe equity imest-
mants and investments i unquoled equilics

Financial derivatives [levels 2 and 3)

Financial dervatives classified as evel 2 are primarity currency forward confracts and inlerest rale and currency swaps. The vakualion is based
on Swap cunves, and credd manging constitute & minor pan of the value, In eddition, the item comprises dervatives retated to cormmodities and
forward rate agreements. These are valued based on cbservable markel prices. Dervislives classfied as level 2 alio comprise equity
derivalives used in Markets' markel-malking activities. Most of these derivatives are related fo the most traded equities on Oslo Bars, and the
valuation is based on The price development of the relevanbiunderying equity and observable or estimated wolatilily. Financial derivatives
classified as level 3 are primanky connected lo currency options, interest rate oplions in Nonwegian kroner, as well as index derivatives. The
valualion |s based on indscabive prices from third parties.

Due to credit Institutions (level 2)
See “Due from credd instilutions™ above.

Deposits from customers (level 2)
Deposits carried ol fair valus include spacial-derm deposils, The valustion is primarily based on messurement in relation 1o & swap cure, and
changes in credit manging have an insignificant effed

Debt securtties Ssued {level 2}

The waluation i prmatity based on observeble markel data in the form of inMerest rale curves snd credt margins. The [lem consils mainly of
funding in Horweplan Kroner. For foreign currency funding. hedpe secounting is used whers hedges are enterad inte. In all other respects, debl
securilies issued are carmied 8l amortised cost

Subordinated loan capltal (level 2)
Subordinatied loans caried s fair value consis! of one loan in Norwegian kroner, and the valualion (5 based on obsesvable inberest rate curves
end credd mipnging.
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Note 28 Financial instruments at fair value (continued)
Financial instruments a Tair vabue, level 3 DNE Bank ARA
Firancad
Finanasl anists Sabdties
Commarnial
Lomns in papes and Share- Finmncisl Firmncial
Amsunts in NGO milion customans tonds hoidngs  derivatives _ derivafives
Carmying amount as al 31 December H14 b ES 46 1358 188F 1463
Mot gaint on Snancial ingnamanty {211} 16 a8 &1 (24}
Adamaniipurchareg 7388 51 241 a0 87
Salee 2131 (340 (788
Setllad (T 0Ty o LA {777)
Transferred fom level 1 or lovel 2 =31
Transforred o lovel 1 or lovel 2 (452
e 82) 2 15
Carmying amound &% at 31 December 7013 4 Ba5 60 &R 1504 114
Mt gaine on Snancial instnemants 4T i (118 201 [hFrid
AddSoncipurchases 404 B o 135 1] Tar
=210 (2 88} (68 (L]
Settled {11 03} Lerri] {781}
Transharned Bom Il 1 60 vl 2 53
Transfarred to lavel 1 o lovel 2 (4-01]
Ottt ! [LE]] [14p I8
Carmying amount a8 af 31 December 2018 16 052 I fi's ] 1318 1062
Flnancial Instruments at fair value, lavel 3 DME Bank Group
Firastasl
Financial asasts iabdnes
Commercial
Losng iz papes and Share- Frangind Firmncal
Armcuniz in NOK millon cuslomen by holdngs  ceeivaten  dervatioss
Carmying amciund as at 31 December 37014 15470 3 1369 1817 1463
Mt gains on Snancial instnemants (L5 ] % 210 1] [2d)
Addsons/purchases 3628 32 21 &30 =57
Sales (20 168 {28d) |- Fi:]
Settied 34 215} o ) Ty
Transferred kom level 1 of level 2 BE
Transferred to hevel 1 o0 lavel 2 (483
_Other {511 14 b1l 15
Canrying amound i al 31 December 2015 | =i fE 12X 1804 1184
it geene o Snarcial instnemants fi25-1) -5 120 1201} {123
Addeonyipurchates 13818 s 155 a0z Tar
Sales {5 146) (857) 283
Setiled (24 48 13 T 751}
Transherred Fom level 1 or level 2 [3-0:
Transforred o lavel 1 or lovel 2 (ETE)
Other | (38) L] L] 18
Cammying amount &s at 31 December 2016 [ Ers IrE L] 138 1 06

11 fa Nowember 2016, 8 portfodo of bome morguges amoovting lo soprarsmadely NOK 5 bifion was S0k e DVE Baligired fo ONS Livaforsieng.
2 incfuces @sers e Ka bl i it Babics rpclssadied a2 asdels bavd for Sake i Augusl 2018,

Loans to customers
The portfolio of loans carned al fair vadue eonsists pomarly of fixed-rate loans in Norweginn krones and o share of margin leans m Norsegan
krcner

Fixed-rate loans

The value of fixed-rate lcans is determined by discounting agreed interest fiows over the term of the loan, using a8 dscount fector adjusted for
mergin requirernents. The discount factor used has as a starling point & swap rale based on a duration equal to the average remaining lock-in
period for the refevant fived-rate lonns, The pssumplions underdying the calculation of the marngin requirement are based on @ feview of the
markei condtions on the balance sheet date and on an assessment of the deliberations made by exdemal investors when invesling in a
comesponding porticlio. Fixed-rate loans carmied st fair value totaled NOK 57 430 milion at year-end 2016

DB BANE — ANNUIAL REPQRT 2048 1 T3

301/350



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O000000000000o000o0o00o0ooo0000ondnE26109)
Oooooooa

Note 28 Financial instruments at fair value {continued)

Margin loans carrled at falr value

A margin loan has an agreed intere st rale consisting of a reference inlerest rale and 8 margm add-on, Reference rates will noemlly be sel for a
period of thres menths, but the margin can be determined for considerably longer periods. In times of significant interest rate fluctuations and
reduced Bguidity in the maskel, as has been the case during the financial lumoil, long-temm funding costs increased. This is of significance for
the margin requirements used by Ihe bank in ds calculafions, The margin requiremenis are measured against agreed mangins. and discre-
pancies are discounted over the average pericd up until the expected margin adjustment. This period is based on assessments from the
banking group's business areas, bul will require significant udgment based cn past expenence The perfod up unlil the aclual adjustrment of ihe
meargin repogsents the targest element of uncerisinty in these calcufations, Margin loans camied at fair value tofalied NOK 12 092 million at year-
and 2016

Cemmercial paper and bonds
Investmenls classified as level 3 pimarly consist of corporate high-yield bonds with Imited liguidity

Equities including mutual fund holdings

brrvesiments classified as bevel 3 consist of pmvate aguity funds, limited pafnerships and unquoted squitres, A common denomanator for thess
Investments is thal there 5 o lag in the access to formation from the unils. In times of financial market turmald, there my be considerabie
uncerainty related to Ehe valuation of these investments.

Financial derivitlves, assets and Habilities
Rems classifed as leval 3 are primarily curency oplions, interest rale options in Norwegian kroner and denvatives reéated 1o developments in
Ife conswmer price index,

OHEB Bank ABA Broakdown of fair value, level 3 OHB Bank Group
1 December 2016 31 December 2018
Commarcial Commuercial
Share-  paper and Loant ba Lodneio  paper and Share-
helgings Eanch & % t 3 By maldings

L] 412 15 Bl Prncipal amcuntisurchass price a3 Tas 412 70

138 (1)) 4 Fair valup ackrsimont " 21 3N (L]
a4 Acceued intarest 151

Tag 375 16053 Carying smaucd B 447 375 e

11 Changes in the fair value of custormes foang manly resul fram changes in swap mies. A comesponding negelive adjug me is made b the far value of francal

iy iy used for ve hadging,
DHB Bank ASA Breakdown of shareholdings, leval 3 OB Bank Group
Private Private
Equdy (PE) Unuated Unguidesd  Egquity (PE)
Tomm Cithiee lnds _ squtes Souitiay lunds Cither Toaw
788 4 228 543 Carrying emeust ot ot 31 Decembe: 2016 535 728 ) B
CHE Barik ABR Sensithvily analysis, level 3 D#HB Bank Group
EMaect of easonably Carrying Carrying Efect of reascmably
possibin sRamatve Aarmoun mrmszent posmbie BSEmatae
& oS 31 Dec, 2018 31 Diec, 2018 assumpticns
(28 16052  Loans o customens 0 47 [1&B)
n 376 Commercal paper and bonds 376 iy
788  Sharsholdngs i1
257 Financial decivatives, net 251

In order to show the sensitiily of the lsan poriolio, the deeount rate on fixed-rate loans and the margn requirement on margin-based loans.

have been increased by 10 basis ponts.

Level 3 bonds mainly represent investments in Noreegian indusines and power companies. A 10 basks point increase in the discount rate has

had insignifican edfects
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Note 29  Offsetting

The table below presents the polential effecls of ihe banking group's netling arangements on inancial assets and fnancial Babifies. See
note 1 Accounbng principles for more infarmation

DHB Bank AL
Amourts
cffsl ini the Arnounts
slaternent atef
Groas  of Snencial Camying Nemiag Cther potubie
Amounts in NOK miSlon amaount position amoar]  agosments  coiabersl notting
Assets as af 31 December 3018
Tue froe coedt ingitutions 153 835 163 g3 153 838
Loans to customers ™ 43 408 43408 43 498
Financial derrestioes V¥ 705 134 T o 50 e A5 &7
Listiimies as an 31 December 2016
Due tor credit insStusions ! 50 oA fedl EO 018
Depasity from custoenar * 1165 1185 1165
Finaneial d h 145 722 145 722 54 580 27454 8 648
DONB Bank ASA
Amounty
offel ini the Ammounts.
vistamant ater
Gross  of dnencial Carying Hemng Cther possible
Ammmm wmound pecralion BnsciE B esments colimberal ' _!h;m_
Asselts o8 al 31 DecembDer 2515
Due from creit inatitutions © 278 285 275258 278 384
Loars to customees = 38 Ba5 38 545 38 545
Finantial darieathes 165 BED 168 S0 57 a8 30532 53 B50
Liabil#ies as af 31 December 2015
Due to cradi nssitutions ' 2 00 22 001 200
Dapsonits. from custome s =
Finangial daervatioes 032 307 202 307 o748 449635 8 174
DM Bank Group
Amounrts
ol in the Arounts
siatament ater
Guss ofsmcsl  Camjeg  Nesn  Ofw  pwsshie
Argunts in NOK milon amount pouition mmowd  ageemerts  collateral ' molting
Astels as al 1 Decemnber 2010
Bus from credi inutitutions ~ 183 838 153 538 183 538
Loans ta cutbomars © FLEL 43496 ER
Finansial dacrsthes 134 367 124 397 54 03 BT 33088
Liabilmies as ot 31 December 2016
Dus to credit imstitusons 20 375 20375 20378
Deposits from customers 1185 1185 1185
Financial dechvatives e 85334 =30 FrLl |-
DME Bank Group
Amaunty
offied in the Amounis
slatament afer
Groes  of Snencial Camying Neming Cther possible
A 12 in MO milan amaunt ot AMcun!  Agr me  collaberal nmting
Assets as al 31 December 2015
Du from creddt institutions ¥ra A 278 338 e aar
Loams Lo customers A B4 38 Al 0 848
Financial decrstves 154 4B8 168 458 57 833 8542 55 31
Lishil®ies as af 31 December 7015
Du bo- cradi iniStusicns * 2001 22001 22000
Depasits from cuttomon
Financial decwatives 198 723 18723 57 8¥5 48 578 12810
b octudes cash colaloval and o ot an slimad fromie Sourtivpitios and securbing Mot icnd & & colabaal i depodd i Ch ar
Ewcclsar
3 lncluces repurchase and TRpTETRESE BpTeR 3, securtod boviowing and' lemdng Iensactons.
N Groes amoints nepresa (he manked vatue of the devivalives suljec! fo master neffing og iz or colk iired by cash or sacuntins under Crealt Supeod
Anngx.
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Mote 30 Sha rehnldins_]s

Invesimedats in shares, mubual funds and agquity certificates "

CHE Bank AR DMB Bank Group
31 Dec 1 Dec. 31 Doc. &1 D,
216 2018 Amounts m NOK mélon pur) [} 28
T h0d 5178 Total Inve-stments in shares, noutual furds and equity cerificales i 00 75
SpecHication of the largest Investments In shares, mutual funds and equity certificates as at 31 December 2016
D0l Bank Afa Dl Daris Grong
[T [ ]
Husar T Répoadad T Wiy [t ]
g o i RO T 00 of shares po e walie Gy amout i MO P o il ey par it N
Fimnncial | nsRutiong Financlal bnsaitug ons
G patrzntioes Femabang ™ L WO Bkl M Yotk 10 00 W P00
Sxar ey § T 850 13 T Laci ey 1 TR AN 13 FELELT]
[ S L TN TR Coer RRoniedl SabhEs e A0 AT
Totwi fanancial inwtitutl one Lo e Total finarcial inatEutions 13N s
Morweglan companios Werwegian companies
AmanEsnh Sreppeng Company &L AT =T 2100 Mg 47 B3 'E ] sE AN
D™ 5057 il on 0 Aewericen Shippasy Comparny ¥ S8 157 157 255007
Ersaliarieisth Ll ] 1 BT & 25 ] ST W ns LE R ]
ke Eberadom 1o vam 1a2 124 WO Eendomprersi LR e 0571
Warrs e 11& RO ar p gt Finr Essndom )] e 1R
Wondc Samconaeder ¥ T80 e 13 Man ik B 19185 703 il 12% {2
aprms iggng ¥ TATh &Gk ar 4580y Rdanre parvesi ¥ 138 &l 0y S E0
Moy Bemal Sarmos AN &N T4 A pE B Seprted it FRLTE =] ia 15 404
e i A.:.-;'m.n-" sHWr (=1} B3 ATy Eiemiy Fiop s Sapren FEAE ] L] A G Y
WS et ™ ¥ 0 a0l i HIGH  Mowmepan s Sums ™ mren om LA
oy Trioe Beeraemuisap ™ e L= a3 MR NEE G T 451 ia CRE
Crpars Slvetrn " T O 14 MO2  Cpain Solase " 20 00 ia 75 032
Cirida ™ 1 ¥R 432 a1 LR =2 B 100 4332 a1 ERRT
Tt ™ L 510 JaT @t 18 280 Telanaor ™ 1521 97 a1 1 150
Then Eem Bacmorsg ™ 13 BT 300 1T a5 6 Trw Pl Plpcromen Pt 1] Py )
(HEvr Wt CompaeEL BF B0 CSher Rahwe (N comgsnes TG 108
Tobml Fiorwegiae oo mpeden I ATV BET Toknl Morwss gian ¢ mganis TEIREN
Companies based abroad Companies based abroad
agere ® TR EN =0 WO e ™ JmIER 50 IE G
Crary 25 K o K Emats ey ag 00 ie &0 BTy
Doip S gpry ¥ RRET ] M B Oeeo San fuppy ™ LLRFLT A IR
i o LB ™ & v s a3 SR Gl L W CRLER ) &3 BN
oden Do oo ™ | 53¢ 240 14 6 eag olden Conen Groue ™ LR e 837 Bre
St ¥ BE10 7o ar f0F aTa Seagrl ¥ B41g T av Taiam
Eadeem T ¥ 430 EE ol 455 Sbom 7" 42981 o1 45 5
Tuabidly Cviersors Parearsy 47i =35 I=11] B3 010 T kayy e Sargeary ¥ 474 535 ol ik ]
(v G Lira<E aliad DAY Oher compnes hased e ;T B
Total ¢ mpanine bassd sbrosd 156355  Tetsl compuanins biksed sbroad 15855
wtual funds Iutual funds
Wit trem. HDDED Rosial fures Ll
Frslle emely L 408 Pyl equity Rnes AR AR
e Bl PSRN [= T TN 230 T
Totml mubsl furss B EH Totsl mutusl funds aee
Tl ervandmessiy m Wy e oo Satdudd Tole swwptrecty o shares mofus ey and

11 Equily cedficeles represent imvoamenls in sevings banks

B Cwnecalvp sham in poe cont /8 Based on Bhe company's fofal shine captel and does nof include dervalive confmels

B Shares ang funds corsed af far viloe in Markits folaied NOR 4 207 millan of yoar-end 3016 Makets' equly imesimants ang mainly o instnenent in bedging
itz mquily demalive sxposure frough the busines: area's markel making adivilies Value o Risk for e aquly operalions in Markefs mprecested approaimafely
NOK 5 5 malvon af yoar-and 2018,
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Note 31 Transferred assets or assets with other restrictions

DNE Bank ABA Transferred assets stlll recognised in the balance sheat DNE Bank Group
31 Dec M Des. 31 D 31 Dec
Fithll Fl] A rig dn WO millien 2018 2,015
Guarantess
222 Loans ransfecned o Exsportinans 2212
Repurchase agroements
5128 14728 Commarcial paper and bonds 1479 E128
Securltles lending
] 1l Shares HE 5
i 14 841 Totsl rapwrchats sgresmsents and tecuries lendng A4 841 ]
DB Bark A5A Liabilities associaled with the assels DNEB Bank Group
3 Dec 31 O, 51 Dec 31 Dec.
04 2015 ,ﬂ"wmmw 2048 mis
Guarantess
2212 Cepotds mom Exgponfinans 2212
Repurchase agresnants
3 mar 10448 D to oredi nshitubions 10248 iror
L] 1185 Creposits from customa s 1185 51
Securlties lending
a1a 24 D by coridll inabituti o 224 618
172 2 Doy from ) z 172
T AT 11 857 Tatel linbiites 11 867 TATH

DHE Bank ASA recognised loans which according to o legal agreement have been fransferred o Eksportfinens ASA and were guarantesd by
DME Bank ASA. Accordng to the agreement, the bank camied interest rate. settlerment and credit risk associated with the transferred loans. The
loars had B correspondng listility recognised as deposits from Eksportfinans. Al year-end 2015 the loan porifoiio trensterred (o Ekspofinans
amounted to HOK 2 212 milion, st year-end 2016 the balance was zeno

Restricted assets

Lecal statudory capital requirements might resirict the abilty of the Group bo sccess or transfer assets freely to o from cther entiies within the
Group and bo setthe liabilities within the Greup.

Resliriclions aMecting the Group's ability to use assels:

¢ The Group has pledped a9921% [o collateralise RS obligations {pledged secufities) and (4sued covered bonds (cover pool), see nole 45 OfF-
batance sheet transaclions and contingencies for further information

tx The Group has pledged collateral in connection with derivathee instruments. see nole 15 Financial dernalives for further information,
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Mote 32 Securities received which can be sold or repledged

DHE Bank ABA Securitlies roceived OB Bank Group
3 Dme 3 Dee M Dae, 31 Dae
M8 2016 Amaurts i NOK mellon Fari|] 2%
Revarse rapurchase agresments
310 S57 Vi 0EY Commercal paper and bonds 180 D83 310 862
Securitles borrowing
4 831 3121 Shares H a2 483
38 480 221 204 Tatal securtins ecehed 21 204 316 503
O which secunting received and subsequacily sold o gt
# 655 & 200 Commenial papor end bonds & 20 B ESS
S 825 10 oFd Shares R oad X &25

Secunties which have besn porchased under an agresment to resell are genarally not recognised, as the risk and retums. associated wih
cwnership of the dssets are normally nol iransferred, Such ransachons peamarily invohve fiked-income securlies, Secunilies received, including
securties received as collateral, are registered off the balance sheel imespective of whether the Group has the right 1o sell or repledge the
securitves. Lipon the sale of securities recerved, the Group will record an obligation in the balance shest

Note 33 Commercial paper and bonds, held to maturity

DB Bank A5A ONB Bank Group
31 Due 31 Dee 31 Qe 3 Des
2015 =8 Amirts im WOK mlion 018 205

19162 12 760 International bond pordlobo 12780 19163

19 162 12 780 Commercial papar and tans. heid (o maturity 12760 19162

As part of engaing kauidity management, DNE Bank has invesied in a porifoic of securities. The porticlio can be used 1o regulate the liquidiy
requirement and as a basis for fumishing collateral for operations in vanous countries. Among other things, the securties serve as collatesal for
sharl and long-term borowing in @ number of céntral banks and &3 o basis for liquiddy butfers to meel reguistory requirernents, With effect from
1 July 2008, the intem alional bond portiolio was reclassifed from the category ek value through profit or loss® bo “held-te-matunby
Irvestments”. In the period following the reclassfication some sddiional invesiments were clasdified as held-lo-malusty, Porfolios in this
calegory are recorded al amortised cost and wiitlen down if there is objective evidence of o decrease in value

Effects of the reclassifications of the international bond portfolic

By measunng the portfolio at amortised cost, the value of the portfoio as at 31 December 2016 was NOK 0.3 bilkon higher than if the previcus
valugtion prinsiple had Desn retained. On the reclassifcation date, the camying amaount of ihe porfobo was NOK B8.0 billlon, compared with
HOK 10.4 billion ol end-December 2016, The average berm to malunfy of the portfolio was 5.2 years, and the changs in value resylting from o
credit spread adjustment of one basis poinl was MOK S 8 milion at end-December 2016

Effects on profits of the reclassificallon D#ME Bank Group
Amesunts in MOK mion a8 20s
Racorded amdnation effect 2] -]
tiet gain, if valued o fair valus 248 {170

Efgcts of reclnssifcalion on profits [el2 ] -
Effecis on the balanse sheet of the reclassification DME Bank Group
I D, 31 D

_Aameunts in NOK miign 2016 2015
o aicied unraalied loates ana 402
Urenalivnd lotsse, il valued af Tair valus EES 1113
Efscin of melagiifcalicn on the Balancs shasl T ™
Dovelopmaent In the portfolio afler the reclassification O#E Bank Group
31 Dec. 31 Dwc.
Amesunts i NOK it M98 2ms
Recintsbad porifalia, carmying amosunt a4 14 655

Rotlansibed portfelia il vidusd o faif vahie 10 087 13875
Efects of roclausiScation on the balance shes T i
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Note 34  Investment properties

Amounts included in the ncome stalemant DME Bank Group
Arneunis in NO® milian 208 18
Rantsl incame fom invedmsnt propartiey Lk 33
Dringct g t (ircluding ripass and mar vEi ) dlabied § 0 i STl properhin gineEling fintsl noome =] {87
Dingst enpaneng (neluding mpsirs and mainh ) rblabend R i v il properties nol generating rental incane 20y 151}
Totsl 47 B

Irmvestment properties are mainly related to scquired companies and ore classiied at level 3 in Ihe valuation hisrarchy.

Changes In the value of invesiment properies DHE Bank Group
Armeunis in NOW milon Lroagamant o aitied
Carrying amcunt &8 al 31 Docember 3014 4741
Addont, purthated of Aew plopertie 152
Addibont, capitalised investmants 58
Agddisons, acquired companies 254
Hat gains 268
Disposals (3430
Exchasgs rale me J 87
Cammying amocunt &5 al 31 December 713 1313
Additions, parchases of new proparties By
Addions, capitalised imvestmanty B
Addons, acquined companies 163
Hat gasrre ; {35
Dispotals £1311)
Exshangs rabe movements {65
Carmying aounl &% af 31 Decemnber 7016 1178
Confacival commimants ralabed 1o e Acquismen of continscton of ivvedmant propertes, nol capitaiissd a3 al 31 December 2016 o

1 leciudes MOK 622 milfion in imvestment propevises in the Bebics, recessifies o5 acsels held for zefe in Avgust 2018
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Mote 36 Investments accounted for by the equity method

DMB Bank Group
Amaunte in NOK mdon il ] S
Gaerying smount as st 1 January 4091 3T
Sharw of profis sfor tax ™ e ]
Irparment of e mmmmm El.-l.;o:u'lhlm..q.s N 14d 158
Share of other :mmnm:m 5 e 2]
fdditionsidsposals [5.1. 71 13
Dndends
Carmying amount as at 31 December " 3870 4091

DME Bank Group

Cramuship Cairying Camying

BAguaty Lisbiitins share (%) ameunl neunt

31 Dec. 3 Dec. Income PredE 31 Dee M Dec, 3 Dee

Asmaunts im NOK malon e 2018 " e " 018" JOHE 8 S
Eksporfirans A5 4171 26 108 o ] 40 3218 ERE ]
Wisa Noige ~ 3 s
Cither assoceated companies 2] 2]
_Tatal 3570 4 051
DHNE Bank ASA

Cremarship Crying Cairying

shaue %) ot mmount

CHvisdend 31 D 31 Doc. 3 Do

Ameainds i WO i 2018 2016 2098 25
Eksponfinans A5 " 40 19 #1g
Other axsoosted companies T ]
Total ] L]

1) Mecchr's and Standasd § Poor's dovngesders of EkspoedGnans’ cradl aling & the fowrdt guaer of 2011 resobisd in 2l irrsdiied gams oo e compe iy’
long-term furding. The effect of | hese irsaliced gaing on DVB 'z Rolding, after lax. meprasenfed NOK 118 &fien, Afler neviewing IFe fair value of the cornpany

iy conmechon with the cising of ihe sanval sccoms, CWE wiohs dovs (he voiue by &0 amount cormenannamg ho Livoadsed guars o0 Eksporimana’ oarn doebd i
the fosutl guanior of 2011, Snce 2011, the required rade of rplurm in the mavied wes seduced, WE*W Bl Siriibie uria foed I02303 St S dedd
Tie impaiment fosx recorded by D8 i e fourth quader of 2011 wes byan ot i {0 M iped boxoes. The nvmmaining

.lt#l.ldmd‘umwiuwmmI#nﬂuﬂuimﬂdmzﬂ!ﬁ.fﬂlmhﬂﬂbﬂm?ﬂf!ldm“ﬂmmmﬂmﬂnlmm
gy v timnls accooated far by the equily medtodl akeng with DIVE'z shave of profilbs figum the covmpany

B3 DNE hag indinect caversfp inlevests in Vise Eurape rough 2 berafiip i Visa Nanway fn connedion wih i vadwation of e heidiegs it Vies Europe
g o 31 March 2016 an socomulsed palr of NOK 835 milan was 7 i ol compneh incovma. Lipon the complstion of The acquizhon of Viza
Europe by Visa inc in the second guaner of 2018, ik amount wes seclasafied io proft and a hoal gain of NOK | 128 milion was meagnired &2 "Froff from
Ienpelimants aceounbed for By [he equty medhod™ in The neame slalement,

] mmmmmmﬂwhlnhmm fiacted in the cormpany's bai shosl.

& Valuex in ite sccounts of ssseciated comg Py v and o sccounts have bown used.
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Note 36 Investments in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016

DHE Bank ABA
Cwmerkip

Amounts in 1 008 Shme Humibsr Nominal share in Carrying
Walues in NOK unfess of ferense indiceled copkal of shares W pir cant prrsmint
Fareign subs|dares
DB imvest Denmark DEE 12765228 12 785 220 aie DHE 12768 224 100 10143 138
BB Bankas EuR e 208 50154 EUR 180 208 1060 335883
DNE Banka EUR 151 178 LR LT ELR LR EL] 1 133505
DHE Pank EUR 8378 83T B4 EUR aame 100 #2819
DHE Bank Polika PLN 1267200 1 25T 200 D00 PLN 1257 700 09 1773560
DB Agia ! uso 1 500 000 150 DO 000 UED 1 500 000 100 23 el
DhB Axia SG0 20 000 20 000 D00 f-iclid 20000 100 100 a8
D Brasd BRL 800 8560 85 BRL £00 160 2668
DME Capitsl 7 100 20662080
DHE Luxamourg EUR 70000 0000 ELR 000 100 635 TaB
DB Markets Inc. usp 1 1000 LSl 1 100 3135
DB Seaden SEK 100 00O 100 D00 000 SEK 100 000 100 13 TS ET2
DB (LUK} Limited GRP 200 200 000 Gap 200 100 12307 BB
Domestic subsidianes
Antie- eg Elendamarves 100 100 000 1m 100 BT
Brygoeionge Halding 3250 2500 3250 100 £3 230
Digrtal Wabpe = 2m 7 100 7200
DHE Bolghrecn 3857 000 38 570 000 3 857 000 100 XN 384 000
DHE Elndom 10 003 100 033 10 00 100 158 021
DHiE Eiendomistiking B1.000 21000 000 91 00 100 3™
DHE Gantandssdminsiragan 3000 n Eque ] 100 3000
DHE Imvesd Haldng 100 oo 00 000 100 pod 1og 172 00
DHE Maglersordics 1200 12 1200 1068 022
DB Naingskredit L] SE0-000 550 000 100 S 240842
BB Hamnngsmeghng 1060 10 000 1 o0 100 24 00O
DNE Polh Propariey 1300 1300 b0 ] ®E 13
Gl feian 8030 8030 B0 100 27 600
Gadforden 1000 10000 1o 100 T 000
Fongrbesg Bdusinmendom 100 1000 L] 100 A0 000
Tatal Investments In subsidiaies 11& B30 322

1r DB Asa Lid fas pat of 5 share coptel denomineded iv 550 (dus fo focel quirerents) and 8 pawt of s shaw capfe! denominated iv USD.
2 DONB Capdai LLE, a fimded Sabilly compary, has paschin capdal of LSO 2 4 kiion

Hedging of investments in subsidiaries

In DHE Bank ASA currency risk associated with foneign currency investments in subsidhares is subject to fair value hedgng The hedging
Inslruments used are mainky debl securfies issued. Changes in the value of (he investments and hedging insiriments resulling from exchange
robe movements are recorded i the income slaternent, At group bewel, nel invesiments in subsidianes are hedged through cosh low hedges Tor
an amount cormesponding to DHE Bank's investments. Changes in the value of investments and hedging instruments. are recorded in the
comprahensive mcome siatement. inefectivenass in the hedging relalanship is recognised in the iIneome statement. The strengihening of the
Neoraegian krone through 2016 decreased the value of investments in subsidiaries by HOK § 745 mileen, which was offset by a comespondng
Increase inihe value of heaging coniracts, adjustad for 1ax effects. in 2015, there was an increase in the value of Investmants in subsidianes by
HOK & 487 million,
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Mote 37 Intangible assets

DHE Bank ABA OB Bank Group
3 Dme 31 Dec 3 Dae, 31 Dae
2016 2016 Armoints in MW milkon ey 2018
3012 2821 Goodwil 10467 Bl ]
S0 BT Captsizad sysienys development B34 BTE
162 106 Cifae rinngebis BLLHL 100 168
ELTEY 3568 Total intangitde assets 3031 4178
DNE Bank AEA
Capitakised Ceher
tybems intangiis
Amgunits i MOK mafesy Gigmredoredl divilapimsn (1303 Tomal
Coost as al 1 January 2005 3 B 2167 n] a7
Additions. 137 a 138
fudditions from the ac i it of ogher
Increaseireduction in cost price
Dripotaly i @i 22 (B33
Exchangs ma%e mavemants a7 1 i &7
Cost s at 31 December 2015 3678 14846 o] 5088
Total deprecintion and impsirmaent as ot t Janaary 2015 B {182 1) [r g rrdl
Bepreciabizn (187 (48} 1245)
R R (6 56}
Deipetaly 1 61 2 B33
Exchangs ra movesnents i) i) i) (14}
Total depraciation and impairnant &s at 31 Decamber 2015 (58] (78 {672 23y
CamAng smalnt as f 11 December 2015 1012 s10 152 67
Cost ms ot | Jamoary 2016 aEM 1464 B25 L Gal
Adctiont 68 323 ]
fuddtions fom the et eumBonfestablivhment of cifer companies 9 (el }]
Incressairaduction in coal price ) (41h
Ceposals =1} 108 452y [348)
Exchangs rate moveenents {55} L] [14) T
Costanat 31 D e 2018 ] 1857 aa1 L
Total coprecaton and impaimrsent ot at 1 January 2018 (B6S) BT fL ] Lra ikl
Depreciation (135 e (188}
Irpame £ 1]
Cesposaly 41 (165 134 7
Exchangs rate movecnents 3 z 11 15
Tetal depracintion ard Enpairment as at 39 Decomber 2016 (623 {1 208} (575} {2487
Carng amount &5 M 31 December 2016 28 LT 106 a5
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Note 37 Intangible assets (continued)
DNB Bank Group
Copitaisad Cther
tytlem intangile
Amcaunts in NOK milfon Gt devaoprmant aiiaty Total
Coat ot ot 1 Janusry 3015 4807 3T 1110 § 585
Addsong 12 142 Bt 204
Mdditions from the acquisiion/esiabishment of oiher companisy
Increasadneduction in cost price
Dingrosals {11} (811) {118} 841
Exchange rate movements 57 118 164) 1o
Cost os ot 31 Docomber 2016 4 885 3305 iTh & 039
Total depreciation and impaiment as at 1 Janusry 2015 {1 560; 28z (BET} 05 3480
Depenciation {2} {83} ¥
I pairmmant 1561 166)
Dispoaaly 2 811 3 BAT
Exghangs rale movamanty (7} i3 " 19
Total daproceatesn and avparment i o1 31 Dy et 2015 i1 588 i@ 51 {778} (4 B3]
Casmying amount a6 ot 31 December 3013 3108 #rE e 4178
Coat am ot 1 Janwary 3016 4 665 ] k7 | & 038
Addmgns 18 288 ME 532
Addiians from the acquistion/mtablinhment ol oher o ] 143 wn
Increanebeducion in cost price 141} [ 1)
Disposals [ (367} () Lk
Exctange rate movements 158} [E5} ] {180
Coatenat 31 D bt 3016 4 585 33241 Bkt B 668
Tetsl dapreciation and impairment @ 81 1 January 2016 (1 568} 25 (778 (4 BE3)
Depenciation {241} 143 (254)
Inpairment (5 =1} im
Dispouals 0 08 52 358
JGEewicpy ¢ iy Friot siTegirity 2 -1 i 112
_Torsl depreciation and mroakment 23 131 Decombor 7018 {1 538} (2417} {F41} [4 655
Camying as ab 31 O Faa ] J0a7 a4 i 3581
Goodwill

The: risk-free interest rale is sel ol 3 per cénl, the markel risk premium is el al 5 per cenl. and the leng-tenm growth factor is sel at 2.5 per cent
for all cash-generating units. Bete values are estimated separately for each cash-generating unit. Required rete of retum |s before tay. Fora
detaded descriplion of methods and assumplions used in the caloulation of the recoverable amaunt for goodwill, see note 1 Ascounting
principles.
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MNote 37 Intangible assets (continued)
DNE Bank ASA Goodwill per unit as at 391 December 2016 OHE Bank Group
Roquined Feguined
Racorded  rabe of return  Growth Tactor Growth Bacter  mabe of ntum Recorded
(NOK millan} et £nl) (par eenl) {pae enrt) (par cenly (MO mdiion)
2 124 25 Fercon curiomery 5 124 9z
483 124 I8 Emall and modium sized snempises 28 124 A
TH 124 25 OB Finans = car Bnancing 4.1 124 TE
[ 124 I8 Other 15 124 8
ELF) Total goodwil 3047
DNB Bark ASA Goodwdll per unil as at 31 December 2015 DB Bank Group
Required Reguined
Recorded  fabe of return  Geowth Tactor Geowth Ectes st o redum Rtsorded
(HOK miica) {pst cont) {par el {pae cant) {por conty (MO million)
BEZ 118 25 Partorsl cutlomars 5 e Gz
48 11.8 25 Small and medium sized sremises 28 118 dED
an 1.8 25 [#4B Finans - car francing 26 114 3]
TS 1.8 28 Chor 28 118 L
3012 Total gooswit 3100
B I -

This unil encompasses banking operations (fleans and deposils) for personsl cusomers in the regional nefwork in Norway, and recorded good-
will mainly stems from the menger between DnB and Giensidige NOR and the acquisdion of Nordlandsbanken . in addition. some goodwill
rernains from previously acquired offces in Glensidige NOR. Key assumptions for cash fliows during the plan penod are developments in
miarging, volumes and impalrment of loans.

Small and medium sized enlemprises = parent bank

Thi% unit encompasses banking cperations (loans and deposits) for corporate customers in ihe reglonal netweork in Morway, and recorded
goodwill mainly stems from the merger bebaesn DnB and Gjensidige NOR. Key assumplions for cash flows during the plan period are develop-
menls in marging, velumes and impaiment of loans.

DNE Finans — car financing

The unil encompasses DNB'S cas financing operalions in Norway and Sweden, and goodwll slems from DNE'S acquisition of Skandinbanken’s
car financing eperations with effect from 2008, Critical assumptions Tor cash News during the plan pericd are car sales figures and DHE Finans'
ability te relain customer ralations with imporant car dealers, along with bong-terrn margin developments gnd the el of impasment of loans

B4 | DHEBANK - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

312/350



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O000000000000o000o0o00o0ooo0000ondnE26109)
Oooooooa

Note 38 Fixed assets

HE Bank ABA
Bank
buikdings Machinery, Fioed azsels
vl olbset squipment operating Otfepr xmd

Armcunis in NOH millan propertasy  and vehicles Inatey maly Toksl
Actumulated ot as ot 31 Decomber 2015 200 310 B 64 15 11 965
Reclavsifiod fied nssets 7 7
Addons ] 165 2333 1 2508
Dispouals (1) {242) {2 86Ty L1 (2845
Exchangs rale movements {13) L] (206 oy (318}
Cestanni 31 O b 2018 172 3007 BO18 " 11 208
Toksl dupracistion and impaiiment a3 81 31 Decermber 7015 (33 (1523 {2927 =] (% 465}
Digposals ] 188 1 883 o 1772
Depeuciation ' T a0 {12523 4] (1 670}
Ewchange rate mossmants 3 3 103 1] 108
Tnuﬂm lndmiﬂntnﬂ!imzﬂ'ls L&3| i1 G _1:21‘3’.!‘! (1] Mﬂ‘ﬂ.
Carrying asmount as a1 31 D bar 2018 133 1367 5525 ] 7034
DHE Bank Group
Bank

Ensbdingh Maskmery, Fopd antels
sdete  pquipment  eperting  Other el

Amounts in WOK miloan propertes  and vashicles lnnses L 1] Total
Asturlpted coil at 8 31 Decermber 20495 78 L Bedn 174 13122
Raclaviifod foed mineln T T
Acddtans 12 k] 2333 27 2813
Fixed aisels, reclasiified an hold for sale [EaL:] (2000} (100} {75
Disposai {188 (265 12 867 @ @17
Exghangs raie o 2] 24 i298) i {23
Cont ws a2 31 D B 2HE 173 313 ama &7 11 384
Totsl deprecsation and mparment a3 81 31 December 2015 20 (1821} e =] (104} (5 0E3)
Fixed assats, reclssified as heid for sale 113 208 a2 3ha
Dizposnis T 250 1 S84 sl 1812
Depevciation ' {30 {344]) 1V 250y 113 {1 631}
Inpairmant (L] {83
Exchange fals movements 12 14 k] ] 133
Teokal depreciation and irpakment a3 81 31 Decenber 2016 {34 (1 T8 {2 283y {31} & 278}
Cal mmount a5 &t 31 Decamber 2018 133 144 5 B35 EL ] TAT
1 Bssed on cod less any reedual valie, ofher azmels ane puliect lo draighl.ine dep s hasdr #xp 1 el iy within the fallowing lmts:

Techrical instalations D yoars

Machimany 3190 yoars

Fixfunes ang [Bings 10 pearz

Cormpoier eguprent -5 ywars

Aoans of franspot 5T yoarz

The DHE Bank ASA has not placed any callateral for loans®unding of fived assels, including property
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Mote 39 Assets and liabilities held for sale

Cin 25 August 2016 DNE and Nordea announced an agreement to combine thelr operations in Estonda, Labda and Lithuania. The transaction ks
conditional upon reguintory apprevals, and is expected lo close in the secand quarter of 2017, Nordea and DNE will heve equal voling rghts in
the combined bank, while having different economic cwners bip levels that reffect the redative equity value of their contribution to the combined
bank at the bme of closing.

Onea the transaction has been completed ONB Bank ASA will ne longer have Ul control of its subsidiares, bul will be imsehead in the financial
&nd operaling policy decigions of the new company estpblished together with Nordes, AL end-December 2015 all assels and Bobilibes refated to
DHE's Baltic operations were presented as heid fior sale, while there were no changes in the presentaltion in the income statement. The capital
aoequACy reporing was not affected. Noimpakmyent (oss has been recognized in the income stalemenl following the reclassification. The
subisiiaries are part of DHE's Lange cofporates and international customers segment, Fellowing the completion of the transaction, DNE's
awnership will be consoldaled on one ling in the financial statement according tothe equity method

The table below shows consclidabed balance sheel smounts reclassilied as assels and linbilities held for sabe ot end-December 2016,

DHE Baltics
Ameunts in NOK milln 2018
Assats
Gash and deposits with central banks 1548
Due from credil instilubons b
Loans bo customers &5 007
Commercial paper and bonds at fair value 17113
Shareholdngs &7
Finandhal defvatives T2
Invedment propenies 607
Intangible assels FL ]
Deferred lax assels 12
Flred asssls A0
Cihier assels 375
Total pssets 52 303
Liabilities
Due to credil mstilutbons g
Deposils from cuslomers 56 and
Financial derivatives o5
Payable taxes |
Cater liabdities 43
Prowisions 4
Total kabilities 41 165
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Note 40 Leasing

DONE Bark ASA Financial lsasaes (as lessar) DOME Bank Growug
3 Dae. 31 D, 3 D 3 Daz
2015 20148 Armouts in WOK méion 2018 A5
Geosy wvesimant in e leste
11 =8 12 165 Do within 1 year 13472 12282
28 558 31 M8 Dow n 1-5 years 5624 v e}
2988 3 2TS Do i moce than § yeans 333 I 042
42 GaE 48 TEB Totsl groes rvastmand in the lese 2431 A7 BEY
Present valug of mimimum lease payments
0 T4 11 7@b Dus within 1 year 12030 11 TRe
Ban 2535 Diusi i 1-5 yoars k] 6 585
181 21m Dol i imisd o theh & bt 221 207
¥ 7 38195 Tkl itk value of leats payments 44 039 40410
3] 7554 u d Rhancial incaima 8353 7248
128 =] Ungunnasissd e dual valuss szcnoimg ba th lnssor 85 128
1728 B2 Arcurnulated loan-loss provisions h: ] 142
44 &1 Viriakle lease paymeeiy secogrised s income dunng the perded 17 118
DONE Bank ABA Operalional leases (as lessor) DNE Bank Group
3% Dec. 3 ez, 31 Dwe 31 Dec
208 2018 Amcwnls in NOK millon 2018 2018
Future rrammuns [pass paymants undss non-candsllable lpases
E=] 43 Drep within 1 year 3z 54
1 Téh 1708 D in 1.5 years 172 177
35 X3 Cuse i mor e than & yesrs 33 38
2167 2083 Toted future minimum leazs payments under non-cancel sbie mases 2058 2 187
DNE Bank ABA Opodalional leases (a8 lesses) DB Bank Croup
3 Dec, 31 Dez, 31 Dee 31 Dee,
2005 2018 Armexnis in NOR million 28 2015
Minimum Estore leose payments urder non-cancelfable lerses
n L} Do within 1 year &3 k1
5=k ] T2 Dusw in 1.5 yours 448 &70
§ 125 & BAT Dist in masrw than & years & HAT B 142
8740 g %) Toted rssrrm Rrdure lease payments under nan-cancel able leates LR G Bl
Tiotal rrisimum fture subleate payments exp d 1o be 4 undas cancelnkl
ol ATH sstdbnted 2687 225
DNE Bank ABA DONE Bank Croug
2015 2018 Amounts in NOK miion 2018 2015
Lisadad récognited a4 ah axpaais dunmg the pensd
LoH 857 Minimum bease payments a2 Bed
Warable lease payments
L5 857 Totel leases recognised as an espense during the peciod a2 823
im ] Inpairment af lsases [ m

Financial leases {as lessor)
The OB Bank Group's financeal leasing cperations apply to DNE Bank ASA and DNB's cperations in Baltics and Poland.

Operaticnal leases (as lessor)
Mainly comprises operalional [easing operalions in DNE Bank ASS

Operational leases (as lesses)
Manly comprises premises leased by ONB Bank ASA
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Mote 41 Other assets
DHE Bank ABA DNEB Bank Group
31 D 31 Du I Dee 3 D
2015 016 Armauets in NOK milion L] 28
54 6 Acerieed supanses and prepasd ievenoes Bl BBy
1404 -] Bz gond rilary £recis ared Dier payFent Seeacat 1B 1480
a83 1080 Uinsattied contraet nolos 1187 1148
e B 855 Cither amounts cefatanding " & A0 5202
13735 13 462 Total other assets & 155 BEH
11 ONE Bank ASA bad sutifinding group canftibulons idlilng NOK § 237 mllod e ot 31 Decimber 2016,
& Ofher aiiels ané geraally of @ shorl-ferm falere.
Note 42 Deposits from customers for principal customer groups
CHB Bank ABA D#B Bank Group
31 Duc +1 Dec. H Dec. ¥ Det.
il ania Amounts im N OK miflon 018 il
a3 154 Beg 457 Privabe individuals A2 5110
B B16 51T Tranportaton by toa snd pipeline and voutel conilrution 51 T L
Ad Do 47 T Feal srtale 43 307 &4 TR
Bt 180 67 Jia Mamfasturng 64 T8 ST 708
1318 128 T80 Servcen 128 567 137 M2
30011 T ET2 Trads 408 3274
23748 T 296 04 and gas bl e
45478 50 285 Transgeutation and sommuncation 52 650 51 244
19546 074 Buildeyg and sonunestion 28435 203
20048 16 023 Powor wnd waler supply 18488 21 7a7
§27a TE82 Seafood 7 Ba 301
268 307 Hetale and regtauranis oM 235
416 a4 Agrulturs and Fresiry TAEE 437
48 008 &7 106 Contrad wnd ocal govrnmien SIS 52153
&8 500 6 74T Fisanca TH e 110
a5 B4T B A% Total depouts from custom ers, nominal amount Ll A S B
£00 a1 Adumants 49 478
298 4E8 20 864 Crepesis from o 3 15 694 GAT 103

The breakdown info principal customer groups cormesponds to the EL's standard industrial classification,

HACE Ren 2
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Note 43 Debt securities issued

Changes i debl securities issued DHNE Bank ABA
Balanzs Exchangs
shoet Muatured’ mbe Cthar
31 Dec, Insed medeamed . movements  adusimanis 31 Des.
Armeuinis in WOW mlian HHE e e nie 2018 s
Commercial pager ittusd, rominal amourt 153415 BT N7 O S0 455) 13335 1559 B8
Baond debt, paminal amsount 173 368 6 Tad {74 588) 6 T66) 16T 870
_Adnsmants 10 158 il 875) 12 133
Tatsl debi securites aued TI6 041 BO4I0E1 (R G35 044) {10 o5 {1 §75) 0 G680
Maturity of dobt securities Issued recorded at amortised cost as at 31 Decamber 2016 "' ONE Bank ASA
Fsnbign
Awmunts i NOE milan MoK CiSTIEDY Tobal
207 31358 1
2018 15648 15 648
018 13074 13 074
2020 33 085 X5 085
200 13168 3186
naz LT 16 208
2023 and labes 18408 18 <08
Tota! bond debl recorded of amddtised cotl nominal amdunt 181178 16t 178
Maturity of dobt securifies Issued recorded at falr value as ol 31 December 2016 " DNBE Bank ASA
Folmge
Amounts in NOE miflon POE cumency Tg
207 & 153 352 153415
Tetal sernmarcial papor nsued, ' e
27 1R-11) 1 60T
2048 3151 3154
1048 2T 17
2020 (] (B}
2021 3453 3453
2022
2023 and later ki3] a1
Total bond debt. nominal amount 12 180 12 180
Totsl debt securiSes issusd reconded at fair valus. nominal amount 12 253 163 352 185 606
_Adpiemanty T4 365 10 158
Dbl wcuantiot chiusd 13 028 Iz WS 336 851

IF Moz own bonds
2 Includes bedped fers.

DB BANE — ANNUIAL REPORT 2048 1 28

317/350



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O000000000000o000o0o00o0ooo0000ondnE26109)
Oooooooa

MNote 43 Debt securities issued {continued)
Changes in deb! securities issued OB Bark Group
Balance Exchange

shiil Matired! ratn Cithes
3 D, hotusd = il | Bkl b 31 D
Asmeirita i NOK sl 2018 2016 2018 2016 2018 2045
Commmadeisl papar s, nemisel smount 163415 BOIT 7 (8920456 By 163 609
Bond debt, nominal amount ! 81 447 THE (B0 330 (24 giEn 08 D
Adustments ] 1583 bt R )
Total debl securmies issued TEF TR0 8 995 pod 9 200 FE6} (28 1) 158} S0k 810
Maturity of debt securities issued recorded af amortised cost as 31 December 2046 "' OME Bank Group

Fansgn
Amounty in NOK mdfon HOK curransy Toanl
T TH 840 T8 840
mia T2 RS T2TS
Foib k] B2 &8 52 803
e i &7 187 T a7
gt BD 128 B0 138
22 A7 280 AT 10
023 and fatwr BT 073 47073
T:libmsd!ﬁlmdnd-mmﬁindmﬂ.nmmﬁl ﬂ‘l 455 38
Makurity of debt securitles isswed recorded at falr value as at 31 December 2016 " DHE Bank Sroup

Fontign
Amaunts in MOK malian MoK EUITRREY Teasl
T a3 153 352 153 415
Total commaeicial papss intued. naminal amaunt 83 163 352 153415
a7 & 508 G Bds
b b 16318 16 318
2018 18157 18157
20 452 20452
221 16 861 1685
a2 Joar T
2023 and fater 2212 2212

T nominal B4 75T B4 TET
Total delt ey naued oo ded m lav value, arnl i B4 830 153 353 =T
Adusimenty © &53R 3 8 32 fnf
Dipit secuntes ixswed ﬂ-ﬁﬂ B 52 TET TEO
T Meouz own bonds. Nominal t ol odtdtamding i bords i DNE Bolighreddt lofaled NOK 4158 bficn o5 al 31 Decemnber 2015, The cover pood

marked value represended NOR S80.8 Biffon,
A ingludes Pedoed dema
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Note 44 Subordinated loan capital and perpetual subordinated loan capital securities

Changes In subordinated loan capltal and perpefual subordinated foan capital securities DND Bank Group

Balance Exchangs Balance

shst Matuted’ ke Cther shep

31 Dwc. [LASTT L] redesmed  mouvemenls  adustments 31 Dwe.

Armounts in NOW millon 2ME 208 2018 Fini] ] 208 2016

Term subordnated loan cepital. nominal emount 18415 7ag i 1158 16 638

Pempstunl subordinated loan capitsl, nomiral smount & 802 {10 E T2
Parpetunl subcedinabed foam capitsl secunbes,

s el ammoun yTaz [1-Fii] 4 551
Adszeants L] {254y 853
Totsl subordinated loan capital and

perpetual subordinated [oan capltal securities b B T 7 ] 2 0BT} {254} 0 053

ONB Bank Group
Cartymg
Canrying amount Cab amgant
Year minad In feteign cufrency Irtaneet rabe Malurigy duis in NOK
Term subordrated loan capital
mz EUR 750 475 % pa 202 mmy 612
2013 HOK 1280 Smonth MIBOR = 1. 70 % 2003 208 1250
2013 ELR 780 3% pa 2033 e BE12
2015 SEK 1060 1597 % pa 2005 200 51
1015 SEK 3000 Lmenth STIBOR +1.40 % 2028 2020 b )
2018 JPY 10 000 1.00% pa 2029 2021 738
Totsl nominal smount 18 415
Perpetual subcedinated loan capital
-1 usn 218 Somonth LIBOR + 026 % 1 B
tae usn 00 E-menth LIBOR « 013 % 1722
1598 usn 150 E-gridnth LIBOR «0.15 % 181
e JPY 19 000 451 % pa 2028 738
Tetal Aofminal amount 5607
Perpetual subordinated loan capital securites
Farahy GEP AE0 B0l %pa 207 ATad
T Ffranal driount 3737

The subardnated loan capital and pampetysl subordinated loan capital sscunties are Msusd by DNE Bank ASA.
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Mote 45 Other liabilities

DHE Bank ABA OB Bank Group
31 Dee 311 Dee 3 Diag, 31 Due
2016 2016 Armounts in MK milkon s 2018
HOE 1 &74 Shirt:tem Runding 1674 BG
&350 AL Shert poaitions trading &18 & 38
34M ez Aceruwd sxpansis and propasd muenues 3890 31855
1508 2810 Ciotumpntary creds, chiquet and cther payment services TEM 1 65
524 2508 Ureattied contract notes 2843 i}
2 4 858 Growp contibution/deridends oy
T 52 Accounts payable 108 {nrd
246 248 Caneral armgdoyes borug 245 246
10685 1748 Cithibe skl i 2TES 2158
W gkl Total gther Habimmies " 15 781 18 409

T Other labdties s ponwaly of 8 thod-herm nalure

Note 46  Equity

Share capital

DHE Bank ASA is wholly cuned subsidiany of DNB ASA, which is o Norwegian public imited company listed on the Dslo Stock Exchange
(Csio Bers). The share capitel of DNE Bank ASA at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2015 was HOK 18 314 311 000 dhvided into
163 143 110 shares, each with a norminal value of NOK 100

Fund for unrealised gains
The restricled share of refained sarnings (lund for unrealised gains) in DNE Bank ASA tolalled MOK 1 588 millien at 31 December 2016 and
HOK 1 035 million ot 31 December 20135,

Additional Tier 1 capital
The additional Tier 1 copitnl is issued by DNE Bank ASA

Changes In additional Tier 1 capital OB Bank Group
Bsance Exchange Balarce

shest Inberast Inteses! ] Eal.l

3 D, hsugd paid eecrusd  mMoverteils 31 De

Amewnts i MOK milfon 18 2018 2018 018 a1} [ 25
Adddionsl Tier 1 capiinl, nomired amooed 15 874 TEX g083
Adustmants L] {505} 565 iy %6
Auddittonal Tier 1 capiial 15 2 T 3m 305 8% (LL]] B35
OME Bank Group
Carrying
Carrpng mmaount ariount
Year resged In forgign curtensy Intaresd rate i O
2016 HOK 2180 Smaonth MIBOR + 325 % 2180
2018 uso D £ % pa, & 803
2018 HOK 1400 Imanth MIBOR + 525 % 1400
2018 ust b EEO % pm 8120
Totsl, norminal &moen 15574
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Note 47 Remunerations etc.

Pursuant to Section 6-16a of the Norwegian Public Limited Co nies Act, the Board of Directors will
present the following statement on remunerations to the Annual General hﬁeeting for voting:

“Information about DNB's remuneration scheme

Pursuan ta the regulations en remuneration schemes in financial instfulions etc., iIssued by the Noreegian Minisiry of Finance on 1 December
2010 and subsaquent amendmenls, companies are raguired Lo peblsh information about the men principles for determining remunerations.
crilerie for the stipulalion of amy vanable remunenstions end quanatne information on remunsration 1o senioe execulives. The information in
this nobe, including the Board of Direclors’ stafement on the stipulation of salaries and gther remunénmlions 1o senior ewecutives below,
represents such infomation, as stipulated in the remuneralion regulations

The group guidedines for remuneration in the DNE Group apply (o the folal remuneration fo all permanent employess in the DNB Group and
have been approved by the Board of Directors. The guidelines compeise monetary remuneration (fived salary, shorl and long-term incenbives),
employes benefits (pensions, employer's ability insurance and olher empioyes benefits) and employes development and carsses measures
{courses and development programmes, coresr programmes and olher non-monetary remuneration)

Actonding bo the guidelines, tolal remuneration kS to be based on & total evaluation of the performance of the Gioup, &5 well &5 the unil's and
each individual's contributions 1o value creation. Total remumeration should be struclured 1o ensure that IF does nol expose the Group 1o
urwanted ek The remuneration should be competitive, but al4o cost-effective for the Group

Furthermore, monelary remuneration should consist of a fived and o variable par where this is appropriate. Ficed safary should be a compen-
salion for thie responsibilties and requirements Bssigned to each position, 85 well 8s ils complexity, while variable rermuneration sheuld
encourage streng performance and desired condue,

‘Varlable remuneration

The group guidelnes shall ensure that variabie semunération is granted in accordance with the provisions in the remuneration regulations and
thie circutar from Finanstifsynet on remuneration schemes in fnancial insthstbons, Investment firms and management companies for mutued
funds, DME has had separate group guidelines for variabie remuneration since 2011, including special nibes for variable remuneration 1o senior
execulives, employees wilh responsibilfies which are of greal imponance 1o the company's nek exposure (risk lakers”) and employees who are
responsdle for independent control funclions.

The pupess of vasiable remuneration is to feward conduct and deveiop & corparate cullure which ensures long-tenm value generalion

Wariable resmunerstion (5 besed on an overall assessment of the results achieved within defined target areas for the Group, the unit and (he
indinicual, o well 0% compliance with the Group's vision, values, code of ethics and leadership panciples. The vardable remunerilion should be
performance-based without expesing the Group o unwanted risk. Furthermore, it should counferact excessive risk laking and promole sound
and effective risk mansgemant in ONE \Veriable remuneration (Donus) fof seniof execulives cannol exceed 50 per cand of fived salary.

DNE's varable remuneration scheme applies globally, though non-Norwegian branches and subsidianes will also be required to comply wilh
ocal legradation, regulations and guidelines, There may be challenges of @ legal nature in cases whede the Nonwegian regulations do not corre-
spond tolocal legisiation and local rules conceming remunerations in Snancial insttulions. In such cases, the Group will seek advice from the
relevant suthorities and inlernational experts to ensure thal the Group's practices are in complisnce wilth both Morwegian and kocal regulations.

The Board of Directors’ statement on the stipulation of salaries and other remunerations to senior executives

DNE's guidelines for delermining remunerations to the group chiel execulive and cther members of the group managemenl team should, at
all times. support prevailing sirategy and values, while conlribuling b the altasnrent of the Group's targets The remunerition should inspere
gondud o buld the desired corporate cullure with respect 1o performance and profit crientation. Mo changes have been made in the pnncipées
for the slipulation of vanable remunerations compared with the stalement for the previols year

Decision-making precess
The Board of Directors in DNE ASA has established a compensabon committes consisting of four members: the chalirman of the Board, the
vice-chairman, ene board member and one board member elecled by the employees

Thie Compernsation Commillee prepares malters for the Board of Directors and has the following main responsibiities;

*  Annually evaluate and present its recommendations regarding the lotal remuneration awarded fo the group chief executive

& Annually prepare recommended largets for the group chiel execulive

*  Based on suggeslions from the group chief executive, decide the remuneration and alher key benefils awarded 1o the group execulive vce
president, Group Audt and the group execufive vice president, Group Risk Management

*  Actin an adviscry capacity to the group chief executive regerding remunerabions end other key benefits for members of the group
management leam and, when applcable for athers wha report to ihe group chief exeoutive

' Consider other matters as decided by the Beard of Directors andfor the Compensation Committes
¥ Evalupte other personnebrelsted issues which can be pssurned o enfail greal risk tothe Group's reputohion
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Note 47 Remunerations etc. (continued)

A Guidelines for the coming accounting year

Remyneration 1o ihe greqo chied executive

The tolal remuneration o the group chiel executive consists of fxed salany (main element). benefits in kind, variable resmuneraticn, and pension
and insurance schemes, The talal remuneration i3 determined basad on & total evaluation, and the vanable part of the remuneration is primany
based on the Group's financial tergets for retum on equity, the common equity Tier 1 capitad ratio and costincome ratia,

In additben io the financial targeis. the Group's customer satisfaction. corporate reputation scores and developments in key performance
Indicsors relating Lo lhe Group's cofpatate culture will be taken nto condideration. In addtion, the tolal evaluation will refect complrancs with
the Group's vishon, values, code of ethées and leadership prnciples.

The fived salary is subject to an annwal evaluation end is determined based on salary fevels in the labowr market in general and in the financial
Industry in particular, and on remuneration levels for comparable positions.

Visfiable salary 1o the group chiel execulive | detérmined based on an overall assessment of the resuls schisved within defined largel areas
Varable salary cannct exceed 50 per cent of fived saltary. The group chief executive is not awarded performance-based payments clher than
the stated vasiable remuneration .

In addition o variable remuneration, the group chief executive can be granled benefils in kind such as company car, newspaperspenodicals
and telephone’ aher communicabion. Benalits in Kind should be redevant 1o the group chiel axecutive’s fundlion of in line with markel practice,
and should not be significant relative Lo the group chief execulive's fxed salary

The group chisl executive 5 8 membser of e defined-conribution pension scheme pursuant fo the Norwegian Defined-contnbution Pension Act
i line with 88 other employees in Norwsy,

Up untit 31 December 2016, the group chief execulive had an agreement whereby his relirement age was 60 years with a pension representing
70 per cent of fixed salary According bo the apreament, If smploymeant was terminaled prior bo the age of 60, he would still be antitled to &
pension from the age of 60 with the deduction of 1714 of the pension amount for each full year remaining bo his G0th birthday. As of 1 Jenuary
2017, this agresrment hes besn replaced by & defined-contribution direct pension agreement based on the same condbions and prnciphes as
Ihese wsed in conneclion with the conversion of the Group's defned-benefit occupationsl pension scheme in 2018 pursuant to the Norwegien
Cecupational Pensicn Adl According to the new agreement, the entilements of the group chiefl executive, calculnled on the conversion date.
ane estimated bo corespond to the technical inserance value of the former defined-benafit agreement. Based on the calculation assumptions,
the new agreement will have the same value as ihe fomer defined-benefit agreement would have had ot retirement age. Fulure pension
entiermenis will comprise annual contributions and the relurn on e nghts earned. Aler the age of 80 no further contributions will be earned
undgfer this agreement. The group chief executive's pension schemas is thus basad entirely on definad-contribution principies, end the company
carries no risk for ihe return achieved on the contributions.

Accerding 1o the agreament, the group ehiel execulive ks enbiled 1o & tarmination paymend fof tao years if smployment s terninated prior 1o the
age of 0. M, during this pedod. the group chiel executive receives income from other employment. the termination payment will be reduced by
an amount coresponding to the salary recenved from this empioymment. Benefits i kind will be maintained for a pericd of three months.

REMmneraiicn {o othg a I.'.“. e nIvE S
Thie group chief executive determines the remunesrations to senlor aXecuthes in agreement with the chaimen of the Board of Cireclors. The
Board of Directars will honour existing binding agreements,

Thee tolal remunemabion bo senior execulives consésts of fived safary (main element), benefits in kind, variable salary, and pensicn and Insumnce
schemes. The lolal remunerition is determined based on the need 1o offer compelilive terms in he vanous business areas. The rémunerations
should promote the Group's compelitiveness in the refevant labour marked, as well as the Group's profitability, including the desired trend in
Income and costs. The total remunenation should lake DNE's reputation inte consideration and ensure that DNE abiracts and relains senior
exsculives with the desired skills and experience

The fixed salary is subject to an anneal eveluation and is determined based on salary levels in the labowr market in general and in the financial
imduslry in pasticular

Benefis in kind may be olfered to senior execulives to the extent the benefits have a relevant cennection to the employee's function in the
Group o ore in line wilth market praclice. The benefils sheuld not be significant relative 1o the employee's fixed salary,

Jargel structure S017

The Compensation Commillee approves principal erfens, principles and limits for variable remuneration. The Compendalion Commilles has
decided that the Group's refum on egquily. the common equity Tier 1 capital ralio and costincome ratio should constitule the Snancial targel
figures for 2017 In additbon Lothe financial tanpets, 1he Group's customer satisfaction and corporate repulalbon Seofes ars taken inlo
consideration, as well as developments in key performance indealors relating to the Group's corponabe cullure and inncwvation

The Group's financial tanget figures have besn broken dewn inte relevant tangats for the various business areas and stefl snd support units in
arder 10 offer optimal suppont for the implementation of new capital pdequacy and Equidily regulations.

The abowe Eargets will be key elements when calculaling and paying ot the variable remuneration for 2017, AN financial largels have been
defined and communicated to the relevant business areas and stelf end support units &s pan of the work with and follow-up of the targsts for
207
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Note 47 Remunerations etc. (continued)

Determination of variable remuneration for 2017
The variable remuneration for 2017 will be delermined by means of an overall assessment of performance, based on a combination of
gquantitative attainment of pre-set performance targels and qualitathve assessments of how the largets were achieved

The Board of Directors will determing 8 maximum Emill for total bonuses for the Group, excluding DNE Markets and DNE Eiendom, based on fhe
affainment of group targets over the last two years, combined with a general assessment of other imporant perameters and lhe Group's
fimancial capaciy, The total Bmit will be aSocated to the organisabion basad on the indivddual units” farged aklsinment and contribulions 1o the
Group's performance, With resgect to DNE Markeds. & spedial bmit will be determined for variable remunérstion basad on the fsk-adiusted
profits achieved by the unit and an overall assessment, which is in lime with market practics for this type of cperations. Comespondingly, the
rermuneration model in DNE Eiendom s consient with markel practice, with & high share of vanable remunerabion based on individual
performance.

g it &4, identified i d esponsible fof independent oo

DNE has prepared aad smplemented spedial rules for idenlified nek tokers. employees responsible for independent contrd funchions and Senior
execulives, herenafer called risk fakers, The special rules supplement the general group guidelines for rernun eration and hive been formutated
n complinnce with the remuneration regulations and the related cincular from Finanstilsynel

In acecordance with prevvasing requirements. DNB has surveyed the entire organisation o idendify risk lakers based on the entena resulting from
the circular and the EL regulation.

Fer risk takers, the following main principles apply tovarisble remuneration
¢ The remunerafion is eamed over o pericd of bwo years
*  ‘anable remuneration canmot excesd the agreed fooed remun eration.

Delerred and sondional payment of manimum 50 per cent of the eamed variable remunéralion in the form of DNE shares. The remuneration
paid in the form of shares will be dnided into three, subject to ménimum holding pericds (deferred and conditicnal), with one-third each year cwer
o pefiod of three years. The deferred and conddional payments will be in compliance wigh the stipulations in the remuneration regulations,

Bensions etc,

Pension schemes and any sgresments on lemination payments elc. should be considered relative bo cther remuneralion and should ensure
competiinae terms, The vancus components in pension schemes and severance pay, either alone or together, must nol be such that they could
pis# & threat to DHNE s reputation.

Senlor execulives are members of the defined-contnbutbon pension scheme pursuant to the Norwegian Defined-contribution Pensicn Act, in Ene
with all other emplopeasin Morway, Up 1o 31 December 2016, most senior exsculives in the Group had agreements andilling them to & defined-
penefit pension of the nge of 85, subject to certain adaptations. which ol all imes hove been in accordance with government guidelings Tor
remunerations to senior executives. Pension entitlements were not 1o exceed 70 per cent of fixed salary end should conshitute maximum 12
times the Hational Insurance bosc amount. However, the DNE Group has hongured existing agreements. A% of 1 Janvary 2017, thess agree-
menis have been replaced by defined-coniribution direct pension agreements based on the same caloulabon assumplions and principles as
those used in connection wilth the corversion of the Group's defined-banefl cccupational pension scheme in 3016 pursuant bo the Neorwegian
Crecupationnl Pension Act

The pension entillements of the senice execulives, calculated on the conversion dale, are eshimaled to camespond to the technical value of the
fomnes definsd-benefl scheme. Fulure pension sniitfernents will from now on comprise annual contribulions and the return on the dghts esmed
The ennual contribubicns are calculated indwvideally to ensure that, based on the calculaticn assumplicns, the new scheme will have the same
value &% the fomer defined-benefit agreement would have had af retirament age.

A% a main nule_no termination payment sgreements will be signed. However, the Group will honour exdsting sgreements
When entering into new agreaments, the guidelines generally apply &nd comprise all Senicr execubives.
See table of remunemtions for senjor executives below,

B. Binding guidelines for shares, subscription rights, options ¢tc, for the coming accounting year

An emount comesponding to 50 per cen of the eamed varable remuneration of the group chief executive, senior execulives and rick lakers is
invested in shases in DNB ASA The minimum holding penods are one year Tof one-ihind of the shares, bwo years for one-third of the shares and
thre-e years for ihe final one-third of the shares.

Ho addtional shares, subseription nghts, options o olher forms of remuneraticn only linked la shares o only to developments n the share page
of the company o other companies within the Group, will be awarded 1o the group chief execulive of seniof execulives, The group chiel
executive and senior execulives are, however, given the opportunity to participale in 8 share subscription scheme on the same lerms as other
empioyees in the DNE Groug.

C. Statementon the senlor executive salary palicy in the previsus account year
The group guideines defermined in 2011, including changes effective as from 2015, have been folowed.
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Mote 47 Remunerations etc. (continued)

0. Statement on the effects for the company and the sharchelders of remuneration agreements awarding shares,
subscription rights, options ete.

An amount coresponding to 50 per cent of the gross variable remuneration sarned by the group chiefl execulive and senior executives in 2016

|% invested in shores in DNE ASA, The Board of Directors believes thal the swarding of shares to senlor-executives, In vew of ihe bolal number

of shares n the company, will have no negative consequences Tor the company or the shaneholders.®

Terms for the chairman of the Board of Directors

Anne Canne Tanum received & remuneration of HOK 437 000 in 2016 as cheirman of the Board of Directors of DNE Bank ASA, compared with
HOK 420 000 in 2015, In additben, she reseived HOK 545 000 as chairman of the Baard of Direclors of DNB ASA, comparad with HOK 526 000
in 2015

Terms for the group chief executive

Rune Bjerke received an ordinary salary of NOK 5 794 000 in 2016, compared with NOK 5 628 000 in 2015, The Board of Directors-of DNB
ASA stpulated the greup chial executive’s bonus payment for 2016 at NOK 2 010 000, compared with MOK 2 332 000 in 2015 The bonus for
2016 will be paid in 2017, Banefils in kind were estimated af NOK 322 000, compared with MOK 349 D00 in 2015 Costs in connection with {he
group chief executive’'s pension scheme of NOK 23 871 000 were recorded for the 2016 accounting year, compared with HOK 4 586 000 in 2015,
Costs are divided between DNE ASA and ONE Bank ASA The costs recorded in the 2016 accounts consist of bwo elements: pension entithe-
ments eamad during the year {NOK 4 285 000) and a deduction for the effect of the conversion of the pension scheme Tor salaries in excess of
126G (NOK 1 118 000)
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Note 47 Remunerations etc. {[continued)

The table has been constructed bo shaw nghls eamed during the perisd

Remuneratiens ete, in 2018 DNE Bank Group
Eenefits.
Fiune snnyal In kined Tetal HAsensed
salary  Femunens- Paid Bonus and ot reemunae- Lpans as pension
as et 3 Dec.  ton eamed nalaries parned bonefts ton samed Bt Dec oNpENSES
Armounts in NOW 1 000 D167 m206T o018 in20a" in 2016 in 2016 6T n20i6 "
Board of Directors of DNE Bank AR
Anng Carirsp Temuns dehaimaan) = 4 sa7
Jwiln Bargd (ven-thaienan) L] B nr
Lilimn Hasinesm (freen © January 2016) 554 a =7 20 kL] 87 38T 73
Kim Wakl £ Al g E1
Group management
Rune Bjerks, CEQ 5558 BT84 2010 ks 8128 845 4888
Byarn Edik Mamss, CFO
{ur¥d 1 Mareh 2017) 3860 407 1520 234 5 B35 858 B224
Kjertin Bramhen CFO
{feom 1 March 2017 3040 3180 1180 23 4638 40 819
Trond Bentastuen, group EVP 3580 3204 1269 268 4763 5300 06
Cntar Erizaid, group EVP a8 5208 3800 35 13240 e 72 ]
Benedicte 5. Fasmed, grong EVIP
{from 26 September 2018) 2950 2383 B30 205 3458 T4TE ma
Liv Flsdshl, group EVP 3050 3196 1110 243 4 540 1238 1014
Rli;?ﬁw %TE) 2850 2423 1420 22 4072 BEM Ry
Solopagy Hellebugd, geoup EVP 2450 28T 920 232 373 3 39
Thomas Migteds. group EVP 2500 2028 830 258 LT H 4 482 256
Kar Oined Moen, group EVP 2840 2845 1420 o 4187 AL 120
Tom Rathice, group EVP 3400 A7 1020 278 E o0 531 2813
Bengt Hav Lusd, EVP 2919 1982 13260 A 3445 EREL "
Harald Secchi-Hanssen, group EVP 4 060 4278 1400 25T 51 5372 1004
Tecjn Tumes. goup EVP 3830 4118 560 35 49355 75
Loars to othed smplayees 18112 654

1 Foed annual selivy ol yesrend fir smpioyees who were members of the Board of Dirsctors or fhe group managemen feam duning the year
2 lncluwdes remunarstion recehed from all compenies within bhe DVE Groug for sonvice on Soards of Bredors snd commiiees. For those who beve mcssed
mmeneration for more bhan one postor in 2078, the fafowing amounis are sedaled to e bosm positions i DS Bank 454
Anpe Cavine Tamwar NOK 43T 000
darie Barpo: NOK 318 008
SO PECNS A MEmia of mone han one body,
A iecludes salary payrenls R i dling yedr and Redday pay on bovuses Fome erplepeds wene mevmibev of e Boaard of Dinschors or the gvoep manageren
T fior enly pavis of fhe year
Bonus samad excivding holdley pay:
Lowns o sh st e FEETDEOTIELAEE Ve SXTBNGeT an oroimary tanmy. Lowng bo DNE smplayess are et doded 00 special lemms, wisch am
close fo adinary Sustore e,
8} Panpion nghts sammsd dunng e year (SCCL The caktulstion of pension sntisments is hosed on the seme sconomic and sctuanid sceumptions & those unad
i pote 24 Pensions. Pension nghts semed dwing ihe yeer sxcooe the sfect of the pension Sscheme convienion, soe fehie below:
TP - Aching bisd of Weslth Mandoemad sirce May 2015 Fioed sl inclstes acting gy,

245
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Note 47 Remunerations etc. (continued)

The table has been consiructed o show nghts earned dunng the panod

Remunerations afc. In 2015 OMB Bank Group
derwisy
Fixad areual in Wind Total
wlary ms  Remunera- Paid Bonus mnd oifier  FEmUDNE. Lomns ms Arcrued
o 31 Dpc.  Sor sarned =aloriss warnod bariafés  Honsamed ot 31 Dec pRnion
Amaunts in NOK 1000 s mans” mams® mams’ in 2015 in 2015 5" epeninn
Board of Directors of DNE Bank ASA
Apne Carine Tanum (chairman) B 12 L]
Jurlw Bargo vice-chairman) 814 5 518
Svore Finutad 653 14 (] 22 =] 1385 48 T
Vigds Mathsen 71 ala H 2 v 1384 3T a2z
Kl Myland " 307 tar A 1
Torll Rambgar a7 e 1002 2
i Wahl o7 307 =]
Group managemant
Aume Bjsris. CECQ 54320 Sa 32 349 8309 A2 ] 4588
Bigen Erik N, CFD 3T 3956 12 208 S806 e 4837
Trond Benbestusn, group EWVP 2Em 5076 1522 o | 4 52 3% ) (7).
Kjorsiin Bemathan, group EVE 2608 3010 1272 e 4 40 » 551
Crttmr Eftzadd, group EVP B AN -1l d 4012 e 13189 ar 485
Liv Fiksdahl, geoup EVP M 3087 1332 b 4811 1480 848
Folveig Hellebust. group EVP 2 385 Z4TH 1 052 a0 ITH 11 60
Kari CHrad Mosn, group EVP 2780 2081 1172 il ] 4235 il 1309
Tom Rathke, group EVP 3335 3810 i &02 251 & 5 & 548 2182
Hsrald Serck.-Hunswen, group EWVP 4 20 4188 172 245 LRE ! 478 pe)
Thomas Mednide, grovp EVP 1 200 1973 832 2 Ims 5T 168
Tape Tumas, group EVP
ifom T Fabeunry 2018) 3850 3738 T42 08 4 GE7 &3 ata
Trygve Youhg group EVP
funtil T February 2018) - 1ied 1808 2480 1

Contrel Committes

Frode Hatsal (chmiman) 438 430
Farl Clav Hovden (vee-chabman) ™ 384 307 871

e Hallesan o 202

Ida Expodn Jobeson baord il 181

CHe Tramti = e 38

Supeavisory Board 5471 T 6663 373 i) & 0E2 38 348 id
Loans 0 other smployoes 1T 2T e

0 Faed anouni celery ot year-sd for ormployees who wive members of Ihe Boand of Dinclors o e grewp ranepemend e duving ife year
2 Includes remumenalion receied fovm o compames within the DN Graup for service on Boards of Dimclors and commitiess. For those who have recehed
Rl Far o than one poslion in 2003 ihe folloving Smownls Bre realed o thedr board poafons i DVE Bank A54)
Annr Cariod Tanurn FOK £33 000

darie Bergo: NOK 307 000
Sverre Finsted: NO® 307 500
Vigelis Matfsmn: NOK 307 00
ome persons ane memiser of more ifen ome bodly
B Inclades selary peyments for e enfire year and holdey pey on b Some smployess were memiers of the Board of Directors or dhe group management
b for aly BaTE o (e Y,
& Borvs swmed ecluing holday pay.
5 Loams to sharehaider.slected represenialies ane axiandsd on oroingny cum lwm. Loans fo DN smployses s safente on soacal lerms, which s
oo fo GRINATY Cushamer fenms
& Ascrusd p P 3 inciudlp penicn pighls sarmed during ihe yeer (3CC), The cakulalion of penson enllipments i Besed on the same sconomre and
et uaris] sssumphions as those ured & note 24 Pencionz.
T Eenefits in kind and ot benefis include pansion payments
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Note 47 Remunerations etc. (continued)

Other information on pension agreements
Wilh effect from 1 January 2017, all group executive vice presidents ae members of the defined-contribution pension scheme in line with all
chher emiployess in Norway.

Wilh effect from 1 January 2017, the Tollowing pension terms and conditions apply

The pension schemes of all senior executives were changed as of 1 January 2017, a5 described below. From this dabe, the agreements were
replaced by contribution-based direct pension agreements based on the same calculation assumplions and prnciples as those vsed In
connection with the conversion of the Group's defined-benefil cccupational pension scheme in 2016 pursuant Lo the Norweginn Cecupational
Pensbon Act. Changes in lhe pension agreaments do not entall any changes in previcusly agresd age kmits

The fellowing pension lerms applied up unlil 31 Decernber 2016

Rune Bjerke has a pension agreement enfitling him to a pension representing 70 per cent of pensicnable income from ihe age of 60. Biem Erk
Ness, Liv Fiksdahl, Kar Olred Mosn and Tom Rathke are eptitfed 1o a pansion rapeasenting 70 per cent of pansionable income from the age
of 52, Terje Tumes is entilled Lo a pension represenling 70 per cent of pengionable income from the age of 57, Trond Bentestuen, Kjerstn
Braathen and Harald Serck-Hanssen are enlitied 1o a pension representing 70 per cent of pensionable income from the age of 65. Otlar Edzeid
has a pension ggreement sntiling him to pension repressnling 70 per cent of pensionebies income from the age of 62, or 65 a1 the (atest.
Thomas Mdteide and Sohveig Hellebust are enliled to a penshon representing 70 per cent of fved salary from the age of 55, with no curaiiment
from the age of 65 through 67, Their pensionabie income is imiled bo 12 times the National Insurance basic amount. Benedicte Fasmer and
Rune Garborg became members of the group management team 8% of 26 September 2016, Ther pensionable income is limited to 12 times the
Hational Insurance basic amount. They have no agreement on a devialing retirement age

Bjam Enk Mamss' pension agreement enbitled hem to & pension representing 70 per cent of pensionable meome from the age of 52 When he
reached the agraed nge, it was decided lo extend his percd of employment up until 1 March 2017, Conseguenily, no payments were made
undar this agreanment in 2016, In the same way 85 for obher senlor execulhves, his pension agresment was alss converted with effect from

31 December 2018, 'with & capital value cofresponding 1o the bechnicl insurance rederves on (he original retitement date, Mo additional righls
will be eamed during he period up 1o his final retirement

Specification of the accrusd pension expenses

Arerued Effect ol convirsion Racorded
4 ta i WO 1 000 pansion Expaiis alf panien LEhin e PRl B
Rune Bjeke, CEQ 4 568 {1118} I8n
Other mombers of the group mansgement besm 14 B2 (1 THE [0
Total mann t beam 188453 (22 B (02T

Subscription rights programme for employeas
There was no subscriplion rights programme for employess in the DNE Bank Group ot year-end 2015

DONE Bark ASA Remuneration o the slatutory auditor OME Bank Group
2014 e Amournts in WO 1 800, sxckuding VAT 2018 2018

{7 8Eh {10 258} Stabutory it ' (23 62 (20855
(5B {1 e Cenar cadification sorvces {1 T3 f1414)

4 958) {12 850; Tax-selated ncvce (12 874} (8 158
{865 {3 478) Cohar seevi (3 5703 (BB7S)

(23 185 {27 817T) Toilid rermlneration (o the Statony suditor (41 B0} (38 315

1F inclodes fas for infarier @ udll dnd avditing funcs managed by DNE
21 Malaly refevs o services proviced im commection wilh travsfer prsing
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Mote 48 Information on related parties

DHE Bank ASA is 100 per canl owned by DNE ASA. The largest owner of the DHE Group is the Morwegian govemment, represented by the
Minigtry of Trade and Indusiry, which owns and controls 34 per cent of the shares in the parent company DHB ASA,

Alarge nurmber of bank transaclions are entered inte with related pasties as pan of ordinary business transactions, comprising loans, deposits
&nd forsign exchange iransachions. Thess transactions are based on madkel e, The lable below shows transaclions with relaled padies,
imeluckng balance sheets st year-end and related expenses and incoma for the year Refated companbes in the lable are associated companiss
plrs DNE Sevangs Bank Foundation, See nole 35 for @ $pecification of associsted companies, Loans toboard members and their spouses/
pariners and under-age children are extended on ordinary custamer terms, Leans (o group management, like loans (o olher group employees,
are extended on spechal tenms, which are clese to ordinary customer terms. Transactions with other DNE Bank Group companies afe shoam in
& separsle table.

Tramsactions wilh related paries DMEB Bank Group

3, Eiuire? oof Dinr ooy Feal i cormp afed i
b}

e AL Al &
HisE ! 218

L 213 12

m[ﬂmﬂ_w

Loans an at 1 January 4l

Now loarafopayments during s year i} el (3 {381}
Changes in relalsd pares 24 B 748

Loans as at 1 December L1 44 1028 "3
Inbefest income 1 1 4 )
Dlipotis ok ot 1 Jaruary 235 105 o2 316
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2 212 milon af year-ond 2015 o year-and 2014 e balance wag sara. The loans are ool off By deposiyipayments fom Espodfioans DNV Bard ASA haz
alng susd guarsniess for ofher loans in Ekzporfinams

Mo impairments were made on lcans to related parties in 2015 and 201 6. Reference is made to nobe 47 for micmmabion on loans (o growsp
mansgernent members and directors, Transaclions with deputy mernters of the Board of Directors are not included in the lable abave, In
genersl, ONE ermployes loans should be paid by sutomatic debit in monthly inslaiments in amear, Employes loans ane within he lam Imas
appiying lo general sustomer relathonships. Security is fumished for employes koans in eocordance with legal requirements.
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& DNB Bank ASA recorced NOK T 52T milfon and NOK 4 571 milon in group contrigutions fnonr subsidianes in 2018 amd 2015 respecively.
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Note 48 Infermation on related parties (continued)

Major transactions and agreamaents with related parties

DNE Boligkreditt A5

DNE Baoligkreadt {Boligkredst) is 100 per cenl owned by DNE Bank ASA. As part of erdinary business ransaclions, a large number af banking
trangaclions ade entered into between Bolighredilt and the bank, includng loans, deposits and fingncial derivalives used in cumency and infterest
rabe risk managemenl. Transactions are carried out on market terms and are regulated in the “Agreement relating fotransler of lcan portfclio
betwean DNE Bank ASA and DNE Boligkreditt A5 [the transfer agreement) and the “Contract betwesn DNEB Bank ASA and DNE Bobgkreditl
AS conteming purchase of managarment senrices” (lhe sendcing agresment),

The transfer egresment reguiates the transfer of lcan portfalios qualifying as colfateral for the issue of covered bonds. During 2016, portfolios of
HOK 158 billion were fransfered from the bank to Bolighrediif,

Pursuant to the management agreament, Bolighredilt purchases sendces from the bank, including sdministration, bank praduction, distibution,
customes confact, IT cperalions and Anancial and liquidty management, Boligkreddl pays an annual management fee fof these senaces based
on fhe lending volume under management and the achigved lending spreads. The manegement fee paid in 2016 tolalled HOK 2.3 billion,

At end-Decamber 2018 the bank had inested NOK 9.0 billlon in covered bonds (ssued by Boligkredtt,

In the fourth quarter of 2013, Bolighreditt enfered into a “Revebang Credit Facility Agreement (RTCFI" with DNE Bank ASA. Subject to the lerms
of this RCF. DMNB Bank makes avallable bo Bolighradil & révabing credil facilily at all irmes equal 1o Bokghredit's payment sbligations in HOK
for the nest 12 months In respect of issued Covered Bonds and related dervative hedge agreements. Boligkredtl shall apply ol amounts
bomowed by it under the RCF towands paymenls under Covered Bonds and related derivative cenlracts entesed inte for hedging purpeses for
those Covered Bonds

Beoligkreditt may not make wse of the RCF for the ffifiment of payment cbligations relaled to the ordinary {re-)purchase of Coversd Bonds (i
any), of lo dervalive agresments related 1o such Covered Bonds. The ebiigations of DNB Bank towards Boligkredtl under the RCF da not
conslitute a guarantes in respect of amounts dee and payable under the Covered Bonds. The agreement was cancelled on Bolighreditt's
Initiathve in the second quaner of 2016,

In 2016 Boligkreditt entered into reverss repurchasing agreements (reverse repos) with the bank as counterparty. The value of the repos
amounted o NOEK 362 billon at end-Decembar 2016

Boligkredit has o bong-temm overdrall faclily in DNE Bank ASA, In the fourth quarter of 2018 the Bmil of the ovendral facility was increased form
HOK 160 bdlion to MOK 190 bilion

DHBE Naeringskreditt AS
DNE Neeringskraditt (Maeningskredtl) ks 100 per cent owned by DNE Bank ASA. The mortgage instiution was established to issus covered
bonds secured by a cover pool comprising commercanl prepery

In 2016, porticics of NOK 7.2 billen were transferred from the bank to Naeringskreditt. The transfers are mage in agreemend with the customers
nnd are based on marke! terms. Likke Bolighredilt, Nasringskredilt purchases management and administrative sendces from the bank. In addition,
administrative services relating lolhe company's operathons are purchased from Bolighredil. The fee paid to the bank and Boligkredtt for 2016
amounting bo NOK 74,1 milicn and FBOK 3.1 million respeclivety,

In the balance sheat of Nasingskredit “Loans to and deposds wilh credit inshtutions® and “Due bo credi| instilutions™ are solely cutstandings with
DME Bank. A end-December 2016, the bank had invested NOK 0.8 tilkon in coversd bonds issued by Masnngsicredil

In A& Memringskredt entered inbo reverse repurchasing agreements (revers repos) with the bank as counterparty. The value of the repos
amatrbed b MOK 112 million and snd-Decernmber 2015, The company has a long-temm cvardrafl facility in DNE Bank A58 In the fourlh quarter
of 2018 the limil of the owerdrafl Tacility was Increased from NOK 25 Billion to NOK 30 bilign

ONB Livslorsiiring AS
As padl of the company’s ordinary mnvesiment acthily, DNB Livéforsiknng has subscribed for oovered bonds issued by Boighredill
DMNE Lhesforsikring's holding of Baligkredt bonds was valued at NOK 1.2 billion ot end-December 20165,

In Hevember 2016, o porttolio of heme modgages amounting 1o appraamately NOK 5 bilien was sold from DNE Boligoredilt A5 o
DHE Livsforsikring AS.

In the Tourth quisier of 2016, portfalios of commercinl mogages amounling to NOK 2.6 biion and NOK 4.5 billion respectively, were $old from
DNE Meesingxredift and DNE Bank to DNE Livsforsining

ONE Sweden Branch and DNB Sweden AB

Dwring the third quarter of 2015, an sgresmaent was entered into bebween ONE Sweden Branch end DNE Sweden AB, which implies that

DHE Saeden AE will take aver the rght to exland loans to the branch's new and exisling customers, Existing loans will be transferned o

DHE Sweden AB 1o ihe exlent deemed feasible and rational. Af end-December 2018 loans with a lofal value of SEK 31 9 billion has been
fransferred to DNB Sweden AB. Remaining lcans in DNE Sweden Branch totalied SEK 56 billion
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Mote 48 Off-balance sheet transactions and contingencies
Off-balance sheet transactions and additional information

DHE Bank A%a DB Bank Grosip

31 D 31 Dec. 3 Dec. 3 Do

2015 nia Arrurts m NOK mlean Frili] 25

a2 563 o8 B30 Perlarmance gaarantaes ] xR

36 375 32 57 Paymant guerartoes 3 av 3T Baa

185 715 17 678 Loan guaraniess 17 el 16 638

7253 BE35 Guaranbegs for taces sl BEET TN

2 TR0 2713 Other puarartes commimants 2714 3158

5 692 B9 205 Total guasantes commitmante 92 541 BEAT

Support agresmants 106 11 827

&5 62 206 Totnl guarantes commitmonts s 58 647 110 341

BED 486 478 782 Umnstfised eradit Snes and loan offers ' 608 122 800 623

4576 ie81 o y credit 11 3848 &7e0

Cither comemdmants i 51

B 0aT 483 653 Total commimaentt 410 107 GO

1063 TE4 572 a5 Toinl guamantes nnd oftbalance commitments 700 754 T15 805
i7as B 322 Pladged tetuntieg

1 Ofwinch counter-guaraniead by Srencal mallutons X It

1} Reckction in unilised credl Enes dod an offers ©r DNE Bant AZA, & manly due fo 8 cancelelion aof & anudtilised cred faally lewarnts DNG Bolghredt o e
second quader of X8

DONE Bank ASA i & member and shorehoider of the seftiement syslem Coatinuous Linked Setllement (CLS) As a shareholder, DNE Bank ASA
has an chiigation 1o confribute tocover any delicit in CLS Bani's central setiement account for member banks, sven if the default is caused by
anciher member bank, Intially, such deficil Wi be scught covered by cher member banks besed on transactions the respactive banks have

b with the member Bank which has caused the deficit in CLS Bank. Should there remain an uncowersd deficit in CLS Bank, this will be
cowered prorata by the member banks in CLS, according to Article 8 "Loss Allocations™ of CLS Bank's Intemabional Rules. Accerding to the
agreemants batwean CLS and the member banks, the pro rals payrent abligaions related 16 such coverage of ahy rempining deficil are limded
to USD 30 milien per member bank. Af the end of 2016, DNE had not recorded any cbligations in relation to CLS,

CHE Boligkreditt AS (Bolighkreditt)
Al end-December 2016, Boligkreditt had issued covered bonds with 8 nominal value of NOK 416 billion. In the event of bankruptey. the bond-
holiders have preferental nghts to the company’s cover poal,

Covered bonds CHEB Bolighre st
Do, 1 Dt
Amounis i NOK mifion 018 FilE]
Total Fsted covered Bonds 355 932 306 B4
Total private placements undes the bond pragamme 50 858 E R
Adjustment
Acorued inferest 3881 a0z
Aeealived gunuicieen 19 701 25 790
Totnl ekt necurities itued 438072 473 745
Covar pool DHE Bolighnedit
31 Dee. 31 Dee.
Ammunts i MOK il 2014 28
Fool of el ghie lcans 55 678 £51 517
Markst valus of derbatvan ey 7482
_Supplerentary atels
Tolnl collatealined atunts 638 108 B3 440
Cropr-coifabesalination (par cent) 1454 1342
Contingencies

Cum to s extensive aperations in Norway and abroad, the ONB banking group will reguiary be party to a number of legal actions. None of thie
current dispates ane expested to have any malerel impast on (he banking group's Bnencial pestion

The DNE banking group is subject fo a number of complaints and disputes relating lo structured producls and other invesiment products
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a )
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
15.56 17.75 17.46 16.31 14.02
12.67 15.54 15.66 13.80 11.81
13.73 16.62 16.80 15.03 12.94
15.56 17.18 16.17 13.84 13.54
UFJ 1990 (http://www._murc-kawasesouba. jp/fx/past__3month.php)
a )
2016 12 2017 1 2017 2 2017 3 2017 4 2017 5
13.67 13.79 13.76 13.55 13.01 13.40
13.43 13.32 13.40 13.04 12.61 13.00
13.55 13.56 13.59 13.30 12.83 13.21
UFJ 1990 (http://www._murc-kawasesouba. jp/fx/past__3month.php)
13.10 (2017 6 23 )
UFJ 1990 (http://www._murc-kawasesouba. jp/fx/past__3month.php)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Annual Shareholders' Meeting of DNB Bank ASA

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of DNB Bank ASA comprising the financial statements of the Parent
Company and the Group. The financial statements of the Parent Company comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2016, the income statement, comprehensive income statement, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2016, the income statement, comprehensive income statement, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion,

e the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the law and regulations;

e the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Parent Company
as at 31 December 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices generally accepted
in Norway;

e the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices generally
accepted in Norway, including International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Norway, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities as required by law and
regulations. We have also complied with our other ethical obligations in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Impairment of loans

Loans to customers represents 64 per cent of total assets for the Group. Impairment of loans are calculated
individually, for individually significant loans where objective evidence of impairment is identified, or collectively for
groups of loans which are not assessed individually, and for which objective evidence of impairment is identified on
a portfolio basis. The identification and calculation of impairment are processes involving judgement about various
assumptions and factors including the financial condition of the counter party, expected future cash flows,
observable market prices and expected net selling prices. The use of different modelling techniques and
assumptions could produce significantly different estimates of impairment of loans. The oilfield services, offshore
and oil & gas sectors have been subject to increased uncertainty as a consequence of a low oil price and a general
downturn in related markets. Since the related impairments of loans are material, and subject to estimation
uncertainty, we have assessed impairments of loans as a key audit matter.

We have assessed the design and tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over individual and
collective impairment of loans. For individually significant loans our procedures included assessing the identification
of loss events and testing of assumptions used in the models, including the forecasted future cash flows and the
estimated value of underlying collaterals. We also tested the mathematical accuracy of the models. For impairment
of loans calculated on a collective basis, we evaluated the key input variables or assumptions to the models, and
where relevant, compared data and assumptions to external benchmarks. We also tested the mathematical
accuracy of the models.

See note 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 in the consolidated financial statements for further information.
Valuation of Financial Instruments

Unlisted or illiquid financial instruments measured at fair value are valued based on models that use assumptions
that are not observable in the market place. The valuation of these instruments therefore have a higher risk of
errors. Such instruments comprise assets of NOK 72,082 million and liabilities of NOK 1,062 million measured at
fair value in the consolidated balance sheet and classified as level 3 instruments within the fair value hierarchy.
Due to the materiality of the unlisted or illiquid instruments, and the increased risk of errors, we considered the
valuation of these instruments a key audit matter

We assessed the design and tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over the valuation process
including management's determination and approval of assumptions and methodologies used in model-based
calculations as well as management's review of valuations provided by internal experts. We also assessed pricing
model methodologies against industry practice and valuation guidelines. We performed independent valuations for
selected instruments and used external source data where available. We compared results of our valuations to the
Group’s valuations.

Level 3 instruments which are presented at fair value on the balance sheet are disclosed in note 28 in the
consolidated financial statements.

Hedge accounting - Interest rate risk on long-term debt securities issued

Derivative instruments are used to manage exposure to interest rate risk related to long-term debt securities issued
in foreign currencies. Derivatives and borrowings designated at initial recognition as hedging relationships, are
accounted for as fair value hedges. The effectiveness of the hedging relationships are assessed at the beginning
and end of the relevant period. The application of hedge accounting and ensuring hedge effectiveness can be
judgmental and requires close monitoring from management. Due to the materiality of the hedging relationships, we
considered hedge accounting of interest rate risk on long-term debt securities issued as a key audit matter.

We assessed the design and tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over the designation and
ongoing management of hedge accounting relationships, including testing of hedge effectiveness. We examined
hedge documentation to assess whether the documentation complied with the requirements of the accounting
standards. We tested reconciliations between underlying source systems and documents used to manage and
document hedging relationships, including testing the mathematical accuracy and calculation of hedge
effectiveness.

See note 20 in the consolidated financial statements for further information.

Independent auditor's report — DNB Bank ASA
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Other information

Other information consists of the information included in the Company’s annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Board of Directors and Group Chief Executive (management) is
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information,
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices generally accepted in Norway for the
financial statements of the Parent Company and International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU
for the financial statements of the Group, and for such internal control as management determines is hecessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting, unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with law, regulations and generally accepted auditing principles in Norway,
including ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Independent auditor's report — DNB Bank ASA
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e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the

Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on the Board of Directors’ report and on the statements on corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility

Based on our audit of the financial statements as described above, it is our opinion that the information presented
in the Board of Directors’ report and in the statements on corporate governance and corporate social responsibility
concerning the financial statements, the going concern assumption and the proposal for the allocation of the result
is consistent with the financial statements and complies with the law and regulations.

Opinion on registration and documentation

Based on our audit of the financial statements as described above, and control procedures we have considered
necessary in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000, «Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information», it is our opinion that management
has fulfilled its duty to ensure that the Company's accounting information is properly recorded and documented as
required by law and bookkeeping standards and practices accepted in Norway.

Oslo, 8 March 2017
Ernst & Young AS

Anders Ggbel

State Authorised Public Accountant (Norway)
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